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TOWN OF SANDISFIELD

OFFICE OF THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR

sandisflcldtownadm^i:/vcrizon.net

March 8^ 2017

RE: Procurement Process Summary

As the Chief Procurement Officer (CPO) for the Municipal Light Plants (MLP) for the Towns of
Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandlsfield, and Tolland, It Is my pleasure to provide a summary of
our procurement process. I take great pride In our efforts to maintain the highest standard of
transparency. Contained herein you will have access to all pertinent documents relative to this
procurement. This process has been documented from the construction of our procurement
Instrument, the request for proposal (RPP), through to the awarding of a contract to the selected
proposer. Frontier Communications.

Ours was a dynamic process of compliance with two bodies of laws M.G.L Ch.30B and M.G.L
Ch. 164. Part of our journey Included trying to communicate our region's needs to State agencies
like the Massachusetts Broadband Institute (MBl). Our efforts exposed the need for unique
approaches to the procurement of broadband Internet services. In general, M.G.L Ch. 30B does
not allow for contracts with vendors to exceed three years. While the reasons for said thresholds
are well founded, this creates limitations in how the market for broadband Internet services can
respond to our region's needs.

An MLP Is a mechanism which can contract beyond the thresholds defined In M.G.L Ch. 30B.
The MLP has been In play since the time when Wired West was involved In the early initiatives
of small town's efforts to acquire broadband services and Is administered according to M.G.L Ch.
164. Given our region's particular procurement needs, we set out to procure through our town's
MLP. This meant establishing a procurement process that was compliant with M.G.L Ch. 30B
while affording town's broader contractual thresholds under M.G.L Ch. 164.

The process that Is detailed herein Is the result of incommensurable dedication of resources by the
appointed and elected officials of three towns. It has been a great honor and learning experience
to serve as the procurement officer for this project, and it Is my slncerest hope that the product of
this procurement process brings High Bandwidth Internet Services to the Towns of Monterey, New
Marlborough, Sandlslfield, and Tolland.

Respectful 1

Willie Morales, M.P.P
Chief Procurement Officer

P| 413-429-8398
F| 413-258-4225
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In order to provide structural context for the evolution of public policy as it pertains
to MLP's, it is important to provide a brief overview for the understanding of one of
public policies' foremost instruments, the law.

Administrative Law - Law made by or about the executive branch agencies or
department, the president at the federal level or the governor at the state level.

Authority statues - at the federal level congress delegates authority statutes to
agencies, once the authority is granted, agencies engage in two types of law
making; Quasi Legislative activity (Rule Making) and Quasi Judicial activity
(Decision Making).



Administrative Law Continued

Regulations - Are laws resulting from an agencies'
quasi legislative activities, these laws look a lot like
statutes.

Rule Making:
Statutes are made by the legislator, whereas regulations are
made by executive offices and agencies acting under
statutory authority

Regulations are often much more specific and prescriptive
than the Statutes that authorize them. They are often the
result of agency dissemination of field specific, market
specific, region specific, etc....legal needs, regulations also
carry the force of law!

In interpreting the legal parameters of public policy we must
always evaluate both Statutes and Regulations. Where
statutes provide the foundational scope of the law,
regulations deal with the specific implementation for laws.
You can only judge the validity of regulation by reading
them with the statutes that authorize them. In other wortk
this is a legal check and balances; a regulation that exceeds
the scope prescribed by a statute is invalid.

Decisions - Are laws resulting from an agencies'
quasi judicial activities, these look a lot like case law.

Decision Making:
This quasi judicial process resembles case law, this segment
of administrative law arises out of agencies' needs for
enforcement.

Decisions are published in individual agencies' reporters.
Many reporters are outdated and hard to find few libraries
have said documents, perhaps to both the benefit and
detriment of some agencies depending of course on
contextual details.
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Massachusetts General Law (M.G.L) -
Statutes

Code of Massachusetts Regulations (CMR) -
Regulations

UNXr,

in:94A
lew

M.G.L Ch. 164, §§34-37

M.G.L Ch. 164, §§47C-E

M.G.L Ch. 164, §§ 55-57A-C

M.G.L Ch.l64, §§ 63, 69, 69P-Q

M.G.L Ch.l64, §§75, 77, 79

M.G.LCh.l64, §§83-85

M.G.LCh.l64, §§91,93

M.G.L. Ch. 30, § 39M

M.G.L. Ch. 149, §§ 44A-44M

830 CMR 64H. 1.6 (Telecommunications
Services), § 2.

220 CMR 79.02 (Annual Return for Municipal
Lighting Plants)



Establishing an MLP
M.GX Ch.l64. $$ 47C-E - Broadband is established as a legitimate function for MLP's

• A municipal lighting plant or a cooperative public corporation and any municipal lighting plant
member thereof, established pursuant to this chapter or any general or special law may construct,
purchase or lease, and maintain such facilities as may be necessary for the distribution or the
operation of a telecommunications system for municipal use or for the use of its customers.

• Such municipal lighting plant may incur debt for such facilities by a vote taken in the manner
prescribed pursuant to section 8 of chapter 44. Such cooperative may incur debt for such facilities
pursuant to the provisions of section 47C.

• Wherever apt, the provisions of this chapter and chapter 44, which apply to the operation and
maintenance of a municipal lighting plant, shall apply also to the operation and maintenance of
such telecommunications system.

• To make contracts and incur liabilities, borrow money at rates of interest the cooperative may
determine, issue notes, bonds, certificates of indebtedness, and other obligations, receive funds
from members and pay interest thereon, issue capital stock and certificates representing equity
interests in assets, allocate eamings and losses at the times and in the manner the articles of
incorporation or bylaws or other contract specify, create book credits, capital funds, and reserves,
and secure obligations by mortgage or pledge of any of its property, franchises, and income



Establishing an MLP Continued

M.G.L Ch.l64. ̂ 55 - Confusion

A town which has established or votes to establish a gas or electric plant may elect a municipal light
board consisting of either three or five citizens of the town, each for a term of three years. Of the
three-member board, initially one shall be chosen for one year, one for two years, and one for three
years, and at each annual meeting thereafter one for a term of three years. Of the five-member board,
initially one shall be chosen for one year, two for two years and two for three years and thereafter, the
terms shall be for three years. The municipal light board shall have authority to construct, purchase or
lease a gas or electric plant in accordance with the vote of the town and to maintain and operate the
same.

* Please note that this is not the best practice for small towns to establish an MLP, these are the
guidelines for establishing a light board for the specific purpose of oversight and management
of a gas or electric plant. This manner of establishing an MLP is better suited for municipalities
in which the light board is desired to function separately from the board of selectmen.



Establishing an MLP Continued

M.G.L Ch.l64. $$ 34-37 - The best practice for establishing an MLP (Clarity)

(36) A town shall not acquire such a plant until authorized by a two thirds vote, taken by ballot with
the use of the voting list, at each of two town meetings called therefor and held at intervals of not less
than two nor more than thirteen months. If the first of such votes is favorable and the second

unfavorable, or if both such votes are unfavorable, no similar vote shall be passed within two years
thereafter.

(37) After a city or town has voted under section thirty-five or thirty-six, the city or town clerk shall
forthwith transmit to the department a certified copy of so much of the records of the city council or
of the town as relates to the result of the vote.
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Management of an MLP Continued
M.G.L Ch.l64.$56

The...selectmen or municipal light boardj if any, of a town acquiring a...plant shall appoint a manager of
municipal lighting who shall, under the direction and control or the...selectmen or municipal light board, if
any, and subject to this ch^ter, have full charge of the operation and management of the plant...His
compensation and term of office shall be fixed in... in towns oy the selectmen or municipal light board, if
any, and, before entering upon the performance of his official duties, he shall give bond to the city or town
for the faithful performance thereof in a sum and form and with sureties to the satisfaction of...selectmen
or municipal li^t board, if any, and shall, at the end of each municipal year, render to them such detailed
statement of his doings and or the business and financial matters m his charge as the department may
prescribe. See - 220 CMR 79.02

All moneys payable to or received by...manager...shall be paid to the...town treasurer. All accounts
rendered to or kept...shall be subject to the inspection of the city auditor...The auditor or officer having
similar duties, or the selectmen, may require any person presenting for settlement an account or claim
against such plant to make oath before him or them, in such form as he or they may prescribe, as to the
accuracy of such account or claim. The willful making of a false oath shall be punishaole as perjury. The
auditor or officer having similar duties in cities, and the selectmen in towns, shall approve the payment of
all bills or payrolls of such plants before they are paid by the treasurer, and may disallow and refuse to
approve for payment, in whole or in part^ any claim as fraudulent, unlawful or excessive; and in that case
the auditor or officer having similar duties, or the selectmen, shall file with the city or town treasurer a
written statement of the reasons for the refusal; and the treasurer shall not pay any claim or bill so
disallowed. This section shall not abridge the powers conferred on town accountants by sections fifly-five
to sixty-one, inclusive, of chapter forty-one.

* Please note that auditor is synonymous with town accountant, also important to recognize that
both the treasurer and accountant should possess critical financial aptitude to execute and monitor
ML? functions.



Management of an MLP Continued
M.G.L Ch.l64, §§ 57 A-C - Manager Duties

(57) At the beginning of each fiscal year, the manager... shall fumish to the... selectmen or municipal
light board, if any, an estimate of the.. .gross expenses of operation.

(57-A) Any...town having a municipal light plant may appropriate money for the maintenance and
operation of such plant, specifying that the same shall be taken from the receipts...and where such
appropriations are made, the...town treasurer may, in advance of the collection of said receipts, pay
bills on account of the said appropriations... any sum so advanced shall be repaid to the...town from
such receipts...and shall be applied as reimbursement to the...town, or to the payment of any
temporary loan made by the.. .town in anticipation of revenue of that year.

(57-B) Anv...town having a municipal light plant shall appropriate any income from the investment
or deposit of proceeds of bonds or notes of said plant issued under or subject to the provisions of
chapter forty-four solely for the purposes of said municipal lighting plant.

(57-C) Anv city or town having a municipal light plan shall appropriate any income from the
investment or deposit of funds in the insurance escrow account established by said plant solely for
the purposes of said plant.

M.G.L Ch.l64. $ 77 - Annual reporting to the Department of Public Utility. See M.G.L Ch.83 and
220 OMR 79.02



Legal Enforcement for MLP's
M.G.L Ch.l64. $ 63 - Fiscal and procedural transparency and the penalties for such infractions.

M.G.L Ch.l64,§§69, 69P-Q

(69)- Jurisdiction over the petition to fix prices.

(69-P) - Judicial review of Board of Selectmen and Jurisdiction thereof, constitutionality of the
Commonwealth and the United States.

(69-0) - The authority to enter into compacts, hearings, and investigations with other agencies
including those on State and Federal levels.

M.G.L Ch.l64. $$75 - Authorizing town enforcement.

M.G.L Ch.l64. $ 79 - Jurisdiction over towns providing MLP services such as broadband internet
services.

M.G.L Ch.l64. $§ 83-85 - Failure to comply and consequences (Fees mainly).

M.G.L Ch.l64. $§ 91. 93 - Establishing the authority of the courts to enforce law and enjoin
performance of unlawful performance.



Opinion Regarding Procurement Laws and MLP's
Does M.G.L. Ch. 30B. § KbVH) apply to MLP procurement?

In our opinion because the Uniform Procurement Act (or "chapter 3OB"), which prescribes
procurement requirements for the municipal acquisition and disposition of supplies and services (and
interests in real property), expressly exempts contracts or agreements entered into by an MLP, it
would not apply to the procurement of a contract for the installation, operation and maintenance of
broadband infrastructure as contemplated by the town(s) of Monterey, Sandisfield, and Tolland.

The exemption reads - any contracts or agreements entered into by a municipal gas or electric
department governed by a municipal light board, as defined by section fifty-five of chapter one
hundred and sixty-four or by a municipal light commission, as defined by section fifty-six A of said
chapter one hundred and sixty-four; provided, however, that any such board or commission may
accept the provisions of this chapter by a majority vote of its members



Opinion Regarding Procurement Laws and MLP's
Continued

Do construction bid laws, M.G.L. Ch. 30. § 39M (non-building proiects)
and M.G.L. Ch. 149. §§ 44A-44M (building proiects) apply?

• In our opinion Massachusetts construction bid laws do not apply
because those laws apply to construction work undertaken by a
municipality (Some vendors could potentially handle all construction).

• However, unlike chapter 3 OB the construction bid laws do not
expressly exempt MLP contracts. The Massachusetts Office of
Attorney General has interpreted such laws as applying to MLPs.

• That said, those laws will not apply if public funds are not used for the
construction needed work (Some vendors could potentially handle all
construction).



MLP Summary and Conclusion

The MLP is a mechanism by which public entities in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts function as a q
process that developed t

uasi-private corporations. The public policy
tie body of laws (Statues/M.G.L &

Regulations/CMR) recognized the needs of municipalities to perform in
private markets.
This is supported by many sections of M.G.L Ch.l64 such as § 47D that
exempts MLP's from public records law for purposes like protecting trade
secrets much like the body of laws that protect the intellectual property of
private firms.
Thus it is our position that the MLP can service broadband procurement
contracts on oehalf of municipalities. Further, we fed that the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts has defined the structure of the MLP, the
role of MLP officers, and the relationship between Municipalities and their
MLP's within Commonwealth laws.



Monterey, Sandisfleld, and Tolland Massachusetts
Joint Municipal Light Plant (MLP) Request for Proposal (RFP)

High Bandwidth Internet Services Procurement

1.0 General Procurement Information

RFP Release Date: January 6,2017, Noon
Bidder's Conference: Tuesday January 17, 2017 2:00 P.M., Sandisfield Town Hall Annex
Questions Due: By Thursday January 26, 2017, Noon [Send Questions to: aboydbos@gmail.com]
Response to Questions: Tuesday January 31, 2017
Submittal Date deadline: Thursday February 9, 2017,2:00 p.m. at Sandisfleld Town Hall Annex
Interview Date: Thursday February 16.2017 [Towns may choose not to interview]
Award Date: February 22,2017
Procurement Officer and Submittal address:

Mr. Willie Morales, Town Administrator
Sandisfleld Town Hall Annex

66 Sandisfield Road, PO Box 90
Sandisfleld, MA 01255

2.0 Background and Purpose of Procurement

2.1 Background

In 2008, Massachusetts legislators approved and the Governor signed legislation to further the
goal of achieving broadband Internet access in unserved parts of the Commonwealth. Under this
program, the Massachusetts Broadband Institute ("MBI") guided and funded the building of the
MassBroadband 123 middle mile network as a backbone to support ultimate delivery of last mile service
to unserved Towns.

The current Last Mile Program is designed to support 44 unserved Western Massachusetts
communities with residential broadband access. The MBI is building a flexible framework that will help
all unserved towns achieve broadband access, allowing for a range of project models, including multi-
town collaborations, locally owned networks, and industry partnerships. Many technology and
operational choices will be supported, as long as they meet performance, affordability, and sustainability
standards. In support of the Last Mile Program, the MBI will disburse capital from the State in aid of
approved projects.

2.2 Purpose of Procurement

The Town MLPs for Monterey, Sandisfield. and Tolland jointly seek a telecommunications
Vendor who can provide a complete 3-Town regional solution for meeting the need and primary goal of
achieving high bandwidth Internet access for residents and businesses in the Towns, with the availability
of related services such as high definition Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) telephone service, viewed
as a positive addition. The Town MLPs strong desire is for such services to be provided via a state of the
art Fiber To The Premises (FTTP) network. The goal is in accord with the Commonwealth's goal of
extending Internet access to Towns in western Massachusetts. The MLPs understand that the lack of
density of houses and businesses in the unserved Western Massachusetts communities has been an



obstacle to attracting broadband service providers who are willing to invest in infrastructure to deliver the
services. The Town MLPs arc hopeful that circumstances have changed and via this RPP are hoping to
attract a company that will design, build, own, operate and maintain a network that can deliver, first and
foremost, high bandwidth Internet access, and, secondarily, high definition telephony and perhaps
television channel packages via the same high bandwidth network.

The MLP for each Town would consider a subsidy as an inducement for the Vendor to invest in
and accept the risks and costs of its capital investment and continuing operation of a high bandwidth
network in each Town. It is anticipated the Vendor will own and maintain full responsibility for its
nenvork and all risks related to its design, implementation, and continuing operations (including financial
risks). The Town MLPs are not acquiring any interest in the Vendor's network.

To the extent they are able to do so. the MLPs will work with their respective Towns to allow
Vendor to site facilities on Town-owned property or provide needed easements. Each Town MLP will
facilitate any local permitting required and waive associated municipal fees. Information on some
potential sites will be available at the Bidder's conference.

The purpose and goal of the procurement is to identify and contract with an experienced and
financially strong telecommunications provider to maximize the provision of Internet and related services
consistent with the most economic cost, or in other words, to maximize the value proposition for the
Towns by choosing the most advantageous Vendor proposal.

3.0 Scope of Vendor Service

3.1 Broadband Network Service

The Town MLPs for Monterey, Sandisficld, and Tolland jointly seek a telecommunications
vendor who can provide a complete regional solution for meeting the need and goal of achieving high
bandwidth Internet aceess for all residents and businesses in the Towns. Provision of this service will
require that the Vendor provide connection to their network for all premises, residential and business,
within Town boundaries, including those on private roadways and driveways. The selected Vendor will
be responsible for program management, make-ready assessment and permitting, design and engineering,
obtaining premise-entry consents, network implementation, network operations, subscriber marketing and
billing, customer support, network maintenance and emergency response and network renewal, as needed.
In responding to this RFP, the proposing Vendor will need to provide plans for how it will proceed to
implement its service to the Towns involved in this joint procurement.

3.2 Service Area Description

3.2.1 Monterey

Exhibit B.l attached is a map of Monterey, MA prepared by MBI. The map shows the existing
MassBroadband 123 middle mile and Town roadways. National Grid is the power distribution provider in
the Town and holds maintenance responsibility for poles. The Town estimates a count of 844 premises,
1950 poles and 57 route miles of roadway.

3.2.2 Sandisfield

Exhibit B.2 attached is a map of Sandisfield, MA prepared by MBI. The map shows the existing
MassBroadband 123 middle mile and Town roadways. National Grid is the power distribution provider



in the Town and holds maintenance responsibility for poles. The Town estimates a count of 677
premises, 1,762 poles and 91 route miles of roadway.

3.23 Tolland

Exhibit B.3 attached is a map of Tolland, MA prepared by MBI. The map shows the existing
MassBroadband 123 middle mile and Town roadways. National Grid is the power distribution provider in
the Town and holds maintenance responsibility for poles. The Town estimates a count of 535 premises,
801 poles and 41 route miles of roadway.

3.3 Required Services

The Towns of Monterey, Sandisfield, and Tolland require high bandwidth connection to the
Internet, referred to as broadband, to all household.s/living units and businesses within the geographic
boundaries of the Towns. Within this proposal request "subscriber" refers to each household/living unit
and business that consents to a network connection on its property. As noted above, the Town MLPs
highly desire for services to be offered via a Vendor-provided FTTP network. The MLPs will consider the
Vendor to have provided ubiquitous service to all premises if the Vendor is able to offer connection to at
least 96% of the premises in each Town. Services standards will be determined through the contract
negotiation process.

In order to meet the needs of all potential subscribers, the Town MLPs consider it highly
desirable for a Vendor to be capable of offering different levels (tiers) of broadband Internet service for
subscribers to choose from, with each level of service supporting different network connection
bandwidths for downstream and upstream data transfers. In order to be considered broadband service, a
Vendor's Internet service, by FCC definition, must be capable of supporting a connection bandwidth no
less than 25 megabits per second (Mbps) for downstream data transfer, and no less than 3 Mbps for
upstream data transfer. It is highly desirable for the lowest tier of broadband service offered to be capable
of supporting a network connection bandwidth of at least 50 Mbps for downstream data transfers.
Symmetric data transfer service is not required, but highly desirable. What is required for all tiers of
broadband Internet service offered, is the upstream conneetion bandwidth to be no less than 20% of the
downstream eonneetion bandwidth. So for a tier that offers a downstream connection bandwidth of 50
Mbps, this requires the tier to also provide an upstream connection bandwidth no less than 10 Mbps. In
addition to tiers of service offered that will meet the needs of most subscribers, a proposal that offers
subscribers the option of a network connection that supports a connection bandwidth equal to or
exceedingl gigabit per second (Gbps) for both downstream and upstream data transfers, will be
considered to be highly advantageous in the selection process. A proposal that also offers basic Internet
service options to choose from for subscribers that do not require high bandwidth connection to the
Internet will also be considered to be advantageous in the selection process.

Within this proposal request "bandwidth" refers to the sustained downstream or upstream data
transfer rate supported for a given level of Internet service, not a peak (up to) transfer rate. This definition
applies to both point-to-point and point-to-multipoint service connections.

3.4 Optional Services

The Town MLPs highly desire a Vendor to be capable of offering high definition VOIP telephone
.service via its network. The Town MLPs believe that dramatic changes continue to shape both telephone
and television services going forward. To that end, a Vendor capable of offering high definition (HD) and
standard definition television channel package service to all premises via the Vendor's high bandwidth



network is seen as a nice to have but not necessarily a requirement. A proposing Vendor must allow
subscribers the availability of third party services (e.g. telemedicine, security, etc.) via its network.

3.5 Subscriber Options

Vendors who are able to offer telephony and television channel package services in addition to
the required high-bandwidth Internet access, must afTord subscribers the option of Internet access only.
For all bundled service packages offered by a Vendor, subscribers must be afforded the level of Internet
service per Section 3.3 requirements.

4.0 Minimum Qualifying Criteria for Vendors

If the entity responding to this proposal dilTers from the entity that would enter into a Broadband
Services Agreement with the Town MLPs, then that disclosure should be clearly made in the response.
Further, if the proposing entity differs, then a statement must be provided by the proposing Vendor stating
whether it will or will not provide a guaranty for the performance of the entity entering into the
Agreement.

4.1 History and experience

The proposing Vendor must provide a brief history of the firm, noting its evolution of
telecommunication services, and in particular broadband services. Further, a concise statement of its
current business strategy must be provided. A proposal must include history of completing projects to
provide internet service similar to that required here. The Town MLPs require that a proposing Vendor be
authorized to conduct relevant business in Massachusetts and the Towns. However, Vendors not currently
authorized may respond. Vendors not currently authorized will need to provide details for the process and
schedule for obtaining the required authorization.

4.2 Financial resources

The Town MLPs expect a proposing Vendor to finance the full capital cost of make-ready,
design, commissioning, and provisioning of the network required for providing high-bandwidth Internet
access and services in each Town. Further, the proposing Vendor must offer credible evidence of its
ability to finance the project. If the proposing Vendor is a privately held corporation, it may enclose its
audited financial statements in a sealed envelope marked "Proprietary and Confidential." The Town
MLPs will hold confidential records submitted in such an envelope so marked until completion of
evaluations and as otherwise permitted by law.

4.3 Minimum existing customer base for requested services

The proposing Vendor must provide evidence of currently providing high-bandwidth Internet
services to rural communities similar to the Towns involved in this procurement. In the case where the
Vendor does not currently provide Internet access and service to at least 1000 subscribers in rural
communities, the Vendor must provide detail on existing contracts and provide a plan showing their
ability to deploy (funding, resources and organization) and support a multi-town broadband Internet
service.

5.0 Requirements for Proposal Content



Vendors are encouraged to prepare responses using clear and concise language that responds to
the RFP in a straightforward manner. Ail acronyms and technical terms must be explained. Vendors arc
requested to organize their RFP submission to follow the same order as in Section S.O, and to label any
additional attachments deemed appropriate to match the Section number it addresses. A response to the
RFP must address the complete service area identified in Section 3.2.

The proposing Vendor must address the following in the presentation of its proposal:

A. Minimum Quaiirication Requirements

The responses to Sections 5.1 through 5.3 should address the minimum qualification criteria
required in Section 4.0.

5.1 Business history and experience.

5.2 Financial resources.

5.3 Description and size of broadband Internet service customer base.

B. Comparative Criteria

5.4 Internet Service Performance Requirements

The proposing Vendor must provide a description of the tiers of Internet .service that will be
available to subscribers to choose from, for both downstream and upstream services per the requirements
provided in Section 3.3.

-Highly Advantageous: Vendor offers more than one tier of high bandwidth broadband service, as
well as a level of service that supports a connection bandwidth equal to or greater than 1 Gbps for both
downstream and upstream data transfers. No tier of service offered supports a connection bandwidth less
than 100 Mbps for downstream data transfers. For each tier offered the upstream connection bandwidth is
no less than 20% of the downstream connection bandwidth. Vendor also offers basic Internet service via
connection bandwidths less than the minimum bandwidths required to be considered broadband service.

-Advantageous: Vendor offers more than one tier of high bandwidth broadband service, as well as
a level of service that supports a connection bandwidth equal to or greater than 1 Gbps for both
downstream and upstream data transfers. No tier of service offered supports a connection bandwidth less
than 50 Mbps for downstream data transfers. For each tier offered the upstream connection bandwidth is
no less than 20% of the downstream connection bandwidth. Vendor also offers basic Internet service via
connection bandwidths less than the minimum bandwidths required to be considered broadband service.

-Not Advantageous: Vendor offers a single tier high bandwidth broadband service that supports a
connection bandwidth no greater than 50 Mbps for downstream data transfers, and no greater than 10
Mbps for upstream data transfers. Vendor also offers basic Internet service via connection bandwidths
less than the minimum bandwidths required to be considered broadband service.

-Not Acceptable: Vendor only offers basic Internet service via network connection bandwidths
for downstream and upstream data transfers that are less than the minimum bandwidths required to be
considered broadband service. [An Unacceptable rating will disqualify entire proposal.]



5.4.1 Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to provide high-bandwidth
Internet service to the consumer. The preferred method for providing such evidence is via recent results
from an independent study that measures broadband service performance as delivered by an Internet
service provider to the consumer, such as the Federal Communication Commission's (FCC) Measuring
Broadband America Program. Via evidence Vendor's actual connection bandwidths for all levels of
broadband service offered mu.st be shown to be greater than 80% of the advertised bandwidths across all
time periods.

-Highly advantageous: Study results or other evidence shows Vendor's actual measured
connection bandwidths for all levels of broadband service offered are greater than 90% of the advertised
bandwidths.

'-Advantageous: Study results or other evidence shows Vendor's actual measured connection
bandwidths for all levels of broadband service offered are between 85 and 90% of the advertised

bandwidths.

-Not Advantageous: Study results or other evidence shows Vendor's actual measured connection
bandwidths for all levels of broadband service offered are between 80 and 85% of the advertised

bandwidths.

-Unacceptable: Study results or other evidence shows Vendor's actual measured connection
bandwidths for all levels of broadband service offered are less than 80% of the advertised bandwidths.

[An Unacceptable rating will disqualify entire proposal.]

5.4.2 Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to satisfy its existing broadband
Internet service customers with respect to service performance, service options available, subscriber
billing, service pricing, maintenance and emergency response, and service problem handling. The
preferred method for providing such evidence is via independent survey results, such as the report
released by the American Customer Satisfaction Index that measures the level of national cross-industry
customer satisfaction for products and services. Via evidence the Vendor's current level of customer
satisfaction for all levels of broadband .service offered must be shown to be greater than 70%.

-Highly advantageous: Evidence shows that Vendor's customer satisfaction rating is greater than
90% for Internet services.

'-Advantageous: Evidence shows that Vendor's customer satisfaction rating is between 80 and
90% for Internet services.

-Not Advantageous: Evidence shows that Vendor's customer satisfaction rating is between 70
and 80% for Internet services.

-Unacceptable: Evidence shows that Vendor's customer satisfaction rating is less than 70% for
Internet services. [An Unacceptable rating will not disqualify entire proposal, but will contribute to
significantly lowering the composite rating.]

5.4.3 Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to provide broadband Internet
service that is highly available. Within this proposal request "availability" refers to the proportion of time
broadband Intemet access and services (per performance requirements specified in Section 3.3) are
expected to be provided to all subscribers. Evidence for availability can be measured for existing
broadband Internet customers, or calculated based on the Vendor's proposed network design. Network
design features that will drive service availability are network component reliability, component and



system-level redundancy, backup power generation, etc. Within this proposal request the term
"downtime" refers to periods of time when Internet access and service is unavailable to subscribers,
exclusive of periods of time required for the Vendor to perform scheduled maintenance.

-Highly Advantageous: Evidence shows that the Vendor can commit to providing broadband
Internet service for all levels of broadband service offered with an average downtime in any given month
no more than Sminutcs per week (99.95% availability).

-Advatageous: Evidence shows that the Vendor can commit to providing broadband Internet
service for all levels of broadband service offered with an average downtime in any given month no more
than 10 minutes per week (99.9% availability).

-Not Advantageous: Evidence shows that the Vendor can commit to providing broadband Internet
service for all levels of broadband service offered with an average downtime in any given month no more
than 50 minutes per week (99.5% availability).

-Unacceptable: Evidence shows that the Vendor will not be able to commit to providing
broadband Internet service for all levels of broadband service offered with an availability of at least
99.5% in any given month. [An Unacceptable rating will not disqualify entire proposal, but will
contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating.]

5.5 Service Schedule Requirements

Proposing Vendor must be able to provide broadband Internet service to all sub.scribers within
three years from contract commencement. To the extent service availability is delayed due to causes that
could not be anticipated and/or are beyond the Vendor's control, and the Vendor can demonstrate it is
exercising diligence in its efforts, the contract will be amended as appropriate.

-Highly advantageous: The Vendor commits to providing broadband Internet service to all
subscribers within two years of contract commencement.

-Advantageous: The Vendor commits to providing broadband Internet service to all subscribers
within two and one-half years of contract commencement.

'-Not advantageous: The Vendor commits to providing broadband Internet service to all
subscribers within three years of contract commencement.

-Unacceptable: The Vendor commits to providing broadband Internet service to all subscribers
in excess of three years of contract commencement. [An Unacceptable rating will not di.squalify entire
proposal, but will contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating]

5.5,1 Proposing Vendor must provide Internet service to all subscribers located on public and
private roads in the Towns, to the extent such subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles
or conduit with space available for additional cables. If a Vendor proposes a linear connection allowance
for reaching subscribers on a private road or driveway, the Vendor must propose a per foot unit price
applicable to the overage allowed per connection.

-Highly advantageous: The Vendor commits to connecting and providing Internet service to all
.subscribers on public and private roads, regardless of linear connection distance, to the extent such
sub.scribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or conduit with usable space available for
additional cables.



-Advantageous: The Vendor commits to connecting and providing Internet service to all
subscribers on public and private roads, with a linear connection allowance of 500 feet, to the extent such
subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or conduit with usable space available for
additional cables.

•Not advantageous: The Vendor commits to connecting and providing Internet service to all
subscribers on public and private roads, with a linear connection allowance of 300 feet, to the extent such
subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or conduit with usable space available for
additional cables.

-Unacceptable: The Vendor commits to connecting and providing Internet service to all
subscribers on public roads only with a linear connection allowance to be negotiated, to the extent such
subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or conduit with usable space available for
additional cables. [An Unacceptable rating will not disqualify entire proposal, but will contribute to
significantly lowering the composite rating.]

5.5.2 Proposing Vendor must provide a plan, including equipment and cost to subscribers, if
any, for initial installation of on-premises equipment (e.g. network terminal units, modems, routers,
uninterruptible power supply, etc.).

-Highly Advantageous: Proposing Vendor plans to provide and install on-premises equipment at
no cost to subscribers.

-Advantageous: Proposing Vendor plans to provide and install on-premises equipment at a cost to
subscribers not exceeding SI00.

-Not advantageous: Proposing Vendor plans to provide and install on-premises equipment at a
cost to subscribers exceeding S100 but less than $250.

-Unacceptable: Proposing Vendor plans to provide and install on-premises equipment at a cost to
subscribers exceeding $250. [An Unacceptable rating will not disqualify entire proposal, but will
contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating.]

5.5.3 Proposing Vendor must provide a plan for addressing how broadband service will be
provided to new premises after the network construction has been completed. To the extent possible the
plan shall include the applicable terms, conditions, and costs that will apply, as well as who will be
responsible for future costs.

-Highly Advantageous: The proposing Vendor commits to providing broadband service to future
premises, and provides a detailed plan for the terms, costs, and responsibilities of the involved parties.

-Advantageous: The proposing Vendor commits to providing broadband service to future
premises, and provides a general plan for the terms, costs, and responsibilities of the involved parties.

-Not advantageous: The proposing Vendor commits to providing broadband service to future
premises, but defers the determination of terms, costs, and responsibilities of the involved parties to the
future.

-Unacceptable: The proposing Vendor docs not commit to providing broadband service to future
premises after the network construction has been completed. [An Unacceptable rating will not disqualify
entire proposal, but will contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating .]



5.6 Proposing Vendor must provide a comprehensive description of its business proposition
for each Town and its subscribers, including all offered service options and the associated rates (cost) for
each service. The Vendor must provide broadband Internet service. Other services, such as high definition
telephone service, high definition television channel package service, and basic Internet are not required,
but are considered by the Town MLPs to be highly desirable. The Vendor shall provide a complete
description of the television packages available to subscribers if applicable.

-Highly advantageous: Proposing Vendor offers different tiers of broadband Intemet service to
choose from per Section 3.3, as well as basic Intemet service. The Vendor akso offers high definition
telephone service (G.722 codec quality or better), and high definition television channel packages
(comparable to satellite-based television channel package services) to choose from combined with the
Intemet services. The Vendor offers all of these services as a Triple Play package. The Vendor
demonstrates that its subscription rate charge for such Triple Play package is reasonable and generally
comparable to similar packages offered in Northeastem U.S. markets.

-Advantageous: Proposing Vendor offers different tiers of broadband Intemet service to choose
from per Section 3.3, as well as basic Intemet service. The Vendor also offers high definition telephone
service (G.722 codec quality or better), or high definition television channel packages (comparable to
satellite-based television channel package services) to choose from that can be bundled together with the
Intemet services, but not as a Triple Play package. The Vendor demonstrates that its subscription rate
charges for these offered services arc reasonable and generally comparable with those offered in
Northeastem U.S. markets.

-Not advantageous: Proposing Vendor offers different tiers of broadband Intemet service per
Section 3.3, as well as basic Internet service. The Vendor demonstrates that its subscription rate charges
for these offered services are reasonable and generally comparable with those offered in Northeastem
U.S. markets.

-Unacceptable: Proposing Vendor offers only the minimum required level of broadband Intemet
service per Section 3.3, as well as basic Intemet service, or the Vendor fails to demonstrate that its
subscription rate charges for any offered service, bundled services, or Triple Play package are reasonable
and generally not comparable with those offered in Northeastem U.S. markets. [An Unacceptable rating
will not disqualify entire proposal, but will contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating.]

5.7 Proposing Vendor shall identify and specify any service value enhancements it plans to
offer the Towns, such as a minimal fee or no fee for basic Intemet service for all subscribers, and free or
discounted broadband Intemet service fees for Town institutions (Town Hall, Schools, Library, Fire
Station, etc.).

-Highly Advantageous: The Vendor offers basic Internet service value enhancements for all
subscribers, plus offers free broadband Intemet service for all Town institutions.

-Advantageous: The Vendor offers basic Internet service value enhancements for all subscribers,
plus offers discounted rate broadband Intemet service for all Town institutions.

-Not advantageous: The Vendor offers basic Intemet service value enhancements for all
subscribers.

-Unacceptable: The Vendor offers no service value enhancements. [An Unacceptable rating will
not disqualify entire proposal, but will contribute to significantly lowering the composite rating.]



C. Other Proposal Content

5.8 If the proposing Vendor takes exception to any portion of the requirements of this
Proposal, the Vendor shall concisely and clearly articulate its exception and its reasoning therefore.
Vendor should consider that a material exception may lead to the Vendor being deemed non-responsivc.
A proposing Vendor, however, may suggest alternative approaches to those required here that in its
judgment provides similar, equal to or greater value. Any alternative approaeh(s) will be subjected to the
same comparative criteria herein.

5.9 If any part of the Scope of Vendor Service is to be provided or completed by a Sub-
Vendor or Subcontractor, the proposing Vendor certifies that they will be responsible for all work and/or
services provided by the Sub-Vendor or Subcontractor.

5.10 Proposing Vendor must provide eontact information for all similar contracts with a town
for broadband Internet service completed in the last two years in the Northeast.

5.11 Proposing Vendor must agree to be responsible for obtaining consents from premise
owners to make connections.

5.12 Proposing Vendor must disclose company policies as respects the following:

5.12.1 The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to adhere to the principle of Net
Neutrality whereby access is available to all content and applications regardless of the source, and without
blocking particular products, content, or websites. To that end, describe your network management or
non-discrimination policy as regards to (a) types (network protocols) of traffic, (b) sources or destinations
of traffic (including Vendor's own), and (c) traffic content.

5.12.2 The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to maintain the privacy of all
.subscribers, and not track, publish, or share information related to the content accessed by individual or
groups of subscribers. To that end, describe what monitoring and statistics you maintain regarding
network traffic. Include in the description what customer specific information is logged and how long
those logs are retained.

5.12.3 Describe in detail your network management in regards to bandwidth and
capacity planning with a particular focus on bandwidth between a Town's users and the Internet. If you
arc providing diverse Internet circuits/gateways, address capacity planning for each circuit as appropriate.

5.12.4 Describe in detail your monitoring of Customer Premises Equipment and
customer usage.

5.12.5 Describe in detail any limitations on the use of the service that will be applied to
customer usage.

5.12.6 Describe in detail what would constitute abuse of the network or network service,

and what steps would be taken regarding an abuscr.

5.12.7 Describe in detail processes for requesting new or modifications to services (e.g.
cancellation, temporary and/or .seasonal stoppage, etc.).
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5.12.8 Describe in detail plans and processes that minimize operational cost increases to
subscribers (e.g. minimization of truck rolls and other high cost support services via the use of
local resources and sub-contractors). The Town MLPs will view a network self-service portal
designed to reduce resources at a service call center as highly desirable .

5.13 The Town MLPs desire to gain insight into the design of high bandwidth networks the
Vendor typically constructs to provide customers with broadband Internet services. In support of this
desire the proposing Vendor must provide a description ol" the proposed regional network design it will
plan to construct to provide customers in each Town with required services listed in Sections 5.4 and 5.6.
The description of the network design should include content such as system-level schematics and block
diagrams for the proposed network architecture and topology, identification of the network component
technologies to be used, a list of the user equipment for each premise, a list of equipment to be centrally
located (regionally or within each Town) and operated by the Vendor, etc.

5.14 Proposing Vendor must provide the Town MLPs with options for olTcring broadband
Internet services to subscribers located within Town boundaries on private roads and driveways, not
connected via utility poles or underground conduit. Options should address situations where utility poles
are not permitted.

Special Town areas to assess:
Monterey - Stevens Lake Association
Sandisfield - Otis Woodlands

Tolland - North Tolland (-95 homes), Beldon Road, East Otis

5.15 Proposing Vendor must describe its process for performing network maintenance and
responding to emergencies. The Vendor must also describe its existing operating and maintenance
infrastructure. Vendor should also address its current policy and plans for as-needed renewal and future
upgrades, such as frequency of replacement of core network equipment, technology upgrades, or pro
active replacement of parts, for its existing broadband Internet customers.

5.16 Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its current customer service plan made
available to existing broadband Internet customers. The customer service plan must address subscriber
billing and customer service problem handling.

5.17 In support of each Town MLP's desire for the proposing Vendor to be responsible for all
customer-marketing efforts, the proposing Vendor should provide its plan for marketing its available
broadband Internet services.

5.18 Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its Customer Terms and Conditions governing
its relationship with customers, currently provided to all existing broadband Internet subscribers.

5.19 Proposing Vendor must describe its process for addressing life-line services, E9I I, and
emergency handling in outage situations for existing broadband Internet customers. The Vendor must
provide a description of any subscriber fees and billing associated with these services.

5.20 Proposing Vendor must provide a list and description of the Internet Service Provider
(ISP) services (e.g. Internet access, email, domain name registration, web hosting, online distributed
discussion services (e.g. Usenet), cloud services, online storage services, etc.) provided to existing
broadband Internet customers. The Vendor must provide a detailed description for the fees and fee
structure associated with the ISP services offered.
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5.21 Proposing Vendor must provide its plan for supporting third party services, at both the
subscriber and third party level.

6.0 Vendor Price Proposal

VENDOR IS TO SUBMIT ITS PRICE PROPOSAL IN RESPONSE TO THIS SECTION IN A

SEPARATE, SEALED ENVELOPE

The proposing Vendor must complete and submit the Price Proposal Form for each Town
included as Exhibit C.1-C.3 to this RFP. The price proposal for each Town will be the payment required,
if any, separate from and in addition to any subscriber fees to be charged to individual subscribers in a
Town for broadband and related services. If the proposing Vendor offers to provide the services at no
cost to the Town, the proposing Vendor should enter "Zero" on the price form.

As noted on the Price Proposal Form, the proposed price must be stated in two ways:

1) The lump sum price
2) The price stated as monthly payments to be made each month over the proposed contract

term, which shall not exceed IS years. Vendor may quote level monthly payments or stepped monthly
payments.

The proposing Vendor shall indicate whether it will agree to negotiate the payment structure of
the alternative monthly payment plan (not the fixed lump sum price), if requested by any of the Town
MLPs.

The Town MLPs acknowledge that they will not gain any residual ownership interest in the
network thereby. Any default by the Vendor during the contract term, however, may result in a security
or potential ownership interest accruing to the Towns.

7.0 Evaluation criteria and selection of Vendor Submittal and Price Proposal

The Town MLPs will make its selection in the following manner:

7.1 A joint Town selection committee will determine those vendors meeting the minimum
qualification requirements of Section 4.0. Those not meeting the Section 4.0 requirements will be
deemed non-responsive and discarded.

7.2 Excluding items S.l through 5.3, those items of Section 5.0 grouped under Comparative
Criteria (Items 5.4 through 5.7) will be ranked as described in Section 5.0. The joint Town selection
committee, in their judgment, will assign a heavier weighting of 50% of the overall composite rating to
Sections 5.4, 5.4.1, 5.4.2, and 5.6. During the evaluation period, the Town MLPs reserve the right to
request clarification from any proposing Vendor as respects material included in its proposal.

7.3 The joint Town selection committee will carefully consider and assess the combined results
of 7.1 and 7.2 above and by majority vote assign a composite rating for each Vendor, based on its
considered judgment as to most advantageous and responsive, and then rank the qualifying proposals by
that rating.
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7.4 Only after the ranking is completed under Section 7.3 will the joint Town selection
committee consider the separately submitted price proposals. The lump sum price proposals will be
reviewed and ordered from lowest cost to highest cost. Each alternative payment proposal will be
reviewed and ordered from lowest to highest based on a net present value analysis of the entire payment
stream at a uniform discount rate to be determined at the sole discretion of the Towns. All price proposals
(both lump sum and present value) will be ordered from lowest to highest (i.e. the Lump Sum plus net
present value of payment stream).

7.5 The Joint Town selection committee will consider its prior ranking under Section 7.3 in
combination with the associated price under Section 7.4 and select the combined proposal that, in its
considered Judgment, maximizes overall value to the Towns. The selected Proposal will be recommended
to each Town MLP Board for approval and award, but the Boards retain at their discretion the authority to
accept or reject the recommendation.

8.0 Other Information

8.1 Contracting Commencement and Contingencies

Attached, as Exhibit D is a draft of the proposed contract between each Town MLP and the
selected Vendor. Each Town MLP will negotiate a contract with the selected Vendor. The contractual
terms and conditions applicable to this procurement that are not negotiable are identified in Section 8.3
below. The proposing Vendor must identify each and every provision of the proposed contract (other
than those identified below as non-negotiable) the Vendor finds unacceptable and provide alternative
language aeceptable to the Vendor (each a "Rejected Contract Provision"). The Town MLPs reserve the
right, but are not obligated, to negotiate with the selected Vendor any or all Rejected Contract Provisions.

Within fifteen calendar days of award, the selected Vendor will begin contract negotiations with
each Town MLP to finalize the Agreement. For each proposed plan for providing the required supplies or
services, if evaluations of the proposal identify portions of such proposed plan that should be obtained by
negotiation, such portions shall be negotiated. Given the complexity of the services to be provided, the
selected Vendor shall be permitted to recommend provisions it believes should be included that may be
unique or specific to the nature of the services to be provided. Any such Vendor-recommended
provisions shall also be negotiated.

The Town MLP's execution of a contract will be contingent on reaching acceptable terms and
conditions between the parties.

8.2 Contracting parties

MLP for the Towns of Monterey, Sandisfield, Tolland, Massachusetts, and selected
Vendor

8 J Mandatory contractual terms and conditions

The following contract provisions reference the Agreement in Exhibit E and are mandatory and not
negotiable:

8.3.1 Police Powers. Article 2.4
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8.3.2 Indemnification, Performance Bond, Insurance Carriers. Articles 3.1, 3.3
and 3.4.

8.3.3 Subscriber Rights and Consumer Protection. Article 4 in its entirety.
8.3.4 Contract Payments. Article 9.6.
8.3.5 Records and Reports. Articles 11.1, 11.2, and 11.3.
8.3.6 Enforcement or Termination. Article 12 in its entirety.
8.3.7 Miscellaneous Provisions. Articles 13.3, 13.5, 13.6, and 13.8.

8.4 Procedural Matters

8.4.1 Proposing Vendors with questions regarding this RFP may submit their questions
via email no later than Noon, Thursday. January 26, 2017. Inquires received after this time will not be
considered. All inquiries and requests for information or clarification regarding this RFP must be
submitted by written email to Alice Boyd (email: aboydbos@ginai1.com).

The manner in which the Town MLPs respond to inquiries or questions shall be by the issuance
of written Addenda. Addenda responses will be distributed to all entities known to have requested a copy
of this RFP on Tuesday January 31, 2017. Additional Addenda may be issued.

8.4.2.1 Submission instructions and deadline. The proposing Vendor shall deliver its
Proposal in a sealed envelope to the Town of Sandisficld Procurement Officer no later than Thursday
February 9, 2017 at 2:00 p.m., all as specified in Section 1.0. Please include six (6) bard copies and one
CD in .pdf format of the complete proposal and other required submittals as outlined in Section 9.0, along
with a transmittal letter signed by an authorized official of the firm.

8.4.2.2 If a proposal is submitted prior to the due date, modifications may be submitted
in a sealed envelope prior to the deadline submittal date of Tuesday, February 09,2017,2:00 p.m.

8.4.2.3 No proposal may be withdrawn within ninety (90) days after the submission due
date.

8.4.3 Interviews. The Town MLPs reserve the right to interview all proposing
Vendors in which case the award date will be extended by three days. Proposing Vendors that meet
minimum required qualifications and are deemed responsive may be invited to meet with the Town MLP
Boards to discuss their proposals and answer questions. Vendors who are so invited shall bring an
executive, the person who will be the program manager and alternate program manager, and other
members of the team as the Vendor deems appropriate, but not more than five individuals.

8.4.4 Award Date and Contract Negotiations. February 22, 2017, or February 24, 2017
if interviews scheduled. Within flAcen calendar days the selected Vendor shall begin contract
negotiations with the Town MLPs subject to contingencies noted in Sections 8.1.1 through 8.1.2.

8.4.5 Contract Completion. Negotiations and contract acceptance shall be complete no
later than sixty (60) days from the Award Date.

8.4.6 Any Addendum subsequently issued by the Town MLPs following the release of
this RFP must be acknowledged by Vendor. All information given by the MLPs except by written
addenda shall be informal and shall not be binding upon the Town nor shall it (umish a basis for legal
action by any proposing Vendor or prospective Vendor against any of the Towns.

8.5 Miscellaneous provisions
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8.5.1 All submitted proposals shall be prepared at the sole cost and expense of the
proposing Vendor, and all proposals shall become the property of the Town MLPs.

8.5.2 The Town MLPs reserve the right to waive minor informalities or obvious
clerical errors in a proposal, subject to the extent allowed by law, subject to being notified no later than 48
hours prior to final consideration and price opening.

8.5.3 The Town MLPs reserve the right to decline the making of an award based on its
sole judgment that the proposals received do not meet its needs.

8.5.4 Unless clearly marked and submitted according to the instructions below,
submitted materials are a matter of public record and will be open to public inspection.

If proposing Vendor wishes to maintain confidentiality of certain information, such as company
financials for example, such information should be submitted in a separate sealed envelope clearly
marked "Confidential and Proprietary Information Submitted by [Company Name and Contact Person] in
Support of Broadband Network Service Proposal." Note that meetings of the all Town Committees are
open to the public and are recorded, in compliance with the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law. The law
permits confidential proprietary information (but only such information) to be discussed in closed
Executive Session.

The Town MLPs are subject to the requirements concerning disclosure of public records under
the Massachusetts Public Records Act, Mass. G.L. ch. 66 (the "Public Records Act"), which governs the
retention, disposition and archiving of public records. For purposes of the Public Records Act, "public
records" include all books, papers, maps, photographs, recorded tapes, financial statements, statistical
tabulations, or other documentary materials or data, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made
or received by the Towns. As a result, any information submitted to the Town MLPs by a respondent to a
request for response to an RFP, contractor, or any other party is subject to public disclosure as set forth in
the Public Records Act, unless exempt. The Town MLPs disclaim liability for disclosure or damages
arising from disclosure, and Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold the Towns harmless, resulting from any
Town action or inaction, as relates to disclosure.

8.5.5 Proposals that are late, incomplete, not properly endorsed or signed, or otherwise
contrary to instructions will be rejected by the Town MLPs as non-responsivc.

8.5.6 The Town MLPs are exempt from Federal and Massachusetts State Sales and
Excise Taxes, and no such taxes should be included in the proposal.

9.0 Submittal Requirements

All proposing Vendors must submit the following;

9.1 Evidence of meeting or exceeding the Minimum Qualification Requirements of
Sections 5.1 through 5.3 including audited financial statements of the entity proposing to enter into a
Broadband Services Agreement with the Town MLPs. If a project subsidiary is to be formed, then
provide a statement of parent indicating whether it is or is nol willing to provide a guaranty of the
performance of the subsidiary.
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9.2 Completed Vendor proposal including all responses and specified plans as
required in Sections 5.4 through 5.21.

9.3 Completed and signed Exhibit A.

9.4 Completed and signed Price Proposals. Exhibit C. 1 -C.4.

9.5 Any Vendor-prepared attachments clearly labeled and not among items listed
below.

9.6 Proposing Vendor must name its primary and alternate Program Manager for the
proposed project and provide full contact information.

9.7 Vendor submission of Rejected Contract Provision(s) and suggested alternate
language, Section 8.1.
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Exhibit A

Certification and Signature Page

Must be completed and submitted with proposal.

The Undersigned proposing Vendor submits this Proposal to deliver a Broadband Network Service to the
Towns of Monterey, Sandisficld, and Tolland.

Signature of authorized individual submitting proposal
Date;

Name of business;

Certificate of Non-Collusion

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this proposal has been made and submitted in
good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word
"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club, or
other organization, entity, or group of individuals.

Signature of authorized individual submitting proposal
Date:

Name of business:

Tax Compliance Certification

Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 62C, §49A, I certify under tlie penalties of perjury that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, I am in compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating
to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.

Signature of authorized individual submitting proposal
Date

Name of business
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Exhibit B.1

MBI Last Mile Planning Map -
Monterey

(See Attachment on Following Page)
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Exhibit B.2

MBI Last Mile Planning Map -
Sandisflcid

(Sec Attachment on Foliowing Page)
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February 23, 2017

Procurement Officer and Submittal address:

Mr. Willie Morales, Town Administrator

Sandisfield Town Hail Annex

66 Sandisfield Road, PC Box 90
Sandisfield. MA 01255

Re; High Bandwidth Internet Service Procurement RFP

Dear Ms. Morales,

On behalf of Frontier Communications, thank you for giving us the opportunity to propose Frontier's solution
for the Joint MLP RFP from the towns of Monterey, Sandisfield, Totland and New Marlborough (collectively,
the "Towns") for High Bandwidth Internet Services Procurement. Frontier commits to being the conscientious
and dedicated partner that can deliver the solutions and changes the Towns seek going forward, ensuring
you a secure and profitable future.

With Frontier, you can consolidate your communications with one provider, giving you advantages such as:
One Company for any issues impacting your network services. This will prevent the Towns
from having to deal with multiple vendors for upgrading or troubleshooting.

^ Direct Access to dedicated account management, engineering, and billing resources. This
means dealing with people who know Customer, your network, and you.
Leading Edge, Reliable Services backed by Frontier technicians and around-the-clock
network monitoring.

It is our expectation that the information provided in this response is proprietary./^is proposal requires the
successful contract completion with all four towns and Fronti^

The reliability and security of the network Frontier proposes for the Towns is our first priority. Your account
team includes experienced engineers and technicians, and we are available to serve you before, during and
after installation. Should you have any questions or would like additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact me.

Sincerely,

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
137 Harrison Street

Gloversville, NY 12078-4815
Office: (518)773-3737
Email: Kcvin.R.SmilhCt/I'lrcom

^9<i>nneac<l ^^coiindenl. uxszaiul.
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5.1 Minimum Qualification Requirements

5.1.1 Evidence of business history and experience. The proposing Vendor must provide a brief
history of the firm, noting its evolution of telecommunication services, and in particular broadband
services. Further, a concise statement of its current business strategy must be provided. A proposal
must include history of completing projects to provide Internet service similar to that required here.
The Town MLPs require that a proposing Vendor be authorized to conduct relevant business in
Massachusetts and the Towns. However, Vendors not currently authorized may respond. Vendors not
currently authorized will need to provide details for the process and schedule for obtaining the
required authorization.

Frontier Response:

Frontier Communications Corporation provides regulated and unregulated voice, data, and video
services to residential, business, and wholesale customers in the United States. The company offers
residential services, such as fiber-to-the-home and fiber-to-the-node broadband, as well as traditional
copper-based broadband products; and commercial services, including Ethemet, dedicated Internet,
multiprotocol label switching, time division multiplexing, data transport services, and optical
transport services. It also provides Frontier Secure suite of products for computer security, cloud
backup and sharing, identity protection, equipment insurance, and technical support; unified
messaging services comprising call forwarding, conference calling, caller identification, voicemail,
and call waiting services; long distance network services; and packages of communications services.
In addition, the company offers switched access services that facilitate other carriers to use the
company's facilities to originate and terminate their local and long distance voice traffic; satellite TV
video services; and a range of third-party communications equipment to small, medium, and
enterprise business customers.

Frontier Communications Corporation began in 1935 as Citizens Utilities Company, an entity formed
from several small providers of diversified utility services. In 1992, a representative year, 2,300
employees provided telephone, electric power, natural gas, water and wastewater treatment to
approximately 800,000 customers in 13 states. As the company became increasingly invested in
telecommunications, in the 1990s it began to divest its utility operations to focus on communications.
Following a series of transformative acquisitions, as of June 30, 2016, the company - renamed
Frontier Communications in 2008 - had approximately 30,000 employees serving 5.2 million
residential customers, 528,000 business customers, 4.5 million broadband subscribers and 1.6
million video subscribers in 29 states. Included in Frontier's customer count are approximately 1.2
million Fiber-To-The-Premises (FTTP) customers. In 2010, through an acquisition of certain
Verizon markets. Frontier gained significant experience in operating FTTP markets in Oregon,
Washington, Indiana and South Carolina. Since that time the company has expanded its FTTP
presence in certain additional markets, most recently in Connecticut, Florida, Texas and California.

FrOfltiSr ^9 oonneded. 1^9 confident. ^9 sueoessfuL
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Frontier Communicarions is a Fortune 500, S&P 500 Index Company focused on increasing
broadband availability and services, enhancing video capabilities, and improving products and
services for residential, business and commercial customers.

5.1.2 Evidence of financial resources. The Town MLPs expect a proposing Vendor to finance
the full capital cost of make-ready, design, commissioning, and provisioning of the network
required for providing high bandwidth Internet access and services in each Town. Further, the
proposing Vendor must offer credible evidence of its ability to finance the project. If the proposing
Vendor is a privately held corporation, it may enclose its audited financial statements in a sealed
envelope marked "Proprietary and Confidential." The Town MLPs will, subject to the requirements
of the Massachusetts Public Records Law, hold confidential records submitted in such an envelope
so marked until completion of evaluations and as otherwise permitted by law.

Frontier Response:

Frontier has included the following auditor statement, along with our consolidated balance sheet
and income statement.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Frontier Communications
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), equity and cash flows for each of the years
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2015. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31,2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31,2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Frantifif ISconneaed. I^oonlldent f^succcssJul
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 25, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut

February 25,2016

In a continuing effort to "go green a full year income statement and consolidated balance sheet,
as of the end of calendar year 2015, have been included as a reference to Frontier's financial
health. Frontier publishes its financial information at the following website:
httpJ/investor. frontier, com

'  ***•
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Frontier C ommuniratious Corporation
Condensed Consotid.aled Balance Sheet Data

iS In minimal

Deceirt>er31.2015 December 31.2014

ASStTS

Cmnti asstis;

Cash and casb rquivaknta
Accounts receivable, net

Restnrted cash

Otber cutreni assets

S ?36

571

8.444

130

$  082

014

119

Total current assets 10.131 1.415

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets - prtnapally goodmll
S.493

S.460

8.500

8 829

Total assets S 27.034 S  18.810

(TiirTenl liabiliDes

Long-term debt due within cme year

Accounts pavable and other cunaU liabilities
s 384

1.509

S  298

U14

Total cunent liabilities 1.S93 1.512

Deferred income taxes and otber liabilities

Long-term debt

Equity

4.009
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4.247

9.393

N  3.658
Total liabilities and equity i -^1 18.810
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5 1 3 Description and size of broadband Internet service customer base. The proposing Vendor
must provide evidence of currently providing high-bandwidth Internet services to rural communities
similar to the Towns involved in this procurement. In the case where the Vendor does not currently
provide Internet access and service to at least 1,000 subscribers in rural communities, the Vendor
must provide detail on existing contracts and provide a plan showing their ability to deploy (funding,
resources and organization) and support a multi-town broadband Intemet service.

Frontier Response;

Frontier Communications is a leader in providing communications services to urban, suburban and
rural communities in 29 states. We serve a diverse portfolio of customer segments - residential,
business and wholesale - in urban, suburban and rural markets.

Regardless of size and location, what all of our markets have in common is Frontier - a premier
communications provider with a robust network, quality service and product offerings that optimize
the customer experience.

Frontier serves over 1.2 million fiber to the premises subscribers nationwide. Within the neighboring
state of Connecticut, Frontier has 7,767 households that currently can receive broadband services
meeting and exceeding the stated minimum requirements for a FTTH/Gigabit Passive Optical
Network (GPON) buildout. Frontier currently has ongoing construction projects to reach
approximately 3,500 additional Connecticut households, and engineering is complete covering an
additional 17,745 households, and is underway to reach 8,962 more Connecticut households.

5.1.4 Proposal addresses the complete service area identified in RFP Section 3.2. The Towns
of Monterey, Sandisfield, and Tolland require high bandwidth connection to the Intemet, referred to
as broadband, for all households/living units and businesses within the geographic boundaries of the
Towns.

Frontier Response;

Frontier proposes to build a FTTP network capable of connecting to and providing high bandwidth
intemet services to each of the businesses and homes within the towns of Monterey, S^disfield,
Tolland and New Marlborough, with the understanding that Frontier will agree to enter discussions
with the Towns to determine the best and most cost effective method to reach the residences in the
Special Areas described in Section 5.3.5. This will be accomplished using the network architecture
and design/engineering approach described more fully in our response to item 5.3.4, Regional
Network Design, later in this Proposal.

FfOHtifir conneaed. [i!9 confident. eucoesdul
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5.1.5 Proposal includes all forms, certifications, and information required by this RFP,
including information (whether or not expressly requested) that is referenced in Section 5.2
below, as being necessary for a full and proper evaluation of proposals pursuant to the
Comparative Criteria set forth in that section.

Frontier Response:

Frontier believes its Proposal is responsive and has the necessary information required by the RFP
possible with current information and enables the Towns to complete a full and proper evaluation of
the proposal and Frontier's qualifications.

10
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5.2 Comparative Criteria

5.2.1 Internet Service Performance Requirements,,.

5.2.1.1 Service Tiers. The proposing Vendor must provide a description of the tiers of
Internet service that will be available to subscribers to choose from, tor both downstream and
upstream services per the requirements provided in Section 3.3.

Frontier Response:

Frontier will build a FTTP network that provides the same customer service profiles as in
Connecticut. Currently the maximum speed profile offered to FTTP customers in Connecticut is
I Gbps download and 100 Mbps upload. Additional symmetrical service profiles of 30Mb, 50Mb
and 100Mb are also available. A base level service of 12 Mbps dow^oad and 2 Mbps upload
will also be offered.

5.2.1.2 Service Bandwidth. Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to
provide high-bandwidth Internet service to the consumer. The preferred method for providing
such evidence is via recent results ifom an independent study that measures broadband service
performance as delivered by an Internet service provider to the consumer, such as the Federal
Communication Commission's (FCC) Measuring Broadband America Program. Vendor's actual
connection bandwidths for all levels of broadband service offered must be shown to be greater
than 80% of the advertised bandwidths across all time periods.

Frontier Response:

Frontier's proposed FTTP network architecture is the same as currently in place in Connecticut.
As FTTP service over that architecture has only been delivered in Connecticut commercially for
less than one year, no independent study has yet been conducted that would assess the
performance of that network. The FCC's Measuring Broadband America Program study only ^
references copper based-ADSL services, capping at 6MB down for Frontier. Tliere are multiple '
governmental and private organizations that study the reliability of FTTH solutions. Generally
they recognize that FTTH solutions deliver 99.9% reliability.

5.2.1.3 Customer Satisfaction. Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to
satisfy its existing broadband Internet service customers with respect to service performance,
service options available, subscriber billing, service pricing, maintenance and emergency
response, and service problem handling. The preferred method for providing such evidence is via
independent survey results, such as the report released by the American Customer Satisfaction
Index that measures the level of national cross-industry customer satisfaction for products and

1^9 cwnedeO. cwfidfnt.
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services. Vendor's current level of customer satisfaction for all levels of broadband service
offered must be shown to be greater than 70%.

-7

Frontier Response:

The American Customer Satisfaction Index report does not reflect Frontier's FTTH product, so
we cannot provide a direct response.

5.2.1.4 Service Availability. Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to
provide broadband Internet service that is highly available. Within this proposal request
"availability" refers to the proportion of time broadband Internet access and services (per
performance requirements specified in Section 3.3) are expected to be provided to all subscribers.
Evidence for availability can be measured tor existing broadband Intcmet customers, or calculated
based on the Vendor's proposed network design. Network design features that will drive service
availability are network component reliability, component and system-level redundancy, backup
power generation, etc. Within this proposal request the term "downtime" refers to periods of time
when Intemet access and service is unavailable to subscribers, exclusive of periods of time
required for the Vendor to perform scheduled maintenance.

Frontier Response:

There are multiple governmental and private organizations that study the reliability of FTTH
solutions. Generally they recognize that FTTH solutions deliver 99.9% reliability.

5.2.2 Service Connection Requirements

5.2.2.1 Commencement of Service. Proposing Vendor must be able to provide broadband
Intemet service to all subscribers within two to three years from contract date.

Frontier Response:

Frontier's proposed architecture and network build plan will provide the ability to connect every
home and business in the Towns to the network. The timeline for the work involved to provide
that connectivity is within three years, but is wholly dependent upon makc-ready work required
of National Grid and/or Verizon to allow Frontier to attach to existing or new poles and the
execution of a contract with each of the Towns.

As part of the architecture and build plan Frontier will be a third party attacher to the poles within
the Towns and will provide an application to attach to poles as needed with both National Grid
and Verizon to place Frontier facilities throughout the town. It is Frontier's opinion that overall
Make Ready work will be limited based on the existing pole line generally having minimal
attachments. In addition. Frontier is prepared to offer to place its own guying and anchors to

12
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accelerate the process and timeline. However, the timeline for construction of the network to
provide broadband Internet service to individual homes and businesses would not begin until such
time as the required make-ready work from National Grid and/or Verizon is completed for a PON
Serving Area (PSA) and all four contracts between the Towns and Frontier are executed.

At such time, Frontier will commence with the placement of fiber feeder cables from both our
Connecticut offices to the proposed centrally located Optical Line Terminal (OLT) cabinet(s).
The OLT will be designed with a diverse path for reliability and will be pad mounted on an
easement area safely away from potential hazards. Where feasible. Frontier will also consider the
use of available MBI fiber for any of the feeder requirements.

Following placement of the OLT, fiber will be placed from the OLT location to each of the PSAs
equipped with a Fiber Distribution Hubs (FDH). Each FDH will provide service to between 144
- 288 homes. All FDH cabinets will be fully equipped with 32:1 fiber splitters at the onset.

Lastly, Frontier will place new strand, fiber distribution cable and terminals to serve from 1 to 24
homes from each terminal. Frontier will also plan for future growth by adding fiber slack coils
strategically throughout the network. It is Frontier's intent to build and enable one to two serving
areas at a time until all areas are completed and ready for service. It is anticipated that most
serving areas will come on-line in the second and third years of construction, with the first year
of construction focused on placement of feeder facilities and electronics.

5.2.2.2 Connection Coverage Area (Existing Premises). Proposing Vendor must provide
Internet service to all subscribers located on public and private roads in the Towns, to the extent
such subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or via underground conduit, with
space available for additional cables.

Frontier Response:

Frontier commits to connect to all Participating Units, including those on private roads and
driveways, to the extent such Units are currently connected to existing poles or space-available
conduit with a linear connection allowance of up to 500 feet per Premise.

For private roads or driveways with existing poles or space-available conduit in excess of 500
feet, the following charges would apply:

• Accessible aerial path: $1 per foot over 500 feet

•  Inaccessible aerial path: $1.50 per foot over 500 feet

• Underground conduit path: $1 per foot over 500 feet

5.2.2.3 Subscriber Equipment. Proposing Vendor must provide a plan, including equipment
and cost to subscribers, if any, for initial installation of on-premises equipment (e.g. network
terminal units, modems, routers, uninterruptible power supply, etc.)

13
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Frontier Response:

Installation of services to be provided by Frontier will be scheduled with customers in advance
via appointment agreed to between Frontier and the subscriber. Frontier will balance the
installation load to ensure multiple new subscribers can be installed each day. In a post start-up
environment. Frontier strives to offer installation dates within five days of the customer placing
an order. Installation dates will be Monday through Saturday, holidays excluded.

Included in a typical fiber-to-the-premises (FTTP) installation are the following;

•  Connection of the premises to the network via a fiber drop cable

•  Installation of an Optical Network Terminal (ONT) at the customer premises which will
receive the optical signal and convert it to an electrical signal for further distribution
within the premises

•  Installation of a Residential Gateway (RG) or Modem that will provide intemet
connectivity and a Wi-Fi signal. Specific RG or Modem models may differ based upon
on the purchased services (e.g. voice/broadband/video triple play versus broadband only)

•  Installation of additional customer premises equipment (CPE) determined by the specific
video and/or intemet service configuration ordered purchased:

o a digital video recorder (DVR) which also serves as a wired-connection set-top box
(STB)

o additional video set-top boxes, as requested by the subscriber; wireless STBs will be
the Frontier preferred installation option

o Wi-Fi range extenders or access points

• Required wiring to connect the ONT, the RG/Modem and wiring where needed to
connect additional video CPE

•  Full testing of all components installed

•  Customer education on use of the services purchased and installed.

All equipment installed (with the exception of any backup battery equipment) will remain the
property of Frontier. Each installation will be performed by qualified technicians. It is Frontier's
intent to use Connecticut-based employee technicians to complete installations. This is
dependent, however, on resolution of any labor or legal issues preventing use of these employees,
and Frontier reserves the right to conduct installations with similarly-qualified contractors if
needed.

Frontier will waive the current standard installation charge of $149 per premises if the customer
consents to Frontier connecting service within 90 days of the service becoming available.

Should service to specific premises require special premises wiring additional charges may apply.
Please see Frontier's response to Section 5.2.2.2 regarding charges for private roads or driveways
in excess of 500 feet.

14
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Frontier may choose, from time to time, to waive the installation charge as part of promotional
offerings.

Set-top boxes provided as part of Frontier's video service will be a charged monthly recurring fee
per box.

5.2.2.4 Service for Future Premises. Proposing Vendor must provide a plan for addressing
how broadband service will be provided to new premises after the network construction has been
completed. The plan shall include the material terms, conditions, and costs that will apply, as well
as who will be responsible for future costs.

Frontier Response:

After the first ninety days of the service being available. Frontier will connect new premises where
fiber already exists at our standard installation charge of $149 per premises. For new premises
located outside the fiber network. Frontier will work with the Town to determine the most efficient
and economical way to reach these new premises.

Upon notice of new home construction. Frontier engineers will coordinate with the developer or
home owner as needed to place any additional cable or terminals required to extend the network
to serve those locations. For new developments or subdivisions it is the responsibility of the
developer to provide the conduit path required to serve each of the new homes. In such cases, no
additional charges would apply for placement of Frontier's cabling and terminal.

5.2.3 Business Terms/Flan

5.2.3.1 Service Options and Rates. Proposing Vendor must provide a comprehensive
description of its business proposition for each Town and its subscribers, including all offered
service options and the associated rates (cost) for each service. The Vendor must provide
broadband Intemet service. Other services, such as high definition telephone service, high
definition television channel package service, and basic Intemet are not required, but are
considered by the Town MLPs to be highly desirable. The Vendor shall provide a complete
description of the television packages available to subscribers if applicable.

Frontier Response:

Upon initiation of service to homes and businesses in the Towns, Frontier will establish definitive
pricing for its service offerings beyond the base level service described in Section 5.2.2.1. The
pricing will be similar to pricing that is offered to Frontier's FTTP customers in Connecticut. For
way of example, the current pricing for Connecticut FTTP customers is attached as Exhibit D.
This pricing is not reflective of the actual pricing that will be offered to customers located in the
Towns.

Frontier will also offer VOIP services and, upon receiving the necessary approvals, TV service.

15
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In addition, Town customers will be entitled to a credit if they subscribe to HSl speeds higher
than the base level service speed described in Section 5.2.2.1. The credit will reflect the current
monthly payment amount per Participating Unit the Town is remitting to Frontier. The credit is
for upgraded HSl only, and will not apply to TV or VOIP services.

5.2.3.2 Value Enhancements. Proposing Vendor shall identify and specify any service value
enhancements it plans to offer the Towns, such as a minimal fee or no fee for basic Internet service
for all subscribers, and free or discounted broadband Internet service fees for Town institutions
(Town Hall, Schools, Library, Fire Station, etc.).

Frontier Response:

Frontier proposes that all Participating units, upon consenting to allow Frontier to connect to their
premises, will enjoy a no fee basic Internet service of 12Mbps download/2Mbps upload. This
same offer would apply to existing Town institutions.

5.3 Other Proposal Content

5.3.1 Subcontractors. If any part of the Scope of Vendor Service is to be provided or
completed by a Sub-Vendor or Subcontractor, the proposing Vendor must provide a complete
description of the services to be so performed along with a foil description of the qualifications
and capabilities of the Sub-Vendor or Subcontractor. As part of the contract award for services,
the Town MLPs reserve the right to approve or disapprove any and all such Sub-Vendors or
Subcontractors.

Frontier Response:

Frontier intends to build its' network in the Towns, and install and service subscribers, using
employees. However, in the event that Frontier determines contractor resources to be necessary.
Frontier can notify the Town and will respond to any questions or concerns expressed by the
Town. The timeliness or the response could affect the services availability.

5.3.2 Contact Information. Proposing Vendor must provide contact information for all similar
contracts with a town for broadband Internet service completed in the last two years in the
Northeast.

16

FrOtrtifir connected. ^9 confident ^9 succe«fuL
BUSINESS EDGE'



Frontier
BUSINESS EDGE*

Frontier Response:

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
(518) 773-3737
Kevin.R.Smith@ftr.com
137 Harrison Street

Gloversville, NY 12078-4815

53.3 Vendor Policies. Proposing Vendor must disclose company policies as respects the
following:

5.3.3.1 Net Neutrality. The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to adhere to the
principle of Net Neutrality whereby access is available to all content and applications
regardless of the source, and without blocking particular products, content, or websites. To
that end, describe your network management or non-discrimination policy as regards to (a)
types (network protocols) of traffic, (b) sources or destinations of traffic (including Vendor's
own), and (c) traffic content.

Frontier Response:

Frontier will comply with all applicable federal and state laws regarding net neutrality. 5.3.3.2
Subscriber Privacy. The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to maintain the

privacy of all subscribers, and not track, publish, or share information related to the content
accessed by individual or groups of subscribers. To that end, describe what monitoring and
statistics you maintain regarding network traffic. Include in the description what customer
specific information is logged and how long those logs are retained.

Frontier Response:

Please see attached Exhibit E: Frontier Privacy Policy.

53.3.3 Network Management. Describe in detail your network management in regards to
bandwidth and capacity planning with a particular focus on bandwidth between a Town's users
and the Intemet. If you are providing diverse Internet circuits/gateways, address capacity
planning for each circuit as appropriate.

Frontier Response:

Please see attached Exhibit F: Frontier Network Management Policy.
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5.3.3.4 Equipment Monitoring. Describe in detail your monitoring of Customer Premises
Equipment and customer usage.

Frontier Response:

Frontier's Network Planning and Management teams monitor customer usage at the Optical
Line Terminal (OLT) port level, not at the customer premise. The OLTs are port-monitored
24/7 by our Network Operations Center (NOC).

5.3.3.5 Service Limitations. Describe in detail any limitations on the use of the service that
will be applied to customer usage.

Frontier Response:

Please see attached Exhibits G1 and G2: Frontier Commercial Intemet and Residential

Internet Acceptable Use Policies.

5.3.3.6 Service Abuse. Describe in detail what would constitute abuse of the network or

network service, and what steps would be taken regarding an abuser.

Frontier Response:

Please see attached Exhibit G1 and G2: Frontier Commercial Intemet and Residential Intemet

Acceptable Use Policies: and Exhibit H: Residential Intemet Service Agreement Terms and
Conditions.

5.3.3.7 Service Modifications. Describe in detail processes for requesting new or
modifications to services (e.g. cancellation, temporary and/or seasonal stoppage, etc.).

Frontier Response:

New service or modifications to services can be requested on-line or through our 24 hour
customer call center.

5.3.3.8 Operational Cost Efficiencies. Describe in detail plans and processes that
minimize operational cost increases to subscribers (e.g. minimization of tmck rolls and other
high cost support services via the use of local resources and sub-contractors). The Town MLPs
will view a network self-service portal designed to reduce resources at a service call center as
highly desirable.

Frontier Response:

18
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As a national provider of both residential and business telecommunications services, Frontier
competes in a highly competitive environment. Subscribers in the Towns will benefit from
this competition and will enjoy more efficient service and pricing based on the economies of
scale that will be realized using a national company. Frontier performs some trouble testing
remotely and through this testing determines if a truck roll is necessary.

5.3.4 Regional Network Design. The Town MLPs desire to gain insight into the design of high
bandwidth networks the Vendor typically constructs to provide customers with broadband
Intemet services. In support of this desire the proposing Vendor must provide a description of the
proposed regional network design it will plan to construct to provide customers in each Town
with required services listed in Sections 5.2.1-5.2.3. The description ofthe network design should
include content such as system-level schematics and block diagrams for the proposed network
architecture and topology, identification of the network component technologies to be used, a list
of the user equipment for each premise, a list of equipment to be centrally located (regionally or
within each Town) and operated by the Vendor, etc.

Frontier Response:

Frontier Communications will build a Fiber to the Premises (FTTP) network. This network is a
Gigabit Passive Optical Network (GPON) that uses optical fiber directly to the residential
customer. The devices near the customer are passive, i.e., there are no powered devices in the
distribution network.

Frontier's proposal is contingent upon the Towns providing locations or right of ways at no cost
suitable for network components necessary for the network design completion.

In order to provide High-Speed Intemet (HSI), VOIP, and Video, this proposed build will use the
existing CT network infrastmcture to access Frontier-owned and managed network elements. The
backbone of the network that leaves CT will traverse diverse routes from the Canaan Central

Office and the Norfolk Central Office. These diverse fiber runs will meet at an Optical Line
Terminal (OLT) proposed for placement within each of the town borders (each town will be
served by a dedicated OLT). Automated failover will occur if failure arises along one of these
two routes. Please note, similar to our existing exchange-fed network, the customers fed out of
the OLT are single-threaded (no diverse path). In this case, our normal outage response procedure
would be implemented if ever needed.

Each OLT will have the capacity to provide up to 8,192 customers with speeds up to 1 Gbps. The
uplinks to the two Connecticut-located central offices will support these speeds and will be
designed with the additional fiber to Link Aggregate (LAG) and provide additional uplink
capacity if ever needed.

Frontier's network in the Town's will be designed based on PON Serving Areas (PSA). A PSA
will have multiple PON ports allocated, but a single PON port will feed no more than 32
customers. This architecture design will inherently prevent congestion and oversubscription, and
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therefore minimize concems of bandwidth-hogging by heavy-usage customers. In addition, our
Network Planning team monitors bandwidth utilization of all Frontier GPON devices so that
augments are initiated prior to the realization of any congestion on our network.

Frontier will build this proposed network by PSA. This will amount to "lighting up" fiber
availability to approximately 200 households per build phase. Using this architecture and build
strategy, engineering and construction resources will be efficiently used to bring customers in-
service in waves - associated with the PSA's ultimately identified for each of the towns. A
definition of individual PSAs, and the schedule for individual PSA deployment, will be created,
shared, and implemented when appropriate.

Each Town will be divided into three to six PSAs, based on population densities. A pole-mounted
Fiber Distribution Hub (FDH) will mark the beginning of each PSA. Each PSA will include
between 144 and 288 households. This architecture allows easy and efficient administration of
the network. Maps depicting one potential division of PSAs for each Town is included below.

mm or

20

Frontier
BUSINESS EDGE'

m oonnected. m oonfidenL m suooessfuL



Frontier
BUSINESS EDGE'

PSA 11,11

uPSAHUfipH' '
V  "I^RSAII.iaflp

M(P»niry ya

,PSA .1. 1 12 FMH

MONTEREY

Frontier
{[DGE



Frontier
BUSINESS EDGE'

IPSWp<l.2 FDH \

RSA 11111 FDH

S9\1113.FDH/I

q.*n

SANDISFIELD

Frontier
fiU&kMESS EDGE



BUSINESS EDGE'

PSA1114FDH

RSA 11.2F0H PSA 1 11 FDHV

S-5A CFii sixe yAiiofia-s -736

y-^.P.SAIlia :
i -■ &\\

TOLLAND

Frontier
BUSINESS EOGr

I cpnnected. 1: 14 conlidenl. I Si 4 sucttKduL



Frontier
BUSINESS EDGE*

5.3.5 Service Options for Special Areas. Proposing Vendor must provide the Town MLPs
with options for offering broadband Internet services to subscribers located within Town
boundaries on private roads and driveways, not connected via utility poles or imderground
conduit. Options should address situations where utility poles are not permitted.

Special Town areas to assess:

Monterey - Stevens Lake Association
Sandisfield - Otis Woodlands

Tolland - North Tolland (~95 homes), Beldon Road, East Otis

Frontier Response:

The Special Areas require further joint conversations with Town, local, homeowner association
and/or owners of rights of way. The financial proposal for these is not included in this proposal.

Sandisfield - Otis Woodlands: Frontier will agree to enter discussions with Sandisfield and Otis
Woodlands association to determine the best and most cost effective method to reach the

residences there.

Monterey - Stevens Lake Association: No information was provided on this area, but Frontier
will agree to enter discussions with Monterey and Stevens Lake Association to determine the best
and most cost effective method to reach the residences there.

Tolland - North Tolland (-95 homes), Belden Road, East Otis: Frontier can place needed poles
to reach the residences in North Tolland assuming Frontier is granted the use of the right of way.
Frontier will agree to enter discussions with Tolland to determine the best and most cost effective
method to reach the residences on Belden Road.

5.3.6 Network Maintenance. Proposing Vendor must describe its process for performing
network maintenance and responding to emergencies. The Vendor must also describe its existing
operating and maintenance infrastructure. Vendor should also address its current policy and plans
for as-needed renewal and future upgrades, such as frequency of replacement of core network
equipment, technology upgrades, or pro-active replacement of parts, for its existing broadband
Internet customers.

Frontier Response:

Previously in this RFP response Frontier has described the breadth and depth of our experience
in designing, building, installing, maintaining and servicing teleconununications networks such
as we propose to implement in the Towns. As Frontier will own the network, and provide the
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services utilized by customers over the network, we have an obvious vested interest in ensuring
it operates at the designed performance levels continuously. Network maintenance begins with
the on-going monitoring of the network, both through alarm monitoring and management, along
with response to technician or customer-observed or experienced degradation in service quality.

Frontier is successful by providing stable network facilities and connectivity to its subscribers.
This is accomplished be installing cable and equipment from top industry vendors. As owner of
the network. Frontier is incented to ensure quality service to maintain and grow the revenue stream
from subscribers. Frontier monitors network equipment remotely in an on-going, 24x7 basis for
any alarms indicating actual or potential problems with equipment or cable. Should alarm
conditions indicate that there is an immediate issue, one or more qualified technicians are
dispatched to resolve the issue. Should alarm conditions over time rise to a level of potential
component failure. Frontier will pro-actively dispatch one or more technicians with the
assignment to replace devices or equipment generating such alarms. Often, such replacement is
made with newer equipment which is designed to provide better service to both existing and new
subscribers. As Frontier is incented to maintain the network facilities and connectivity in the most
cost-effective manner, pro-active and planned network component upgrades and replacements are
always preferred to emergency repair or replacement.

Technicians responsible for maintenance and repairs will be dispatched out of work center
locations in Connecticut. The nearest current work center location is in Winsted, which, as an
example, is within 45 minutes' drive time to the center of New Marlborough. As Frontier serves
almost the entire state of Connecticut, we have ample resources available to respond to any
specific outages in the Towns in a timely manner.

5.3.7 Customer Service Plan. Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its current customer
service plan made available to existing broadband Intemet customers. The customer service plan
must address subscriber billing and customer service problem handling.

Frontier Response:

Frontier would handle all customer marketing effort both for initial sign-up and subsequent
efforts. Currently, Frontier has a national marketing presence that is able to target localized
markets. With over 11 million customers. Frontier has the capability to handle subscriber billing.
To handle customer service questions or issues. Frontier has several 24 hour call centers located
strategically across our national footprint, with a major call center located in New Haven, CT.
All Frontier call centers are based in the United States.

Also, please see attached Exhibit H: Frontier Residential Intemet Service Agreement Terms and
Conditions and at https://ffontier.coni/corporate/terms. These Customer Terms and Conditions
are applicable to all of Frontier's customers throughout our nationwide footprint. These same
Terms and Conditions would be applicable to customers located in the Towns, with some possible
slight modifications to reflect the unique nature of the arrangement there.
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5.3.8 Marketing Plan. In support of each Town MLP's desire for the proposing Vendor to be
responsible for all customer-marketing efforts, the proposing Vendor should provide its plan for
marketing its available broadband Internet services.

Frontier Response:

Frontier would handle all customer marketing effort both for initial sign-up and subsequent
efforts. Currently, Frontier has a national marketing presence that is able to target localized
markets. With over 11 million customers. Frontier has the capability to handle subscriber billing.
To handle customer service questions or issues. Frontier has several 24 hour call centers located
strategically across our national footprint, with a major call center located in New Haven, CT.
All Frontier call centers are based in the United States.

Please see attached Exhibit 1 for specific marketing and billing information.

5.3.9 Customer Terms and Conditions. Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its
Customer Terms and Conditions governing its relationship with customers, currently provided to
all existing broadband Internet subscribers.

Frontier Response:

Please see attached Exhibit H: Frontier Residential Internet Service Agreement Terms and
Conditions and at https://frontier.com/corporate/terms. These Customer Terms and Conditions
are applicable to all of Frontier's customers throughout our nationwide footprint. These same
Terms and Conditions would be applicable to customers located in the Towns, with some possible
slight modifications to reflect the unique nature of the arrangement there.

5.3.10 Life-Line Services. Proposing Vendor must describe its process for addressing life
line services, E911, and emergency handling in outage situations for existing broadband Internet
customers. The Vendor must provide a description of any subscriber fees and billing associated
with these services.

Frontier Response:

The network Frontier will build in the Towns will be supported by automated battery back-up
systems, and generator deployment, to maintain service availability in the event of a commercial
power outage. Frontier will provide a backup battery for the ONT we will install at the customer
premises. As such, should commercial power be lost the customer would have the ability make
phone calls if they have purchased voice service from Frontier and either have commercial power
available to their premises or otherwise has a power source for the residential gateway device and,
if needed, their phone set.
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Through standard call routing procedures for a VoIP voice network, Frontier will ensure the
subscriber has the ability to call 911 whenever the network is operational, whether on commercial,
battery or generator power. In addition. Frontier will meet all applicable obligations regarding
E911 service. As Frontier is not intending to provide service as an Eligible Telecommunications
Carrier (ETC) we will have no obligation, nor plans, to provide life-line services.

5.3.11 ISP Services. Proposing Vendor must provide a list and description of the Internet
Service Provider (ISP) services (e.g. Internet access, email, domain name registration, web
hosting, online distributed discussion services (e.g. Usenet), cloud services, online storage
services, etc.) provided to existing broadband Internet customers. The Vendor must provide a
detailed description for the fees and fee structure associated with the ISP services offered.

Frontier Response:

Please see Frontier.com for the entire suite of services and products offered by Frontier.

5.3.12 Third Party Services. Proposing Vendor must provide its plan for supporting third
party services, at both the subscriber and third party level

Frontier Response:

Frontier's plan for the construction and operation of the FTTH network in the Town's does not
contemplate third party access. i
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Exhibit A

Certification and Signature Page

Must be completed and submitted with proposal.

The Undersigned proposing Vendor submits this Proposal to deliver a Broadband Network Service to the
Towns of Monterey, Sandisfield, Tolland and New Marlborough.

By:
Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

February 23,2017

Certificate of Non-Collusion

The undersigned certifies under penalties of peijury that this proposal has been made and submitted in
good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word
"person" shall mean any natural person, business, paitnership, corporation, union, committee, club, or
other organization, entity, or group of individuals.

By:.
Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

February 23,2017

Tax Compliance Certification

Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 62C, §49A, I certify under the penalties of peijury that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, 1 am in compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating
to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.

By:
Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

February 23,2017
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Frontier Communications Privacy Policy

Protecting the privacy of our customers is important to Frontier. This privacy policy is
designed to inform you about how we coliect, use, share, and protect the information of
customers of our consumer and residential services, namely our high-speed Internet,
home phone, multichannel video, Wi-Fi Hot Spot, and Frontier Secure services. It also
governs the information we collect when you visit our website, and describes certain
choices we provide to our customers regarding the use of their information. This policy
does not govem the services we offer to businesses, including Frontier Business Edge.

Please note that separate privacy policies may apply to the services of other providers
that you purchase from us, such as our DISH TV Package. We encourage you to
review the privacy policies and practices of such other providers.

What Information We Collect and How We Collect It

We collect certain information when you use our products, services, and websites, as
well as when you communicate with us.

Infcxrnation You Provide to Us. We collect information you provide to us, such as your
name and contact information, driver's license number, Sociai Security Number, and
payment information. We also may maintain research records containing information
obtained through voluntary subscriber interviews or surveys.

Information Related to Your Use of Our Services. We also collect information about

how you use our products and services. This information may include call records, the
websites you visit, information about the devices you use in connection with our
services, your bandwidth usage, and your TV and other video viewership, including
movie rental and purchase data.

Information Collected When You Use Our Websites and Mobile Apps. We collect
certain information when you visit a Frontier website or use a Frontier mobile app,
including information about your operating system and browser, IP address and device
identification numbers, and web addresses of the websites you come from and go to
next.

Frontier, or third-party analytic companies acting on Frontier's behalf, also may use
cookies, web beacons, and other tracking mechanisms to collect information while you
visit our websites. A cookie is a small data file placed in your browser. Web beacons
are small, clear graphic images. Mechanisms such as these allow for the collection of
information about your interactions with our websites. We also may receive
demographic information about you, or information regarding your interests, from third-
party analytics companies that use cookies and other tracking mechanisms.
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Frontier also allows third-party advertising companies to display ads when you visit our
websites. These companies may use information about your visits to our and other
websites—but not your name, address, email address, or telephone number—to
provide advertisements about goods and services of interest to you.

As described below, you have choices available to you regarding the use of your
information for advertising. In addition, some browsers have incorporated "Do Not
Track" mechanisms. Most of these mechanisms, when turned on, send a signal to the
website or online service indicating that the user does not wish to be tracked online.
However, because the providers of "Do Not Track" and similar signals do not yet
operate according to common, industry-accepted standards, we currently do not
respond to those signals. For more information about Do Not Track mechanisms, see
http://allaboutdnt.com/.

Information from Third Parties. At times, we receive information about our customers
from third parties, such as credit information from credit reporting agencies, when you
purchase products or appiy for service. We also may receive marketing and other
information, including but not limited to demographic information, about you from third
parties. If you rent your residence, we may have a record of whether the landlord's
permission was required to install our facilities, as well as the landlord's name and
contact information. In addition, we may obtain information from other service providers
when you purchase certain services from us, such as our DISH TV Package.

If you use social media credentials to login or interact with a Frontier website, mobile
app, or Frontier's social media pages, we may collect information about your social
media profile. You can control the data we receive in this manner through the controls
available in your social media account settings.

When You Contact Us. When you contact us or we contact you, we may monitor or
record the communication, and keep records of and about the communication, so that
we can provide better service. We will inform you during such a call that the call might
be monitored or recorded.

How We Use and Share the Information We Collect

We use the information we collect about customers to provide, manage, and improve
the services we offer; bill and collect for our services; to better understand our
customers and market our services, as well as to deliver relevant advertising; respond
to customer questions and concems; and to manage, repair, and protect our network.

We or third parties acting on our behalf use the information collected from cookies and
other tracking mechanisms to customize your experience and gather information about
how you navigate our website. For example, cookies and other tracking mechanisms
allow us to remember you when you visit our websites, deliver relevant advertising to
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you, market our services on our websites and on third-party websites, and keep track of
your online ordering and account information.

We may share personai information with third-party agents and vendors that perform
services on our behalf as necessary for them to perform these services. Frontier
requires such agents and vendors to use this information only as we direct, and to
protect it consistent with this policy. In addition, we may share information with other
providers when you purchase their services from us, such as our DISH TV Package.

We also may share your information (1) with your permission, (2) as required by law,
including in response to a duly-served subpoena or other government request for
information, (3) to investigate or defend against third-party claims or aiiegations, (4) to
protect our rights, property, and personal safety, or that of our customers or others, or
(5) as part of any merger, acquisition, sale of company assets or transition of service to
another provider.

We do not othenvise share your personal information. We may, however, share
anonymous or aggregate information with third parties, including to improve how we
provide service to existing and potential customers.

How You Can Limit the Sharing and Use of Your Information

We provide you several choices regarding how we use and share your information.

Customer Proprietary Network Information. You may limit our use and sharing of a
certain type of customer information, known as Customer Proprietary Network
Information, or "CPNI." CPNI is information that relates to the type, quantity,
destination, technical configuration, location, amount of use, and related billing
information of your telecommunications services. Protecting the confidentiality of your
CPNI is your right and our duty under federal law.

You can limit the use and sharing of your CPNI for marketing services other than the
ones we currently provide to you by calling us at 1-877-213-1556 or visiting
www.frontier.com/cDni. Any restriction of our use of your CPNI will stay in effect until
you notify us otherwise. If you choose to restrict access to your CPNi, your service will
not be affected and you will continue to receive the same high quality services from us.
Please note that restricting our use of your CPNI will not eliminate all of our marketing
contacts with you, as you may still receive marketing contacts that are not based on
your restricted CPNI. Frontier takes the privacy of customer information seriously and
appreciates the opportunity to provide high quality communications services to you.
Other choices regarding marketing contacts are described below.

We do not disclose CPNI to third parties, other than affiliated companies or their agents,
without your consent, except as required or allowed by law.



Frontier
COMMUNICATIONS

Information Used for Online Advertising. If you would like more information about
interest-based advertising, or about ways in which you can prevent companies from
using this information, you can visit
httD://www.networkadvertisina.orQ/manaoina/opt out.aso.

in addition, you can manage cookies by using features and functions available on most
internet browsers, for example by deleting or disabiing cookies. Please note that
disabling cookies may prevent you from using specific features on our websites and
other websites.

Do Not Can. Federai "Do Not Cali" iaws aiiow you to place your phone number on the
National Do Not Call List to prevent telemarketing calls to your phone number. Certain
states have similar laws and maintain their own lists. Frontier aiso maintains an intemai

Do Not Cail List. To view our Do Not Cali Policy in its entirety, click here.

Marketing E-Maiis. To opt out of receiving marketing emails from Frontier, piease email
us at Drivacv@ftr.com.

How We Protect Your Information

We use reasonabie technical, administrative, and physical safeguards to protect against
unauthorized access to, use of, or disclosure of the personal information we collect and
store. No program is 100% secure, however. As a result, we cannot guarantee that we
will prevent every unauthorized attempt to access, use, or disclose personal
information.

Personally identifiable and other sensitive records are retained only as long as
reasonably necessary for business, accounting, tax, or legal purposes.

information about the Cable Act

To the extent that Section 631 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Cable Act") applies to services you purchase, it entities you to know certain information
about the personally identifiable information a cable service provider collects. Under the
Cable Act, you are entitled to know the nature of the personally identifiable information
we collect; how we may use this personally identifiable information; under what
conditions and circumstances we may disclose personally identifiable information and to
whom; how long we maintain personally identifiable information; how you may obtain
access to your personally identifiable information; and your rights under the Cable Act
concerning the collection and disclosure of personally identifiable information and your
right to enforce limitations provided by federal law. (Personally identifiable information
is information that identifies a particular person; it does not include aggregate data that
does not identify a particular person.)
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The Cable Act permits Frontier to use the Frontier TV, Vantage and FiOS cable systems
to collect personally identifiable information necessary to render our cable service or
other services or to detect unauthorized reception of cable communications. The Cable
Act prohibits us from using our cable system to collect personally identifiable information
about any subscriber for any other purpose without the subscriber's prior written or
electronic consent. Frontier considers the personally identifiable information contained
in our business records to be confidential. We are, however, authorized under the
Cable Act to disclose personally identifiable information if the disclosure is necessary to
provide or conduct a legitimate business activity related to Frontier's cable service or
other services provided over our facilities.

We may be required by law to disclose personally identifiable information about a
subscriber without his or her consent and without notice in order to comply with a valid
legal process such as a subpoena, court order or search warrant. The Cable Act
requires that we disclose personally identifiable information (including the selection of
video programming) to a third party or governmental entity in response to a court order.
In the event the court order is sought by a nongovernmental entity, we are required to
notify our subscriber of the court order. If the court order is sought by a governmental
entity, the Cable Act requires that the subscriber be afforded the opportunity to appear
and contest any claims made in support of the court order. We may also be required by
federal law to disclose certain subscriber record information (but not records revealing
the selection of video programming) to comply with valid legal process, such as
warrants, court orders or subpoenas without any subscriber notice or consent to such
disclosure.

The Cable Act permits cable operators to disclose subscriber name and address
information to other parties, but only after providing subscribers with the opportunity to
limit or prohibit such disclosure. It is Frontier's policy not to disclose any personally
identifiable information about our cable subscribers to others outside of Frontier and its
affiliates, vendors and business partners, unless our subscribers provide prior consent
or we are required to do so by law. Before Frontier ever makes such mailing lists
available to others outside of Frontier and its affiliates, vendors and business partners,
we will provide our subscribers with notice and an opportunity to prohibit or limit such
disclosure.

If you believe that your privacy rights have been violated, please contact us at
orivacv@FTR.com immediately. We will take immediate steps to address your
concerns. If you believe that you have been aggrieved as a result of our violation of the
Cable Act, you may enforce the limitations imposed on us by the Cable Act through a
civil lawsuit seeking damages, attorney's fees and litigation costs. Other rights and
remedies may be available to you under federal or other applicable laws, as well.
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Links to Non-Frontier Websites and Content

Our websites and apps may contain links to websites and apps managed and controlied
by entities other than Frontier. For example, through our Frontier Games websites, we
provide the ability to download thousands of online games. We are not responsible for
the content on those websites and apps, or their privacy policies and practices. We
encourage you to review the privacy policies and practices of such websites and apps.

Children's Privacy

We do not knowingly collect any information from children under 13.

Your California Privacy Rights

California Civil Code Section 1798.83 entitles California customers to request
information concerning whether a business has disclosed personal information to third
parties for the third parties' direct marketing uses within the previous calendar year. If
you are a California resident and would like to make such a request, please e-maii us at
privacv@FTR.com or contact us at Frontier Communications, 1398 South Woodland
Blvd., DeLand, FL 32720.

Changes to This Privacy Policy

We may make changes to this policy from time to time, and encourage you to
periodically review this policy for any such changes. We will notify you of any material
changes by posting a notice on our website home page and the privacy policy page 30
days before any change takes effect.

Contact Us

if you have questions or concerns related to our privacy policy or information practices,
e-mail us at privacv@FTR.com or contact us at Frontier Communications, 1398 South
Woodland Blvd., DeLand, FL 32720.

Last Updated July 7, 2016
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Network Management Policy

Frontier invests significant resources to bring Intemet access to our customers and strives to provide customers an optimum
online experience that enables them to access ail available content, including: up-to-date news and information, online
shopping, communications tools, movies, video, music, gaming and an array of other online services.

As a result of explosive growth of the intemet and the availability of ever more sophisticated applications, per subscriber
bandwidth consumption has dramatically increased. This may cause periodic congestion in the networ1< that Frontier must
address. Generally, Frontier utilizes a best-efforts approach to deliver residential Intemet service. This means Frontier does
not prioritize one type of traffic or application over other types, except as described in the spedaiized services section below.
Frontier seeks to deliver ail traffic at the speed the customer has purchased (e.g. 6/12/25/50 Mbps download speeds); network
management is content and application agnostic.

Frontier uses network management tools to enforce quality of service to customers for applications that are sensitive to packet
loss, delay or jitter like VoIP, time sensitive data, and video traffic.

Key features of Frontier's network management are:

•  Frontier does not block, throttle, or inhibit any specific applications or classes of applications,
•  Frontier does not restrict the types of devices that can be connected to its network.

•  Frontier does not engage in paid prioritization.

Like other intemet service providers. Frontier manages its network to provide customers a secure and optimal Intemet

experience. Frontier monitors the flow of traffic on its network, including the amount of data sent to and from customer
connections, the source and destination of data, and the type - but not the contents - of information sent and received. In
limited circumstances. Frontier may also review the contents of the information to determine whether it is malicious (such as
spam or a virus) or when required by law. Frontier continually upgrades its security and network management tools based on
technology advances and network needs.

Frontier generally allows customers to attach any lawful device to its network so long as it does not impede the provision of
Intemet access service, harm the network, enable theft of the service or a violation of Frontier's Acceptable Use Policy or any
terms of service, or harm other users of the service.

Additionally, like other Intemet service providers. Frontier's Intemet services are configured to use an intemet protocol
address, which may be a publicly-routable Intemet protocol address or a privately managed IP address utilizing CGN (Carrier
Gateway NAT) technology.

Usage Terms & Conditions

Customers can consult Frontier's general Terms and Conditions of service as well as intemet pricing plans for more
information about their Intemet service.

Trial Information: To better understand the dynamics of network utilization and network congestion. Frontier has instituted in
certain markets to measure actual bandwidth consumption by application type. Frontier does not capture any site-specific
information or restrict or inhibit the use of any applications. Frontier simply measures the amount of consumer bandwidth
consumption by general type of application utilized (web-browsing, voice calling, video streaming, etc.).

Specialized Services - VoIP and Video

For certain customers. Frontier offers specialized services, such as voice over IP ("VoIP") and video service, over the same
customer facilities as broadband Intemet access services. When the customer uses these specialized services, less
bandwidth will be available for broadband Intemet access service than when they are not using the specialized services. When
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the specialized service is not in use, customers can in most cases use the capacity for broadband internet access. Details
regarding the specific effects of specialized services are disclosed to affected customers at the point of sale.

Service Performance

The Service speeds identified in Frontier's marketing materials and other communications reflect service capability speeds in
sen/ice speed tiers. The service tiers are usually denoted by a number that identifies the high-end of that service tier's speed
range - commonly referred to as "up to" the noted speed. The high-end of the speed range in a service tier represents the
potential wired maximum speed capability in that service tier, but is not a statement or guarantee of the maximum speed you
will receive. Some applications such as a short email without attachments or basic Web browsing do not require high speed
service capability to function optimally, while other activities such as transferring large data files can be performed faster with
higher speed sen/ices. The speed capability of the plan you purchase may not be suitable for some applications, particularly
those involving high-bandwidth uses such as streaming video or video conferencing. Service is not available to all locations,
and may not be available at certain speeds (or at ail) at your location.

The maximum speed you will receive will depend on a multitude of factors, including, among other things: the distance of your
premises from our nearest remote terminal or central office; the equipment in use and number of other users on the portion of
our network that connects you to the remainder of our network or the Internet; interference; the wiring Inside your premises;
and the capacity or performance of your computer, device or modem. Furthermore, the speed you receive at a point in time
may vary and may be less than your maximum speed, depending on, among other things, the composition of the information
or files you are accessing, usage, and traffic on the Intemet, the server with which you are communicating, and the networks
you and others are using when communicating.

Frontier participates in the Federal Communications Commission's (FCC) annual Intemet performance study of the top
national Internet service providers. The FCC measures how Frontier's service performs compared to its advertised broadband
speeds during peak Intemet usage periods (weekdays from 7-11 p.m.). While performance varied tiased upon the speed tier
tested, the FCC reports that Frontier provides:

*  95% of the advertised download speed and 106% of the advertised upload speed during peak periods for Frontier's
fiber product.

•  81 % of the advertised download speed and 94% of the advertised upload speed during peak periods for Frontier's
DSL product.

Visit the FCC's website for a full set of the FCC's results and further discussion about Frontier's performance and how

bandwidth throughput, latency, and other service metrics affect your Internet experience.

For More Information

For more information or for specific inquiries regarding Frontier's network management policies, email
netvw)rkmanagement@ftr.com.
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Residential Internet Acceptable Use Policy

Customer understands that the following restrictions are applied to the service. If violated, the service will be
terminated without notice.

General

Our customers may not use our network, machines, or services in any manner which:

•  Violates any applicable law, regulation, treaty, or tariff.
•  Violates the acceptable use policies of any networks, machines, or services which are accessed

through our network.
•  Infringes on the intellectual property rights of others.

Prohibited activity includes but is not limited to unauthorized use (or attempted unauthorized use) of any machines or
networks, denial of sen/ice attacks, falsifying header information or user identification information, monitoring or
scanning the networks of others without permission, sending unsolicited bulk email, maintaining an open mail relay,
collecting email addresses from the Intemet for the purpose of sending unsolicited bulk email or to provide collected
addresses to others for that purpose, and transmitting or receiving copyright infringing or obscene material. Repeated
copyright infringements are grounds for termination of service.

Dialup Connections

Customers may not run programs or configure machines in such a way as to keep a dialup connection active when
not in use or othenwise bypass automatic disconnection for inactivity. Our users may not have multiple simultaneous
connections with a single dialup account. We reserve the right to impose restrictions on or terminate accounts
deemed to be in violation of these conditions.

High Speed internet Access Service

Customers may not resell High Speed internet Access Service ("Service") without a legal and written agency
agreement with Frontier. Customers may not retransmit the Service or make the Service available to anyone outside
the premises (i.e. wi-fi or other methods of networking). Customers may not use the Service to host any type of
commercial server. Customers must comply with all Frontier network, bandwidth, data storage and usage guidelines.
Frontier, at its sole discretion, may suspend, terminate or apply additional charges to the Service if Service usage by
the Customer is determined, by the Company, to be excessive or abusive in any manner.

Remote Access

Although Frontier encourages its customers to use Remote Access Dialup when traveling. Frontier may suspend or
terminate service if such usage exceeds a reasonable amount of usage that would normally be expected from a
person occasionally traveling away from home. Remote Access Dialup usage is defined as Intemet data calls to local
access numbers beyond Frontier's local exchange telephone company territory.



Commercial Use Prohibited

Frontier's residential Intemet access services are provided for residential usage only. Commercial or business use of
residential services is prohibited. In the event of such usage Frontier at its option may suspend or terminate service or
may move the customer to a commercial Intemet access service, in virhich case higher charges may apply.

Email

Sending unsolicited bulk email is prohibited. Sending unsolicited bulk email from another provider advertising or
implicating, directly or indirectly, the use of any service hosted or provided by us. Including without limitation, email.
Web, FTP, and DNS senrices, is prohibited and is grounds for termination of those services to customers or users
who engage in the practice. Users who send unsolicited bulk email from our accounts will be charged the cost of
labor to respond to complaints, with a minimum charge of $200. Customers or users who send bulk email to "opt-in"
lists must have a method of confirmation or verification of subscriptions and be able to show evidence of subscription
for users who complain about receiving unsolicited email. Continuing to send someone email after being asked to
stop is considered harassment and is prohibited. Using email to dismpt (e.g., mail bombing, "flashing," etc.) is
prohibited. Sending email with falsified header information is prohibited. Chain letters, pyramid schemes, and hoaxes
are prohibited.

Email Address Harvesting

Customers and users may not use programs to harvest email addresses from the Intemet for the purpose of sending
unsolicited email or selling the addresses to others for that purpose. Usenet newsgroups We place no content
restrictions on newsgroup postings by its users except that (a) no illegal content. Including pyramld/Ponzi schemes, is
permitted and (b) all postings should conform to the various conventions, guidelines and local culture found in each
respective newsgroup and Usenet as a whole.

Posting 20 or more copies of the same article in a 45-day period ("spamming") or continued posting of off-topic
articles after being wamed is prohibited. Users who engage In spamming using our accounts will be charged the cost
of labor to issue cancellations and respond to complaints, with a minimum charge of $200. Users \who engage in
spamming from another provider advertising or implicating, directly or indirectly, the use of any service hosted or
provided by us, including without limitation email, web, FTP, and DNS services, is prohibited and Is grounds for
tennination of those services to those users.

Excessive crossposting (Breldbart Index of 20 or greater In a 45-day period) Is prohibited. The Breidbart Index (Bl) is
calculated by taking the sum of the square roots of the number of newsgroups each copy of an article is crossposted
to. If two articles are posted, one crossposted to 9 newsgroups and the other crossposted to 16 newsgroups, the Bl =
sqrt(9)-t-sqrt(16)=3+4=7. Crossposting articles to newsgroups where they are off-topic Is prohibited; a good rule of
thumb is that if you are crossposting to more than five newsgroups. It's likely to be oft-topic on at least one of them.
Commercial advertising is typically off-topic and/or a violation of charter In most Usenet newsgroups. Information
about advertising on Usenet can be found in Joel Purr's Advertising on Usenet FAQ.
For more information on "spam," see the FAQ on Current Usenet soam thresholds and ouidelines which is regularly
posted to the news.admin.net-abuse.misc newsgroup by Chris Levi/is, or visit Fight Spaml.
Posting articles with falsified header information is prohibited. "Ivtunging" header information to foil email address
harvesting by "spammers" is acceptable provided that a reasonable means of replying to the message originator is
given. Use of anonymous remailers is acceptable, so long as the use is not otherwise a violation of this policy. Users
may not issue cancellations for postings except those which they have posted themselves, those which have headers
falsified so as to appear to come from them, or in newsgroups where they are the official moderator.

Users are urged to familiarize yourself with the workings of Usenet by reading FAQs regarding Usenet before
becoming active participants.



The World Wide Web and FTP

The web space and public FTP space Included with a dialup or DSL account may not be resold or used for adult-
oriented material. We reserve the right to require that sites using such Web or FTP space which receive high
amounts of traffic be moved to other servers. Web pages and FTP files may not contain any material, text, or images,
whether hosted on our servers or "transclusioned" (images from another site displayed on the page) which violate or
infringe any copyright, trademark, patent, statutory, common law, or proprietary rights of others. Web pages and FTP
files may not contain links that initiate downloads of copyright-infringing or other illegal material. Those who believe
users of our services are infringing their copyrights must submit their complaints in writing to our Designated Agent to
Receive Notifications of Claimed Infringement, Mark Nielsen, dmca@frontier.com. Frontier Communications
Corporation, 401 Merritt 7, Notwaik, CT 06851, 203-614-5600.

Servers, Proxies, and Networks

Users may not run any program which makes a service or resource available to others, including but not limited to
port redirectors, proxy servers, chat servers, MUDs, file servers, and IRC bots. Users may not run such programs on
their own machines to make such services or resources available to others through one of our dialup or DSL
accounts; a dedicated access account is required for such purposes. Customers are responsible for the security of
their own networks and machines. We will assume neither responsibility nor accountability for failures or breach of
customer-imposed protective measures, whether implied or actual. Abuse that occurs as a result of a compromised
customer's system or account may result in suspension of services or account access.

Storing flies

The storage of any program, utility or file on our servers the use of which would constitute a violation of this policy is
prohibited. For example, it is a violation to store hacker scripts, IRC bots, or spamming software on our servers.
Frontier Communications resenres the right to modify this policy at any time. Customers will receive prompt
notification of all modifications.

System Notifications

In the event of system upgrades. Frontier may need to contact you via email with additional information and
instructions. You are responsible for any follow-up actions defined within the email notification. If the instructions are
unclear, please contact the Internet Help Desk at 800-584-3384. We will only distribute system notifications via email
when absolutely necessary. Customers may not optout of Email System Notifications at this time. In order to protect
the Integrity and security of the network In an emergency. Frontier reserves the right to implement network changes
without prior notification.

CHILD PORNOGRAPHY PROHIBITED

Customers may not use our network in any fashion for the transmission or dissemination of images containing child
pornography. Complaints and reports of child pornography may be made to abuse-child@frontiemet.net. If
circumstances indicate that child pomography Is apparent. Frontier vwll report the circumstances to appropriate
authorities. Including but not limited to subscriber information relating to any person who has uploaded, transmitted,
distributed or otherwise promoted the Image that is the basis for the complaint. Frontier may without further notice
remove, block or cease distribution of the content that is the subject of the complaint.
Termination of Service

Frontier reserves the right to discontinue service at any time, for any reason, without prior notification. Customers
may terminate their account by contacting Frontier by telephone. No email cancellations will be accepted.

Last Update; November 20,2015
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Commercial Internet Acceptable Use Policy

The following section of this Document comprises Frontier Communications, (referred to as Frontier. FrontierNet®.
FrontierNet.net. gvni.com. epix.net. Citlink.net and/or NewNorth.net) "Acceptabie Use Poiicy" (AUP) as it exists the
day that this agreement between Frontier and the Customer is entered into. As UCE and "hacking" technology
develops at an alarming rate and is expected to continue to do so, Frontier reserves the right to add, remove, or
modify specific prohibitions from this section of this Document. The Customer recognizes and agrees that the online
AUP prohibitions, to be maintained by Frontier Communications, and always available to all Customers and to the
public as the company's web pages supersede the prohibitions listed In this document.

User understands that the following restrictions are applied to the service. If violated, the service will be terminated
without notice:

Customer shall not do any of the following, or permit any third party under its control (including its customers and
their authorized users [ad infinium]) to do the following, and must include provisions in its service agreements for its
customers and authorized users that restrict them from doing any of the following:

1. Restrict or inhibit any other user from using and enjoying the Service and/or the intemet.
2. Upload, post, publish, transmit, reproduce, distribute, or participate in the transfer or sale, or in any way

exploit any information, software or other material obtained through the Intemet which Is PROTECTED BY
COPYRIGHT or other proprietary rights or derivative works with respect thereto, without obtaining
permission of the copyright owner or rightholder. Repeated copyright infringements are grounds for
termination of service.

3. Use the SMTP services of a third party for the purposes of relaying or sending electronic mail messages
without the express permission of ttrat third party.

4. Host a pubiiciy-accessibie "open relay" SMTP or anonymous remaiier service for any purpose, cause, or
reason.

5. Post a commercial advertisement to any USENET newsgroup, Intemet "chat room", bulletin board, or similar
forum, if the target fomm is not specifically chartered for public advertisement by non-private parties of items
"for sale".

6. Post to any USENET Newsgroup or other newsgroups, forum, email mailing list or similar group or list
articles which are offtopic according to the charter or other public statement of the group.

7. Send Unsolicited Commercial Email (UCE. also known as SPAM) to any number of email users or lists.
8. Maintain, or send email to. "opt-in targeted marketing lists" if the Customer cannot demonstrate, to the

satisfaction of Frontier, that the members of the iist(s) have knowingly requested to be added to the iist(s) in
question through direct action of their own doing, and that easily-accessible, automated opt-out/removal
mechanisms are in place and available to the members of the iist(s).

9. Engage in any activity that is. or appears to be, an attempt to gain unauthorized access to a remote system
or network, or to gain information that could later be used to assist in gaining unauthorized access to a
remote system or network, such as port scanning, dictionary attacks. Denial of Service attacks,
server/service hijacking, etc.

10. Engage in any of the foregoing activities using the sen/ice of another provider, but channeling such activities
through an Frontier account or remaiier, or using an Frontier account as a mail drop for responses to UCE,
or hosting a web site that is advertised via UCE that originates from a non-Frontier connected source, or
otherwise requiring return transit through the Frontier intemet backbone.

11. Falsify or "spoof user information provided to Frontier or to other users of the Service, and for handling all
complaints and trouble reports made by its own customers and authorized users.

12. Use the Service in violation or contravention of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended by the
Telecommunications Act of 1996, or any other applicable law, regulation, order or other govemmentai
directive, or abuse or fraudulently use the Service in any way not specifically set forth above.

13. Advertise, transmit, or othenvise make available any software, program, product, or service that Is designed
to violate this AUP, which includes but is not limited to, the facilitating the sending of Unsolicited Commercial
Email (UCE also known as SPAM). Further, If Customer is notified by a Frontier Abuse Response Team



member through any form of communication, or the Customer discovers on their own or through any other
means, that the Customer themselves or any third party under his/her controi (including his/her customers
and their authorized users [ad infinium]) of a violation of any of the foregoing prohibitions, the Customer will
take whatever steps are necessary to stop such activity, and prevent repeat vioiations by the offending
entity.

14. Remote Access • Although Frontier encourages its customers to use Remote Access Diaiup when
traveling, Frontier may suspend or terminate service if such usage exceeds a reasonable amount of usage
that would normally be expected from a person occasionally traveling away from home. Remote Access
Diaiup usage is defined as internet data calls to local access numbers beyond Frontier's local exchange
telephone company territory.

The Customer will respond to ail vioiations reported by the Frontier Abuse Response Team within 1 (one) business
day of the violation being reported, and will have put a stop to the activity within 2 (two) business days of the violation
first being reported. If a single entity is responsible for multiple violation reports that are sent to the Customer by the
Frontier Abuse Response Team, only a single response from the Customer back to the Frontier Abuse Response
Team is required, provided that the Customer has taken whatever action was necessary to stop the current violation
and prevent future repeat vioiations by the offending entity.

if, after the Customer has notified Frontier that the Customer has taken action to prevent future vioiations by a given
entity, that entity is found accessing the Frontier network. Frontier may consider this a breach of its system integrity,
and Frontier reserves the right to deal with this situation by whatever legal means deemed appropriate by Frontier.

Customer acknowledges that mounting complaints shall have a negative impact on the business and/or reputation of
Frontier. Therefore, notwithstanding anything contained in this Policy or any Service Agreement to the contrary.
Frontier may elect, at its sole discretion, to logically suspend any Frontier provided Intemet service connection on its
network if reports of abuse, UCE, or other activity deemed to have a negative impact on the network exceeds 60
complaints received in any rolling 30 day period. Prior notification of such action is not required but will be provided
within 36 hours of a suspension. Service will be re-established upon the provision of satisfactory assurance to
Frontier by the Customer that the complaints will not continue to a degree that exceeds the thresholds indicated
above.

Complaints regarding the violation of any of the above conditions by any of Frontier's downstream networking clients
or their customers, should include notification to the Frontier Security/Abuse Response Team I abuse@fronti6r.com)
in addition to the iSP/NSP the violation actually sourced from.

Any complaints sent to ioadmin@frontier.com or hostmaster@frontier.com as listed in the frontiemet.net whois
record, or sent to postmaster@frontier.com and webmaster@frontier.com may be forwarded to the Frontier
Security/Abuse Response Team at abuse@fronti6r.com if the separate groups that answer those addresses have the
time to do so. However, complaints sent to any of these addresses will take much longer to process if they are
forwarded to the abuse team due to the delays in forwarding, as none of these addresses are valid points-of-contact
for abuse complaints.

Abuse complaints to abuse@frontier.com are processed within two (2) working days upon receipt.

Complaints to the Frontier Security/Abuse Response Team should:

1. Be specific as to the nature of the complaint (i.e. UCE, Usenet Spam, etc).
2. Include a copy of the offending message/article with full message or article headers included.
3. Include a trace route or WHOiS output that demonstrates transit through the Frontier backbone to one of the

responsible parties; or that they are a networking customer of Frontier or one of Frontier's networking
customers.

Those who believe users of our sen/ices are infringing their copyrights must submit their complaints in writing to our
Designated Agent to Receive Notifications of Claimed Infringement, Mark Nielsen, dmca@frontier.com. Frontier
Communications Corporation, 401 Menitt 7, Norwaik, CT 06851,203-614-5600.

CHILD PORNOGRAPHY PROHIBITED



Customers may not use our network in any fashion for the transmission or dissemination of images containing child

pornography. Complaints and reports of child pornography may be made to abuse-child@frontier.com. If

circumstances indicate that child pornography is apparent, Frontier will report the circumstances to appropriate

authorities, including but not limited to subscriber information relating to any person who has uploaded, transmitted,

distributed or otherwise promoted the image that is the basis for the complaint. Frontier may without further notice

remove, block or cease distribution of the content that is the subject of the complaint. Last Updated: November 20,

2015



EXHIBIT H



Frontier
COMMUNICATIONS

'www.Fronlier.com

RESIDENTIAL INTERNET SERVICE AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

THIS DOCUMENT IS A LEGALLY BINDING AGREEMENT AND DESCRIBES THE TERMS AND

CONDITIONS PURSUANT TO WHICH FRONTIER ("Frontier" or "vie") WILL PROVIDE YOU WITH
INTERNET SERVICES AND RELATED EQUIPMENT. THIS AGREEMENT REQUIRES THAT ANY
DISPUTE BE RESOLVED BY BINDING ARBITRATION ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS RATHER THAN

LAWSUITS, JURY TRIALS OR CLASS ACTIONS, AS EXPLAINED MORE FULLY BELOW.

BY USING OR PAVING FOR FRONTIER SERVICES, YOU ARE AGREEING TO THESE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS.

SEVERAL SECTIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT HAVE DIFFERENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR
FRONTIER'S WIRED AND SATELLITE INTERNET SERVICES.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

For purposes of this Agreement, "Service". "Services" or "Broadband Services" means the service provided by
Frontier that ailows you to access the Internet, and offers you a capability for acquiring or retrieving information from,
generating, storing, transforming, processing, or utilizing information on, or making avaiiable information to other
Internet end points connected directly or indirectly to. the Frontier network. Services or Broadband Services include
(whichever applies): DSL-based Internet services, including Frontier Internet service previousiy branded as U-verse®
in Connecticut: fiber-based Internet services, including Frontier FiOS®: sateliite Internet service resoid by Frontier:
and in some locations Wi-Fi access to Broadband Services. Services may be provided directly by Frontier or indirectiy
through resaie or agent arrangements Frontier has made with third parties. By using or paying for the Service, you are
agreeing to the terms and conditions in this Agreement.

TIME-PERIOD TERM ARRANGEMENTS

Frontier may provide discounted term arrangements, gifts and/or promotions to customers who commit to a time-
period term contract arrangement. If you are a term customer, your Service is subject to the term commitment you
agreed to. You understand and agree that you must continue to purchase the Services for a minimum term to receive
any promotional offer. You agree to keep the Frontier Services during this initial term and all applicable renewals.
You must continue to purchase the Services for the minimum term agreed upon to receive the Service rates identified
on your bill. If applicable, the term commitment will automatically renew for the same time period each time it expires
unless you notify Frontier or we notify you of termination before the term commitment period ends. At the end of
your term commitment, different service and equipment charges may apply going forward. If you do not fulfill your
commitment for the minimum term (or. if renewed, the renewal term), you will be liable for and agree to pay to
Frontier a termination charge up to $400 that you agreed to when ordering Service.

SERVICE CHARGES

The applicable charges, including equipment charges, for Broadband Service are identified at the time Serwe is
ordered. Frontier may also bill you additional charges or fees, including a .separate modem fee and an additional
Frontier imposed HSI Surcharge. It is your responsibility to review your first bill carefully and contact Frontier within
30 days after receiving your first bill if there are any charges you dispute or that are inconsistent with the information
provided to you at the time you placed an order for Service, if you subscribe to Service after October 1. 2012 and
cancel Service, you will be charged a $9.99 disconnection order processing fee. Unless otherwise prohibited by law
or guaranteed by a Price Protection Plan (PPP) with Frontier. Frontier may, in its sole discretion, change or modify
the rates you are charged for Services or equipment at any time. We may notify you of any such changes by posting
notice of them on the Frontier website, by sending notice via e-maii or postal mail, or by a bill message. Continuing



to use the Service after notice of a change is acceptance of the change. If you do not agree to the change made by
Frontier, you must stop using the Service and notify Frontier.

Frontier will bill you monthly for all charges associated with the Service. Payment in full is due no later than the due
date indicated on your bill. You are responsible for paying any taxes, surcharges, fees and assessments imposed from
time to time in connection with these Services. If you have authorized payment by credit card or by debiting a bank
account, no additional notice or consent is required before we invoice the credit card or debit the bank account for all
amounts due to us for any reason. We may accept late payments, partial payments or any payments marked as being
••payment in full" or as being settlement of any dispute without losing any of our rights under this Agreement. You
agree to pay costs and fees, including attorney's fees, we incur to collect any unpaid balance from you. A reasonable
handling charge, up to $30.00 depending on the state in which you subscribe to Service, will be assessed for all checks
returned for insufficient funds, closed account, or any other insufficiency or discrepancy. Interest and/or a late payment
fee at the rate of 1.5% per month or the highest rate allowed by law may be applied to any unpaid amount after the
payment due date. This late payment fee will be in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies we may have
hereunder or under the law. If we do not receive notice of a payment dispute within 90 days after your receipt of a
bill, the bill will not be subject to further challenge.

NO RESALE

Customers may not resell Service without a legal and written agency agreement with Frontier. Customers may not
retransmit the Service or make the Service available to anyone outside the premises (i.e., by Wi-Fi or other methods
of networking). Customers may not use the Service to host any type of commercial server.

NETWORK MANAGEMENT, USAGE LIMITATIONS AND FAIR USE POLICY

A very small percentage of customers use the Service in a way that creates harm to the network, compromises capacity,
degrades network performance or service levels, or may adversely impact access to or the use of the Service by other
customers. Frontier reserves the right to engage in reasonable network management practices, and to protect its
broadband network from harm, compromised capacity, degradation in network performance or service levels, or uses
of the Service which may adversely impact access to or the use of the Service by other customers. Reasonable network
management practices that Frontier may adopt include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) data usage charges:
(li) a modification of a customer's serving facility or service technology; and/or, (iii) a modification of or a limitation
on a customer's data throughput speed or data consumption. In the event that Frontier adopts a network management
practice that will apply to your Service, we will provide you with a notice, by Web posting, bill insert, email, letter,
and/or other appropriate means, which describes the network management practice, explains how it will work, and
explains how it could impact your Service. Additional information regarding Frontier's data network management
practices is available at: httr)s://froniier.coin/networkiTianagcmeni

You must comply with all Frontier network, bandwidth, data storage and usage limitations. You must ensure that your
use of the Service, including the amount of data sent or received in the course of a month or shorter periods, does not
exceed the limitations that are now in effect or may be establi.shed in the future. Continued use of the Service will
constitute acceptance of any new limits. If your use of the Service exceeds applicable limitations, such use will be a
violation of this Agreement. In such cases. Frontier may, in its sole discretion, terminate or suspend your Service
account or request that you subscribe to a version of the Service with higher usage limitations if you wish to continue
to use the Service at higher usage levels.

With the rise in spam, viruses and other instances of malware found on the Internet, Frontier reserves the right to
restrict or block known ports that in the past have allowed for the transfer of spam, viruses, and other malware. See
lutp:/Avww.froniicrhcip.coin tha.clin.'cisii(l=5()4

FAIR ACCESS POLICY FOR FRONTIER'S SATELLITE BROADBAND AND WIFI SERVICE

To ensure fair Internet access for all Frontier satellite Broadband Service .subscribers. Frontier maintains a Fair Access
Policy. This policy assigns a Download Allowance to each service plan, which limits the amount of data that may be
continuously downloaded within specified time periods. Subscribers who exceed this limit will experience a temporary



reduction of speed unless they purchase credits for additional data amounts. Details of the Fair Access Policy can be
found here: httns://l'roiitier.cum.'docs./nolicies/rromiei -hroadband-l'air-acccss-nolicv

Prior to using the Service you may be required to accept Terms of Service. Privacy Policy, and network rules that
apply in addition to the terms included in this Agreement. In order to use the WiFi Service, you must have a wireless-
enabled device for Internet connectivity. You agree that Frontier may have to manage the WiFi Service in order to
make the service a good experience for multiple simidtancous users. This may include, for example, a time limit on
each session, a limit on the number of sessions within a given time period, a limit on the number of devices per
account, or a limit on the amount of bandwidth used by each device.

SERVICE SPEED AND AVAILABILITY

The Broadband Service speeds identified in Frontier's marketing materials and other communications with you retlecl
Service capability speeds in Service speed tiers. The Service tiers are usually denoted by a name, and by a number
that identifies the high-end of that Service tier's speed range ~ commonly referred to as "up to" the noted speed. The
high-end of the speed range in a Service tier represents the potentiai wired maximum speed capahiiity in that
Service tier, but is not a statement or guarantee of the maximum speed you will receive. Some applications such
as a short email without attachments or basic Web browsing do not require high speed service capability to function
optimally, while other activities such as transferring large data files can be performed faster with higher speed services.
The speed capability of the Service plan you purchase may not be suitable for some applications, particularly those
involving high-bandwidth uses such as streaming video or video conferencing.

Bandwidth is provided on a per-line (not a per-device) basis. The maximum speed you will receive will depend on a
multitude of factors, including, among other things: the distance of your premises from our nearest remote terminal
or central office; the equipment in use and number of other users on the portion of our network that connects you to
the remainder of our network or the Internet; interference; the wiring inside your premises; and the capacity or
performance of your computer, device or modem. Furthermore, the speed you receive at a point in time may vary
and may be less than your maximum speed, depending on. among other things, the composition of the information or
files you are accessing, usage, and traffic on the Internet, the server with which you are conununicating, and the
networks you and others are using when communicating.

Frontier therefore makes no promise or warranty, express or implied, that you will be able to download or upload data
at any particular speed. If you are dissatisfied with the speed of Service you are receiving, you must contact Frontier
in writing to the addresses identified in the Notices section below or by contacting our cu.stomer contact center and
provide Frontier with the opportunity to investigate and attempt to address any issues with the Service.

Service is not available to all locations, and may not be available at certain speeds (or at all) at your location, even if
Service is offered in your area or our initial testing indicated that your line qualified for a particular speed or Se^ice.
Service may be subject to technical line qualification. Installation options vary, and charp may apply. In order to
utilize Service, you must have a computer or device with sufficient Internet-compatible equipment and software. Some
homes may not be able to receive Frontier's satellite Broadband Scivicc as a result ot trees or other obstacles that
block the signal from the satellite to the home.

ELECTRICAL POWER, EQUIPMENT AND SECURITY

The Service requires electrical power from your premises to operate, which you are responsible for providing. Note
that without battery backup the Service will not function in the event of a loss of customer-supplied power. This will
disrupt the Service as well as any additional services that use the Service connection for transport (e.g.. Voice over IP
Including e911). Frontier will have no liability for loss of any Service(s) in the event of interruption of customer-
supplied power, with or without battery backup present in the Frontier equipment.

You are responsible for all use of your Service and account, whether by you or someone using your account with or
without your permission, including all secondary or sub-accounts associated with your primary account, and to pay
for all activity associated with your account. You agree to comply with all applicable laws, regulations and rules
regarding your use of the Service.



All equipment provided by Frontier or installed by or on behalf of Frontier remains the property of Frontier unless
you purchase the equipment pursuant to an agreement with Frontier. Frontier may require you to return all Frontier-
owned equipment in the same condition as when provided, normal wear and use excepted, upon termination of Service.
Failure to do so will result in a charge to be determined with reference to Frontier's then-current scheduie of equipment
charges. You agree to pay such charge(s) even if such equipment is lost (through theft or otherwise) or destroyed. For
Frontier's satellite Broadband Service, you are not required to return all components, and Frontier is not obligated to
de-install, the antenna, mount or any cables.

Other than the equipment and/or software provided to you by Frontier for use with the Service, you must provide all
equipment, devices, and software necessary to receive the Service. Any equipment or software that was not provided
to you by Frontier is not the responsibility of Frontier, and Frontier will not provide support, or be responsible for
ongoing maintenance, of such equipment.

You are responsible for the security of your computer, hardware, software applications, data and files. Frontier will
have no liability for any damage or loss to your computer, hardware, software applications, data and files. We make
no representation or warranty that any software or content installed on your computer(s) or that you download using
the Service does not contain a virus or other harmful feature, and it is your sole responsibility to take appropriate
precautions to protect any computer or other hardware of yours from damage to its software, files or data as a result
of any such virus or other harmful feature.

MANAGEMENT OF YOUR COMPUTER AND DATA

You are solely responsible for obtaining, maintaining and updating all equipment and software necessary to use the
Service, and for management of your information, including but not limited to back-up and restoration of your data.
YOU AGREE THAT FRONTIER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOSS OF YOUR DATA OR FOR THE

BACK-UP OR RESTORATION OF YOUR DATA, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THIS DATA IS
MAINTAINED ON OUR SERVERS OR YOUR DEVICE(S). YOU SHOULD ALWAYS BACK-UP ANY
IMPORTANT INFORMATION SEPARATELY FROM DATA STORED ON FRONTIER'S OR ANY
THIRD PARTY'S SERVERS.

WIFl Service and acce.ss to Service using a wireless modem or router is provided over wireless radio waves, which
means that your transmissions could be intercepted by unauthorized persons. If you are in a public area or using a
wirele.ss modem or router, others may be able to view the content on your device. You a.s.sume all risk and relea.se
Frontier in the event of any damage you may .suffer during use of WiFi Service or Service using a wireless modem or
router, including the introduction of any viruses that may occur or breaches from unauthorized third parties.

SOFTWARE

Frontier may provide you, for a fee or at no charge, software for use in connection with the Service that is owned by
Frontier or its third party licensors, providers and suppliers ("Software"). We reserve the right periodically to update,
upgrade or change the Software remotely or otherwise and to make related changes to the settings and software on
your computer or equipment, and you agree to permit such changes and access to your computer and equipment. You
must use the Software only in connection with the Service and for no other purpose. Certain Software may be
accompanied by an end user license agreement ("EULA") from Frontier or a third party. Your use of the Software is
governed by the terms of that EULA and by this Agreement, where applicable. You must not install or use any
Software that is accompanied by or includes a EULA unless you first agree to the terms of the EULA.

DISCONTINUATION OR TERMINATION

Frontier reserves the right to modify or discontinue the Service (including rates and charges), temporarily or
permanently. If Frontier makes a change that would have a material impact on your Service, Frontier will give you
notice. The terms and conditions for temporary changes, if any, will be included in the notice and will be automatically
incorporated by reference to this Agreement at; www.Frontier.com/terms. Your continued subscription to the Service
after the effective date of the change constitutes your acceptance of the changes and the associated terms and
conditions. In lieu of notice and Web site posting. Frontier may instead, at its sole discretion, require customers to
enter into an agreement with Frontier regarding temporary material changes.



We may also discontinue or terminate Service if: you do not honor any provision of this Agreement (including
payment obligations to Frontier for these or any other services); you use the Service in a manner that adversely affects
service to other customers or harasses our customers or employees; you or others use the Service to engage in fraud
or unlawful conduct or are suspected of doing so; or any regulatory agency, legislative body or court restricts or
otherwise prevents Frontier from furnishing the Service.

You may terminate the Service by giving written notice to the address provided in the Notice section below or
contacting a Frontier Contact Center if we do not remedy any ongoing breach of the terms and conditions in this
Agreement within thirty (30) days after Frontier's receipt of notice from you of such alleged breach. To the extent
permitted by applicable law, your exclusive remedy for a breach by Frontier is (i) termination of service by
you, and (ii) a credit or refund of the charges you paid after providing notice to Frontier of the alleged breach
or any other dispute, but not to exceed charges for ninety (90) days. If you fail to provide Frontier with notice
and an opportunity to cure, to the extent permitted by applicable law, termination of service by you is your
exclusive remedy for any breach by Frontier.

You agree that if your Service is terminated for any reason. Frontier has the right to immediately delete all data, files
and other information (including any emails, address book and/or web storage content) stored in or for your account
without further notice to you.

INTERNET ACCEPTABLE USE POLICY

You agree not to use or to allow others to use the Service for illegal or inappropriate activities, including but not
limited to: invading another person's privacy; unlawfitlly using, possessing, posting, transmitting or disseminating
obscene, profane or pornographic material; posting, transmitting, distributing or disseminating content that is
unlawful, threatening, abusive, harassing, libelous, slanderous, defamatory or otherwise offensive or objectionable.
You agree to comply with Frontier's Acceptable Use Policy (AUP). which Frontier may modify at any time. The
current AUP is available for review at the following address, subject to change:
hitns://rronticr.cotaMocs/noiicicA'nolicies icsidcniial aim 112015.p<.ir

WARRANTIES AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THE SERVICE SUPPLIED HEREUNDER IS PROVIDED
ON AN "AS IS" OR "AS AVAILABLE" BASIS, WITH ALL FAULTS, FRONTIER (AND ITS OFFICERS,
EMPLOYEES, PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES, AND AFFILIATES) (COLLECTIVELY, THE "FRONTIER
PARTIES"), ITS THIRD PARTY LICENSORS, PROVIDERS AND SUPPLIERS, DISCLAIM ANY AND
ALL WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS FOR THE SERVICE, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, NON
INTERFERENCE, TITLE, COMPATIBILITY OF COMPUTER SYSTEMS, COMPATIBILITY OF
SOFTWARE PROGRAMS, INTEGRATION, AND THOSE ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING,
COURSE OF TRADE, OR ARISING UNDER STATUTE. ALSO, THERE IS NO WARRANTY OF
WORKMANLIKE EFFORT OR LACK OF NEGLIGENCE. NO ADVICE OR INFORMATION GIVEN BY
FRONTIER OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES SHALL CREATE A WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO
ADVICE PROVIDED,

FRONTIER DOES NOT WARRANT OR GUARANTEE THAT SERVICE CAN BE PROVISIONED TO
YOUR LOCATION, OR THAT PROVISIONING WILL OCCUR ACCORDING TO A SPECIFIED
SCHEDULE, EVEN IF FRONTIER HAS ACCEPTED YOUR ORDER FOR SERVICE. THE
PROVISIONING OF SERVICE IS SUBJECT TO NETWORK AVAILABILITY, CIRCUIT
AVAILABILITY, LOOP LENGTH, THE CONDITION OF YOUR TELEPHONE LINE AND WIRING
INSIDE YOUR LOCATION, AND YOUR COMPUTER/DEVICE CONFIGURATION AND
CAPABILITIES, AMONG OTHER FACTORS, IN THE EVENT YOUR LINE IS NOT PROVISIONED FOR
ANY REASON, NEITHER YOU NOR FRONTIER SHALL HAVE ANY DUTIES OR OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT (OTHER THAN YOUR OBLIGATION TO RETURN ANY FRONTIER-
PROVIDED EQUIPMENT),



FRONTIER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE SERVICE OR EQUIPMENT PROVIDED BY FRONTIER
WILL PERFORM AT A PARTICULAR SPEED, BANDWIDTH OR DATA THROUGHPUT RATE, OR
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, ERROR-FREE, SECURE, OR FREE OF VIRUSES, WORMS, DISABLING
CODE OR CONDITIONS, OR THE LIKE. FRONTIER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR LOSS OF YOUR
DATA, OR IF CHANGES IN OPERATION, PROCEDURES, OR SERVICES REQUIRE MODIFICATION
OR ALTERATION OF YOUR EQUIPMENT, RENDER THE SAME OBSOLETE OR OTHERWISE
AFFECT ITS PERFORMANCE.

IN NO EVENT SHALL THE FRONTIER PARTIES OR FRONTIER'S THIRD PARTY LICENSORS,
PROVIDERS OR SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR: (A) ANY INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST
PROFITS OR LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF PROGRAMS OR INFORMATION OR DAMAGE TO DATA
ARISING OUT OF THE USE, PARTIAL USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE SERVICE, OR RELIANCE
ON OR PERFORMANCE OF THE SERVICE, REGARDLESS OF THE TYPE OF CLAIM OR THE
NATURE OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE ARISING
UNDER CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE OR STRICT LIABILITY, EVEN IF FRONTIER HAS BEEN
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH CLAIM OR DAMAGES, OR (B) ANY CLAIMS AGAINST
YOU BY ANY OTHER PARTY.

THE LIABILITY OF THE FRONTIER PARTIES, OR (SUBJECT TO ANY DIFFERENT LIMITATIONS
OF LIABILITY IN THIRD PARTY END USER LICENSE OR OTHER AGREEMENTS) OUR THIRD
PARTY LICENSORS, PROVIDERS OR SUPPLIERS, FOR ALL CATEGORIES OF DAMAGES SHALL
NOT EXCEED A PRO RATA CREDIT FOR THE MONTHLY FEES (EXCLUDING ALL
NONRECURRING CHARGES, REGULATORY FEES, SURCHARGES, FEES AND TAXES) YOU HAVE
PAID TO FRONTIER FOR THE SERVICE DURING THE NINETY (90) DAY PERIOD PRIOR TO WHEN
SUCH CLAIM AROSE, WHICH SHALL BE YOUR SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY REGARDLESS
OF THE TYPE OF CLAIM OR NATURE OF THE CAUSE OF ACTION.

ALL OF THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS STATED IN THIS SECTION SHALL APPLY TO THE FULL

EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, AND ARE NOT INTENDED TO ASSERT ANY LIMITATIONS OR
DEFENSES WHICH ARE PROHIBITED BY LAW.

ALL LIMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS STATED IN THIS SECTION ALSO APPLY TO FRONTIER'S

THIRD PARTY LICENSORS, PROVIDERS AND SUPPLIERS, AS INTENDED THIRD PARTY
BENEFICIARIES OF THIS AGREEMENT.

THE REMEDIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE YOUR SOLE AND

EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES. YOU MAY HAVE ADDITIONAL RIGHTS UNDER CERTAIN LAWS (SUCH
AS CONSUMER LAWS), WHICH DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF IMPLIED WARRANTIES, OR
THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES. IF THESE LAWS APPLY, OUR
EXCLUSIONS OR LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

INDEMNIFICATION

You agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Frontier Parties against all liabilities, costs and expenses,
including reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees, related to or arising from your use of the Service (or the use of your
Service by anyone else): (a) in violation of applicable laws, regulations or this Agreement; (b) to access the Internet
or to transmit or post any message, information, software, images or other materials via the Internet: (c) in any manner
that harms any person or results in the personal injury or death of any person or in damage to or loss of any tangible
or intangible (including data) property; or (d) claims for infringement of any intellectual property rights arising from
or in connection with your use of the Service.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION WITH FRONTIER BY BINDING ARBITRATION

***PLEASE READ THIS CAREFULLY. IT AFFECTS YOUR RIGHTS ***



Frontier encourages you to contact our Customer Service department if you have concerns or complaints about your
Service or Frontier. Generally, customer complaints can be satisfactorily resolved in this way. In the unlikely event
that you are not able to resolve your concerns through our Customer Service department, you and Frontier each agree
to resolve all disputes through binding arbitration or a small claims court rather than lawsuits in courts of general
jurisdiction, jury trials, or class actions. Arbitration is more informal than a lawsuit. Arbitration uses a neutral arbitrator
instead of a judge or jury, allows for more limited discovery than in court, and is subject to very limited review by
courts. Arbitrators can award the same damages and individual relief affecting individual parties that a court can
award, including an award of attorneys' fees if the law allows. For any non-&ivolous claim that does not exceed
$75,000, Frontier will pay all costs of the arbitration. Moreover, in arbitration you are entitled to recover attorneys'
fees from Frontier for your own dispute to the same extent as you would be in court. In addition, under certain
circumstances (as explained below). Frontier will pay you more than the amount of the arbitrator's award if the
arbitrator awards you an amount that is greater than what Frontier has offered you to settle the dispute.

Arbitration Agreement:

(a) You and Frontier agree to arbitrate all disputes and claims between us related to or associated with the Service.
This agreement to arbitrate is intended to be broadly interpreted. It includes, but is not limited to, all claims arising
out of or relating to any aspect of our relationship, whether based in contract, tort, statute, fraud, misrepresentation or
any other legal theory, that arose either before or during this or any prior Agreement, or that may arise after termination
of this Agreement. It also includes claims that currently are the subject of class action or purported class action
litigation in which you are not a member of a certified class. References to "Frontier," "you," and "us" include our
respective subsidiaries, affiliates, agents, employees, predecessors in interest, successors, and assigns, as well as all
authorized or unauthorized users or beneficiaries of Frontier Broadband Services under this or prior Agreements
between us.

Notwithstanding the foregoing agreement. Frontier agrees that it will not use arbitration to initiate debt collection
against you except in response to claims you have made in arbitration. In addition, by agreeing to resolve disputes
through arbitration, you and Frontier each agree to unconditionally waive the right to a trial by jury or to
participate in a class action, representative proceeding, or private attorney general action. Instead of arbitration,
either party may bring an individual action in a small claims court for disputes or claims that are within the scope of
the small claims court's authority. In addition, you may bring any issues to the attention of federal, state, or local
agencies, including, for example, the Federal Communications Commission. Such agencies can, if the law allows,
seek relief against us on your behalf.

This Agreement evidences a transaction in interstate commerce, and thus the Federal Arbitration Act governs the
interpretation and enforcement of this provision, even after the Agreement is terminated.

(b) A party who intends to seek arbitration must first send to the other, by certified mail, a written Notice of Dispute
("Notice"). The Notice to Frontier should be addressed to: Frontier Communications, Legal Department, 401 Merritt
7, Norwalk, CT 06851 ("Notice Address"). The Notice must (I) describe the nature and basis of the claim or dispute,
and (2) set forth the specific relief sought ("Demand"). If Frontier and you do not reach an agreement to resolve the
claim within 30 days after the Notice is received, you or Frontier may commence an arbitration proceeding. During
the arbitration, the amount of any settlement offer made by Frontier or you shall not be disclosed to the arbitrator until
after the arbitrator determines the amount, if any, to which you or Frontier is entitled.

(c) The arbitration will be governed by the Consumer Arbitration Rules ("AAA Rules") of the American Arbitration
As.sociation ("AAA"). as modified by the terms of this Agreement, and will be administered by the AAA. Procedure,
rule and fee information is available from the AAA online at http://www.adr.org, by calling the AAA at 1-800-778-
7879. or by calling Frontier at 1-877-462-7320. option 3. The arbitrator is bound by the terms of this Agreement. All
issues are for the arbitrator to decide, except that issues relating to the scope and enforceability of the arbitration
provision, including the scope, interpretation, and enforceability of section (0 below, are for a court to decide. If your
claim is for $25,000 or less, you may choose whether the arbitration will be conducted solely on the basis of documents
submitted to the arbitrator, through a telephonic hearing, or by an in-person hearing as established by the AAA Rules.
If your claim exceeds $25,000, the right to a hearing will be determined by the AAA Rules. Unless Frontier and you
agree otherwise, any in-person hearings will take place at a location that the AAA selects in the state of your primary



residence unless you and Frontier agree otherwise. Regardless of the manner in which the arbitration is conducted, the
arbitrator shall issue a reasoned written decision sufficient to explain the essential findings and conclusions on which
the award is based.

Frontier agrees to pay your AAA filing, administration, and arbitrator fees ("AAA fees") for claims for damages of
up to $75,000 and for claims for non-monetary relief up to the value of $75,000, as measured from either your or
Frontier's perspective (but excluding attorneys' fees and expenses). After Frontier receives notice that you have
commenced arbitration, it will promptly reimburse you for your payment of the filing fee, unless your claim is for
greater than $75,000. (The filing fee currently is $200 but is subject to change by the AAA. If you are unable to pay
this fee. Frontier will pay it directly upon receiving a written request.) In addition, Frontier will not pay your share of
the AAA fees if the arbitrator finds that either your claim or the relief sought is fnvolous or brou^t for an improper
purpose, as measured by the standards of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11(b). In such case, the payment of AAA
fees will be governed by the AAA Rules, and you agree to reimburse Frontier for all monies previously disbursed by
it that are otherwise your obligation to pay under the AAA Rules. If you initiate an arbitration in which you seek relief
valued at more than $75,000 (excluding attorneys' fees and expenses), as measured from either your or Frontier's
perspective, the payment of AAA fees will be governed by the AAA Rules.

(d) If Frontier offers to settle your dispute prior to appointment of the arbitrator and you do not accept the offer, and
the arbitrator awards you an amount of money that is more than Frontier's last written settlement offer, then Frontier
will pay you the amount of the award or $5,000 ('the alternative payment"), whichever is greater. If Frontier does not
offer to settle your dispute prior to appointment of the arbitrator, and the arbitrator awards you any relief on the merits,
then Frontier agrees to pay you the amount of the award or the alternative payment, whichever is greater. The arbitrator
may make rulings and resolve disputes as to the payment and reimbursement of fees, expenses, and the alternative
payment at any time during the proceeding and upon request from either party made within fourteen (14) days of the
arbitrator's ruling on the merits.

(e) Although Frontier may have a right to an award of attorneys' fees and expenses if it prevails. Frontier agrees that
it will not seek such an award.

(0 You and Frontier agree to seek, and further agree that the arbitrator may award, only such relief—^whether in the
form of damages, an injunction, or other non-monetary relief—as is necessary to resolve any individual injury that
either you or Frontier have suffered or may suffer. In particular, if either you or Frontier seeks any nonmonetary relief,
including injunctive or declaratory relief, the arbitrator may award relief on an individual basis only, and may not
award relief that affects individuals or entities other than you or Frontier. YOU AND FRONTIER AGREE THAT
WE EACH MAY BRING CLAIMS AGAINST THE OTHER ONLY IN AN INDIVIDUAL CAPACITY AND NOT

AS A PLAINTIFF OR CLASS MEMBER IN ANY PURPORTED CLASS, REPRESENTATIVE, OR PRIVATE
ATTORNEY GENERAL PROCEEDING. FURTHERMORE, UNLESS BOTH YOU AND FRONTIER AGREE
OTHERWISE IN WRITING, THE ARBITRATOR MAY NOT CONSOLIDATE MORE THAN ONE PERSON'S

CLAIMS, AND MAY NOT OTHERWISE PRESIDE OVER ANY FORM OF A CLASS, REPRESENTATIVE, OR
PRIVATE ATTORNEY GENERAL PROCEEDING. If a court decides that applicable law precludes enforcement of
any of this paragraph (O's limitations as to a particular claim for relief, then that claim (and only that claim) must be
severed from the arbitration and may be brought in court. Further, an arbitrator's award and any judgment confirming
it shall apply only to that specific case and cannot be used in any other case except to enforce the award itself.

(g) Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, you and Frontier agree that if Frontier makes
any change to this arbitration provision during the period of time that you are receiving Frontier services, you may
reject that change by providing Frontier with written notice within 30 days of the change to the Notice Address
provided in (b) above and require Frontier to adhere to the language in this provision. By rejecting any future change,
you are agreeing that you will arbitrate any dispute between us in accordance with the language of this provision.

FORCE MAJEURE

You understand and agree that temporary interruptions of the Service may occur as normal events in the provision of
the Service and that Frontier is not liable for such interruptions. You further understand and agree that Frontier has no
control over third-party networks you may access in the course of your use of the Service, and therefore, delays and
disruptions of other network transmissions are heyond the control of Frontier. In addition. Frontier is not liable for



any failure of performance due to any cause beyond its reasonable control including acts of God, fire, explosion,
vandalism, terrorism, cable cut, major weather disturbance, national emergencies, riots, wars, labor difTiculties,
supplier failures, shortages, breaches, any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request by any government, civil,
or military authority, or suspension of existing service in compliance with state and/or federal law, rules, and
regulations, or delays caused by you or your equipment.

GENERAL TERMS

If any part of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in force.
No waiver of any breach of this Agreement will be deemed a waiver of any future breach. This Agreement will be
governed by the laws of the state where the Service is provided, without regard to its choice of law rules. Except as
expressly set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement shall not provide any third party with a remedy, claim or right
of reimbursement. We may assign this Agreement to another entity without any advance consent from or notice to
you. You may not assign this Agreement without our consent.

OUR RIGHT TO MAKE CHANGES

UNLESS OTHERWISE PROHIBITED BY LAW, FRONTIER MAY CHANGE THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
OF YOUR SERVICE AT ANY TIME BY GIVING YOU 30 DAYS NOTICE BY BILL MESSAGE, BILL INSERT,
E-MAIL OR OTHER NOTICE, INCLUDING POSTING NOTICE OF SUCH CHANGES ON THE
WWW.FR0NT1ER.COM WEBSITE. YOU ACCEPT THE CHANGES IF YOU PAY FOR OR USE THE
SERVICES AFTER NOTICE IS PROVIDED

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The terms and conditions of this Agreement, together with the Service order and any specific agreement regarding a
term commitment and price agreed upon by you and Frontier, are the entire agreement between you and Frontier,
which may only be amended as described above. These terms and conditions supersede any inconsistent or additional
promises made to you by any of our employees or agents. If you have signed (including electronically) an agreement
with Frontier, in the event of a conflict between that agreement signed by you and Frontier and this document, the
signed agreement shall control.

NOTICES

Notices required under this Agreement by you must be provided to us at:

Frontier Communications,
Legai Department
401 Merritt 7

Norwaik, CT 06851

With a copy to:

Frontier Communications

High Speed Internet Dispute
1398 S. Woodiand Bivd.
Deiand, FL 32720

Notice by Frontier to you (including notice of changes to this Agreement) shall be deemed given when: (a) transmitted
to your primary Frontier email address; or (b) mailed as a letter, bill message, bill insert postcard or other notice via
the US mail to your address on tile with us; or (c) when posted to the www.Frontier.cora/terms website.

Last update: December 10, 2015
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Onboarding and Keeping Customers Frontier
^  COMMUNICATIONS

Marketing to Prospects

• Direct Mail.

• Event Marketing.

Onboarding

• Orders taken by US based call centers. Live agents.

•  Installation done by experienced, trained Frontier employee technician.

• Billing done directly by Frontier Communication to customer. No middleman.

• Defined onboarding and billing process.

Service

• Customer Service call handled directly by Frontier.

• Technical calls handled by specific trained Frontier employees.

• Home service truck routed as required.
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OThts document contains pioftftetary end/or confidential infonnatwn. This document is Intended only for the petty to whom It is presented and cop)^ and re-dislritxdlon are strictly prohiblled.



Direct Mali to Fiber Households Frontier
COMMUNICATIONS

Frontier Fiber speeds as fast as
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3.1 Broadband Network Service

Question: Does the vendor understand that expecting the towns to be responsible for all make-
ready work and utility pole surety bonds and yearly rentalfees constitutes non-compliance
with the RFP and will result in proposal disqualification? The 4 towns arejointly seeking a
vendor who can provide a complete regional solution for meeting the need and goal of
achieving high bandwidth Internet access for all residents and businesses in the towns.

Matrix Design Group is interested in a true partnership with the Towns of Moncrcy, New
Marlborough, Sandisfield and Tolland. In order to accomplish this under Massachusetts law it
has be done under the umbrella of the MLP (Municipal Lighting Plant) MGL 164 laws. Given
the fact that each Town went through the trouble of two Town votes to establish an MLP and
given the fact that the RFP was released collectively by the Towns' MLPs it is assumed that the
Towns agree.

If a private company wanted to build a FTTH network in a town without the use of public funds
there would be no need for that private company to get the permission or work in concert with
either the Towns' Select Boards or Broadband Committees. See the Fiber Connect builds in

Monterey and Egremont for example.

If public funds arc being used (either from the Towns or the MBI) in this broadband project then
certain rules and restrictions apply. The Matrix proposal is designed to conform with these rules
and regulations.

The Matrix proposal does not encumber future Select Boards or require Home Rule
legislation.

The Matrix plan calls for the Towns to be responsible for all aspects of the utility company pole
makc-rcady process, police details during niakc-rcady, and a place to house and power the
network electronics. Only the place to house and power network electronics would fall under the
requirements of Mass 30B procurement law. Matrix would work with the Towns with the
specifications and requirements needed for the bid process.

Even though Mass 30B procurement law docs not apply to MLP's or MLP Cooperatives, on
advice of counsel (Kopelman & Paige), a three year waiting period was inserted prior to the
Town's Option to Purchase so that the agreement would not be viewed as in any way to be
circumventing Mass 30B law.

According to advice from MLP Attorney Jack Ferriter to the Town of Princeton, the Town's
MLP has to have "significant control" over a network built in Town. The Option to Purchase and
the MLP's having control over pricing changes to the Standard Internet tier gives the MLPs
"Significant Control" over the network. The initial Standard Internet pricing would be locked in
for two years. After that any increase over CPI (Consumer Price Index) would have approved by
the MLP. The Option to Purchase also in effect gives the MLPs the ability to "fire" Matrix - an
equally important aspect of control.

11 Melanie Una SUITE 14 • East Hanover. NJ 07936 • Tel: 973.503.1400 • Fax: 973.503.5666



At a recent MBI sponsored meeting the offices of the Mass IG and AG suggested they would be
wary of "paper" MLPs. Under the Matrix plan the MLP's would own and maintain the "right of
way" for the Matrix fiber. This is a significant asset. The MLP's would also own the place to
house and power the network electronics plus any new poles installed to support the network.
Combined with the Option to Purchase, the ability to control the pricing of the Standard Internet
tier and the setting of the monthly MLP fees - under the Matrix proposal the MLP's would be
very "real".

According to the last MBI Board of Directors meeting, the Towns are now eligible for both their
allocated Construction funds AND their allocated Professional Services funds. With the addition

of the Professional Services funds that means there should be no net cost to any of the 4-towns
for the Matrix plan. In other words, the Matrix proposal should have ZERO net tax impact on
any of the residents of Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandisfield or Tolland.

Since the MLP would set the MLP fee which would be paid for by just subscribers - there would
be no ongoing tax impact to residents of the 4 towns.

In short, the Matrix plan offers the least impact on taxpayers and the quickest way to get
broadband with the least risk to the Towns of Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandisfield and
Tolland.

<8ATRIXDESIGN CROUP
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5.2.3«1 Service Options and Rates

Question: What is the VOIP service quality being proposed? (which VOIP codec standard)
Based on vendor response to this question the adjective rating can be no better than
"Advantageous." Vendor offers no television package service.

The Calix VoIP services solulion for fiber access relies on an Integrated Access Device (IAD)
which is embedded in the ONT (Optical Network Terminal) and interfaces to the RJ-11 POTS
ports. The ONT performs the call handling and IP packelization required for VoIP
implementation. The integration of VoIP at the ONT uses Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) as
specified in RFC-3261, with supplemental RFCs related to SIP employed on the unit for
performance enhancements.

The objective of employing VoIP is to deliver the same features as a Class 5 TDM (Time
Division Multiplexing) switch and also to add enhanced features only possible in an IP
implementation. The integrated IAD allows Matrix and Calix to offer the same services in the
home as those that arc already present, and introduce new features. This approach means that
end-user equipment - keypad phones, FAX machines, answering machines - do not need to be
replaced or reconfigured.

VoIP implementations may face problems with latency, packet loss, or jitter. Most of these
issues are associated with insufficient bandwidth which should be minimized or eliminated in the

Matrix propo.sed deployment. Additionally utilizing FEC (Forward Error Correction) properly in
the Calix and Cisco gear can further minimize or eliminate these issues.

The Matrix VoIP offering will support H.323 and G.71 1. All VoIP will support E911. Porting
existing telephone numbers to the new VoIP service will also be supported. However, it has to be
noted that if a subscribers suspends VoIP service (seasonal residents for example) then it cannot
be guaranteed that the number will still be available when service is turned back on.

11 Melanie Lane SUITE 14 • East Hanover, NJ 07936 • Tel: 973.503.1400 » Fa*; 973.503.5666
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5.2.1.1 Service Tiers

1. Are the downstream and upstream data transfer rates for all tiers of Internet service
proposed "up to " transfer rates, or sustained transfer rates?
2. Is the 1 Gbps downstream/upstream service proposed as an available custom service
option via a dedicated (point-to-point) active Ethernet link?

1. The downsircam and upstream data transfer rates for the proposed tiers of Internet are "up to"
rates. It should be noted, however, that the Calix equipment utilizes Dynamic Bandwidth
Allocation (DBA) which is a feature that dynamically changes upstream GPON bandwidth
assignments at the port level based on traffic class and demand. The GPON DBA feature is
enabled by default. DBA allow.s a user to "burst" above the 50 Mbps or 100 Mbps sustained
speeds when uploading large files and there is unused bandwidth available.

2. The projected 1 Gbps service offering would be via existing GPON equipment. GPON can
handle speeds of up to 2.5 Gbps down and 1.25 Gbps up. We would provide the subscriber
asking for I Gbps their own "PON" with a dedicated 1 Gbps Internet transport link. In the future
dedicated 1 Gbps connections may be via NGP0N2 equipment which can handle up to 10 Gbps
down and 10 Gbps up. Matrix does not envision utilizing Active Ethernet in this build unless
specifically required by the subscriber.

11 Melanie Lane SUITE 14 . East Hanover. NJ 07936 * Tel: 973.503.1400 • Fax: 973.503.5666
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5.2.1.2 Service Band\vidth

Q: What evidence is available that can be provided to the selection committee to show that
actual Internet downstream and upstream speeds for all levels of broadband service being
proposed are at least 80% of the advertised bandwidths for a given tier of service across all
time periods? Independent evidence is preferred, but not required. Evidence can be based on
selftesting. This requirement requires the vendor to submit some form of evidence to prevent
the proposalfrom being disqualified.

The normal rule of thumb for rural broadband builds is to provide approximately 1 Gbps of
Internet backhaul for about every 500 homes passed. For example, the Town of Levereit has 2
Gbps of Internet backhaul to serve their 820 buildings in town. That works out to roughly 2.44
Mbps provisioned for 820 potential subscribers.

LeverettNel advertises their Internet service offering as a Gigabit Service.

Using the rule of thumb, if built individually, normally Matrix would have provisioned 2 Gbps of
Internet backhaul for each of the Towns of Monterey, New Marlborough and Sandisfield plus 1
Gbps of Internet backhaul for the Town of Toiland. However, because the four Towns are acting
collectively - it would be more cost effective for Matrix to provide 10 Gbps of Internet backhaul
to be shared among the four Towns. That works out to roughly 3.23 Mbps provisioned for the
3,095 potential subscribers.

Matrix would have 25% more bandwidth provi.sloned per potential subscriber for our 50
Mbps and 100 Mbps service offerings than what LeverettNet has provisioned for their
"Gigabit" service offering.

Matrix would also be utili/ing Calix llbcr access gear for the builds in the Towns of Monterey,
New Marlborough, Sandisfield and Toiland. Calix has over 19-ycars of real world, standards
based fiber deployment experience. Their equipment has been installed by over 1,300
communications service providers (CSP's) worldwide (including the Matrix builds for Leverett
and EC Fiber in Vermont).

Matrix will be utilizing the Calix Compass suite of software applications to further support and
enhance the Internet experience for the subscribers in the four Towns.

The Calix equipment also utilizes Dynamic Bandwidth Allocation (DBA) which is a feature that
dynamically changes upstream GPON bandwidth assignments at the port level based on traffic
class and demand. The GPON DBA feature is enabled by default. DBA allows a user to "burst"
above the 50 Mbps or 100 Mbps sustained speeds when uploading large files.
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5.2.1.3 Customer Satisfaction

Question: What evidence is available that can be provided to the selection committee to show
that the current Internet customer satisfaction rating is at least 70%? Independent evidence is
preferred, but not required. Evidence can be based on internal customer surveys. This
requirement requires the vendor to submit some form of evidence. Without evidence the
adjective ratingfor this requirement will he "Unacceptable."

The normal rule of thumb for rural broadband builds is to provide approximately 1 Gbps of
Internet backhaul for about every 500 homes passed. For example, the Town of Lcverett has 2
Gbps of Internet backhaul to serve their 820 buildings in town. That works out to roughly 2.44
Mbps provisioned for 820 potential subscribers.

LeverettNet advertises their Internet service offering as a Gigabit Service.

Using the rule of thumb, if built individually, normally Matrix would have provisioned 2 Gbps of
Internet backhaul for each of the Towns of Monterey, New Marlborough and Sandisfield plus 1
Gbps of Internet backhaul for the Town of Tolland. However, because the four Towns are acting
collectively - it would be more cost effective for Matrix to provide 10 Gbps of Internet backhaul
to be shared among the four Towns, That works out to roughly 3.23 Mbps provisioned for the
3,095 potential subscribers.

Matrix would have more bandwidth provisioned per potential subscriber for our 50 Mbps
and 100 Mbps service offerings than what LeverettNet has provisioned for their "Gigabit"
service offering.

Matrix would also be utilizing Calix fiber access gear for the builds in the Towns of Monterey,
New Marlborough, Sandisfield and Tolland. Calix has over 19-years of real world, standards
based fiber deployment experience. Their equipment has been installed by over 1,300
communications service providers (CSP's) worldwide (including the Matrix builds for Leverett
and EC Fiber in Vermont).

Matrix will be utilizing the Calix Compass suite of software applications to further support and
enhance the Internet experience for the subscribers in the four Towns.
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5.2.1. Service Availability

Question: What evidence is available that can he provided to the selection committee to show
that the Internet service availability will be at least 99.5%? Evidence for service availability
can be based on actual measurements, or can be calculated based on the proposed network
design. This requirement requires the vendor to submit some form of evidence. Without
evidence the adjective rating for this requirement will be "Unacceptable."

There are many "moving parts" when it comes to designing, installing, maintaining and
operating a fiber network. Some components Matrix would control but not others. What
components would be included for "service availability" purposes? Would weather events like an
ice storm or a tornado be included in service availability metrics? If Matrix utilized the
MassBroadband 123 network would any outages by Axia be counted against our network
availability?

While it is impossible for Matrix, or any other vendor, to promise a service availability of 99.5%
due to aspects outside the vendor's control - Matrix can promise the Towns that we will utilize
our over 20-years of designing and building robust fiber networks to maximize network "up
time".

Not knowing the pole data survey information or where each Town would be placing their
telecom shelter it is difficult to outline fiber design highlights. We can tell you that the fiber
network we built and did the final design for Levered had ZERO warranty defects and the two
words most commonly used to describe the network are "world class." That network has also
enjoyed 100% uptime with any outages being at the ISP level or individual subscriber outages
due mostly to tree branches causing fiber breaks as the result of a weather event.

Matrix would be deploying a distributed network with each Town's subscribers being served out
of the telecom shelter in each Town. The subscribers would be served via a Calix E7-2 Ethernet

Service Access Platform with each chassis being capable of serving up to 1,024 ONTs. The line
cards and fan tray in each E7-2 are hot-swappable meaning cards can be added or replaced
without uninstaliing/installing power, alarms, or cables thus reducing repair time from hours to
minutes.

Matrix would also be utilizing Calix's Compass suite of software to support network uptime. See
attached Flow Analyze case study.
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"If a cusiomer calls wiih a

slow l/iiernel cnmplaini now.

rhe first place I look now is

Flow Analyze. Il has saved

lime and resoun-es for my

teamfrom the very first day

and helped us to keep our

customers satisfied."

- Sen Glenn,

Internet Operations Supen/isof,

CTCI

THE RESULTS

Within 90 minutes. CTCI's Internet Operations Team was able to use Calix Flow Analyze to diagnose and rapidly eliminate

a DDoS attack that up to that point had affected 750 customers. This attack was responsible for two full days of network

troubleshooting and extraordinary efforts to keep these customers satisfied. Now, CTCI is using Flow Analyze to monitor

thousands of endpoints across their network and has seen a number of on-going benefits:

A  Improved Subscriber Experience; With Flow Analyze, CTCI has had quicker time-to-resolution of network problems

by correlating performance problems to specific IP addresses and applications within the home or business. For
example, when customers complain of slow Internet service, CTCI has the network visibility to locate endpoints that

may be causing the problem, such the hijacking of unsecured wireless routers or the use of gaming or over-the-top

(OTT) applications that are impacting performance throughout the rest of the home network, and addressing them.

A  Improved Efficiency: Heightened levels of visibility have allowed the Internet Operations Team to spend less time on

troubleshooting new issues and more time on nehvork upgrades and new services that bring in new revenues and

further enhance customer satisfaction.

A Reduction in Truck Rolls: In the past, when a subscriber's online speed tests were below normal levels, CTCI would

dispatch a technician to troubleshoot at a customer premises. Now. many truck rolls are avoided as the issue is often

identified through Flow Analyze.

A Enhanced Network Visibility and Tools: CTCI found that other software tools could only address small parts of

their network or minor issues. Flow Analyze takes a holistic view of the network, both in real-time and with historic

recording features. On those occasions when real-time views are not sufficient (intermittent problems, after-hours

network usage), the recording features can help business customers troubleshoot their own networks

THE FUTURE

CTCI is expanding its use of Flow Analyze, training more technicians on the software. In addition, CTCI plans to take

advantage of many Flow Analyze in-depth reporting features, including top users and bandwidth trend charts. In addition.

Flow Analyze lays the foundation for new revenue-generating services for CTCI. and continues to strengthen the

relationship between the company and its subscribers. As CTCI looks further into the future and its transition to IPv6, Flow

Analyze wilt continue to provide visibility into their network, for both types of network addresses.

^ Colix 1035 North McDowell Petaluma, CA 94954 T1 877 462 2549 F I 707 2833100 www.caiix.com



^ Colix CASE STUDY

CTCI

Improving Subscriber Satisfaction and Troubleshooting Efficiency
with Flow Analyze

COMPANY

Ouster Telephone Cooperative, Inc. (CTCI)

BUSINESS TYPE

Rural ILEC

LOCATION

Chaliis, Idaho

NETWORK

Four exchanges, over 2300 access lines

SERVICES

Local and Long Distance Voice,

High-Speed Internet, Video, Mobile Backhaul,

Residential and Business IT Support

C A i. 1 X S O L U T I O :■-! S

C7, E5, E7, 700 ONT Family, CMS,

Compass Flow Analyze

THE CHALLENGE

Founded in 1955. Ouster Telephone Cooperative. Inc. (CTCI) serves a number of communities in Cusler and Lemhi

Counties. Idaho, offering voice, video, wireless, cable, and high-speed data services over GPON, point-to-point Gigabit

Ethernet (GE). and DSL technologies. In this rural area, many CTCI subscribers rely on their broadband service
for critical applications such as home businesses and online education. In addition, CTCI provides high-speed data

services for a 22.000-acfe molybdenum (moly) mine. Committed to delivering the highest quality of service to its

subscribers. CTCI built a fuliy-redundant network, powered by Calix C- and E-Series platforms. However, when a

distributed denial-of-service (DDoS) attack hit the CTCI network, 750 subscribers were impacted, bringing Internet
speeds to a crawl.

THE SOLUTION

CTCI's internet Operations Team fielded customer complaint calls for two days, as they worked to determine the cause

of the issue. Both free and for-purchase online software solutions proved to be inadequate, as they could not provide

the visibility into the network and its various elements that CTCI required to combat the attack. After losing valuable

time and resources. CTCI turned to Calix and its Compass Flow Analyze, which it was not previously subscribed to. In

one hour, the Compass team had configured CTCI's system and had them up and running with Flow Analyze. Only 30

minutes after coming online with Flow Analyze, CTCI was able to locate and isolate the IP address that was causing

the attack. By setting up a few rules, the attack had been shut down and customers were back up and running with

high-speed data service.
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February 23,2017

Town of Sandislleld

SandislleicI Town Hall Annex

66 Sandislleld Road

PO Box 90

Sandisfield, MA 01255
Attenlion: Willie Morales

Dear Joint MLP Broadband Committee,

Matrix Design Group is pleased to provide this response to the Towns of Monterey, New
Marlborough, Sandisfield, and Tolhmd's Joint MLP High Bandwidth Internet Services
Proeurement RFP.

Matrix Design Group and our sister company Millennium Communications Group were
founded over 20-years ago. Both companies are privately held with the same principal
owners. Matrix can handle the engineering requirements of any fiber projeet, ineluding the
planning, permitting, design, and project management olThe installation of our proposed
fiber network on budget and ahead of schedule.

Millennium Communications Group handles the installation and electronics for fiber and
technology projects. Combined our two companies can handle the "design" (Matrix) and
"build" (Millennium) of any fiber project or as we like to say the ability to take any fiber
project "from Concept to Completion." The quality of our work is nationally recognized with
our companies being named for three years running one of the Top 100 FTTH Companies in
the United States by BrnaclhancI CommwiiHe.s Magazine.

Due to the nature of the work being asked for by the Towns and for simplification's sake -
this proposal is being submitted on behalf of Matrix Design Group. However, included in this
submission is also information on Millennium Communications Group so that the Joint MLP
Broadband Committee can better understand the depth of our combined resources and
experience.

Matrix Design Group looks forward to working with the four Towns to help create a FTTH
network that could include the following scope of work on our part:

• Matrix Design Group and sister company Millennium Communications would Design,
Build and Operate a connected GPON FTTH network for the Towns of Monterey, New
Marlborough. Sandisfield and Tolland

•  Each Town or the MLP would have the option to purchase the completed network within
Town borders for a set price after 3-years of operation (the individual buy-out price being
based upon the number of network miles and houses passed in each town). The Towns
would also have the option to purchase al'lcr 20-years for $10.
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•  Town or the MLP would be responsible for all make-ready costs, police details during
make-ready and place to house and power network electronics plus miscellaneous legal
and other costs

• On an on-going basis the individual Towns or the Ml^P's would be responsible for
maintaining the pole attachment surety bond, the yearly pole rental Ices and power to the
network electronics (we propose these cost be paid for via a Subscriber MLP fee).

• Matrix would offer residents Standard High Speed Internet Service (up to 50 Mbps
symmetrical) for $95 / month and Hnhanced High Speed Internet Service (up to 100
Mbps symmetrical) Ibr $135 / month

• Matrix would olTcr residents I ligh Speed Internet Service and a VoIP line for an
additional $20 / month

• A second VoIP line may be added for another $20 / month
• An indoor ONT with built-in 802.1! AC Wil-i will be optional for a charge of $5 / month
•  Subscribers would pay a $500 installation fee (split into two payments) and have a 24-

month commitment

This proposal is designed to minimize any tax impact on the citizens of Monterey, New
Marlborough, Sandisfield and Tolland.

Due to our experience Matrix Design Group is uniquely qualified to provide this scope of
work for the Towns. No llrm better understands the unique problems facing a rural New
England town trying to build a FTTl 1 network. We have gained this experience and
understanding not just from 20-ycars of building thousands of miles of fiber networks but
also through providing the Town of Alford with their fiber Design, building the Active
Ethernet FTTH network and providing the llnal Fiber Design for the Town of Leverett and
wholly or partially designing and building out nine towns for EC Fiber in Vermont.

Matrix Design Group hopes to put this experience to work for the Towns of Monterey, New
Marlborough, Sandisfield and Tolland.

Please direct any questions or requests for additional information to:

Chris Lynch
Director, Business Development
(508)918-0478
civneh@matrixdti.com

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for consideration.

SWrily,

Chris Lynch
Director, Business Development

ATRIX
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Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandisfield and Tolland

Joint MLP RFP Responses

2.2 Purpose ofProcurement

The Town MLPsfor Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandisfield, and Toiland jointly seek a
telecommunications Vendor who can provide a complete 4-Town regional solution for meeting the
need and primary goal of achieving high bandwidth Internet access for residents and businesses in the
Towns, with the availability of related services such as high definition Voice over Internet Protocol
(VOIP) telephone service, viewed as a positive addition. The Town MLPs strong desire is for such
services to be provided via a state of the art Fiber To The Premises (FTTP) network. The goal is in
accord with the Commonwealth's goal ofextending Internet access to Towns in western
Massachusetts. The MLPs understand that the lack of density of houses and businesses in the unserved
Western Massachusetts communities has been an obstacle to attracting broadband service providers
who are willing to invest in infrastructure to deliver the services. The Town MLPs are hopeful that
circumstances have changed and via this RFP are hoping to attract a company that will design, build,
own, operate and maintain a network that can deliver, first andforemost, high bandwidth Internet
access, and, secondarily, high definition telephony and perhaps television channel packages via the
same high bandwidth network.

Matrix Design Group (Matrix) is offering the Towns a GPON FTTH network designed, built, and
operated at the expense of Matrix. The Towns would be responsible for all aspects of the utility pole
make-ready process, police details during make-ready, a place(s) to house and power the network
electronics, plus any legal and miscellaneous costs.

The fiber design will accommodate enough fiber strand for all existing buildings in the towns that are
passed via aerial utility poles. In addition we will work with the Town Assessors to identify not just the
existing buildings/homes but also any buildable plots of land. Extra strand will also be built into the
design to help insure the fiber installed by Matrix is good not Just for today's needs but the needs for the
foreseeable future.

Matrix will be using Calix access gear capable of GPON speeds of 2.5 Gbps down and 1.25 Gbps up.
This gear will also be compatible with NGPON-2 which is capable of up to 10 Gbps symmetrical. Our
Standard Internet offering of up to 50 Mbps and our next tier of up to 100 Mbps are "best effort"
offerings. Dedicated connections are available up to 10 Gbps via custom pricing.

While we are not offering any television channel packages of our own there are many commercially
available packages such as Netflix, Hulu, Amazon Prime, HBO Go, etc. that would be available to each
subscriber.

^  3.1 Broadband Network Services



The Town MLPs for Monterey, Sandisfield, and Tolland jointly seek a telecommunications vendor who
can provide a complete regional solution for meeting the need and goai of achieving high bandwidth
Internet accessfor ail residents and businesses in the Towns. Provision of this service will require that
the Vendor provide connection to their network for all premises, residentiai and business, within Town
boundaries, including those on private roadways and driveways. The selected Vendor will be
responsiblefor program management, make-ready assessment and permitting, design and engineering,
obtaining premise-entry consents, network impiementation, network operations, subscriber marketing
and billing, customer support, network maintenance and emergency response and network renewal, as
needed. In responding to this RFP, the proposing Vendor will need to provide piansfor how it wiil
proceed to impiement its service to the Towns involved in thisjoint procurement.

Under the Matrix plan the Towns would be responsible for all aspects of the utility make-ready work
including make-ready assessment and permitting.

See Appendix A for a representative detailed plan and schedule for proposed network.

3.3 Required Services

The Towns of Monterey, Sandisfieid, and Tolland require high bandwidth connection to the Internet,
referred to as broadband, to aii househoids/iiving units and businesses within the geographic
boundaries ofthe Towns. Within this proposal request "subscriber" refers to each househoid/iiving
unit and business that consents to a network connection on its property. As noted above, the Town
MLPs highly desirefor services to be offered via a Vendor-provided FTTP network. The MLPs will
consider the Vendor to have provided ubiquitous service to all premises ifthe Vendor is able to offer
connection to at least 96% ofthe premises in each Town. Services standards wiU be determined
through the contract negotiation process.

In order to meet the needs of aii potential subscribers, the Town MLPs consider it highly desirable for
a Vendor to be capable of offering different levels (tiers) of broadband Internet service for subscribers
to choose from, with each level of service supporting different network connection bandwidths for
downstream and upstream data transfers. In order to be considered broadband service, a Vendor's
Internet service, by FCC dejinition, must be capable of supporting a connection bandwidth no less
than 25 megabits per second (Mbps) for downstream data transfer, and no less than 3 Mbps for
upstream data transfer. It is highly desirable for the lowest tier of broadband service offered to be
capable ofsupporting a network connection bandwidth of at least 50 Mbpsfor downstream data
transfers. Symmetric data transfer service is not required, but highly desirable. What is required for all
tiers of broadband Internet service offered, is the upstream connection bandwidth to be no less than
20% of the downstream connection bandwidth. So for a tier that offers a downstream connection
bandwidth of 50 Mbps, this requires the tier to also provide an upstream connection bandwidth no less
than 10 Mbps. In addition to tiers of service offered that will meet the needs of most subscribers, a
proposal that offers subscribers the option of a network connection that supports a connection
bandwidth equal to or exceeding I gigabit per second (Gbps) for both downstream and upstream data
transfers, wiil be considered to be highly advantageous in the selection process. A proposal that also
offers basic Internet service options to choose from for subscribers that do not require high bandwidth
connection to the Internet will also be considered to be advantageous in the selection process.

Within this proposal request "bandwidth " refers to the sustained downstream or upstream data
transfer rate supported for a given level of Internet service, not a peak (up to) transfer rate. This

\  definition applies to both point-to-point and point-to-multipoint service connections.



The Matrix plan calls for an aerial built GPON FTTH network; Areas in tlie Towns that are served via
underground utilities are not included in this proposal.

Our Standard Internet offering will be up to 50 Mbps and our next tier of up to 100 Mbps are "best effort"
offerings. Both tiers are symmetric. Dedicated connections are available up to 10 Gbps via custom
pricing.

3.4 Optional Services

The Town MLPs highly desire a Vendor to be capable of offering high definition VOJP telephone
service via its network. The Town MLPs believe that dramatic changes continue to shape both
telephone and television services going forward. To that end, a Vendor capable of offering high
definition (HD) and standard definition television channel package service to all premises via the
Vendor's high bandwidth network is seen as a nice to have but not necessarily a requirement. A
proposing Vendor must allow subscribers the availability of third party services (e.g. telemedicine,
security, etc.) via its network.

The Matrix plan will offer subscribers a standard VoIP connection for $20 per month. Any additional
third-party services, such as video packages (Hulu, Netflix, etc.) or security services, etc. will be up to
individual subscribers to subscribe to.

4.0 Minimum Qualifying Criteria for Vendors

Ifthe entity responding to this proposal differsfrom the entity that would enter into a Broadband
Services Agreement with the Town MLPs, then that disclosure should be clearly made in the response.
Further, if the proposing entity differs, then a statement must be provided by the proposing Vendor
stating whether it will or will not provide a guaranty for the performance ofthe entity entering into the
Agreement.

Due to the nature of the work being asked for by the Town of Monterey this proposal is being
submitted on behalf of Matrix Design Group. However, included in this submission is also
information on Millennium Communications Group so that the Broadband Committee can better
understand the depth of our combined resources and experience. Both Matrix and Millennium
have the same ownership.

4.1 History and experience

The proposing Vendor must provide a brief history ofthe firm, noting its evolution of
telecommunication services, and in particular broadband services. Further, a concise statement of its
current business strategy must be provided. A proposal must include history ofcompleting projects to
provide Internet service similar to that required here. The Town MLPs require that a proposing
Vendor be authorized to conduct relevant business in Massachusetts and the Towns. However, Vendors
not currently authorized may respond. Vendors not currently authorized will need to provide details for
the process and schedulefor obtaining the required authorization.

Matrix (and Millennium Communications) have been engineering and installing fiber optic networks for
over 20-years. We measure the amount of fiber installed not by just miles or tens of miles but in
thousands of miles of fiber network.



We have been named one of the Top 100 FTTH Companies in the United States in three of the past five
r  years by Broadband Communities magazine. Some of our recent projects-include building and doing the

final design for the Town of Leverett's FTTH network, building two multi-million dollar smart grids for
Public Service of New Jersey as well as dozens of projects for Verizon, Level 3 and AT&T.

Verizon, Level 3 and AT&T are three of the biggest Internet providers in the United States - if the not the
three biggest. These companies have the choice of any company to work with in the Northeast and they
choose to do business with us. We are currently working with Verizon on their new seven ring fiber
backbone in Boston.

We will continue to do business with these companies and other established and new customers. Plus
Matrix will leverage the experience we have gained in building FTTH networks for 10 rural New England
towns to offer a unique Design, Build, Operate solution for unserved Western and Central Massachusetts
towns.

For additional information please see Appendix B.

4.2 Financial resources

The Town MLPs expect a proposing Vendor to finance thefuii capital cost of make-ready, design,
commissioning, andprovisioning of the network required for providing high-bandwidth Internet
access and services in each Town. Further, the proposing Vendor must offer credible evidence of its
ability to finance the project. If the proposing Vendor is a privately held corporation, it may enclose its
auditedfinancial statements in a sealed envelope marked "Proprietary and Confidential." The Town
MLPs will hold confidential records submitted in such an envelope so marked until completion of
evaluations and as otherwise permitted by law.

Under the Matrix plan the Towns would be responsible for the costs of all aspects of the utility pole
make-ready process.

Financials for the past two years have been provided in a separate envelop. This information is to be
reviewed by ONLY the Town Treasurer or Financial Adviser and ONLY after signing a Non-Disclosure
Agreement (see Appendix C). The financials are not to be reviewed by the Town Select Boards or
Broadband Committees even in Executive Session (under Massachusetts Open Meeting Law even
documents reviewed in Executive Session become public documents). Once the financials have been
reviewed they are to be returned to Matrix.

Our financials were vetted by the Town of Leverett prior to entering into a $2.6 million contract (also
prior to the new Open Meeting Law requirements). Our financials were also reviewed under NDA by the
Towns of Petersham, Princeton and Montague with no issues found for Matrix to move forward with
proposed fiber builds.

4.3 Minimum existing customer base for requested services

The proposing Vendor must provide evidence of currently providing high-bandwidth Internet services
to rural communities similar to the Towns involved in this procurement. In the case where the Vendor
does not currently provide Internet access and service to at least 1000 subscribers in rural
communities, the Vendor must provide detail on existing contracts and provide a plan showing their

\  J ability to deploy (funding, resources and organization) and support a multi-town broadband Internet
service.



The combined homes passed for the Leverett FTTH network and the nine EC Fiber towns in Vermont
(Barnard, Chelsea, Norwich, Pomfret, Randolph, Royalton, Sharon, Stratford, Thetford, Turnbridge, and
Vershire) is well over 2,000. Matrix built tlie FTTH network to service these homes, tested each
subscriber connection and provisioned each subscriber for Internet service before handing of the
subscriber to an ISP.

For the Newark Housing Authority we built over 25 miles of fiber to connect ~ 1,100 IP security cameras.
These cameras are harder to maintain then FTTH ONT's (Optical Network Terminals) because of the
pan-tilt and zoom functions of the cameras.

Matrix did not provide the capital for these projects (although we are an investor in EC Fiber in Vermont)
and outside of maintaining the Newark Housing Authority build we are not the current Internet Service
Provider (ISP).

We are currently finalizing a contract with the Town of Petersham, MA to design, build and operate a
GPON FTTH network. The Town has roughly 530 homes plus the Harvard School of Forestry and a new
rehabilitation hospital.

See Appendix D.

The two main aspects of being an ISP are customer technical support and customer billing.

In regards to customer technical support, our CTO (Chief Technical Officer) holds a Cisco CCIE
,  certification. This is the highest level of certification Cisco offers. There are only a few thousand people

to hold this level of certification in the world. Our tech support staff also includes 6 additional Cisco
certified engineers (and we are looking to add additional stafl). We have an in-place live answer tech
support telephone line and in-place afterhours automatic trouble-ticket system. Our technicians are
available 24/7 for emergency response.

In regards to customer billing, we have a CFO (Chief Financial Officer) and a staff that already handles
millions upon millions of customer invoicing per year. The additional billing responsibilities should not
be difficult to handle especially since many of the customers will opt for paperless automatic payment via
check or credit card.

5.1 Business history and experience.

Matrix (and Millennium Communications) have been engineering and installing fiber optic networks for
over 20-years. We measure the amount of fiber installed not by Just miles or tens of miles but in
thousands of miles of fiber network.

We have been named one of the Top 100 FTTH Companies in the United States in three of the past five
years by Broadband Communities magazine. Some of our recent projects include building and doing the
final design for the Town of Leverett's FTTH network, building two multi-million dollar smart grids for
Public Service of New Jersey as well as dozens of projects for Verizon, Level 3 and AT«S:T.

Verizon, Level 3 and AT&T are three of the biggest Internet providers in the United States - if the not the
three biggest. These companies have the choice of any company to work with in the Northeast and they
choose to do business with us.

We will continue to do business with these companies and other established and new customers. Plus
Matrix will leverage the experience we have gained in building FTTH networks for 10 rural New England



towns to offer a^unique Design, Build, Operate solution for unserved Western and Central Massachusetts
towns. i

For additional information please see Appendix B.

5.2 Financial resources.

Matrix and Millennium combined have about 100 employees. The companies have been in business for
over 20-years over which time we have done hundreds of projects and installed thousands of miles of
fiber network (now approaching 5,000 miles of fiber network).

For additional company information please see Appendix B

5.3 Description and size of broadband Internet service customer base

Millennium Communications is a Cisco Premiere reseller with 50 plus major accounts that we have
installed and service.

In regards to customer technical support, our CTO (Chief Technical Officer) holds a Cisco CCIE
certification. This is the highest level of certification Cisco offers. There are only a few thousand people
to hold this level of certification in the world. Our tech support staff also includes 6 additional Cisco
certified engineers (and we are looking to add additional staff). We have an in-place live answer tech
support telephone line and in-place afterhours automatic trouble-ticket system. Our technicians are
available 24/7 for emergency response.

5.4 Internet Service Performance Requirements

The proposing Vendor must provide a description of the tiers of Internet service that will be available
to Subscribers to choosefrom, for both downstream and upstream services per the requirements
provided in Section 3.3.

There are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/month.

Enhanced Internet: Up to 100 Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps up to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis. Dedicated
connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited local and long distance calling (lower 48 US
States). The VoIP service will come with standard features including but not limited to Caller ID, Call
Waiting, 3-Way Calling, etc. Cost to add a VoIP line would be $20/month. A second VoIP line may be
ordered for an additional $20/month.

Digital voicemail services are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the voicemail
to email feature, which allows you to listen to your voicemail from your email account when you are
away from your home phone.



Subscribers at time of installation may opt for a Calix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in 802.11 AC
WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month.

Pricing does not include any applicable taxes or estimated ML? fee which will differ on a town-by-town
basis..

5.4.1

Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to provide high-bandwidth Internet service to
the Subscriber. The preferred methodsfor providing such evidence is via references (with contact
information) and recent results from an independent study that measures broadband service
performance as delivered by an Internet service provider to the consumer, such as the Federal
Communication Commission's (FCC) Measuring Broadband America Program. References are the
agencies within the towns/cities responsible for monitoring performance. Via evidence, Vendor's
actual connection bandwidthsfor ail levels of broadband service offered must be shown to be greater
than 80% of the advertised bandwidths across all time periods.

Matrix cannot supply evidence that subscriber connections were greater than 80% of the advertised
bandwidth since we were not the ISP for the Town of Leverett or 9 EC Fiber towns in Vermont. In the

Town of Leverett it is HIGHLY unlikely that the advertised speed of up to I Gbps was actually anywhere
near the actual customer experience.

Matrix will be partnering with Calix to provide Internet service. Calix has over 19-years of real world,
standards based fiber deployment experience. Their equipment has been deployed by over 1,300
communication service providers (CSP's) worldwide (including the Matrix builds in Leverett and in
Vermont for EC Fiber).

Matrix will be utilizing the Calix Compass suite of software applications to provision, activate and
maintain the broadband service for the residents of Monterey, New Marlborough, Sandisfield and
Tolland.

See Appendix E

5.4.2

Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to satisfy its existing broadband Internet service
customers with respect to service performance, service options available, subscriber biiiing, service
pricing, maintenance and emergency response, and service problem handling. The preferred method
for providing such evidence is via independent survey results, such as the report released by the
American Customer Satisfaction Index, that measures the level of national cross-industry customer
satisfaction for products and services. Via evidence the Vendor's current level of customer satisfaction
for ail levels of broadband service offered must be shown to be greater than 70%.

Matrix cannot document customer service levels over 70%. However, we would point to the fact that the
biggest names in Internet service such as Verizon, Level 3 and A&T keep coming back to us project after
project to leverage our professionalism and experience. Currently Matrix is doing the engineering on
Verizon's new seven-ring fiber backbone in Boston. Verizon would not trust the engineering of this
project to just anyone.

Matrix will be partnering with Calix to provide Internet service. Calix has over 19-years of real world,
standards based fiber deployment experience. Their equipment has been deployed by over 1,300



communication service providers (CSP's) worldwide (including the Matrix builds in Leverett and in
Vermont for EC Fiber). ■

Matrix will be utilizing the Calix Compass suite of software applications to provision, activate and
maintain the broadband service for the residents of Monterey.

See Appendix E

5.4.3

Proposing Vendor must provide evidence of being able to provide broadband Internet service that is
highly available. Within this proposal request "availability" refers to the proportion of time broadband
Internet access and services (per performance requirements specified in Section 3.3) are expected to be
provided to ail subscribers. Evidencefor avaiiability can be measuredfor existing broadband Internet
customers, or caiculated based on the Vendor's proposed network design. Network design features that
wiil drive service availability are network component reiiabiiity, component and system-ievel
redundancy, backup power generation, etc. Within this proposal request the term "downtime" refers to
periods oftime when Internet access and service is unavailable to subscribers, exciusive ofperiods of
time required for the Vendor to perform scheduled maintenance.

Matrix cannot supply the information being asked for here. There are too many uncertain variables such
as fiber design, head-end location(s), Internet back-haul provider (Axia or other), etc.

Matrix will be the service provider and after the initial 2-year commitment from the subscriber it will be
incumbent on Matrix to continue to provide superior service and products in order to keep our subscribers
satisfied. The Matrix plan also offers the Broadband MLPs the option to purchase the network if the any
of the Towns are not satisfied with Matrix and wishes to go in a different direction.

In a combined Town network Matrix would most likely be utilizing a 10 Gbps backhaul to the Internet
instead of 6 Gbps combined if the Towns were built and maintained separately. This additional bandwidth
should reduce or eliminate any network congestion.

5.5 Service Schedule Requirements

Proposing Vendor must be abie to provide broadband Internet service to all subscribers within three
years from contract commencement. To the extent service availabiiity is delayed due to causes that
could not be anticipated and/or are beyond the Vendor's control, and the Vendor can demonstrate it is
exercising diligence in its efforts, the contract wiil be amended as appropriate.

Once the individual checks for the utility pole applications were accepted by the utility companies - it
took Matrix/Millennium 18 months to build the Town of Leverett's FTTH network. Since we would be

both building and operating the network - Matrix projects we should be able to first start "lighting up"
subscribers within 12-months.

It should be noted that during the period we were building the Town of Leverett - that project represented
just 10% of the network fiber Matrix/Millennium built during that time span.

For the plan and a representative schedule for the Towns please see Appendix A

5.5.1



Proposing Vendor must provide Internet service to all subscribers located on public and private roads
in the Towns, to the extent such subscribers are currently connected to existing utility poles or conduit
with space available for additional cables. If a Vendor proposes a linear connection allowancefor
reaching subscribers on a private road or driveway, the Vendor must propose a per foot unit price
applicable to the overage allowed per connection.

The Matrix plan calls for connecting to all housing units and businesses that are reachable via existing
utility pole lines or usable conduit for which we have a "right of way". Standard connections to the home
will be 300 feet aerial from the curb or 300 feet from the curb using existing useable conduit. For
connections longer than 300 feet - additional costs may apply. For estimate purposes each additional foot
for aerial could be $I per foot and for usable conduit each additional foot could be also be estimated $1
per foot over and above the 300 feet from the curb. Each case will be priced on a case by case basis
however.

5.5.2

Proposing Vendor must provide a plan, including equipment and cost to subscribers, if any, for initial
installation of on-premises equipment (e.g. network terminal units, modems, routers, uninterruptible
power supply, etc.)

The Matrix plan calls for the subscriber to have the choice of a Calix outdoor ONT or a Calix GigaCenter
indoor ONT with built in 802.11 AC Wi-Fi. Either ONT will come with an installed indoor battery back
up unit. The subscriber cost during construction will be $500 which would be broken into two payments
of $250 each. The first payment would be during a 3-month pre-subscription period and the second just
prior to construction. There needs to be at least 1,660 subscribers committed to the build (an combined
take-rate of 53%) before Matrix begins engineering or construction work. The first payment of $250
would be collected by the Town Treasurer on behalf of the MLP and would be fully refundable to the
subscriber prior to construction.

We give the subscriber the choice of an outdoor or indoor ONT because there are a number of reasons a
subscriber might prefer an outdoor ONT.

5.5.3

Proposing Vendor must provide a plan for addressing how broadband service will be provided to new
premises after the network construction has been completed. To the extent possible the plan shall
include the applicable terms, conditions, and costs that will apply, as well as who will be responsible for
future costs.

The post construction cost to install a new house drop would be $1,500 (in comparison - it is $2,400 in
Leverett). The same terms and conditions would apply to the new drop as it does to existing subscribers
with the exception that the new customer would not be required to agree to a minimum of 24-month of
service.

5.6

Proposing Vendor must provide a comprehensive description of its business proposition for each Town
and its subscribers, including all offered service options and the associated rates (cost) for each service.

J  The Vendor must provide broadband Internet service. Other services, such as high definition telephone
service, high definition television channel package service, and basic Internet are not required, but are



considered by the Town MLPs to be highly desirable. The Vendor shall provide a complete description
of the television packages available to subscribers If applicable.

Matrix will design, build and maintain a GPON FTTH system, in accordance with the manual of
construction procedures known as Telcordia SR-1421, FTTH accepted best practices and applicable law.
The costs for the design, build and maintenance of the GPON FTTH system shall be borne by Matrix.
Subject to the terms of Agreement, Matrix shall own, operate, maintain and manage the GPON FTTH
system. The Towns or MLPs shall have the option to purchase the FTTH network after 3-years for a
predetermined price which would decrease each subsequent year until after year 20 the buy-out price
would be $10.

The Towns or MLPs would be responsible for the costs of all aspects of the make-ready process, police
details during make-ready, a place to house and power the network electronics, plus whatever legal or
miscellaneous costs associated with this agreement.

The Matrix plan calls for the subscriber to have the choice of a Calix outdoor ONT or a Calix GigaCenter
indoor ONT with built in 802.11 AC Wi-Fi. Either ONT will come with an installed indoor battery back
up unit. The subscriber cost during construction will be $500 which would be broken into two payments
of $250 each. The first payment would be during a 3-month pre-subscription period and the second Just
prior to construction. There needs to be at least 1,660 subscribers committed to the build before Matrix
begins engineering or construction work. The first payment of $250 would be collected by the Town
Treasurer on behalf of the MLP and would be fully refundable to the subscriber prior to construction.

As far as the subscribers - there are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/month.

Enhanced Internet: Up to 100 Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps up to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis. Dedicated
connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited local and long distance calling (lower 48 US
States). The VoIP service will come with standard features including but not limited to Caller ID, Call
Waiting, 3-Way Calling, etc. Cost to add a VoIP line would be $20/month. A second VoIP line may be
ordered for an additional $20/month.

Digital voicemail services are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the voicemail
to email feature, which allows you to listen to your voicemail from your email account when you are
away from your home phone.

Subscribers at time of installation may opt for a Calix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in 802.11 AC
WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month.

Pricing does not include any applicable taxes or estimated MLP fee(s). The MLP fee(s) would be used to
pay for the yearly pole rentals, surety bonds and miscellaneous MLP expenses. The MLP(s) fee would be
set by the MLP(s).

5.7



Proposing Vendor shall identify and specify any service value enhancements it plans to offer the
Towns, such as a minimalfee or no fee for basic Internet service for all subscribers, andfree or
discounted broadband Internet service feesfor Town institutions (Town Hall, Schools, Library, Fire
Station, etc.).

Matrix will offer free Standard Internet to three municipal buildings (Town Hall, Library, Fire
Station,etc.) in each participating Town. However, each institution would still be responsible for the $500
installation fee.

5.8

If the proposing Vendor takes exception to any portion of the requirements of this Proposal, the
Vendor shall concisely and clearly articulate its exception and its reasoning therefore. Vendor should
consider that a material exception may lead to the Vendor being deemed non-responsive. A proposing
Vendor, however, may suggest alternative approaches to those required here that in its judgment
provides similar, equal to or greater value. Any alternative approach(s) will be subjected to the same
comparative criteria herein.

Areas where our proposed solution does not exactly match up with the RFP as written include:

Under the Matrix plan the Town would be responsible for all aspects of the utility make-ready work
including make-ready assessment and permitting. (Section 3.1)

Under the Matrix plan subscribers would be offered the option of a standard VoIP line not a high
definition VoIP line. (Section 3.4)

Financials for the past two years have been provided in a separate envelop. This information is to be
reviewed by ONLY the Town Treasurer or Financial Adviser and ONLY after signing a Non-Disclosure
Agreement (see Appendix B). The financials are not to be reviewed by the Town Select Board or
Broadband Committee even in Executive Session (under Massachusetts Open Meeting Law even
documents reviewed in Executive Session become public documents. (Section 4.2)

We are not currently servicing 1,000 residential customers. (Sections 4.3)

Matrix cannot supply evidence that subscriber connections were greater than 80% of the advertised
bandwidth since we were not the ISP for the Town of Leverett or 9 EC Fiber towns in Vermont. In the

Town of Leverett it is HIGHLY unlikely that the advertised speed of up to 1 Gbps was actually anywhere
near the advertised 1 Gbps. (Section 5.4.1)

Matrix cannot supply evidence of subscriber satisfaction above 70% because we have not acted as ISP for
the 10 rural New England towns that we have built. (Section 5.4.2)

Matrix cannot supply the information being asked for here. There are too many uncertain variables such
as fiber design, head-end location(s), Internet back-haul provider (Axia or other), etc. (Section 5.4.3)

The Matrix plan customer service terms and conditions are currently being vetted by attorneys. Matrix
plans to utilize very similar if not exact terms and conditions, with permission, as the Concord Broadband
MLP. (Section 5.16)

Even though the RFP states that the Towns have no current intention to gain any residual ownership
interest in the network - the Matrix plan does give the MLPs the option to purchase the network for a pre-



agreed upon price. We offer the option to purchase not to just to conform to MGL 16^but also to give the
towns choices. The option to buy, among other things, gives the Town the ability to Join a regional
cooperative like WiredWest. (Section 6.0)

5.9

If any part of the Scope of Vendor Service is to be provided or completed by a SubVendor or
Subcontractor, the proposing Vendor certifies that they will be responsible for all work and/or services
provided by the Sub-Vendor or Subcontractor.

Agreed.

5.10

Proposing Vendor must provide contact information for ail similar contracts with a town for
broadband Internet service completed in the last two years in the Northeast.

Chip Bull
Petersham Broadband ML? Chair

chipbull@gmail.com
(978) 724-3339
(Contract Pending)

Marjorie McGuiness
LeverettNet Broadband MLP Manager
townadministrator@leverett.ma.us
(413) 548-9699

5.11

Proposing Vendor must agree to be responsiblefor obtaining consents from premise owners to make
connections

Agreed

5.12.1

The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to adhere to the principle of Net Neutrality whereby
access is available to all content and applications regardless of the source, and without blocking
particular products, content, or websites. To that end, describe your network management or non-
discrimination policy as regards to (a) types (network protocols) oftraffic, (b) sources or destinations
of traffic (including Vendor's own), and (c) traffic content.

Matrix adheres to Net Neutrality. We will not hinder access to content or applications regardless of the
source. There will be no blocking or favoring of specific websites or products.

5.12.2

\ J The Town MLPs require the selected Vendor to maintain the privacy of all subscribers, and not track,
publish, or share information related to the content accessed by individual or groups of subscribers. To



that end, describe what monitoring and statistics you maintain regarding network traffic. Include in
the description what customer specific information is logged and how long those logs are retained.

The Calix equipment will monitor among other things historical system bandwidth and system usage via
Flow Analyze Plus and the Consumer Connect Plus software will, among other things, collect real-time
and historical data on how the end-user is using the network, particularly the Wi-Fi network. This data is
used to more efficiently provide customer support in solving subscriber issues. We also utilize Service
Verify for its predictive service analytics and for any required SLA management.

See Appendix E

The privacy of our customers is very important to Matrix. However, some of the data received via our
system is subject to Public Records Law, MGL Chapter 66, Section 10. Matrix cannot insure absolute
privacy.

5.12.3

Describe in detail your network management in regards to bandwidth and capacity planning with a
particular focus on bandwidth between a Town's users and the Internet. If you are providing diverse
Internet circuits/gateways, address capacity planningfor each circuit as appropriate.

Matrix will be utilizing the Calix suite of enhanced software packages to manage bandwidth and capacity
planning.

See Appendix E.

Designing network transport routes and Internet providers will take place after the Town decides to take
advantage of the offer Matrix is making. Matrix is committed to providing the Town with at least 2 Gbps
in Internet backhaul.

5.12.4

Describe in detailyour monitoring of Customer Premises Equipment and customer usage.

Please see Appendix E.

5.12.5

Describe in detail any limitations on the use ofthe service that will be applied to customer usage

Matrix will not limit subscribers. Available bandwidth will utilize dynamic bandwidth allocation so that
bandwidth is fairly utilized throughout the network up to the tier level the subscriber has chosen. There
are no data caps.

5.12.6

Describe in detail what would constitute abuse of the network or network service, and what steps would
be taken regarding an abuser.

The customer Terms of Service and Acceptable Use Policies are subject to change. Among the prohibited
subscriber activities include:



Unauthorized solicitations and spamming
Intellectual property and privacy violations
Obscene speech or materials (transmitting, distributing or storing of any material in violation of any
applicable law or regulation is prohibited)
Defamatory or abusive language or content
Forging of headers or content
Illegal or unauthorized access to other computers or networks
Exploitation of vulnerabilities in hardware or software for malicious purposes
Distribution of Internet viruses, worms, Trojan horses, or other destructive activities
Facilitating a violation
Phishing and deceptive practices

-  Solicitation of minors

Other illegal activities

5.12.7

Describe in detail processes for requesting new or modifications to services (e.g. cancellation,
temporary and/or seasonal stoppage, etc.).

There will be an "800" number for new or existing customers to call. During the day the number will be
answered live to handle the subscribers' change of service, billing issues, and technical support questions.
After hours the callers would be directed to an existing trouble ticket system.

The subscriber would also have the option of a self-service portal to handle reporting service issues,
change of service requests or for bill payment.

Most changes of service (move to a different tier, cancel service, schedule new service, suspend service)
can be handled remotely. Only if a technician physically has to visit the property should there be a delay.

5.12.8

Detail plans andprocesses that minimi^ operational cost increases to Subscribers through
minimization of truck rolls and other high cost support services. This may include use of local
resources, sub-contractors or other ongoing cost minimization programs.

Matrix would be utilizing Calix' Consumer Connect Plus platform to help identify and fix subscriber
issues. The capabilities of this software suite are unmatched in the industry. Consumer Connect Plus Wi-
Fi analyzer capabilities alone will minimize the need for a technician to make a truck roll to a subscriber's
home.

Please see Consumer Connect brochure in Appendix E.

Matrix will have at least one technician in the area to handle day-to-day work such as installing or
replacing an ONT or battery back-up unit or fixing splices in cases of tree branch damage, etc. For larger
requirements we have a number of regional subcontractors that we work with. For larger ice-storm type
events Matrix could dispatch crews from New Jersey.

'r 5.13



The Town MLPs desire to gain insight into the design of high bandwidth networks the Vendor typically
constructs to provide customers with broadband Internet services. In support ofthis desire the
proposing Vendor must provide a description ofthe proposed regional network design it will plan to
construct to provide customers in each Town with required services listed in Sections 5.4 and 5.6. The
description of the network design should include content such as system-level schematics and block
diagramsfor the proposed network architecture and topology, identification ofthe network component
technologies to be used, a list ofthe user equipmentfor each premise, a list of equipment to be
centrally located (regionally or within each Town) and operated by the Vendor, etc.

Matrix will design, build and maintain a GPON FTTH system, in accordance with the manual of
construction procedures known as Telcordia SR-1421, FTTH accepted best practices and applicable law.
The costs for the design, build and maintenance of the GPON FTTH system shall be borne by Matrix.

A sample of our design work has been included with our submittals.

5.14

Proposing Vendor must provide the Town MLPs with options for offering broadband Internet services
to subscribers located within Town boundaries on private roads and driveways, not connected via
utility poles or underground conduit. Options should address situations where utility poles are not
permitted.

Special Town areas to assess:
Monterey - Stevens Lake Association
Sandisfield- Otis Woodlands
Tolland- North Tolland f~95 homes), Beldon Road, East Otis

The Matrix plan calls for aerial installation of fiber. Areas with usable conduit to which the Town owns a
right of way may also be added into the service area. Parts of Town witli direct buried utilities or areas
with underground utilities but no usable conduit are not part of the Matrix offer to the Towns.

Options to service areas with underground utilities include:

Town or Broadband MLP can install new conduit at their own expense
-  Homeowners on Private Roads or Homeowner Associations can install new conduit at their expense

Town or Broadband MLP can install a new Pole Line in areas with underground utilities. Installed
new poles would be paid for and remain property of the Broadband MLP.
Do nothing and wait for National Grid to update facilities at which time Town or Broadband MLP
could also install new conduit.

In specific to the Otis Woodlands homes in Sandisfield, that development can only be access via Route 8
in Otis. Matrix had a discussion with officials in the Town of Otis and they are still not sure how the
homes located in Otis Woodlands on the Otis side of the border will be served.

5.15

Proposing Vendor must describe its processfor performing network maintenance and responding to
emergencies. The Vendor must also describe its existing operating and maintenance infrastructure.

\ ̂  Vendor should also address its current policy and plansfor as-needed renewal andfuture upgrades,
such as frequency of replacement of core network equipment, technology upgrades, or proactive
replacement ofparts, for all of its existing broadband Internet customers.



Matrix would be utilizing intelligent electronics which would generate alarms and actively call out to
emergency technicians.

Matrix would also be utilizing Calix' Consumer Connect Plus platform to help identify and fix subscriber
issues. The capabilities of this software suite are unmatched in the industry. Consumer Connect Plus Wi-
Fi analyzer capabilities alone will minimize the need for a technician to make a truck roll to a subscriber's
home.

Please see Consumer Connect brochure in Appendix E.

Matrix will have at least one technician in the area to handle day-to-day work such as installing or
replacing an ONT or battery back-up unit or fixing splices in cases of tree branch damage, etc. For larger
requirements we have a number of regional subcontractors that we work with. For larger ice-storm type
events Matrix could dispatch crews from New Jersey.

5.16

Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its current customer service plan made available to existing
broadband Internet customers. The customer service plan must address subscriber biliing and
customer service problem handling.

The Matrix plan customer service terms and conditions are currently being vetted by attorneys. Matrix
plans to utilize very similar if not exact terms and conditions, with permission, as the Concord Broadband
MLP.

http://www.concordnet.org/483/Terms-Conditions

5.17

In support of each Town MLP's desirefor the proposing Vendor to be responsible for all customer-
marketing efforts, the proposing Vendor should provide its plan for marketing its available broadband
Internet services.

Matrix would utilize the following to market our broadband solution to the residents of the four Towns:

Town wide mailings to describe the plan and how to sign up
Advertising in the Monterey News, Sandisfield News, etc.
Multiple information sessions at Town Halls

-  Saturdays at the Transfer Stations. Usually the best place to speak with residents of most rural New
England towns.

5.18

Proposing Vendor must provide a copy of its Customer Terms and Conditions governing its
relationship with customers, currently provided to all existing broadband Internet subscribers.

The Matrix plan customer service terms and conditions are currently being vetted by attorneys. Matrix
plans to utilize very similar if not exact terms and conditions, with permission, as the Concord Broadband
MLP.



http://www.concordnet.org/483/Terms-Conditions

5.19

Proposing Vendor must describe its process for addressing life-line services, E9I1, and emergency
handling in outage situations for existing broadband Internet customers. The Vendor must provide a
description of any subscriber fees and billing associated with these services.

Matrix would be utilizing standard E9II VoIP which would be "up and working" as long as the batteiy
back-up power lasts. If the subscriber is utilizing the broadband service as a cellular "hot spot" then the
E9II compatibility would be responsibility of cellular provider. If the subscriber is utilizing is using a

third party provider such as Skype or Vonage then the E911 compatibility would be the responsibility of
those providers.

5.20

Proposing Vendor must provide a list and description of the Internet Service Provider (ISP) services

(e.g. Internet access, email, domain name registration, web hosting, online distributed discussion

services (e.g. Usenet), cloud services, online storage services, etc.) provided to existing broadband

Internet customers. The Vendor must provide a detailed description for the fees andfee structure

associated with the ISP services offered

Matrix will offer two (2) tiers of Internet service; a Standard Internet connection of up to 50 Mbps for $95
per month and an Enhanced Internet connection of up to 100 Mbps for $135 per month. Matrix will also

offer the scriber the option of an indoor GigaCenter ONT with built-in 802.11 AC Wi-Fi for $5.00 month.

Tiers of above 100 Mbps up to I Gbps are available on a custom pricing basis. Dedicated connections of
up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom pricing basis.

Static IP addresses are also available at a price to be determined.

5.21

Proposing Vendor must provide its plan for supporting third party services, at both the subscriber and
third party level.

Matrix adheres to Net Neutrality. We will not hinder access to third party content or applications
regardless of the source. There will be no blocking or favoring of specific websites or products.
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Exhibit A

Certification and Signature Page

Must be completed and submitted with proposal.

The Undersigned proposing Vendor submits this Proposai to deliver a Broadband Network Service to the
Towns of Monterey, Sandisfieid, and Tolland.

Si^ture of^utoorized individuai submitting proposai
Date: 2/23/2017
Name of business: Matrix Design Group

Certificate of Non-Collusion

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this proposai has been made and submitted in
good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word
"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, union, committee, club, or
other organization, entity, or group of individuals.

Signature of/aufjAorized individual submitting proposal
Date: 2/23/2017
Name of business: Matrix Design Group

Tax Compliance Certification

Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 62C, §49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, I am in compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating
to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.

Signature qf aumorlzed individual submitting proposal
^ Date: 2/17/2017

Name of business: Matrix Design Group
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ATRIX
DESIGN GROUP From Concept To Completion

Serving all landscapes across the country, we specialize in fiber optic network deployments, civil engineering,
and complete broadband solutions. Our mission is to enable communities, cooperatives, municipalities,

and utilities the ability to provide best-in-class broadband communications networks. From feasibility studies,

budgeting, underground conduit and aerial cabling, to bridge crossings and outside plant construction, Matrix

will provide everything from concept to completion.

Our Experience

As a full service civil engineering and telecommunications

design firm, we will perform a variety of public and private sector
projects ranging from complete communications networks to

storm wafer management strategies. Whether it's planning the

migration of a legacy copper plant, designing a new Fiber To
The Premises {FTTP) network, or providing turnkey outside plant
managed services. Matrix provides value and savings by being
the only go to source for ail your project needs.

Our Staff

Our professional staff strives to understand the complexities
of each project in order to develop an efficient and effective

engineering solution. Our success Is built on providing a
transparent project environment where clients and their

partners are actively involved in the process. We offer

unmatched professionalism through a stringent quality
control program. Matrix Is dedicated to delivering the best
services that meet our customers' needs.

Our Promise

We are dedicated to providing next generation technology to all of our industries. We strive to deliver an infrastructure capable
of handling the fastest broadband so that our clients can reap the benefits of having the most reliable network. By having Matrix
design and engineer a communications system capable of handling big data, our clients get a fast, reliable network infrastructure
capable of growing with their business operation.

In addition, we will provide civil engineering services that help our clients solve their toughest challenges. From storm water and
environmental services to transportation and traffic engineering and planning, we strive to serve our markets with the utmost
quality to deliver the most robust project solutions.



MILLENNIUM PROFESSIONAL
COMMUNICATIONS GROUP INC. PROFILES

Ron Cassel
CEO

SUMMARY
Ronald Cassel Is the Chief Executive Officer of Millennium Communications and one of its founding members. While
he was originally brought into the company for his expertise in advanced communications systems, Ron's dedication
to providing value added services has propelled him to the forefront of the company. Ron's knowledge of advanced
telecommunications systems began with his first job as a technician for a fledgling cable television company in New
Jersey. In his fifteen plus years working at the company, Ron excelled in every aspect of the telecommunications
engineering field. His experience includes broadband RF distribution systems, operation of the most extensive microwave
transmission network in the northeast, work on and with scientists from Bell Laboratories on the first amplitude modulated
fiber optic systems, the very essence of today's advanced fiber based broadband networks.

In 2000, Ron took over as the CFO of Millennium immediately following the collapse of the Telecom industry. In his role
as CFO, he was able to reorganize Millennium and retrain its focus not only towards supporting the newly emerging
telecoms, but also diversifying Millennium's business offerings to what they are today. Working with our management
and recruiting experts in their respective fields. Ron has assembled a competent, disciplined management staff with core
competencies in all areas of advanced communications systems.
Today, Ron oversees all aspects of running a successful corporation including looking for new opportunities to expand our
service offerings. While his position may have reshaped his role at Millennium, he is never far from the technologies at the
heart of our success.

SELECTED EXPERIENCE
Fiber-To-The-Home
AT&T Research (New Jersey/ California)
Responsible for the design and installation of two experimental communication networks. These networks deliver video,
data and voice communications to residential customers over fiber optic cable.

EC Fiber (Vermont)
Served as the principle engineer on the project. The project entails 22 towns in East Central Vermont forming a consortium
to build their own Fiber to the Home network. The project budget is $66,000,000 and will be the largest public works
project ever undertaken in Vermont.

ValteyNet (Vermont)
Served as the principle engineer on the project. The project encompassed the design and installation of 23-miles of
aerial self-support fiber optic cable providing area homes and businesses with high speed broadband internet and
comprehensive telephone service.

EDUCATION
1978 - Seton Hall University, South Orange, NJ - Accounting
1982 - DeVry Technical Institute, Woodbridge, NJ - Electrical Engineering Technology
1990 - Optical Networks International-Advanced Fiber Communications Technologies (certificate)
1993 - AT&T- Advanced SONET System Architecture (certificate).

REGISTRATIONS / MEMBERSHIPS
SCTE - System Member
NJBIA - Member

NECA - Board Member

Society of American Military Engineers (SAME)



MILLENNIUM PROFESSIONAL
COMMUNICATIONS GROUP INC. PROFILES

Kenneth McLaughlin
Senior Vice President, Business Development

SUMMARY

Mr. McLaughlin is Senior Vice President of Business Development and holds over 24 years of experience in construction
of communications infrastructure and CATV/ security networks. His experience also includes 10 years within the
Competitive Access industry. Mr. McLaughlin's responsibilities have included the installation and maintenance of 2600
miles of distribution plant: In addition to, the construction and maintenance of a 160-mile SONET network in New
Jersey. His experience has allowed him to utilize his skills to develop critical networking solutions for clients, focusing on
advanced communications, interoperability, security of critical infrastructure and unified communications systems.

SELECTED EXPERIENCE

Rutgers RU-Net
This project involved the design, build, and maintenance of Rutgers' privately owned and advanced voice, data, and video
infrastructure. The tasks involved in this project were to integrate the New Brunswick, Camden, and Newark campuses
to provide faster internet and to link the classrooms, libraries, and residence halls allowing robust voice and data
capabilities.

Cabievision Strategic Fiber
Responsible for the design and construction of 500 miles of fiber optic plant in New York and New Jersey. This project
linked all of Cablevision's transmit facilities with redundant capabilities.

MCi/WorldCom North Jersey Overbuild
This project involved the overbuilding of a 100-mile joinlly owned fiber optic system in the North Jersey area. The
associated tasks included route feasibility studies, utility relocation engineering and material B.O.M.'s.

Madison, New Jersey (AT&T - "RoseNet") Fiber Project
Responsibilities included overseeing the construclion of 9 miles of fiber optic plant in the Borough to tie in all public
facilities. Complete project management from initial design through project acceptance,

REGISTRATIONS/MEMBERSHIPS

state member of S.C.T.E.

National Rights Of Way Association
BICSI Corporate Member

EDUCATION

BS. Montclalr State University, Montclalr, New Jersey
Certification, CALC

Certification, Chubb



MILLENNIUM PROFESSIONAL
COMMUNICATIONS GROUP INC. PROFILES

William A. Stark
Vice President, Field Operations

SUMMARY

Mr. Stark has over 27 years' experience in engineering, design, and construction of communications facilities with an
emphasis on outside plant.

Additionally, he provides oversight of all field operations, Including the management and direction of all field employees.
Mr. Stark ensures that all resources are managed and coordinated In an efficient and professional manner on all projects.
In order to perform work within the budget and ahead of schedule.

Recent work history includes project management, engineering of fiber optic networks and building laterals, in addition to.
communications survey's with route design.

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

AT&TI.T.S. - Fiber interconnection
Completed survey and design for AT&T Local Services engineering project. This Included designing diverse fiber optic
lateral feeds to over 75 ATST/Lucenl facilities throughout f^ew Jersey. Responsibilities included survey work, preparation
of drawings, construction estimates. B.O.M.'s. and managing construction crews. Similar projects were also completed
for Hyperion Tefecommunications (Adelphia) and LIghlpath (Cablevlsion).

Rutgers University - Telecommunications Survey
Managed field survey crews responsible for cataloging all existing OSP telecommunications facilities on six campuses
at Rutgers University, Project included physical survey of all manholes, handholes, pull boxes and building demarcation
points. Responsibilities included compiling all field data (sketches, digital photos, duct information), preparing as-built
documentation, and submitting progress reports to University engineers

Private Fiber Networks
Project managed the construction of approximately 455 miles of aerial & underground fiber optic plant for various
municipal entities In New Jersey. Responsibilities Included material procurement, customer Interfacing, field crew
management, and as-bullt submittals

CLEC Support
Provides ongoing utility construction services to various communications suppliers in the Northeast region. This includes
new capital build-outs, relocation work, daily maintenance and providing 24-7 emergency support.

EDUCATION

Cook College, Rutgers University • New Brunswick, New Jersey



ATRIX
DESIGN GROUP

PROFESSIONAL

PROFILES

Chris Lynch
Senior Account Manager, New England Division

SUMMARY

Chris Lynch has over 20-years of experience in high-tech communications technology. He has worked with structured
cable, optical networking, and voice and data communications solutions. For the past 12-years. Chris Lynch has
focused on the communications requirements of Tier 2 and 3 telcos and alternative communications providers. He is an
acknowledged expert in the field of IPTV, Mr, Lynch's roles have ranged from owning his own consulting firm to managing
a sales force responsible for over $53 million in yearly sales.

Whether in managing his own territory or managing others - Mr. Lynch employs a solutions geared approach where the
customer's needs are paramount. His experience ranges from local small business deployments to Fortune 500 networks

SELECTED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

upgrading Sprint's Overland Park. Kansas campus headquarters from an ATM based video network to
MPEG2 IP live-video Streaming network.

Serving as AT&T SystemMax subject matter expert for Sprint North Supply's national enterprise sales
team in addition to managing a team of six covering 13 Northeast States.

Design and deployment for an over 200-channel IPTV system for New Visions Communications in East
Syracuse, New York.

Integration and deployment of an IP video system for the headquarters of State Street Financial in Boston,
Massachusetts.

Responsible for Business Development relationships between SES Americom's IP Prime Division and
Cisco, Nortel, Entone and others. SES is the largest private satellite company in the world

in addition to the above, Mr. Lynch has experience in the MSO market (Time Warner, Cablevision), carriers (AT&T, Verizon),
broadcasters (ABC, CBS, CNN) and satellite providers (PanAmSat, BTV+. Hughes).
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Client: Rutgers, The State University of New Jersey
Project: Rutgers University RUNet 2000 Telecommunications OSP Design

Location: Throughout New jersey

Background
TTie State Univereity of New Jersey, welcomes over 50,000 students every year. It Is one of
the nation's leading universities with 7 campuses located In New Brunswick, PIscataway,
Newark and Camden. New Jersey. In order to maintain their leading university status, they
needed to create a comprehensive and advanced data, video, and voice communications

infrastructure that would meet the challenges facing Rutgers in the Information Age.

Rutgers recognized the need to improve Its communication infrastructure and network
capabilities. Soon after, the university published a Strategic Plan entitled, A Vision For
Excellence, which clearly specified that in order to achieve the goals stated within the
document, a robust, reliable network infrastructure was deemed necessary. From this
idea, RUNet 2000 was born.

Solution

To help move Rutgers towards their goals. Matrix Design Group, provided an
engineering and design solution coupled with project management and construction
services for the implementation of the Rutgers RUNet 2000 project, the largest
project of Its kind at an American university, to meet the communications needs of
the university well into the next century.

The design included 100 miles of on-campus duct bank and overhead fiberoptic backbone
systems across six (6) main campuses. The backbone completion phase included 340,000
feet of underground conduits, 150 manholes, and 50 aerial poles. In addition to all Rutgers"
residence halls, the RUNet system was connected to all campus academic buildings,
libraries, sports arenas, campus centers, student centers and recreation centers.

Utilizing advanced Global Positioning System (GPS) technology. Matrix prepared as-built
mapping of the entire system. More than 750 buildings were located with associated
database information embedded in the subsequent graphic elements. Detailed data
dictionaries were designed based on client requirements to ensure continuity, system
performance and functionality. All final mapping is geo-referenced into the appropriate
coordinate system to create a university wide telecommunications GIS layer. Subsequent
projects Included connecting fiber optic cabling to the universities alternative energy
windmills, electrical transmission points, and additional new construction buildings.

Matrix has helped Rutgers provide technology-based innovation in research and instructional
programs, administrative procedures, and information systems through a robust, reliable
network Infrastructure capable of handling the needs of their faculty, staff and students.

Project Goals
Provide technology-based innovation

In research and Instructional

programs, administrative procedures,

and information systems

Build a robust, reliable network

Infrastructure capable of supporting
client/server administrative systems

Assist in positioning Rutgers in the
top quartiie of research universities

Upgrade network to permit high
speed data transport, Interactive

video transmitting, and improved

voice applications

Link Rutgers academic and residential

buildings through an Integrated data,
voice and video network

matnxdg.com

.•SV 'U .

866-P92-9930
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Client: ECFiber

Project: East Central Vermont Community Fiber-Optic Network
Location: Vermont

Background
Having been continually overlooked in their quest for adequate broadband service by the
Incumbent service providers, 23 towns in east central Vermont banded together in 2008

to explore building a community owned fiber optic network. As the traditional carriers did

not find it cost effective or profitable enough to provide high speed bandwidth in their
towns, this group of communities decided to take control of the situation. Their cause has

resonated throughout rural communities all over the country.

East central Vermont is made up of some of the most rural communities In the United
States. These communities recognize that reliable broadband Is more than just a
matter of profitability: In some cases It's about the very survival of their communities
and the rural way of life. The collection of towns formed an organization, known as
.CFIber, and through grass roots action in their respective communities, they sought
out and received overwhelming community support to build and run their own Fiber
To The Home Network (FTTH). When they needed the expertise to help them carry out
the plan, they found it in Matrix Design Group,

Solution

Matrix Design Group began working with the ECFiber Governing Board, helping
to Identify the right network design to suit the needs of the community today and
tomorrow. Matrix designed a robust network that would connect all 23 towns and all of

the homes and businesses within the towns to the outside world. Additionally, Matrix
provided capital budgeting oversight for the network plan, including preparation of the
financial documents necessary to go to the public markets and managerial support at
multiple meetings, both internally and externally.

When the public bond market collapsed. Matrix, without missing a step, redesigned
the network to match the much more limited resources available to the project:
resources that relied on local grass roots funding by the very people that would use
the network. Matrix used its years of experience in designing, building, and operating
complex fiber based networks to totally redesign the network to suit the very limited
budgets. Although just as viable as the original design, the new design captured the
essence of what Matrix is all about: designing and building to meet our client needs,
within their budget. This new network, which is operational today, combines Innovative
thinking, solid engineering and cost effective construction techniques, to deliver world
class FTTH service to rural communities In Vermont.

ATRIX
DESIGN GROUP

"Matrix has provided an

invaluable service to the

citizens of East Central

Vermont. Our ambitious plan

to take control of our future

broadband needs was met by

a company that stepped right

up and made themselves an

Integral part of our team. We're

grateful for their guidance and

contribution to our project.

Without their truly innovative

design, we may not be where

we are today, delivering real

broadband to areas of our

State that may have never

gotten it otherwise"

Loredo Sola,

Chairman, ECFiber

matrixdg.com 866-P92-gg30
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FIBER OPTICS

Client: Vermont Telecommunications Authority [VTA]
Project: "Middle-Mile" Fiber Optic Broadband Network

W/ Location: Vermont

Background

The VTA. an Independent agency of the State of Vermont, was created in 2007 for

the purpose of expanding access to broadband and mobile telecommunication

services for Vermont residents. As a small, rural state with rugged terrain, Vermont
has difficulty attracting broadband Internet providers, who are often unable to build

profitable business models for serving the state. The VTA's goal was the development
of a 773 "middle-mile" fiber-optic network in Southern, Centra!, and Northeastern

Vermont. The project would connect over 340 community anchor institutions in the
project area, encompassing seven of Vermont's fourteen counties.

In 2011, the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA)

warded VTA with a $33.4 million dollar grant from the Broadband Technology
^'"-Opportunities Program. This accomplishment allowed VTA to start soliciting

Engineering and Design firms to design open fiber optic networks that would provide
data transport services up to 1 Gbps to community anchor institutions, government
agencies, and "last-mile" providers throughout the project area.

Solution

Matrix Design Group was selected as an engineering and design consultant to design
27.4 miles of fiber optic infrastructure from Hardwick to Irasburg. In addition to the

design of the fiber optic network. Matrix provided additional support services including
verification of pole line and underground routes, GIS data collection of pole stock and
potential customer sites, preparation of make-ready applications, make-ready joint
walk services, utility ride-out with all pole attachments, verification of utility make-
ready estimates, material selection and budgeting, construction specifications for a
draft RFQ, and optical fiber loss budget calculations.

With the help of Matrix, the VTA was able to offer wholesale data transport services to
providers such as Inlernet Service Providers (ISP's), telecommunications organizations
and cellular companies. Matrix designed a network that provides 1 Gbps connections,
allowing increased build-outs to additional community anchor Institutions such
as K-12 schools, libraries, colleges, state government offices, and public safety
communications networks throughout the state of Vermont.

Results

The network now brings upgraded

broadband and cellular service to

areas of the state.

This "middlo-mlle" network gives

educational institutions increased

opportunities through media-rich

on-line leaming.

Brings improved patient care through

the support of Electronic Health

Records, including transfers of large

medical imaging files.

Supports an increase In web-based

interactions from slate residents to

state agencies and reduces state

costs of travel and data center space

through video conferencing and data

center consolidation.

Gives the public access to super high
speed broadband service at public

libraries and educational Institutions.



Client: Level (3) Communications
Project: Newtown. PA to Newark. Nj
Locatior): Newtown. Pennsylvania to Newark. New jersey

Project Description

This two year. 56-mile project from Newtown. PA to Newark. NJ crossed 14

bridges (including the Delaware. Raritan, Rahway. and Elizabeth Rivers), required

review and permitting from 15 townships. 4 counties, and 2 states, crossed 14

railroads (including Conrail, NJ Transit, and Amtrak), and necessitated the review

of 9 environmental and historic state agencies. The buik of the permitting was

completed within the first four months of the project. The finai routing alignment

utiiized the NJ State Route 1 corridor to achieve its goal of linking the Washington
D.C. backbone with the Connecticut backbone. Matrix Design Group was

responsible for project management and administration, utiiity data coiiection

md verification, conceptual/preliminary/and final running line design, directional
—^rlll design, ROW permitting, environmental investigation and permitting, bridge

attachment design and permitting, raii crossing design and permitting, and the
development of construction and final bid documents.

About Matrix Design Group

Serving ali landscapes across the country, we specialize in fiber optic network
deployments and complete broadband solutions. Our goal is to enable

communities, cooperatives, municipalities, and utiiities the abiiity to provide

best-in-class broadband communications networks. From feasibility studies,
budgeting and underground conduit and aerial cabling, to bridge crossings and
outside plant construction, we provide everything from concept to completion.

Contact:

11 Melanie Lane, Unit 14

East Hanover, NJ D7936

matrixdg.com

866.792.9930

info@matrixdg.com

ATRIX
DESIGN GROUP

• • .

matrixdg.com 868-792-9930
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COMPANIES YOU RELY ON, RELY ON US...

For more than twenty years, Millennium has provided our customers with solutions

lor their IT, Security. Fiber Optics, Engineering and Design, and Construction needs.

We've worked with some of the top companies within the industry as well as large

government entities, counties, and cities. However, did you know Millennium works

with all major communication carriers as well as many power utilities, authorities,

and major financial institutions, all of which rely on our premier services? Many of

the lifeline service companies that are vital to communities, trust us to ensure they

maintain their services no matter the circumstances. Chances are our services have

already touched your life.
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OUR INDUSTRIES

GOVERNMENT

Private government networks demand highly
organized and secure communications

between a wide range of organizations
and offices. We offer proven and reliable IT
solutions to build an advanced technology
infrastructure for a connected and responsive
government. We heHp Federal, State, and
Local governments plan, design, build
and implement cost effective IT solutions
that allow easy access to information ar>d
services across agencies and departments.

PRIVATE SECTOR

A strong communications infrastructure
is necessary to meet the demands of a
complex and ever-changing business
environment. Our comprehensive IT solutions
leverage emerging technologies to enhance
operational efficiency, reduce IT costs, and
secure customer data. We will develop a
customized technology solution that helps
address key business challenges.

'A

EDUCATION

School districts and college campuses are
often strapped for resources while trying to
provide outstanding educational services.
We provide districts with the ability to offer
enhanced technology services while saving
valuable resources. Whether it's a distance
learning program or the consolidation of
computer resources, we provide school
districts with the tools necessary to enhance
the learning experience while reducing costs
and carbon footprint.

UTILITIES

With regulatory requirements as a top priority,
wo service utilities, of any kind, by providing
real-lime monitoring capabilities through
network infrastructures and technology
upgrades. We will work to integrate your
communications infrastructure with new

technology ttiat provides you with tsetter
control of your assets. From infrastructures to
data centers, we provide utilities solutions for
a reliable future.
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NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made by and between Millennium Communications Group, a New Jersey cogjoration having its
principal place of business at 11 Melanie Lane. Unit 13. East Hanover. N.I r"f:mnpany'M

a  corporation whose principal mailing address
is ("Recipient").

} • Pefinition of Confidentiality. As used in this Agreement, "Confidential Information" refers to any
information which has commercial value and is either (i) technical information, including patent, copyright, trade
secret, and other proprietaiy information, techniques, sketches, drawings, models, inventions, know-how, processes,
apparatus, equipment, algorithms, software programs, software source documents, and formulae related to the
current, future and proposed products and services of Company, or (ii) non-technical information relating to
Company's products, including without limitation pricing, margins, merchandising plans and strategies, finances,
financial and accounting data and information, suppliers, customers, customer lists, purchasing data, sales and
marketing plans, future business plans and any other information which is proprietaiy and confidential to Company.

2; Nondisclosure and Nonuse Obligations. Recipient will maintain in confidence and will not disclose,
disseminate or use any Confidential Information belonging to Company, whether or not in written form. Recipient
agrees that Recipient shall treat all Confidential Information of Company with at least the same degree of care as
Recipient accords its own confidential information. Recipient further represents that Recipient exercises at least
reasonable care to protect its own confidential information. If Recipient is not an individual. Recipient agrees that
Recipient shall disclose Confidential Information only to those of its employees who need to know such
information, and certifies that such employees have previously signed a copy of this Agreement.

Surviva). "Ms Agreement shall govern all communications between the parties. Recipient
understMds that its obligations under Paragraph 2 ("Nondisclosure and Nonuse Obligations") shall survive the
termination of any other relationship between the parties. Upon termination of any relationship between the parties.
Recipient will promptly deliver to Company, without retaining any copies, all documents and other materials
furnished to Recipient by Company.

4. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the United States of America
and by the laws of the State of New Jersey.

?' ^hl"Bctiye Reliel. A breach of any of the promises or agreements contained herein will result inireepmble and con^uing damap to Company for which there will be no adequate remedy at law, and Company
shall be entitled to mjunctive relief and/or a decree for specific performance, and such other relief as may be proper
(mcludmg monetary damages if appropriate). ^

f- Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement with respect to the ConfidentialInformation disclosed herein and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements concerning
such Confidential Information. This Agreement may only be changed by mutual agreement of authorized
representatives of the parties in writing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written
below.

COMPANY: RECIPIENT:

By:_

Name: Name:.

Title:
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Colix
July 12, 2016

To the Community of Petersham:

This letter is sent in support of Petersham' application to the MBI grant for broadband services. Callx is

a longtime partner of Matrix Design Group, who will design, build and operate the Petersham network.

Calix and Matrix have worked in partnership for over five years, starting with the deployment of a Fiber-
to-the-Home system (FTTH) In Vermont In 2011. This partnership then expanded to include

Massachusetts. Matrix and Calix now wish to serve the underserved in Petersham.

As the largest supplier of fiber optic electronics for FTTH In the United States, Calix has over 800

different service providers deploying fiber to residences and businesses. Callx is currently serving over
50 communities through public-private partnerships. There have been numerous articles and reports
written on our successful broadband deployments and the power of these public-private initiatives.
This has given Calix a unique perspective on credible builders and operators of fiber access networks.
Matrix has been our preferred partner in Massachusetts for good reasons: Expertise, work ethic,
honesty and customer service. Matrix has demonstrated time and again that they have the skills and
character to build and operate a quality fiber network.

During our 5+ year partnership. Matrix has assisted Calix In making the transition through different
generations of fiber access technologies and platforms. Calix has contributed its technical expertise
and Matrix Its design and operational excellence deploying Gigabit networks in a variety of New England
communities.

Calix has invested significant development resources to ensure that Matrix is able to maintain their

leadership. Callx offers total systems solutions, software and field support through its direct sales and
support organization

Sincerely,

David Russell

Sr. Solutions Marketing Director



Senator Anne M. Gobi
Haapshirt

gjtiiMkUttfa Ohifkl

StATC Housr Room }\}
BofTON, MA OS133-10M

Tft: {617) 7«.i540
Tax: (6t7) 7^1*107ft

A Nxr.GooeCMAscNAmcov
KtASLS ATT^V

tEljF €onimon(ueaItl] af^as5acl|uscfts
MASSACHUSETTS SENATE

Clutir

Joint Cotiuimt on
Es'VIIONMtKT. Natuial RkSOOCU

ANP ACKICULTVU

O'fir

Joint CoMMimr ok
Economic DcvstorMiNr

AND EmEHCINC TtCIINOIX}C(CS

July 19,2016

Mr. Chip Bull, Petersham Broadband Committee
Town of Pelcrsham

3 South Main Street

P.O. Box 486

Petersham MA 01366

Dear Mr. Bull,

I am writing in regards to the Town of Petersham's broadband project. I would like to offer my
support ofany efforts by the Town of Petersham to conduct a local build-out of broadband

1 have seen firsthand the need for broadband improvements in many rural towns in my district.
Petersham is defined as an unserved town with no cable access and limited DSL and during my
time representing the town,! have heard directly from many constituents about the inadequacy of
broadband service in the community. I have fielded numerous requests for my assistance In
working with the town and the state to improve the situation. I hope that this project wiil be able
to proceed in a satisfactory manner.

Thank you for your attention to this matter. If you have any further questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Anne M. G^f
Slalc Senator

AMG/l!w
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HARVARD UNIVERSITY

HARVARD FOREST Phone 978>7a4i33oa
„  . Kuc 978.724.3595

324 NORTH MAIN STREET inTP://HARVARDFOREST.FAS.HAHVARD.EDU
Petersham, Hassachusbfts
U.SA 01366

13 July 2016

Mr. Bill Ennen

Last Mile Implementation Liaison
Massachusetts Broadband Institute

75 North Drive Westborough, MA 01581

Re: Urgent need for broadband in Petersham

Mr. Ennen,

Please accept this letter on behalf of Harvard Forest, a department of the Faculty of Arts and Sciences,
Harvard University. Harvard Forest, which has operated as Harvard University's main ecological research
and educational facility since 1907, is located on 3600 acres primarily in Petersham MA.

The Forest provides a complete base for research in forest, ecosystem and historical ecology and
biosphere*atmosphere interactions. Since 1988, when the Forest became a National Science Foundation
Long Term Ecological Research (LTER) site, the Forest has seen phenomenal growth in scientists,
educators, students, collaborators, research and education programs, and laboratory, computing, archival,
teaching, and housing facilities. The Harvard Forest is also the core site for the Northeast domain of the
National Ecological Observatory Network (NEON). Forest research is funded by many federal agencies
(NSF, DOE, DOD, USDA, NASA) as well as large and small private foundations (Smithsonian Institute,
Doris Duke Foundation, etc.).

Harvard Forest serves as the base for a year-round staff of 40 including senior and junior scientists and
support staff. We also host thousands of national and international students and researchers for periods of
1 day to 1 year. This includes:

•  Local K-12 school groups visiting for a day
•  Regional K-12 science teachers coming for ecological training
•  University courses visiting from throughout the Northeast
•  Mid-career faculty on lengthy research sabbaticals
•  Conservation groups including local, state and regional organizations holding
multi-day retreats
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We have extensive facilities (~105,000 sQ including offices, conference space, library, dining facilities for
40, laboratories, greenhouses, archives, herbarium, dorms and residences to host these diverse groups.
University-owned housing includes the three dorms for visiting groups, and 14 residences currently
occupied by visiting faculty, graduate students and post-doctoral fellows and their families. In addition,
the Environmental Measurement Station (EMS), the oldest continuously operated eddy-flux and
micrometeorological tower in North America (established in 1990), is located approximately 1.7 km into
the wood from the main campus. Our newest eddy flux tower (2015) is NSF-funded NEON tower.

The Forest is fortunate that, despite this beautiful but rural location, we have been able to obtain and pay
for an optical fiber circuit (100 Mbps) that connects the Forest to Harvard University and the Intemet.
Wired and wireless network access is available in all offices and labs and in some residences. A Eeld
wireless network provides high-speed Intemet access to major experimental sites across a portion of
Forest-owned lands, including the eddy flux towers.

However, we have not been able to extend Internet coverage for two crucial areas.

First, most of our housing for visitors does not have Intemet access. Many researchers need access round
the clock to conduct their research in an effective manner. Also we have increasingly found that it is a
significant drawback if not outright deterrent to researchers* families taking up residence in Petersham.
More and more visitors are choosing to stay in outlying towns that provide ready access to affordable high
speed bandwidth such as that to be provided by this proposal from the Town. An Internet access solution
for the town might complement our existing network infrastructure. For instance, we might have 3-5
faculty on sabbatical coming to work at the Forest in a year. For the past few years, one or more have
chosen to rent in Amherst due to the lack of Intemet access here.

V  Second, much of the land owned by the Forest does not have access to hard-wired or wireless access. (
Thus the research tract closest to the main campus has an extensive wireless network and one major
research site has optical fiber going directly to the site. However, about 2000 acres of land in two other
major tracts located in central Petersham do not have any access and thus our ability to conduct
sophisticated monitoring projects on them is limited.

Sincerely,

Edythe Cherkas Ellin

Director of Administration

Cc: Chip Bull, Chair, Petersham Broadband Committee

Nancy Allen, Chair, Petersham Sclectboard

^  c
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tfjf Athol Hospital
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Member of the Heywood Healthcare Family

July 14,2016

Mr.CliipBull Chair,
Petersham Broadband Committee

Town of Petersham

3 South Main Street

Petersham, MA 01366

Dear Mr. Bull and Petersham Broadband Committee,

I am writing on behalf of Heywood Healthcare/Quabbin Retreat of Petersham to provide our
support for your efforts in securing much-need stable broadband service in Petersham.

As a long-time hospital and healthcare provider for the region and now with a critical new project
underway in Petersham specifically, we at Heywood Healthcare fully understand and sec on a
daily basis the need for stable, successful broadband service in our rural areas and in communities.
This need is only growing stronger in communities such as Petersham where there is no cable
service available and limited DSL service.

We strongly believe broadband service is a critical component in our ability to provide top quality
care delivery, in our communications, and in our overall efforts to meet the healthcare needs of the
community and the greater region. From patient-doctor-administration communications, to
emergency services, to research, to general business — the list of uses and needs for successful
broadband service is endless for a healthcare setting.

We fully support Petersham's efforts to obtain community wide broadband build-out and thank all
the groups and state agencies who arc working towards that goal for Petersham and for central and
western Massachusetts. Please share this letter with those who will find it helpful as they review
your project and your request for support.

Sincerely,

Rebecca Bialecki, BSN, PhD
Vice President, Community Health / Chief Agent of Change
Heywood Healthcare



WORCESTER REGIONAL Rocruli | Retflln | iRcubatfi

Chamber of Commerce

July 22,2016

Nancy Allen, Chair
Town of Petersham Selectboard

3 South Main Street
P.O. Box 486

Petersham, MA 01366

Dear Chairwoman Allen,

I would like to offer my support, on behalf of the Worcester Regional Chamber of Commerce,
for tiie Town of PetersWi and feeir request for grant assistance from the Massachusetts
Broadband Institute.

Having recently commissioned a study regarding the need for fiber connectivity in the City of
Worcester we are keenly aware of the need for faster internet access. Our study showed that
upgrades to the City's current fiber infrastructure would dramatically improve the current
residential and business climate for intemet connectivity. Further it also stated that improved
infr;a5tructure creates a marketing opportunity to help attract new businesses and residents.

Respecting that Worcester and Petersham are different in population and landscape they are both
communities looking to provide exemplary services to current residents and businesses, as well
as attracting others who wish to locate there. Bringing enhanced and reliable broadband service
to the Town of Petersham will improve the services provided to residents; and firrther will create
a more robust business environment.

In helping to strengthen Petersham you will also strengthen the region. Many local companies
will benefit finm the comprehensive build-out the town has planned under this project I am sure
many of the equipment and subcontract services needed to complete this build-out will be
sourced locally. And those companies traveling firom outside of the region to assist in this
project will be staying at local hotels, while eating and shopping at local establishments.

I would like to offer, on behalf of the Worcester Regional Chamber of CommMce, our support
for your grant application to the Massachusetts Broadband Institute.

I thank you for your time, and wish you well in your endeavor to provide enhanced intemet
service to the Town of Petersham.

ThnofiiyPjl
President

k"
Murray
dCEO

^  AFFIUATE CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE
Auburn ■ Blaekstone Valley • Central Mass South • Wachusett Area • Webster Dudley Oxford

446 Maia Street, Suite 200 * Worcester, MA 01608 * tel; 508.7S3.2924 * fox: 508.754.8560 • www.worcesterchamber.org
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Consumer Connect Plus
COMPASS APPLICATION BR I EF

The Compass suite

The Compass suite of

software applications can

be used standalone, with

other Compass products,

or with third party

software to help you cut

costs, identify revenue

opportunities, and

generally do your job more

effectively.

Consumer Connect Plus: Optimize home

networks and the subscriber experience
The problem and the opportunity: Service providers worldwide have
identified subscriber experience as their number one priority. What is
driving this issue? People are unhappy with their Wi-Fi.

Consumer Connect Plus is a powerful tool that does many things, but it
excels at directly addressing that problem.

68% of service providers view
subscriber experience as their
number one strategic priority

Ernst and Young 2015 Global Communications Study

Consumer Connect Plus can be an ACS as well

Consumer Connect Plus can be a powerful Wi-Fi analyzer, an auto
configuration server (ACS), or both.

Besides its unique ability to be a powerful tool to reduce the cost and
time it takes to support customer Wi-Fi issues, Consumer Connect
Plus can act as a conventional ACS for TR-069 devices. It has

configuration and firmware build management templating built in to
allow you to make the replication and modification of firmware and
gold configurations easy.

1  I CompassConsumerConnectPlusApplicationBrief I ©ZOlSCali* ^ Colix



COMPASS APPLICATION BRI EF

Consumer Connect Plus is part of the Compass suite of applications
accessed through Command Center (shown below).
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What does Consumer Connect Plus do?

•  It allows your engineering, customer support, and field

personnel to see what's happening inside a customer's Wi-Fi

network, and resolve issues remotely.

•  It allows you to set up automated processes for updating

firmware and changing feature profiles across your ONTs,

residential gateways, and DSL modems.

•  It gathers data on device usage by number and type in the

home. This data can be used to help identify which services to

offer, and to which customers.

•  It stores data historically. This is very useful for

troubleshooting.

•  It can be used with Calix GigaFamily products, other Calix

ONTs, and third party devices.

Compass Consumer Connect Plus Application Brief | ©2016 Calix ^ Calix



COMPASS APPLICATION BRI EF

How Consumer Connect Plus works with

GIgaCenters

o Consumer Connect Plus analyzes the data

itArtist

OStHIV IHH-tV

Throughput issues

Old devices

»>««< 7tVA«- t'.'J»A I •!•,• J |1S'> HMtr*
•«

Aravm ) I

Weak signal

1 1

GigaCenter
gathers
data

Remember:

User Experience
is the number 1 issue

# Free
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# Intctfc'cricc

COMPASS

%
Airtime Analysis Recommendation and

analysis to remote technician

^Observations and Recommendations

Higii Radio interference - 5 0 GHz
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Using Consumer Connect Plus with GIgaCenters

The pairing of Consumer Connect Plus with Calix GIgaCenters is
optimized to deliver the best possible home user experience.

GIgaCenters excel at the distribution of Wi-Fi signals throughout the

home. They also act as smart data probes sending data back to
Consumer Connect Plus and other Compass applications.

Consumer Connect Plus can also send instructions to GIgaCenters for

a variety of tasks. There are many use cases supported, but this is how

the basic process works:

1. The GigaCenter gathers data on what is happening in the home

network (such as signal strength, presence of other 802.11

radios in "routers," and details about attached devices) and

sends the data to Consumer Connect Plus.

2. Consumer Connect Plus displays that data in useful ways for

your personnel for such uses as troubleshooting, grooming the

devices to the right radio, and setting performance

expectations.

3. Consumer Connect Plus stores key pieces of that data.

3  I CompassConsumcrConnectPlusApplicationBrief I ®2016Calix ^ Calix



COMPASS APPLICATION BRIEF

Consumer Connect Plus

benefit highlights:

•  Troubleshootand

resolve home network

issues remotely: WAN,
LAN, Wi-Fi, and voice.

•  Reduce truck rolls and

unnecessary equipment

swap-outs.

•  Reduce churn: Prevent

and quickly resolve

subscriber Wi-Fi issues.

•  Gather data that will

make your marketing

more effective.

•  Track historical

changes.

• Works with Calix and

third party devices,

4. Consumer Connect Plus also makes recommendations to your

team and interacts with the GigaCenter to resolve and

proactively prevent performance issues.

5. All the data gathered is usable by your marketing team to

target offerings that best fit a subscriber's needs.

Consumer Connect Plus also is designed to make upgrades and profile

setting for devices much easier for your staff. The process becomes

simpler, modular, easily modifiable, and easily replicable whether it is

for one device or many.

This is done by an on-screen tempiating process, in which a series of

standard tasks is made into a single automated process.

What data and analysis features can you use for

troubleshooting?

•  Data on other 802.11 ac radios nearby for 2.4 GHz and 5.0 GHz
(see when your neighbor's router is impacting your subscriber's
router).

•  Troubleshooting recommendations for your support personnel

to provide to subscribers based on analysis of the data being
gathered from the in-home router.

•  History of air-time interference per radio, as well as other

historical attributes added per release.

•  Attached device and number of devices per both 2.4 GHz and
5.0 GHz radios.

•  Phy rate and signal strength per device.

•  Logs on channel changes.

•  For each radio, percentage of bandwidth free, used, and wasted

as interference.

• WAN, wired LAN, and voice (where appropriate)
troubleshooting tools.

• Many others.

Some sample screens

Some sample screens are below. Consumer Connect Plus is best seen

through a demo from your Calix Sales team.

4 I CompassConsumerConnectPlusApplicationBrief [ ©2016Calix C* Colix



Recommended action to take based on analysis

2.4 GHz Radio 5 GHz Radio

^Observationsand Recommendations

High Radio Interference

Airtime Analysis ̂

Analyze

• Please force an auto channel re-scan by turning the WI-FI radio off and
then backon to determine If performance Improves. If performance does
not Improve, please run a site scan and switch to the best ctiannel.

Channel re.«an will cause a momcntafy intemipiion In traffic

Best Channel By Site Scan

• Recommended

o Channel 11

e OverlappingChannel SSIDs: 2

Interference

5  I CompassConsumcrConnectPlusApplicatlonBrief I £)201&Callx ^ Colix



COMPASS APPLICATION BRIEF

Site scan: See which other 802.11 radios are impacting your

subscriber

D«vlcei SiteScan

SlartSilcScan 1  Channel 1

BSSIDSSID Channel RSSI Security Channel Bandwidth

ZyXCLa4596.Gunl3.SYiv 1 •27a[Jm WPA 20MH2 72:37;7A:2B;9S;47

CALXW 1 -36(lBni WPA2-Enterprlse 20MHI 00;24:6Ci29;7Bi60

SVCAMORE 1 •4&dOm WPA 20MH2 00;24:6C;29;70:41

CXNK00207B2F 1 ,36dB(n WPA-WPA2 20MH2 EC4F:82:n:82.02

CXNK00:6CAF5 1 -49<JiJm WPA-WPA2 20MH2 18:83:8F:23:D3:E6

Showini 1 to S or 12S enrries
f'ir.ltm. D 3  4 5 26 Nnl

•10

•20 72:37;7A:2B;95:46

•30 CXNX0016CAEF

•40 CXNK00207B4A gB

NolPiinny
Opcpe-yCXNK001D37C?VC;3Ai7A:3D:05;9

Wifi 1-

I intimn
CeniurvLitikB27E

CXNK0016CB19
CcnturYLinVBlF-J

r.

CXNK0029B1B0

Operational uses of Consumer Connect Plus

Consumer Connect Plus can also be used to manage configuration and
features of individual or large numbers of CPE devices via TR-069. This
is the conventional use of TR-069 as an ACS, The screen below shows

some of the capabilities.

6 I CompassConsumerConncctPlusApplicationBrief I ®2016Cafix ^ Colix
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Tempiating a TR-069 workflow

Consumer CONNECT / NetOps / Workflows

^ Workflows >Wzard

«—e—a
Start Device Croups Select Operation

Parameters

Step 1 - Start

Name
Name

St;lcct Schcduls

Parameters

Revi'

Description

(optional)
Description

Using Consumer Connect Pius with non-Calix CPE

products

Consumer Connect Plus can be used with other products supporting
TR-069 besides GigaCenters - for example:

•  CalixT-seriesONTs

• ManyCalix7XXONTs

• Many third party devices

We are continually adding more devices to our supported list each

quarter. Please contact your Caiix Sales team to see if a particular

device is supported or can be added. The features supported by

Consumer Connect Plus for each device vary by what is supported by

the device and addressable by Consumer Connect Plus.

KJ

Using Consumer Connect Plus with Flow Analyze

Plus and NetValet

Consumer Connect Plus can be used by Itself or along with other

Compass applications to enhance the subscriber experience.

For example:

■  Flow Analyze Plus looks at subscriber usage by volume (bytes)

and by individual application (like Netflix) by individual or
group IP addresses throughout your network. Working with

Compass Consumer Connect Plus Application Brief | ©2016 Call* ^ CqIIx



COMPASS APPLICATION BRIEF

Consumer Connect Plus, this can improve overall support ROI.

See the Flow/ Analyze Plus Application Brief for details.

•  NetValet is the Calix subscriber self-care smartphone app. This

app allows subscribers to control aspects of their home
network such as changing passwords and parental controls.
Changes made in NetValet are automatically transferred to

Consumer Connect Plus. NetValet is one more tool for

lowering churn and support costs. See the NetValet Application
Brief for details.

How it works

Consumer Connect Plus makes use of the TR-069 protocol to

exchange information between the Compass cloud and an access

device, which can be a Calix GigaCenter, an ONT, a DSL modem, or a

residential gateway.

Who will benefit from Consumer Connect Plus?

Customer Support: Troubleshoot Wi-Fi issues remotely and sell up
based on data.

Field personnel: Troubleshoot issues at a subscriber's home.

Marketing: Understand usage by subscribers. Use this knowledge to
more precisely target the right subscribers with the right offers.

Subscribers: Resolve more problems on the first call. When paired with
NetValet, give subscribers more control over their home network.

Learn more about Consumer Connect Plus

More information about Consumer Connect Pius;

httPS://w,rww.calix.com/comDass/consumer-connect-plus.html

For monthly updates on all Compass applications, log in to My Calix on
the Calix website:

https://www.calix.com/mv-caiix/monthlv-update.html

^ Calix
ACCESS INNOVATION
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Flow Analyze Plus
COMPASS APPLICATION BRIEF

The Compass suite

The Compass suite of

software applications can
be used standalone, with

other Compass products,

or with third party
software to help you cut

costs, identify revenue

opportunities, and

generally do your job more

effectively.

V

Flow Analyze Plus: Turn your network's
usage and application data into actions

to improve your ROI
The problem and opportunity: What if your network (realty the data In
your network) told you:

■ What action you should take to target services upgrades to
customers.

• Where to place fiber next,

• Which node to upgrade.
• What applications are running during a support call.
• That a customer should move to the next HSI service tier.

• Where you network is congested.
• How much Oil (over the top) traffic is passing any point in

your network (like Netflix).

With Flow Analyze Plus your data can tell you the answers.

Flow Analyze Plus is part of the Compass suite of applications
accessed through Command Center (shown below).

Flow

ANALYZE +

•© Consumer CON N ECT
aa 1 AMI.

@ Consumer CONNECT +
All QlH Gri|n''oirnl* nnd TSmrk QHTi

Service

VERIFY

eo^AssnunHt

rfUMMmrmuT Ht -r*
iffrntttn oawfiit CCWHMDCffW

lUOOOIt

iw rewiwoi

Newe*Kiw Dewwe

OKMOfS WWide»iNeWAniN* Ww

WW01I

SitUUdlfitr IrvwiMM

< MtMICOWCeaiarM

CwtfiM CVntCIPw
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r Summarizing the overall value of Flow Analyze Plus:

S Flow ANALYZE +

Knowyour network

• Non-lntruslvenetwork
utilization view

• Ona per-service/per-
subscriber basis

Identify new revenue
opportunities

■ Targetedser\iceupseli
opportunities

increase subscriber
satisfaction

■ Oiagnosisand
troubleshootingof
services at thelPlayer

Optimize network
resources

■ Understandsourcesof
bandwidth demand

■ Well informed network
capacity upgrades

Reduce thecpst of
delivering services

• Moreefficientnetwork
operation

• Scaleserviceoffering

V:
How does Flow Analyze Plus work?

Routers in your network can provide you with "flow" data. A "flow" is a
unidirectional series of packets from IP A to IP B, using some protocol
(TCPAJDP/iCMP/,..). In the case of Cisco, the protocol is NetFlow; in
the case of Juniper, JFiow. This data can be captured continually or
sampled to tell you the traffic flow pattern at different IP locations In
your network based on application and overall traffic. The data can be

used for many use cases, in most instances, customers derive this data
from a few core routers in their network.

Important facts about Flow Analyze Plus:

•  Flow Analyze Plus does not require placing hardware
monitoring points In your network. This saves you cost and
deployment complexity.

•  Flow Analyze Plus Is designed for your whole company, not
Just for engineering, Flow Analyze Plus tells you traffic volume
and history by application and location. It does not tell you
about packet data payload. In practice, this means your
personnel know that a subscriber uses Netfiix, but have no idea

what movies they watch. Deep packet inspection tools - by
contrast - can reveal what subscribers are watching. This
distinction means that your marketing, support field
personnel, and front line engineering personnel can use

3 I CoinpassFlowAnalyzePlusApplicationBrief I @2016Calix^ Colix
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COMPASS APi^L iCATUJN

Real-Time Traffic Monitor

TriTTkMoAjiorOv^dn

Flow Analyze Plus Classic View

EndpoinlReports

Usage by App I ica lion

txpoitloExcelor
PDF
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COMPASS APPl. ICAT

Customer Support: Troubleshoot WI-FI issues remotely and sell up
based on data.

Field Technicians: Similar benefits to Customer Support, but applied
during a customer site visit.

Engineering and Operations: Identify and resolve congestion issues,
BitTorrent, and DDOS attacks. Better resolve complex trouble tickets
escalatedfrom CustomerSupport.

Learn more about Flow Analyze Plus

More information about Flow Analyze Plus:

httPs;//www.calix.com/comDass/flow-analvze-plus.htinl

For monthly updates on all Compass applications, log in to My Calix on
theCaiix website:

https://www.calix.com/mv-calix/mQnthlv-update.html

^ CqHx
ACCESS INNOVATION

U-
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Access Analyze

Access Analyze benefit
highlights:

•  Get low cost secure

cloud backup.

•  Putyourdata to use
through reporting and

analysis.

• Add history to your
CMS data.

Access Analyze: Putting your CMS
network data to work

Access Analyze—part of the Compass application suite-allows the
data In your CMS system to be backed up in the Compass SaaS
(Software as a Service) cloud. Once you have it there, Access Analyze
allows you to:

•  Runanalysisandreportsto ACCCSS
understand how to adjust
your network to improve ^ M ̂  L I Z E
return on investment (ROi).

•  Set up alarm monitoring and alerts.

• Get reports on faulty CPE.

•  Correlate your CMS network data with data from other

Compass sources such as Consumer Connect Pius and Flow
Analyze Plus and with data from your BSS/OSS systems.

Key benefits:

Get low cost secure cloud backup. Create cloud based backup and
disaster restore of your data at very little cost Eliminate the time and
costs of server and patching.

Put your data to use:

•  Run analysis and reports on port utilization for PON and DSL

ports. Understand which cards or nodes to upp-ade and check
to see if your splitter ratios are optimized. Spend time and
money most effectively.

•  Set alarms and alerts to track key events or gather data for
troubleshooting.

• Use your CMS data along with your network flow data to
understand which customers In which part of town would
generate the most ARPU from a fiber deployment.

Add history to your CMS data. Your CMS data is backed up in
Intervals. Go back In time to check issues or to choose your restoral
point

Compass Access Analyze An'lication Brief | 02016 Calix



Port Accumulated Dally Usage Graph

Use the port accumulated daily usage graph to proactively monitor
customers' usage.
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How it works

To get started, you need to have Calix CMS, and you need to point your
CMS server (Revision 13.0 or above) to the Compass secure cloud.
Calix will send you a file that you upload to your CMS server. That file
directs the server data to the Compass cloud, where it is securely
stored.

Our Technical Assistance Center team will help you if you have any
issues or questions.

3 I CompassAccessAnalyzeAppllcatlonBrtef I O2016Calix ^ CqUx
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STFIELD GAS + ELECTRIC

whip city fiber

Westfield Gas + Electric | Whip City Fiber

100 Elm Street

Westfield, MA 01085

www.wgeld.org | www.whipcityfiber.com



WBSTPIELD QAS + ELECTRIC

whip city fiber

(THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org Iwww.whipcityfiber.com



WG+E J
WESTFIELD GAS + ELECTRICWESTFIELD GAS + ELECTRIC

whip city fiber
Mr. Willie Morales, Town Administrator

Sandisfield Town Hall Annex

66 Sandisfield Road, PO Box 90

Sandisfild, MA 01255

RE: Request for Proposal No. BD-17-1666-TSTH-TSTH-12012

Dear Mr. Morales,

Please find Westfield Gas + Electric's response for proposal. Please allow this response to indicate our

desire and willingness to work with the three towns in this proposal any subject town under the

previous municipal ownership model to design and engineer, procure, construct, and operate a

municipai internet network.

I  iook forward to speaking with you further on how Whip City Fiber may be a viable option to the private

grant option as defined in this request for proposai.

Sincerely,

tuZJi
Daniel J. Howard

General Manager

Whip City Fiber

Westfield Gas + Electric

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 j www.wgeld.orglwww.whipcityfiber.com
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1.0 Executive Summary

Westfield Gas & Electric (WGE) /dba Whip City Fiber (WCF) is an Internet Service Provider (ISP)

based in Westfield, Massachusetts. The company offers high bandwidth Internet access to its

customers.

WGE is a company driven to provide customers with a complete solution to their entire current and

future Internet and private network needs. The company's customer base includes all consumers

and all businesses in Westfield Massachusetts.

WGE benefits from several strategic alliances by receiving very competitive pricing on services,

allowing the company to offer competitive pricing on its services to customers.

WGE has a world-class management team with direct knowledge of the industry, extensive research

experience, and unique administration skills.

WGE has revenues In each of the last 5 years in excess of $75M. WGE has been building and

operating commercial networks, internet service, and dark fiber offerings for over 15 years, and

recently began constructing and operating a residential network in 2015. The subscriber base for

combined gas and electric nears 30,000, and we are seeing significant grovrth in our Whip City Fiber

customer base, all while competing against a large incumbent.

WGE intends to formally express its interest as a partner to any town or entity wishing to design,

construct, and operate a municipal internet network.

As a municipal light plant (MLP) duly authorized under Massachusetts General Laws Ch. 164, the
WGE would assist any town or entity which has also enacted their own municipal light plant,

through an inter-MLP agreement, as allowed under MGL Ch.l64. WGE would utilize the MBI middle

mile network where feasible to deliver lit or dark fiber service, and leverage geographic efficiencies

to reduce backbone and service costs. This would allow municipals to maintain ownership of the

assets within their territory.

1.1 Mission

The mission of Whip City Fiber is to provide customers with best internet service value possible.

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org Iwww.whipcityfiber.com
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The Westfield Gas & Electric has established a reputation for quality work and exceptional service

and plans to leverage its experience to its Whip City Fiber venture. The WGE seeks to become a well-

known and respected provider of internet service and data solutions by increasing availability to

future customers and adding service offerings.

1.3 Keys to Success

The keys to success for the Whip City Fiber will include:

1. Targeting the major driver of expenses by securing low cost, reliable, internet backbone

services.

2. Increase demand for WGE's Internet and higher bandwidth service through aggressive

marketing and exposure.

3. Increase exposure through customer education, marketing, and advertising.

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org Iwww.whipcltyfiber.com
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2.0 Company Summary

Whip City Fiber Is a service of the Westfield Gas & Electric Light Department (WGE), which operates

natural gas and electric distribution franchise territories in Westfield, MA since 1899.

The Department serves almost 30,000 accounts with electric and natural gas distribution service

over 40 square miles, and has established a reputation for low-cost, reliable, and friendly service. Of

its customer base, roughly 20,000 are electric customers and 10,000 are natural gas. This customer

base is comprised of 18,000 residences, 1,500 commercial, and 500 industrial customers.

Westfield Gas + Electric has been providing high bandwidth internet and point to point Ethernet

services to many of its key accounts for over 15 years, at a price point that is extremely competitive

in the marketplace. It has been able to do so through the use of fiber-optic cable the Department

installed for its use 20 years ago, but did not fully utilize. Whip City Fiber seeks to expand internet

service to other customers, through a systematic and phased approach.

2.1 Company Ownership

Whip City Fiber is a service of the Westfield Gas & Electric Light Department, which is an

independent department of the City of Westfield, under the control of six elected and one

appointed municipal light board members, who report to the ratepayers of the utility, The

Department's operations are autonomous to those of the City of Westfield as prescribed in

Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 164.

2.2 Company History

Initially, fiber optic cable was constructed to benefit the utility by ceasing its reliance on high-priced

data circuits purchased by the predecessor to Verizon. As a result, the WGE constructed over 60

miles of backbone fiber in three interlocking rings around the city, connecting utility facilities, all

through internal resources.

Once complete in the late 1990's, the optical system was expanded to sever the City's reliance upon

high-priced, low speed data circuits provided by the telephone company. The Department then
constructed drops to all municipal facilities including the school system.

Over the next few years, the WGE continued to find value in the installed fiber, through connecting

all municipal and school facilities with high speed data networks. Operationally, the Department

replaced its Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) communications that connected the

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org | www.whipcityfiber.com
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Department's remote facilities, providing secure, real-time, high speed communications to key

operational assets. Additionally, connecting municipal facilities allowed the City to realized savings

through a centralized data center design, rather than previously distributed computing. At this time,

WGE provided installation, activation, and network support services to the City.

During this time, another market began to present itself to the WGE. Large commercial customers

had a need to connect up different facilities to each other within Westfield. WGE leveraged its

available fiber to provide both lighted and dark fiber connections. Lighted fiber is fiber cable that the

WGE provides data transmission equipment at each end, whereas dark fiber is provided to those

customers who wish to handle their own data circuits. The WGE also provided internet service to

these customers. Without any marketing or advertising, the WGE had over 30 of its largest

customers with the fastest internet in the city for business class customers. Comcast, which had

previously avoided the business market, and having saturated the residential market, entered into

the business market. WGE was able to maintain its customer base, as its level of speed and service

outweighed Comcast's low price, low speed service. Throughout this time period the WG&E did not

actively market this service.

2.3 Company Locations and Facilities

Whip City Fiber is a service of the Westfield Gas + Electric, it will utilize much of the operational

support already in place for the other two business units.

WGE has a 115,000 sf Operations facility in Westfield that houses operations management,

inventory, and vehicle assets. Additionally, a 10,000 sf business office is located in downtown

Westfield, MA which houses customer service, billing, and finance staff.

WGE has several remote, unmanned, facilities in Westfield that will serve as Whip City Fiber key

locations, such as:

•  Buck Pond substation, located on the north side of Westfield on Summit Lock Road

•  Elm Substation, located centrally in Westfield on Meadow Street

•  Union Street City Gate Station, centrally located on Union Street

•  Granviiie Road Property, located in the southwest of Westfield

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeid.org |www.whipcityfiber.com
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All of these locations will help serve as options for equipment housing as the business grows. Whip

City Fiber will work with the three towns to identify the most-cost effective access to the internet

and internet bandwidth costs, whether it be through WGE core routers or others..

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org | www.whipcityfiber.com
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3.0 Services

whip City Fiber intends to offer a broad range of interrelated telecommunication services through a

systematic rollout of additional services that add to the ones launched prior.

As the foundation to all future service offerings, Whip City Fiber would work with the three towns to

construct either centralized or distributed gigabit passive-optic networks (GPON), to increase

availability of high bandwidth internet to residential customers, and Ethernet and dark fiber to

commercial and industrial customers.

3.1 Service Description

Whip City Fiber will provide its customers with high-speed access to the internet and supporting

services. Some of the package offerings are as follows:

•  The flagship internet service: up to 1 gigabit per second (Gbps) symmetrical (both up and down)

internet access.

•  Alternate lower tiered internet service: at the request of the partner, rates divisions as low or as

high as 1 gigabit symmetrical internet access.

•  Trend Micro Internet security suite with every account. Trend Micro internet Security 10

software provides advanced protection and privacy so customers can do things online safely. It's

designed to safeguard customers on social networks like Facebook, Google+, Twitter, and

Linkedln. It protects against viruses, blocks dangerous websites, guards against identity theft,

and protects children online.

•  Up to five hosted email addresses, through Whip City Fiber's on premise servers. Per their

choice, consumers can remain with their current provider.

•  Optional Wi-Fi AC router. Dependent upon partner's desire, customers may elect to have

managed Wi-Fi service from Whip City Fiber. Whip City Fiber will install and manage a WI-FI

router within the customer's residence.

•  Optional static IP addresses. Customers by default will receive dynamic IP addresses. Customers

may purchase dedicated static IP addresses.

100 Elm Street, Westfleld MA, 01085 j www.wgeld.orglwww.whlpcityfiber.com
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VoIP service. Hosted through its partner, Ooma, and locally serviced through Whip City Fiber,

customers will have premium service VoIP service available.

Billing, maintenance, engineering, administrative and tech support services provided through

existing resources of the WG&E.

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org | www.whipcityfiber.com
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4.0 Upgrade

Whip City Fiber fully expects that as consumers needs increase, so to must its network. In our

financial models, we have assumed and calculated for a network head end and subscriber

equipment replacement cycle of five years, and are prepared to upgrade to XG-PON and XGS-PON,

and other NG-PON technologies, such as TWDM-PON, as those technologies mature and the market

demands-

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 | www.wgeld.org Iwww.whipcityfiber.com
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5.0 Coverage

Given that the MB! middle mile connects the three communities, Whip City Fiber would work with

the three towns to identify the most cost effective access to the internet. Whip City Fiber would

fuiiy expect to utilize the MBI network to supply internet service to the host community. Given the

three towns that would be partnering with Whip City Fiber have adjacent geographic boundaries,

Whip City Fiber would work with the three towns to develop and design the best approach to

lowering backbone service costs through interconnected networks, while ensuring that designs

incorporate the option for a stand-alone service connection to MBi, should one of the three towns

wish to separate at a later time.

At ail times, Whip City Fiber would recommend and emphasize town ownership and control, and

enforce designs that allow for flexibility of selection of network operators.

100 Elm Street, Westfieid MA, 01085 | www,wgeid.org | www.whipcityfiber.com
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6.0 Operational Structure and Capacity

Westfield Gas + Electric currently has the back office resources available to support 30,000 gas and

electric customers, including account service and customer service, billing, operationai management, a

24x7x365 dispatch center, a 24 hour tech support line, and network support. We currently employ over

100 employees and contractors to support our three business units.. It Is our Intention to grow our

support staff in accordance with our business plan at a rate of one field technician, one help desk

technician, and one customer service representative for every 2,500 customers added. Our networking

staff consists of one network architect, three network engineers, one fiber network engineer, and a

database administrator. We are able to keep our costs iow by sharing costs across other business units

that similarly need those services to operate.

We have already established the mechanisms to assist the three towns in the marketing, acquisition,

and prioritization of construction in order to maximize revenue
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7.0 Assurance of Long-Term Service

Westfield Gas + Electric has been in business since 1899, and as stated previously, has been servicing

data and Internet customers for over 15 years. We stand by our service and fully intend to support any

customer for now and into the future. We Intend to work with any partner to assist them to design their

network so that it is agnostic to operator, and allows for future competitive bidding for network
operators.

100 Elm Street, Westfield MA, 01085 j www.wgeld.org |www.whlpcltyflber.com
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whip city fiber

It is difficult to ascertain a definitive project schedule. Although we are certain any construction and

service associated work can be completed in a mutually acceptable time frame.
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9.0 Experience and References

In addition to its near 20 years of telecommunications experience, Westfieid Gas + Electric currently has

over 2500 passings and is in the midst of a $15 million construction program for the passing of another

10,000 potential subscribers.

We currently are partnering with the Town of Otis for the design and engineering of their network, and

have a number of other communities and entities that we are in active discussions with.

100 Elm Street, Westfieid MA, 01085 | www.wgeid.org ] www.whipcitYfiber.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Municipal Light Board and Manager of the
City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department

Report DO the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fmancial statements of the City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light
Department (the "Department") and the Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"), which comprise the proprietary
fund consolidated statement of net position as of December 31, 2015, and the related proprietary fund consolidated
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, the fiduciary fund
statement of fiduciary net position as of December 31, 2015 and statement of changes in fiduciary net position for the
year ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are flee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated fmancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Department and the
Cooperative's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated fmancial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

330 Whitney Avenue, Suite 800 • Holyoke, Massachusetts 01040 • telephone 413-536-8510 • facsimile 413-533-8399
www.mbkcpa.com



Opinion

In our opinion, the proprietaiy and fiduciary fiuid financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the Department and the Cooperative as of December 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and its cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The consolidating statement of net position and consolidating statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived firom and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underljdng accounts and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedmes in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that pension plan and other post-
employment benefit plan schedules as listed on the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the appropriate operational, econonuc, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Urrited
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The Department and the Cooperative have omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis and Budget Comparison
Information that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the consolidated financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the consolidated
finanr.ial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the consolidated financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the consolidated financial statements present only the Department and the Cooperative, and do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Westfield, Massachusetts, as of December
31, 2015, and the consolid^ed changes in its fmancial position or its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to tiiis matter.



As discussed in Note 3, City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department has adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, effective Januaiy 1, 2015. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Stcmdards, we have also issued our report dated July 6, 2016 on our
consideration of the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls over financial reporting and on our tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controls over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls over financial reporting and
compliance.

Holyoke, Massachusetts
July 6,2016
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2015

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash

Accounts receivable, less reserve of $617,999

Inventory - materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

$  12,243,272

3,487,011

2,438,944

69.980

18.239.207

Restricted and designated assets

Cash in escrow

Cash for rate stabilization

MMWEC Reserve Trust

Deferred charges
Total restricted and designated assets

649.751

5,851,963

25,453,794

2.336.422

34.291.930

Noncurrent assets

Regulatory asset, net
Other investments

Deferred charges
Deferred debt service costs

Total noncurrent assets

670,416
299,750

476,354

26.578

1.473.098

Plant investment

Land

Electric

Gas

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total plant investment, net

1,008,891
74,666,641

56.905.526

132,581,058

(53.668.9621

78.912.096

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions 2.231.521

Total assets $ 135.147.852



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable to municipality
Current portion of general obligation bonds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

4,555,544

1,000,982

220,002

990,219

238.561

7.005.308

Noncurrent liabilities

Accrued expenses
General obligation bonds

Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,210,489

9,984,521

2,699,731

6,603,590
12.128.814

32.627.145

Total liabilities 39.632.453

Deferred inflows of resources

Reserve for rate stabilization

Reserve for energy conservation
Total deferred inflows of resources

37,553,511

493.403

38.046.914

Net position
Net investments in capital assets

Restricted

Escrow

Unrestricted

Total net position

67,963,934

649,751

fl 1.145.2001

57.468.485

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position $ 135.147.852

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Operating revenues
Residential $28,129,920
Commercial 26,049,277
Industrial 15,719,457
Municipal 3,244,990
Ojff-street lighting 141,627
Telecommunication income 529,286
Service income and finance charges 52,156
Rate stabilization fund transfers f976.739'>

Total operating revenues 72.889.974

Operating expenses
Purchased power and gas 45,851,899
Distribution expenses 3,552,396
Maintenance 3,330,557
General and administrative 9,050,021

Pension and benefits 3,456,549

Environmental response expense 88,742
Depreciation and amortization 3.865.703

Total operating expenses 69.195.867

Operating income 3.694.107

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Miscellaneous income 666,677

Investment income 225,827

Interest expense (465,475)
Total non-operatmg revenue, net 427.029

Income before transfers and contributions 4,121,136

Transfers out - in lieu of tax payments to City (442,902)

Contributions in aid of construction 1.104.194

Change in net position 4,782,428

Net position, beginning of year (as restated) 52.686.057

Net position, end of year $57.468.485

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received for services

Cash paid to power suppliers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid for other operations

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Cash received from contributions in aid of construction

Cash paid for capital expenditures
Cash paid for principal on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital puiposes
Cash received for premium on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital purposes
Cash paid for interest on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital purposes

Net cash used in capital financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities

Cash paid for in lieu of tax payments
Cash received from non-operating revenues

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchases of investments
Cash received from investment earnings

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Cash included in:

Unrestricted cash

Restricted and designated cash
Cash, end of the year

(Continued)

$ 73,825,012
(46,821,578)
(11,114,341)
(7,429,661)

8.459.432

1,104,194

(5,765,466)

(952,466)

75,000

(465,475)

(6,004,213)

(430,400)
668,561

238.161

(248,648)

233,149

n 5.499-1

2,677,881

17.796.790

S 20.474.671

$ 12,243,272
8,231,399

$ 20.474.671
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income $ 3,694,107
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,865,703
Deferred outflows related to pension (2,231,521)
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (133,374)
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 1,068,412
Inventoiy - materials and supplies (251,935)
Prepaid expenses (10,616)
Deferred charges and debt service costs (347,479)
Accounts payable (1,946,421)
Accrued expenses 1,659,084
Other post-employment benefit obligation (31,098)
Net pension liabili^ 2,231,521
Accrued compensated absences (40,968)
Reserve for energy conservation (42,725)
Reserve for rate stabilization 976,742

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 8.459.432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

FIDUCIARY FUND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

DECEMBER 31,2015

Assets

Cash $ 4,580
Investments - mutual funds l .nsR 777

Total assets 1.062.807

Net position

Held in trust for other post-e'mployment benefit obligation $ 1.062.807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

FIDUCIARY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Contributions

Investment income (expense);
Realized gain
Unrealized loss

Other income

Management fees

Investment expense, net

Total additions

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

$  569,602

18,334

(38,797)
14,358

13.087^

(9J92)

560,410

502.397

$  1.062.807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

1. Reporting ENTITY:

Die City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department (the "Department") provides electric and gas services
to its customers. The Department is classified imder the proprietary fund category and enterprise j^d type of
the City of Westfield, Massachusetts (the "City"). These consolidated fmancial statements report only that
portion of the fmancial reporting entity of the City that is attributable to the Department's (and Cooperative - see
below) transactions, lire Department grants credit to its customers, substantially all of whom are local residents,
and commercial and industrial businesses. Approximately 70% of the Department's operating revenues were
derived from its electric division during 2015.

Included in these financial statements (consolidated), are the Department and its blended component unit the
Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"). The Cooperative was formed in October 2006 for the sole purpose
of constructing gas transmission facilities and pipelines to cormect the supplier's source, located in Southwick,
Massachusetts, to the gas distribution system currently operated by the Department. In accordance with the by
laws of the Cooperative, a majority of its members, officers and directors will consist of members of the
Department's management. The entire capacity provided by this project is utilized by the Department. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated as part of the consolidation.

The Department established an Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust in 2014 as further described below. This
Trust is classified as a fiduciary fund.

2. Summary OF siGNincANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Recent accounting pronouncements

In February 2015, GASB issued SGAS No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Application" (GASQ No. 72).
GASB No. 72 addresses accounting and financial reporting issued related to fair value measurements. This
statement requires investments to be measured at fair value, which is described as an exit price. This statement
requires valuation techniques that are appropriate m the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to be used to measure fair value. The valuation techniques should be consistent with one or more of
the following approaches: the market approach, the cost approach, or the income approach. This statement
establishes a hierarchy of inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy has three
levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2
inputs, are inputs, other than quoted prices, included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, such as management assiunptions. A fair
value takes into account the highest and best use for a nonfinancial asset. This statement requires disclosives to
be made about fair value measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques. GASB No.
27 is effective for the Department in 2016. The Department is currently assessing the financial statement impact
of adopting this statement, but does not believe that its impact will be material.
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AM) ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLTOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)
In June 2015, GASH issued SGAS No. 75, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions" (GASB No. 75). The primary objective of GASH No. 75 is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB). This statement replaces the requirements of SGAS No. 45 "Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions", as amended, and SGAS
No. 57 "OBEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans". This statement
establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources, and expenses. For defined benefit OPEB, GASB No. 75 identifies the methods and assumptions that
are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial
present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required
supplementaiy information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. In addition, this
statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with payables to defined benefit
OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria. This statement is effective for
the Department in 2018. The Department is currently assessing the financial statement impact of adopting this
statement

In June 2015, GASB issued SGAS No. 76, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for
State and Local Governments" (GASB No. 76). GASB No. 76 established the hierarchy of GAAP for state and
local governments. This statement supersedes SGAS No. 55, "The Hierarchy of Genercdly Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments". The GAAP hierarchy sets forth what constitutes GAAP for all
state and local governmental entities. It establishes the order of priority of pronouncements and other sources of
accounting and financial reporting guidance that a governmental entity should apply. Category A is comprised
of GASB statements. Categoiy B includes GASB Technical Bulletins, GASB Implementation Guides, and
literature of the ACPA cleared by the GASB. GASB No. 76 is effective for the Department in 2016. The
Department is currently assessmg the financial statement impact of adopting this statement, but does not believe
that its impact will be material.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The Department's accounting records are maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP") for proprietary funds as promulgated by GASB. The Department's accounting records
generally follow the Uniform System of Accounts for Public Utilities and Licensees prescribed by the U.S.
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), except as it relates to the accoimting for contributions of
utility property in aid of construction. The financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accoimting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred (subject to adjustments resulting from rate stabilization changes), regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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CITY OF WESTFBELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Public utility regulation

Arrangements among the Department, outside agencies and other utilities covering interconnections, interchange
of electric power, and sales of utility property are subject to regulation by FERC. The Department is subject to
further regulation by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities ("DPU"). The Department, where
appropriate, follows accounting treatment prescribed by these regulatoiy agencies.

Under Massachusetts Law, the rates of the Department are set by the Municipal Light Board and may be
changed not more than once eveiy three months. Rate schedules are filed with the DPU. While the DPU
exercises general supervisory authority over the Department, the rates are not subject to DPU approval. Rates
must be set such that net earnings from operations do not exceed 8% of the cost of the utility plant.

Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company f "MMWEC"!

MMWEC is a non-profrt, public corporation and political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
They offer services ranging from power supply plaiming and resource development to risk management and
regulatory support. The Department utilizes MMWEC for purchased power (ended in 2015) and investment of
assets. The Cooperative utilizes MMWEC for accounting related management services.

Fiduciary fund - other post-cmnlovment benefits trust

The other post-employment benefit trust fund ("OPEB Trust") was established in 2014 by the Municipal Light
Board pursuant to Chapter 32B, Section 20 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The
OPEB Trust constitutes the principal instrument of a plan established by the Municipal Light Board to fund the
Department's annual actuarially determined OPEB contribution for retirees.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others and carmot be used to support the Departments' programs.

Revenues and expenses

Utility revenues are based on authorized rates applied to each customer's use of energy. Rate changes are
approved by the Department's Municipal Light Board and are filed with the DPU. These operating revenues are
recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. A five percent (5%) discount is offered to residential
customers who pay within 15 days of being billed. Discounts are also offered to commercial and industrial
customers up to five percent based on payment method and services purchased. Discounts for the year ended
December 31,2015 were $973,378. These discounts are recorded net against revenues.

The Department and the Cooperative distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with ongoing operations. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the above definitioDS are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and on deposit with the City, which is in the custody of and managed by the City
Treasurer.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to the
allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.
Management is required to comply with billing and termination procediues mandated by the DPU. These
procedures require certain extended terms for payment prior to termination of services for heating customers.
Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. No interest is charged on residential
accounts. The Department obtains security interests for accounts where deemed appropriate.

Inventory - materials and supplies

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (weighted average method) or market. Materials and supplies consist
primarily of pipe, valves, utility poles, wire, meters, transformers and cable.

Restricted and designated assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments, which are restricted under terms of legislation, certain agreements for
payments to third parties or Municipal Light Board actions limiting the use of such funds, are included as
restricted or designated assets. When the Department restricts funds for a specific purpose, and both restricted
and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Department's policy to use restricted resources where
required, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No investments are reported
at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the statement of
revenue, expenses, and net position as increases or decreases in investment income. Dividend and interest
income is recorded when declared.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market rate, and credit risks. Due to the
level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the uncertainty related to changes in the value of
the investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in values of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of net
position. Massachusetts General Laws also place limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available
to the Department.

Cash in escrow

As a requirement of the related ground lease (Note 16), the Cooperative has an escrow agreement with the Town
of Southwick, Massachusetts. The interest bearing escrow account is considered security for the Cooperative's
lease payments and compliance with all of the terms, conditions, provisions, and obligations of the lease
agreement Interest earned on this account must remain in the account and be used to offset ftiture lease
payments.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Other investments

This consists of the Department's equity in New England Hydro-Transmission Electric Company ("Hydro-
Quebec"). The Department has joined with other utilities on committing to equity sponsorship of a project
known as Hydro-Quebec Phase IL The Department owns .2554% of the outstanding common stock. The
Department uses the equity method of accounting for the investment because the investment is imder common
control with other municipal utilities. Under the equity method, investments are recorded at cost and increased
or decreased by the Department's pro-rata share of earnings or losses and distributions. Investment income is
recorded as earned. The investment is carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

In addition, the Department joined with other utilities to invest in Public Utility Mutual Insurance Company
("PUMIC"). PUMIC provides general insurance to members of the Public Utilities Risk Management
Association. The Department invested $266,000 in 1999 and is a founding member. The investment is carried
at cost, which approximates fair value.

Deferred charges

Under the terms of the Department's member agreement with Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric
Company ("MMWEC"), the Department is required to prepay various operating expenses, working capital
requirements, and/or research expenditures for various projects tiiat are operational, under construction, or in the
planning stages. The Department charges these items to expense when MMWEC indicates that the expense has
been incurred.

Plant investment

The utility plant is stated at cost which includes material and labor. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operating expense as incurred, and significant renewals and betterments arc capitalized. As assets are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the Department and the Cooperative calculate or estimate the related cost and
accumulated depreciation which are removed from the accounts. Any profit or loss on disposition is credited or
charged to income in the year retired. The Department and the Cooperative evaluated the fair value of its assets
and no adjustment for impairment was deemed necessary by management. The Department and Cooperative
capitalize additions to plant with an original cost of $ 1,000 or more.

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at a composite rate as prescribed by DPU. Depreciation
was calculated using a composite rate of 3% for 2015. Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31,
2015 was $3,828,458.

Amortization

The regulatory asset is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 276 months.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress consists principally of the costs related to direct materials, direct labor, direct
purchased services, and indirect costs, including general and administrative costs, related to any utility plant
assets under construction. Construction in progress is stated at cost. Any internal costs that were capitalized
were limited to those costs that can be directly identified with the design, engineering, or construction of a
specific project.
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Compensated absences

The Department recognizes vacation and sick leave costs (including related employee benefits) as they are
earned under the following plans. Management personnel are given from 23 person^ days up to 48 personal
days. Earned days not taken are accumulated indefinitely. Employees approaching retirement are entitled,
imder certain conditions, to be compensated at their daily rate then in effect, for up to 175 days of accumulated
personal time. At retirement, all accumulated personal days in excess of 175 days will be compensated one day
for each four days of accumulated personal days.

Employees under the labor agreement are granted 18 days of sick leave, from one to six weeks of vacation and
up to three personal days each year and one personal day shall be earned for each calendar quarter of perfect
attendance. Earned days not taken for sick leave are accumulated indefinitely. Earned days not taken for
vacation may be accumulated up to 10 days. Employees approaching retirement are entitled, under certain
conditions, to use up to 140 days of accumulated sick time prior to the end of their service. If the time is not
taken it will be paid in a lump sum at $50 per day up to a maximum of 50 additional days. All other time is paid
based upon the full number of days earned.

Accrued vacation and sick leave as of December 31,2015 was $2,672,670. Accrued vacation and sick leave for
retired employees as of December 31, 2015 was $265,622 and may be paid over five years from of
retirement.

Net position

The Department and the Cooperative classify net position into three components as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding debt balances. Deferred inflows and outflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets are also
included.

Restricted - This component of net position consists of assets with constraints placed on their use, either
externally or internally. Constraints include those imposed by grants or laws and regulations of other
governments, or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or by the Board. These
restricted assets are reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.

Unrestricted — This component of net position consists of net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet the definition of "Net investment in
capital assets" or "Restricted".

Contributions in aid of construction

The Department records contributions in aid of construction from customer contributions, primarily relating to
expansions to the Department's distribution facilities, on the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position. Contributions of capital are valued at estimated market cost. For rate-making purposes,
the Department does not recognize such revenues when received; rather contributions in aid of construction is
included in plant as such costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related distribution facilities.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES; (CONTINUED)

Presentation of sales taxes

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts imposes a sales tax of 6.25% as of December 31, 2015 on all of the
Department's sales except to exempt and residential use customers. The Department collects that sales tax from
customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The Department's accounting policy is to exclude the tax
collected and remitted to the State from revenues and operating expenses.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES;

In June 2012, GASB issued GASH No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - An Amendment
of GASB Statement No. 27" ("GASB No. 68"). The primary objective of GASB No. 68 is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This statement establishes standards for
measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources, and expenses. For
defined benefit pensions, this statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be us^ to project
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements
about pensions also are addressed.

This statement is effective for the Department January 1, 2015. The implementation impacted the consolidated
statement of net position when the net pension liability and the corresponding deferred outflows of resources
were recorded. The Department has updated Note 12 - Pensions Plans to include the requirements of GASB No.
68.

A prior period adjustment had been made to unrestricted net position to reflect the adoption of GASB 68 by
recording the begiiming of year net pension liability.

The effect on the beginning net position is summarized as follows:

Net

Investment

in Capital Restricted - Total Net
Assets Escrow Unrestricted Position

Net position as previously stated.
December 31,2014 S 65,153,278 $ 665,978 $ (3,235,906) $ 62,583,350

Net pension liability ^ (9,897.293) (9,897.293)
Net position as restated,
December 31,2014 S 65,153,278 $ 665,978 $ (13,133,199) $ 52.686,057

-16-



CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

Accounting CHANGES: (continued)

In November 2013, GASB issued SGAS No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68" (GASB No. 71). GASB No. 71 addresses an
issue regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB No. 68. The issue relates to amoimts associated
with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-employer contributing enthy to
a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability.
GASB No. 71 amends paragraph 137 of GASB No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a
beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the
measurement date of the beginning net pension liability. This statement is effective for the Department in 2015
and the Department has applied it simultaneously with the implementation of GASB No. 68.

Restricted and designated assets:

Restricted and designated assets include accounts deposited with various third parties. These funds are
segregated by management for specific outlays and contingencies and are recorded at fair value. Fair value is
based on quoted market prices at December 31®*. Balances at December 31,2015, consist of the following:

Cash and cash

equivalents Investments Total

Segregated cash:
Escrow $  649,751 $ $ 649,751
Rate stabilization 5,851,963 - 5,851,963

6,501,714 - 6,501,714

MMWEC Reserve Trust:

Electric 18,997 22,525,672 22,544,669
Gas 1.198 2,907,927 2,909,125

20,195 25,433,599 25,453,794

Deferred charges:
Purchase power. 209.430 484,744 694,174
Prepaid Energy Ndw England 1,500,060 - 1,500,060
Prepaid PASNY fund - 142,188 142,188

1,709.490 626,932 2,336.422

Total $  8,231,399 $  26,060,531 $ 34,291,930

Investments included in restricted and designated assets at December 31,2015 consist of:

Unrealized

Cost Fair value gain/doss)

Cash and cash equivalents $  4,436,832 1S  4,436,832 $ -

U.S. treasury securities 10,321,764 10,320,211 (1,553)
U.S. agency securities 9,270,710 9,266,480 (4,230)
Municipal bonds 2.034,462 2,037,008 2.546

Total $  26,063,768 !S  26,060,531 S (3,237)
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

RESTOICTEDANDDESIGNATEDASSETS: (CONTINUED)

The Department's total return on its invested assets consisted of the following components reported on the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position at December 31,2015:

Interest income $ 233,149
Unrealized loss (7,322)

Total investment income $ 225,827

At December 31,2015, the Department's bond investments were as follows;

Maturity

Fair value

Less than 1

year

1-5

years

6-10

years

Over 10

years

U.S. treasury securities S 10,320,211 $  9,951,279 $ 368,932 $ $

U.S. agency securities 9,266,480 500,001 5,897,404 640,196 2,228,879
Municipal bonds 2,037,008 1,633,486 403,522 - -

$ 21,623,699 $  12,084,766 $ 6,669,858 $ 640,196 $ 2,228,879

At December 31, 2015, the Department's bond investments were rated as follows:

Standard & Moody's
Poor's Investment

U.S. treasury securities AA+ AAA

U.S. agency securities AA+ AAA
Mimicipal bonds AA+ to AA- AAl to AA3

The following risk policies are in accordance with those used by the City of Westfield and administered by the
City Treasurer's Office:

Interest rate risk

The Department does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk

The Department limits investments in bonds with a minimum quality rating of Baa or equivalent as rated by
one or more recognized bond rating services, however, 10% of the market value of fixed income
investments may be invested in bonds with a minimum quality rating of Ba or equivalent as rated by one or
more recognized bond rating services.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

4. Restricted and designated assets: (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The Department places no limit on the amount it may mvest in one issuer. The following are the
concentrations of risk greater than five percent:

December 31,
U.S. ageno' securities: M15

Federal National Mortgage 20%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 17%

Custodial credit risk - cash

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Department's deposits may not be
returned. The Department does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The Department
maintains cash balances at various financial institutions located in Massachusetts. These balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to $250,000. At certain times during the
year, the cash balances may exceed the insurance limit. Based on cash balances at December 31, 2015 as
reflected in the consolidated financial statements, the uninsured balance could be as high as approximately
$17,578,000. The Department has not experienced any loss on such accounts and management monitors
the credit worthiness of these financial institutions through the City of Westfield Treasurer's Office.

Custodial credit risk - investments

For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty the
Department will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Department's $26,060,531 in investments, none are uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department,
but not in the Department's name. The Department has no policy on custodial credit risk.

5. Other INVESTMENTS:

Other investments consist of the following at December 31,2015:

Hydro-Quebec Phase n $ 33,750
Public Utility Mutual Insurance Company 266,000

$  299,750
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

FTOUCIARYFDND:

The assets and net position of this trust are reported in the Department's Statement of Fiduciajy Net Position.

Investments (at fair value) of the OPEB Trust consist of the following at December 31,2015:

Cash $ 4,580
Fixed income mutual funds 475,691
Equity mutual funds:

Futures strategy fiind 21,261
Mid cap growth fund 33,037
Large cap fund 319,696
Small cap select fund 21,367
Real estate equity fund 34,345
Emerging markets 32,024
Diversified international fund 53,608
Mid cap value fund 34,184
Select 40 fund 33,014

Total equity mutual funds 582,536

Total $ 1,062,807

7. Regulatory ASSET:

The accounting policies of the Department conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable to rate-regulated enterprises and historically reflect the effects of the rate-making
process. In 2010, the Union Street LNG peakmg facility was abandoned. The Commissioners of the
Department (with approval by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities) voted to include the
unrecovered cost of its investment, with a full return on investment, in future rates as amortization of a
regulatory asset. Management belieVes it is probable that the Department will recover their investrnent in the
regulatory asset.

Regulatory asset - cost $ 856,641
Less: accumulated amortization (186,225)

$  670,416

Amortization expense on the regulatory asset was $37,245 for the year ended December 31, 2015 and is
estimated at the same amount for each of the next five years.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

Plantinvestment:

A summary of plant investment at December 31,2015 is as follows:

Plant investment not being
depreciated:

Land

Totalplant investment not being
depreciated

Plant investment being depreciated:
Plant investment

Office and computer equipment

Transportation equipment
Equipment
Total plant investment being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant investment

Office and computer equipment
Transportation equipment
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total plant investment being
depreciated, net

Total plant investment, net

Balance

December 31,
2014 Increases Decreases

Balance

December 31,
2015

1,008,891 $  . $ $  1,008,891

1,008,891 1,008,891

106,959,168

5,862,166

4,195,499

11,027,423

4,219,458

459,829

35,709

1,050,470

(66,555)

(981,000)

(1,190,000)

111,112.071

5,340,995

4,231,208

10,887,893

128,044,256 5,765,466 (2,237,555) 131,572,167

(39,737,799)

(3,583,735)

(2,800,011)
(5,954,630)

(2,913,542)

(256,922)

(254,987)
(403,007)

64,671

981,000

1,190,000

(42,586,670)

(2,859,657)

(3,054,998)
(5,167,637)

(52,076,175) (3,828,458) 2,235,671 (53,668,962)

75,968,081 1,937,006 (1,882) 77,903,205

76,976,972 $  1,937,006 $ (1,882) $  78,912,096

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pension at December 31,2015, consists of the following:

$Deferred outflows - earnings 1,290,045
Deferred outflows - experience
Deferred outflows - assumption changes

Total $

76,183
865,293

2,231,521
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

10, Long-term DEBT:

General obligation bonds

The following bonds were issued by the Department, through the City, for the financing of plant investment.
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Date of

Issue

Maturity
Dates

Interest

Rate

Amount of

Original
Issue

Outstanding
Balance

2015

11/15/96 11/15/16 4.95% $ 1,000,000 $ 50,000
02/01/06 08/01/24 4.00% 2,100,000 1,100,000
02/01/08 02/01/18 3.08% 520,155 147,676
04/01/08 04/01/28 4.34% 6,000,000 3,795,000
04/04/14 03/01/32 4.30% 6,233,950 5,882,064

10,974,740
Less current portion of bonds (990,219)

General obligation bonds, long-term portion $ 9,984,521

Annual principal and interest payments due for each of the next five years and thereafter for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2016 $  990,219 $ 440,312 $  1,430,531
2017 824,638 414,034 1,238,672
2018 808,475 383,847 1,192,322
2019 760,219 351,594 1,111,813
2020 760,219 318,156 1,078,375

2021 -2025 3,652,764 1,068,085 4,720,849
2026-2030 2,504,431 387,288 2,891,719
2031-2032 673,775 37,200 710.975

Total $  10,974,740 $ 3,400,516 $  14,375.256

11. Noncurrentliabblities:

A summary of the changes in noncurrent liabilities as of December 31,2015 is as follows:
Amounts

Beginning Ending due within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance one year

Accrued compensated absences $ 2,979,260 $ 589,897 $ (630,865) $ 2,938,292 $ 238,561

Other post-employment benefit
obligation 6,634,688 1,166,154 (1,197,252) 6,603,590 -

Net pension liability (see Note 3) 9,897,293 2,231,521 - 12,128,814 -

General obligation bonds 11.852,206 75,000 (952.466) 10,974,740 990,219

Total S 31,363,447 $ 4,062,572 S (2,780,583) S 32,645,436 $ 1.228,780
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

12. Pension PLANS:

Plan description

Qualifying employees of the Department are members of the City of Westfield Contributory Retirement
System (the System). The System is a cost- sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system
administered by the Westfield Retirement Board (the Board). Massachusetts General Laws (MGL), Chapter
32, assigns authority to establish the System and amend benefit provisions of the plan; which is regulated by
the Public Employees Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). The System is a defined benefit
pension plan that covers substantially all employees of its member employers except for current and retired
teachers. The System issues a publicly available financial report in accordance with guidelines established by
the Commonwealth's PERAC. That report may be obtained by contacting the System at 59 Court Street,
Westfield, Massachusetts.

Benefits provided

The System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Members
become vested after 10 years of creditable service and are eligible for retirement allowance benefits up to a
maximum of 80% of a member's highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. Retirement
benefits are determined as a percentage of the member's fmal three-year (five- year for members hired on or
after April 2, 2012) fnal average compensation times the member's years of creditable service prior to
retirement. The percentage is based on the age of the member at retirement and his or her Group
classification. The authority for amending these provisions rests with the Massachusetts Legislature.

Employees who resign fiom service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are
extended to eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following retirement.

Cost of living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth's State law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are home
by the System.

Contributions

MGL Chapter 32 governs the contributions of plan members and the Department. Plan members are
required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 9% based upon their membership date of gross
regular compensation with an additional 2% contribution after exceeding $30,000 in annual covered
compensation. The Department is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial
determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current payroll.
Administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings. The Department's proportionate share of
the required contribution to the System for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $1,374,643, representing
23.50% of the covered payroll, an actuarially determined amount that, when combined with plan member
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year and an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Pension liability

As of December 31, 2015, a reported liability of $12,128,814 is the Department's proportionate share of the
net pension liability measured as of December 31, 2015. The net pension liability was determmed using
the total pension liabilify and the actuarial assumptions as of the January 1, 2015 and updated to the
measurement date of December 31, 2015. This net pension liability is based on the Department's
proportional percentage of 15.33% at December 31,2015.

-23-



CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

12. Pension PLANS: (continued)

Pension expense

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Department rccopized a pension cost of $1,588,184 and reported
deferred outflows related to pensions of $2,231,521. Since the System performs an actuarial valuation bi-
annually, there are no reported dijfferences between the expected and actual experience or a change of
assumptions as of December 31, 2015.

The Department's deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in the pension expense
as follows:

For years ended December 31,
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

535,630

535,630
535,630
520,147
104,550

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1,2015, using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated December 31
2015:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increase

January 1,2015

Individual Entry Age Normal

Total payments increase 5.0% per year.

18 years from July 1,2016

Market value adjusted by accounts payable and receivables
adjusted to phase in over 5 years investment gains and losses
above or below the expected rate of investment return. The
actuarial value of assets must be no less than 90% of the adjusted
market value nor more than 100% of the adjusted market value.

7.75% per year.

Service based table with ultimate rates of 4.25%, 4.50% and
4.75% for Groups 1,2 and 4, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

12. PENSION PLANS: (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions (continued)

Cost of living adjustments

Mortality rates

3.0% of first $13,000.

Pre-retirement: the RP-2000 Employee Table projected 20
years with a Scale AA (gender distinct).

Post-retirement: the RP-2000 Healthy Armuitant Table
projected 15 years with a Scale AA (gender distinct).

For disabled retirees, this table is set forward 2 years.

Long-term expected rate of return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combmed to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class included in the pension plan's target asset
allocation as of December 31, 2015 are suimnarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected

Target Real Rate of

Asset Class Allocation Return

Domestic Large Capital Equity 26.0% 7.75%

Internationally Developed Equity 18.0% 8.25%

Real Estate 12.0% 6.50%

Private Equity 12.0% 9.75%
Core Fixed Income 9.0% 4.25%

Emerging Markets Equity 6.0% 9.50%

Domestic Middle Capital Equity 6.0% 8.00%
Domestic Small Capital Equity 6.0% 8.00%
Tips Fixed Income 2.0% 4.50%

High Yield Fixed Income 2.0% 6.00%

Other Alternatives 1.0% 7.00%

Total 100.0%
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12. Pension PLANS: (continued)

Rate of return

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the annual money-weighted rate of return (which expresses
investment performance), net of investment expense was 7.75%.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made based on the
actuarial determined rates based on the Board's funding policy, which establishes the contractually required
rates by Statute and in accordance with Section 22D and Section 22F of MGL Chapter 32. Based on those
assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected futiue
benefit payments to cmrent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determme the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.75%. As well as what the Department's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher
(8.75%) than the current rate:

Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)

Department's net pension liability $ 16,775,538 $ 12,128,814 $ 8,182,531

Other post-emplovment benefit obligation ("OPEB"!

The Department has previously adopted the provisions of GASB 45 "Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions ". GASB 45 requires the Department to attribute
the cost of post-employment benefits to the time during which the employee is working for the employer.

Plan Description: The Department offers medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees, their dependents, or
their survivors via participation in plans offered by the City and the Westfield Retirement system with benefits
provided by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts and Health New England. Premiums are calculated based
on prior year claim experiences and amounts needed to fund the plan operations.

The number of participants as of January 1,2014 and January 1, 2012, the effective dates of the OPEB valuation
are as follows:

2014 2012

Active members 72 78

Retirees 94 67

Total 166 145
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12. Pension PLANS: (conttnued)

Other post-emplovment benefit obligation f"OPEB"I (continued)
Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the Department are established and may be
amended through Cily policy and member contracts. Participants contribute 35% of the premiums for &eir
selected benefit

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation ("NOG"): The Department's annual OPEB cost is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer ("ARC"), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Department's annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the Department's net OPEB
obligation to the plan:

Interest

Year Annual on

Ended Required Existing
December Contribution NGG

31. (a) (b)

2015 S 1,117,092 $ 464,428 S

2014 $ 1,076,753 $ 468,328 S

2013 s 1,657,382 S 222,539 S

ARC

Adjustment

(c)
(415,366)

(407,621)

(242,401)

Annual

OPEB

Cost

(a)+(b)-Kc)
(d)

$  1,166,154

$  1,137,460

S  1,637,520

Annual

Contribution

Amount

(e)
1,197,252

1,193,167

510,590

Net

Increase in

NOG (d) -

(e)

(H
(31,098)

(55,707)

1,126,930

NOG as of

Year End

(g)
6,603,590

6,634,688

6,690,395

The Department's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of aimual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation were as follows:

Year Ended

2015

2014

2013

Annual

OPEB Cost

1,166,154

1,137,460

1,637,520

Percentage of
Annual OPEB Cost

Contributed

102.67%

104.90%

31.18%

Net OPEB

Obligation
6,603,590

6,634,688

6,690,395

Funded Status and Funding Progress: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about faturc employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.
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12. Pension PLANS; (continued)

Other post-emplovment benefit obligation f"OPEB**l (continued)
The schedule of funding progress below presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Required Supplementary Information

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

1/1/2014

1/1/2012

Actuarial

Accrued

Liability
Value of

Assets*

Unfunded

Actuarial Accmed Funded

Liability (UAAL) Status

Annual

Covered

Payroll

UAAL as

a%of

Payroll
Interest

Rate

$12,596,639
$19,800,938

$12,596,639
$19,800,938

0%

0%

$6,846,000
$6,961,000

184%

284%

7.00%

4.00%

*Afler January 1,2014, the Department has contributed $1,069,602 to the OPEB Trust

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point and do not explicitly
reflect the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitation. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial
assiunptions included a 7% investment rate of return and an armual medical cost trend rate of 8%, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 6 years. The unfunded actuarial accmed liability ("UAAL") is being
amortized over a closed 24 year amortization with payments increasing at 3.25% per year. Differences between
the expected and actual UAAL in future years will be amortized over 24 years.

Plan information

These plans issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required
supplementary information. The reports may be obtained by contacting:

Westfield Contributory Retirement System
59 Court Street, PO Box 106
Westfield, Massachusetts 01086

13, Reserve for rate stabilization:

The Municipal Light Board, in their capacity as the governing body for the Department, have taken various
regulatory actions that result in differences between the recognition of revenues and expenses for rate-making
purposes and their treatment under generally accepted accoimting principles. Rate stabilization is intended to
defer the need for future rate increases when costs exceed existing rates. Amounts may be either transferred into
this fimd (which reduces revenues), or amounts are transferred out of this fund (which increases revenues). The
Commissioners authorize rate stabilization fund transfers on an event driven basis.

During 2015, the Department used $2,259,845 to offset the cost of power. The Department increased the reserve
liability by $3,236,584 during 2015. The balance available to offset future costs is $37,553,511 at December 31,
2015.
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14. Related PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Department provides electric sales and service to the City. Total electric sales were $2,273,617 for the year
ended December 31, 2015. Amounts due from the City for electric sales and service totaled $187,546 at
December 31,2015.

In lieu of tax payments required by the City for their fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was $440,000. These
amounts are paid in equal monthly payments. The Department also accrued the remaining contributions for the
in lieu of tax payments to the City of $220,002 for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Cooperative paid
$2,902 for taxes as of December 31,2015.

The Cooperative has an Agency Contract with Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company
("MMWEC") whereby MMWEC is to serve as the Cooperative's agent in all matters with respect to financing
the transmission facilities and pipelines and the performance of the Cooperative's administrative obligations
under what is known as the Transportation Contract. On behalf of the Cooperative, MMWEC records and
accounts for bills received and paid. During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Cooperative incurred
charges related to accounting and administrative expense of $3,703. As of December 31, 2015, the Cooperative
had a balance due to MMWEC of $627.

The Cooperative utilized legal services provided by a member of its Board of Directors. The Cooperative paid
$4,226 in 2015 for those services.

15. Commitments and contingencies:

Commitments

The Department purchases power through agreements with various public and investor owned utilities. At
December 31, 2015, the Department was committed under various short and long-term agreements for the
purchase of power from generating units currently operating, under construction, and planned for construction.
The objective of these conunitments is to obtain sufficient power at the lowest energy cost available to meet the
current and long-term needs of the Department's customers.

The Department is a participant in certain projects of the Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company
(MMWEC), created as a means to develop a bulk power supply for its members and other utilities. MMWEC is
authorized to construct, own or purchase ownership interests in, and to issue revenue bonds to finance electric
facilities (Projects). MMWEC has acquired ownership interests in electric facilities operated by other entities
and also owns and operates its own electric facilities. MMWEC sells all of the capability (Project Capability) of
each of its Projects to its Members and other utilities (Project Participants) under Power Sales Agreements
(PSAs). Among other things, the PSAs require each Project Participant to pay its pro rata share of MMWEC's
costs related to the Project, which costs include debt service on the revenue bonds issued by MMWEC to
finance the Project, plus 10% of MMWEC's debt service to be paid into a Reserve and Contingency Fund.

The Department has entered into PSAs and Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) with MMWEC. Under both the
PSAs and PPAs, the Department is required to make certain payments to MMWEC payable solely from
Department revenues. Under the PSAs, the Department is unconditionally obligated to make all payments due to
MMWEC, whether or not the Project(s) is completed or operating, and notwithstanding the suspension or
interruption of the output of the Project(s).
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: (CONTINUED)

Commitments (continued)
As of December 31, 2015, total capital expenditures by participants and MMWEC toward capital projects
amounted to $1,626,959,000 of which approximately $112,673,000 represents the amount attributable to the
Department's Project capability. MMWEC's debt outstanding for the Projects from Power Supply Project
Revenue Bonds totals $112,510,000 of which $8,080,000 is attributable to the Department's share of Project
capability, although such amount is not allocated to the Department's statement of net position. As of December
31, 2015, MMWEC's total future debt service requirement on outstanding bonds issued for the Projects is
$121,353,000, of which $8,628,000 is anticipated to be billed to the Department in the future.

The aggregate amount of the Department's required payments to MMWEC under the PSAs and PPAs, exclusive
of the Reserve and Contingency Fund billings, estimated for future years is shown below:

Annual costs

For years ended December 31,2016 $ 5,700,000
2017 1,876,000
2018 1,052,000

$  8,628,000

In addition, under the PSAs, the Department is required to pay to MMWEC its share of the Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) costs of the Projects in which it participates. The Department's total O&M costs including
debt service under the PSAs was $16,339,000 for the year ended December 31,2015.

Under the Hydro-Quebec support agreement, the Department provides support payments to Hydro-Quebec to
cover its pro rata share of costs relating to the Phase n facilities. Support payments were $136,559 for the year
ended December 31, 2015. The Project agreement includes requirements that the participant make equity
contributions, provide credit support and furnish certain guarantees. In addition, the Project contains a step-up-
mechanism which requires participants to assume obligations of other participants who are in default, subject to
certain limitations. The Department's potential liability cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

The Department has an electric supply agreement with Nextera Energy formerly FPL Energy. The agreement
provides for a total of 140,256 MWH at a fixed price of $48.65/MWH purchased over the term of the contract
from January 2013 through December 2016.

The Department has a gas supply agreement with Direct Energy Business Marketing, LLC. The agreement
provides for a fixed gas price ranging from $4.232/MMBtu to $19.60/MMBtu for 500 to 1,000 MMBtu
purchased per day from November 2014 to October 2017.

The Department has a solar energy supply agreement with Twiss Street Solar LLC. The agreement provides for
an estimated total of 27,452,411 kWH at a fixed price of ranging from $0.075/kWH to $0.0995/kWH purchased
over the term of the contract from June 1,2015 through May 2035.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

15. Commitments AND CONTINGENCIES: (continued)

Workers* compensation

The Department participates in the City's self-insurance program covering workers compensation risks.
Coverage for risks in excess of predetermined limits is placed with a commercial carrier. The Department is
assessed and recognizes an amount equal to claims paid by the City for the Department's employees,
administrative costs, and insurance premiums. The Department is responsible for administering their portion of
the workers compensation program. The City only assesses the Department for insurance premiums because the
Department pays all claims for their employees and has contracted with a third party to administer the plan.
There was no accrued liability for self-insurance costs for 2015. The amount of expense incurred for workers
compensation for the year ended December 31,2015 was $170,922.

Unpaid claims, beginning of year $ 54,83 8
Incurred claims (including IBNR's) 163,040
Claim payments (109,232)
Unpaid claims, end of year $ 108,646

General liability

The Department is self-insured for general liability insurance for the first $500,000 per occurrence with a
maximum of $2,000,000 in the aggregate. There were no general liability claims paid for the year ended
December 31, 2015. The Department has had no amount of settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each
of the past three years.

Sackett Street facility

The Department's Sackett Street facility has been owned and operated by the Department since 1899 and, until
1953, was the site of a coal gasification plant. On November 21, 1991, the Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection (MDEP) notified the Department of a potential imminent hazard associated with the
former coal gasification plant site. The MDEP mandated that further testing be performed to determine if
hazardous materials were present. As a result of testing, MDEP concluded that hazardous materials are present
and that an immment hazard does exist The Department has commenced assessment action and implementation
of a contingency plan as required by Chapter 2 IE of the Massachusetts General Laws. During 2015, the
Department incurred costs of $86,852 relating to this project.

Environmental matters

The Department is subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities with respect to air and water
quality, handling and disposal of toxic substances and hazardous and solid wastes, and handling and use of
chemical products. The Department could incur significant additional environmental costs associated with the
operation of its own system, through ownership interests in joint ventures or through long-term contractual
arrangements with other electric generating and transmitting entities. The Department could also encounter
significant costs to remedy the environmental effects of prior waste handling activities. The extent of future
environmental cleanup costs including environmental remediation costs is not estimable due to factors such as
the unknown magnitude of possible contamination, the appropriate remediation methods, the possible effects of
future legislation or regulation, and the possible effects of technological changes related to fiiture cleanup and
the difficulty of determining future liability, if any, for cleanup of sites at which the Department has or may
designated a potentially responsible party by the Environmental Protection Agency or other agencies. However,
considering known facts, existing laws, regulatory practices, and possible insurance and rate treatment,
management does not believe such matters will have a material adverse effect on the Department's financial
position.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBERS!, 2015

15. Commitments AND CONTINGENCIES: (continued)

Litigation

The Department is also involved in various legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such proceedings and litigation will not materially
affect the Department's financial position.

Construction programs

The Department has budgeted construction expenditures of approximately $5,736,250 for 2016. As of
December 31, 2015, approximately $65,700 has been committed. The Department anticipates funding these
expenditures through operations.

Deregulation

The Department maintains the exclusive rights to supply electricity in the City of Westfield. If the Department
were to open its geographic borders and allow competition from other providers, the potential impact on the
Department's revenue cannot be reasonably estimated.

16. Operating LEASES:

The Cooperative has a 50 year ground lease agreement with the Town of Southwick. The lease expires in 2057
with ten renewal options for five years each. The lease grants the Cooperative certain rights to use land for the
purpose of constructing, installing, and operating a natural gas pipeline fecility and conduits for
telecommunication lines and other purposes from the Tennessee Gas Transmission Line to the Town line with
the City of Westfield and further on to the point of distribution in the City of Westfield.

Lease payments are due on an aimual basis per a payment schedule, which covers the initial 26 years. For the
remainder of the lease, the annual lease payments are adjusted based on the Consumer Price Index.

Future minimum commitments due are as follows at December 31:

2016 $ 17,729
2017 18,616
2018 19,547

2019 20,524
2020 21,550
2021-2057 1,781,077

$  1,879,043

Lease expense was $16,885 for the year ended December 31,2015.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2015

16. OPERATING LEASES: (CONTINUED)

The Department leases various office and transportation equipment under non-cancelable operating leases with
monthly payments ranging from $219 to $7,603 due through December 2020. Rent expense totaled
approximately $171,000 for the year ended December 31,2015. The following is a schedule of future minimum
lease payments required under operating lease at December 31:

2016 $ 133,751
2017 45,066
2018 26,627
2019 16,522
2020 14,626

Total $ 236,592

17. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS:

The entire work force of the Department is covered by two collective bargaining agreements. One of these
agreements, the Management Guild, covers approximately 26% of the work force and expired on February 28,
2014, but remains in effect from year to year thereafter until a successor agreement is signed. The other contract
with I.B.E.W. covers the remaining 74% of the work force and is in place through March 31,2019.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 6,2016, the date on which the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

The Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability represents multiyear trend information relating to
the Department's proportion of the net pension liability and related ratios related to participation in the City of
Westfield Contributoiy Retirement System at the measurement date of December 31,2015.

Schedule of the Department's proportionate share of the net pension liability:

Department's share of the net pension liability 15.33%

Department's proportionate share net pension liability $ 12.128.814

Department's share of covered employee payroll** $ 5,850,103

Net pension liability percentage of covered-employee payroll 207.3%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 71.4%

Note: these schedules are intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, the information is presented for those
years of which the information is available.

**Indicates covered employee payroll as reported in the retirement
system January 1,2015 funding valuation report.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

The Schedule of the Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information on the Department's required and
actual payments to the pension plan and related ratios related to participation in the City of Westfield Contributory
Retirement System at the measurement date of December 31, 2014.

Schedule of the Department's contributions:

Actuarially determined contribution * $ 1,374,643

Less: Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 1.374.643

Contribution deficiency (excess) | -

Department's share of covered employee payroll** $ 5,850,103

Contributions percentage of covered-employee payroll 23.5%

Note: these schedules are intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, the information is presented for those
years of which the information is available.

* Based on the results of the January 1, 2015 actuarial valuation

(including assumptions and methods) as reported for the City's fiscal
year ended June 30,2015.

**Indicates covered employee payroll as reported in the retirement
system January 1,2015 funding valuation report.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Schedule of funding progress

Actuarial

Valuation

Date

1/1/2014

1/1/2012

Actuarial

Value of

Assets

(A)

Other Post-Employment Benefits

$

$

Actuarial

Accrued

Liability (AAL)

(B)
$ 12,596,639
$ 19,800,938

Unfunded

AAL

(UAAL)
(B-A)

$ 12,596,639
$ 19,800,938

Funded

Ratio

(A/B)
0%

0%

Covered

Payroll

(C)
$ 6,846,000

$6,961,000

UAAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/C)

184.0%

284.5%

Interest Rate

7.00%

4.00%

Schedule of contribution funding
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Year Ended

12/31/2015

12/31/2014

12/31/2013

Annual

OPEB Cost

$ 1,166,154
$ 1,137,460
$ 1,637,520

Actual

Contributions

Made

$

$

$

1,197,252
1,193,167

510,590

Percentage

Contributed

102.7%

104.9%

31.2%

The information presented in the above Required Supplementary Schedule was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional
information as of the latest actuarial valuation can be found in the notes to basic fmancial statements.

(Continued)
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

REQUIRED SUPFLEMEPJTARY INFORMATION

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Actuarial methods:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

January 1,2014

Projected unit credit cost method

Closed amortization over 24 years

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Medical/drug cost trend rate
7.0% per year

8.0% trending down to an ultimate rate

of 5.0% per year after 6 years

Plan membership:

Current active members

Current retirees, beneflciaries and dependents

Total

72

94

166
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2015

Current assets

Cash

Accounts receivable, less reserve of $617,999

Inventory - materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted and designated assets

Cash in escrow

Cash for rate stabilization

MMWEC Reserve Trust

Deferred charges

Total restricted and designated assets

ASSETS

WG&E Cooperative Eliminations Total

$ 11,740,574 S 502,698 $

3,525,569

2,438,944

14,080

17,719,167

5,851,963

25,453,794

2.336.422

33.642.179

33,500

55,900

592,098

649,751

649.751

(72,058)
S 12,243,272

3,487,011

2,438,944

69.980

(72.058) 18.239.207

649,751

5,851,963

25,453,794

2,336,422

34,291.930

Noncurrent assets

Regulatory asset, net
Other investments

Deferred charges
Deferred debt service costs

Note receivable - Southwest Cooperative
Total noncurrent assets

Plant investment

Land

Electric

Gas

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total plant investment, net

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred outflows related to pensions

670,416

299,750

476,354

26,578

5.712.644

7,185,742

559,305

74,666,641

51.253.213

126,479,159

(52.613.188)

73.865.971

2.231.521

449,586

5,652.313

6,101,899

(1.055,774)

5.046.125

f5.712.644)

(5,712.644)

670,416
299,750

476,354

26,578

1,473,098

1,008,891

74,666,641

56,905,526

132,581,058

(53.668.962)

78.912.096

2,231,521

Total assets £134.644.580 .$ 6 287 974 S <-5.784,702) $135.147.857.



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

WG&E

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable to municipality
Current portion of general obligation bonds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

4,585,655

1,000,982

220,002

990,219

238.561

7,035,419

Cooperative Eliminations

14,637

27,310

41.947

(44,748)
(27,310)

(72,058)

Total

4,555,544

1,000,982

220,002

990,219

238.561

7,005,308

Noncurrent liabilities

Accrued expenses
General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Net pension liability
Note payable - Westfield Gas and
Electric Light Department

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,210,489

9,984,521

2,699,731

6,603,590

12,128,814

32.627.145

5.712,644

5.712.644

(5,712.644)

(-5.712.6441

1,210,489

9,984,521

2,699,731

6,603,590

12,128,814

32.627.145

Total liabilities 39,662,564 5,754,591 (5,784,702) 39,632,453

Deferred inflows of resources

Reserve for rate stabilization

Reserve for energy conservation
Total deferred inflows of resources

37,553,511

493,403

38.046.914

37,553,511

493.403

38.046.914

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Escrow

Unrestricted

Total net position

62,917,809

(5,982,707)

56.935.102

(666,519) 5,712,644

649,751

550,151 (5,712,644)

533.383 -

67,963,934

649,751

(11,145,200)

57.468.485

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and net position S  134 644 580 $ 6 287.974 S fS 784 7021
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

WG&E

Transfers out - in lieu of tax payments to City

Contributions in aid of construction

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year (as restated)

Net position, end of year

Gas Electric Cooperative Eliminations Total

Operating revenues
Residential $  10,216,736 $17,913,184 S S $ 28,129,920

Commercial 10,076,546 15,972,731 402,000 (402,000) 26,049,277

Industrial 1,888.192 13,831,265 - - 15,719,457

Municipal 971,372 2,273,618 - - 3,244,990

Off-street lighting - 141.627 - - 141,627

Telecommunication income 102,967 426,319 - - 529,286

Service income and finance charges 31,294 20,862 - - 52,156

Rate stabilization fund transfers n.970.2521 993.513 . f976.739)

Total operating revenues 21,316,855 51,573,119 402,000 (402,000) 72,889,974

Operating expenses

Purchase power and gas 13,885,826 32,368,073 - (402,000) 45,851,899

Distribution expenses 1,110,717 2,441,679 - - 3,552,396

Maintenance 898,698 2,431,859 - - 3,330,557

General and administrative 1,552,767 7,392,474 116,030 (11,250) 9,050,021

Pension and benefits 906,577 2,549,972 - - 3,456,549

Environmental response expense 88,742 - - - 88,742

Depreciation and amortization 1,546,156 2.162.847 156.700 _ 3.865.703

Total operating expenses 19,989,483 49,346,904 272,730 (413,250) 69,195,867

Operating income 1.327.372 2.226.215 129.270 11.250 3.694.107

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Miscellaneous income 120,845 557,082 - (11,250) 666,677
Investment income 40,027 236,126 700 (51,026) 225,827

Interest expense (154,060) (311,415) (51,026) 51,026 (465.475)

Total non-operating revenue
(expense), net 6.812 481.793 f50.326) f 11.250) 427.029

Income before transfers and contributions 1.334.184 S 2 708 008 $  78.944 $ 4,121,136

(442,902)

1.104.194

4,782,428

52.686.057

3L.SIA68A85
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MEYERS BROTHERS KALICKA, P.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS

To the Municipal Light Board and Manager of the
City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Atiditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of the City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light
Department (the "Department") and the Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"), which comprise the proprietaiy
fund consolidated statement of net position as of December 31, 2015, and the related proprietary fund consolidated
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, the fiduciary
fund statement of fiduciaty net position as of December 31,2015 and statement of changes in fiduciary net position for
the year ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon HafpH
July 6,2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plaiming and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Department and the
Cooperative's internal controls over fmancial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated fmancial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's internal
controls. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's
internal controls.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Department and the Cooperative's consolidated
fmancial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that may have not been identified.

330 Whitney Avenue, Suite 800 • Hoiyoke, Massachusetts 01040 • teiephone 413-536-8510 • facsimile 413-533-8399
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Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department and the Cooperative's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Department in a separate letter dated July 6,2016.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's
internal controls or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Holyoke, Massachusetts
July 6,2016

-41-



CITY OF WESTFIELD

GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDA TED FINANCIAL STA TEMENTS

AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013



CITY OF WESTFIELD
GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT
CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors' Report 1-2

Financial Statements;

Proprietary Fund:

Consolidated Statements of Net Position 3

Consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 5-6

Fiduciaiy Fund:

Statement of Fiduciaiy Net Position 7

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 9-29

Supplementary Information:

Consolidating Statements of Net Position 30-31

Consolidating Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 32 - 33

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 34 - 35



MEYERS BROTHERS KALICKA, P.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Municipal Light Board and Manager of the
City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light
Department (the "Department") and the Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"), which comprise the proprietary
fund consolidated statements of net position as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related proprietary fund
consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, the
fiduciary fund statement of fiduciary net position as of December 31, 2014 and statement of changes in fiduciary net
position for the year ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Department and the
Cooperative's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significmt
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

330 Whitney Avenue, Suite 800 • Hotyoke, Massachusetts 01040 • telephone 413-536-8510 • facsimile 413-533-8399
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Opinion

In our opinion, the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the Department and the Cooperative as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
and the respective changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The consolidating statements of net position and consolidating statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position are presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived jfrom and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounts and other
records used to prepare the consolidated fmancial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated fmancial
statements as a whole.

Other Matters

The Department and the Cooperative have omitted Management's Discussion and Analysis and Budget Comparison
Information that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the consolidated fmancial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the consolidated
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the consolidated fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the consolidated fmancial statements present only the Department and the Cooperative, and do
not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Westfield, Massachusetts, as of December
31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated changes in its financial position or its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 6, 2015 on our
consideration of the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls over financial reporting and on our tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controls over fmancial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Department and the Cooperative's internal controls over financial reporting and
compliance.

Holyoke, Massachusetts
May 6,2015
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

2014 2013

Current assets

Cash

Accounts receivable, less reserve of $751,373

in 2014 and $668,000 in 2013

Inventory - materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

$  11,589,682

4,422,049

2,187,009
59.364

18.258.104

$  7,995,280

4,827,379

2,020,809
119.441

14.962.909

Restricted and designated assets

Cash in escrow

Cash for rate stabilization

Cash for BAN/bonds

MMWEC Reserve Trust

Deferred charges
Total restricted and designated assets

665,978

4,229,872

24,290,609

2.839.854

32026.313

681,385

4,487,485

85,506

23,368,735

2.826.897

31.450.008

Noncurrent assets

Regulatory asset, net
Other investments

Deferred charges
Deferred debt service costs

Total noncurrent assets

707,661

299,750

126,941

28.512

1.162.864

744,906

299,750

52,540

30.446

1.127.642

Plant investment

Land

Electric

Gas

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total plant investment, net

1,008,891

72,094,901
55.949.355

129,053,147

rS2.076.1751

76.976.972

1,008,891

70,763,602

54.367.804

126,140,297

r49.673.7441

76.466.553

Total assets
$ 128.424.253 $ 124.007.112



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

2014 2013

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable to municipality
Current portion of general obligation bonds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncnrrent liabilities

General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligation

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Reserve for rate stabilization

Reserve for energy conservation
Total deferred inflows of resources

6,654,927
399,425

207,500

877,467

308,348

8.447.667

10,974,739

2,670,912

6,634,688

20.280.339

28.728.006

36,576,769

536,128

37.112.897

$ 6,424,474

430,987

202,959

626,163

315,742

8.000.325

11,368,257

2,615,112
6,690,395

20.673.764

28.674.089

35,706,971

640,934

36.347.905

Net position
Net investments in capital assets
Restricted

Escrow

BANA)onds

Unrestricted

Total net position

65,153,278

665,978

(3.235.906^

62.583.350

64,502,579

681,385

85,506

f6.284.3521

58.985.118

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position % 128.424.253 $ 124.007.112

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFBELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

2014 2013

Operating revenues
Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Municipal
Ofi-street lighting
Service income and finance charges
Rate stabilization fund transfers

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Purchased power and gas
Distribution expenses
Maintenance

General and administrative

Pension and benefits

Environmental response expense
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Miscellaneous income

Telecommunication income

Investment income

Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue, net

Income before transfers and contributions

Transfers out - in lieu of tax payments to City

Transfer of other post-employment
benefit obligations from the City

Contributions in aid of construction

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year S  62.583.350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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28,657,621 $  25,728,273
24,379,343 19,515,173
18,134,046 18,681,627
2,726,528 2,332,527
144,391 146,841

65,322 54,393
f869.798t (458.432)

73.237.453 66.000.402

49,540,733 44,339,377

3,485,022 3,203,429

3,611,340 3,019,996

7,257,203 7,071,854

3,114,765 2,415,279

74,939 206,618

3.778.318 3.628.417

70.862.320 63.884.970

2.375.133 2.115.432

278,455 473,727

497,856 1,152,747

257,596 48,338

(469,364) (381,838)

564.543 1.292.974

2,939,676 3,408,406

(417,922) (408,571)

-
(6,690,395)

1.076.478 47.292

3,598,232 (3,643,268)

58.985.118 62.628.386

S  58.985.118



CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received for services

Cash paid to power suppliers
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid for other operations

$ 73,642,783

(48,440,482)
(9,867,441)
(7,998,087)

$65,461,252
(43,119,787)
(9,135,711)
(6,613,756)

Net cash provided by operating activities 7.336.773 6.591.998

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Cash received from bonowings on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital purposes

Cash received from contributions in aid of construction

Cash paid for capital expenditures
Cash paid for principal on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital purposes
Cash received for premium on general obligation bonds

incurred for capital purposes
Cash paid for interest on general obligation bonds and BAN payable

incurred for capital purposes

1,076,478

(4,251,492)

(626,164)

483,950

(469,364)

1,050,000

47,292

(5,981,456)

(806,293)

(381,838)

Net cash used by capital financing activities (3,786,592) (6,072,295)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Cash paid for in lieu of tax payments
Cash received from non-operating revenues

(413,381)
776,311

(426,838)
1,626,474

Net cash provided by non-capital jBnancing activities 362.930 1.199.636

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from investments

Cash paid for purchases of investments
Cash received from investment earnings

(843,370)
185,553

14,701

(110,454)
129,590

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (657.817^ 33.837

Net increase in cash 3,255,294 1,753,176

Cash, beginning of year 14.541.496 12.788.320

Cash, end of year S 17.796.790 % 14.541.496

Cash included in:

Uiucstricted cash

Restricted and designated cash
Cash, end of the year

(Continued)

$ 11,589,682
6,207,108

!S 17.796.790

$ 7,995,280
6,546,216

$ 14.541.496



CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

PROPRIETARY FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Deferred charges and debt service costs
Accounts payable
Accmed expenses

Other post-employment benefits
Accrued compensated absences
Reserve for energy conservation
Reserve for rate stabilization

Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 2,375,133 $ 2,115,432

3,778,318 3,628,417

83,373 (30,127)

321,957 (509,023)

(166,200) (24,931)
60,077 (53,292)

(72,467) 112,366

230,453 761,158

(31,562) 179,299

(55,707) -

48,406 47,847

(104,806) (93,580)
869,798 458,432

$ 7.336.773 S 6.591.998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

FIDUCIARY FUND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

DECEMBER 31,2014

Assets

Cash $ 7,357
Investments - mutual funds 495.040

Total assets 502.397

Net position
Held in trust for other post-employment benefit obligation $ 502.397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

FIDUCIARY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Contributions $ 500,000

Investment income (expense):
Realized gain 12,101
Unrealized loss (12,061)
Other income 2,712

Management fees fBSS")
Investment income, net 2.397

Total additions 502,397

Net position, beginning of year :

Net position, end of year $ 502.397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

1. Reporting ENTITY;

The Cily of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department (the "Department") provides electric and gas services
to its customers. The Department is classified under the proprietary fund category and enterprise fimd type of
the City of Westfield, Massachusetts (the "City"). These consolidated financial statements report only that
portion of the financial reporting entity of the City that is attributable to the Department's transactions. The
Department grants credit to its customers, substantially all of whom are local residents, and commercial and
industrial businesses. Approximately 69% and 72% of the Department's operating revenues were derived from
its electric division during 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Included m these financial statements (consolidated), are the Department and its blended component unit the
Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"). The Cooperative was formed in October 2006 for the sole purpose
of constructing gas transmission facilities and pipelines to connect the supplier's source, located in Southwick,
Massachusetts, to the gas distribution system currently operated by the Department In accordance with the by
laws of the Cooperative, a majority of its members, officers and directors will consist of members of the
Department's management. The entire capacity provided by this project is utilized by the Department. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated as part of the consolidation.

The Department established an Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust in 2014 as further described below.

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Recent accounting changes

Ih March 2012, GASB issued SGAS No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities" ("GASB No.
65"). GASB No. 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify certain items
previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources. This statement
also limits the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. This statement was effective for
2013.

In June 2012, GASB issued SGAS No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -An Amendment
of GASB Statement No. 27" ("GASB No. 68"). The primary objective of GASB No. 68 is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This statement establishes standards for
measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources, and expenses. For
defined benefit pensions, this statement identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project
benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present
value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements
about pensions are also addressed. This statement is effective for 2015. The Department is currently assessing
the financial statement impact of adopting this statement which is likely to be significant.

In November 2013, GASB issued SGAS No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68" ("GASB No. 71"). GASB No. 71 addresses an
issue regarding application of the transition provisions of GASB No. 68. The issue relates to amounts associated
with contributions, if any, made by an employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension
plan after the measurement date of its begiiming net pension liability. GASB No. 71 amends paragraph 137 of
GASB No. 68 to require that, at transition, a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension
contributions is recognized, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension
liability. This statement is effective for the Department in 2015, to be applied simultaneously with the
provisions of GASB No. 68. The Department is currently assessing the financial statement impact of adopting
this statement.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Summary of significant accounting policies: (continued)

Recent accoanting changes (continued)
In Februaiy 2015, the Govenunental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") issued SGAS No. 72, "Fair Value
Measurement and Application" ("GASB No. 72"). GASB No. 72 requires disclosures to be made about fair
value measmements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques. The statement provides
guidance for determining a fair value measmement for financial reporting purposes. GASB No. 72 also requires
additional disclosures regarding investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value per share (or its
equivalent). This statement is effective for the Department in 2016.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The Department's accounting records are maintained in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP") for proprietary funds as promulgated by GASB. The Department's accounting records
generally follow the Uniform System of Accounts for Public Utilities and Licensees prescribed by the U.S.
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC"), except as it relates to the accounting for contributions of
utility property in aid of construction. The financial statements are reported using the economic resomces
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred (subject to adjustments resulting from rate stabilization changes), regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Public utility regulation

Arrangements among the Department, outside agencies and other utilities covering interconnections, interchange
of electric power, and sales of utility property are subject to regulation by FERC. The Department is subject to
further regulation by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities ("DPU"). The Department, where
appropriate, follows accounting treatment prescribed by these regulatoiy agencies.

Under Massachusetts Law, the rates of the Department are set by the Municipal Light Board and may be
changed not more than once every three months. Rate schedules are filed with the DPU. While the DPU
exercises general supervisory authority over the Department, the rates are not subject to DPU approval. Rates
must be set such that net earnings from operations do not exceed 8% of the cost of the utility plant.

Ma.ssachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company r'MMWEC"')

MMWEC is a non-profit, public corporation and political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
They offer services ranging from power supply plarming and resource development to risk management and
regulatory support. The Department utilizes MMWEC for purchased power and investment of assets. The
Cooperative utilizes MMWEC for accounting related management services.

Fiduciary fund - other post-emplovmcnt benefits trust

The other post-employment benefit trust fimd ("OPEB Trust") was established in 2014 by the Municipal Light
Board pursuant to Chapter 32B, Section 20 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The
OPEB Trust constitutes the principal instrument of a plan established by the Municipal Light Board to fund the
Department's armual actuarially determined OPEB contribution for retirees.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the Departments' programs.
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CriY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Summary of significant accounting policies; (continued)

Revenues and expenses

Utility revenues are based on authorized rates applied to each customer's use of energy. Rate changes are
approved by the Department's Municipal Light Board and are filed with the DPU. These operating revenues are
recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. A five percent (5%) discount is offered to residential
customers who pay within 15 days of being billed. Discounts are also offered to commercial and industrial
customers up to five percent based on payment method and services purchased. Discounts for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $923,691 and $820,874, respectively. These discounts are recorded against
revenues.

The Department and the Cooperative distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with ongoing operations. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses,
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting the above definitions are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and on deposit with the City, which is in the custody of and managed by the City
Treasurer.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to the
allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.

Management is required to comply with billing and termination procedures mandated by the DPU. These
procedures require certain extended terms for payment prior to termination of services for heating customers.
Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off
through a charge to the allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. No interest is charged on residential
accoimts. The Department obtains security interests for accounts where deemed appropriate.

Inventorv — materials and suddIics

Inventoiy is valued at the lower of cost (weighted average method) or market. Materials and supplies consist
primarily of pipe, valves, utility poles, wire, meters, transformers and cable.

Restricted and designated assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments, which are restricted under terms of legislation, certain agreements for
payments to third parties or Municipal Light Board actions limiting the use of such funds, are included as
restricted assets. When the Department restricts funds for a specific purpose, and both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Department's policy to use restricted resources where
required, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted market prices. No investments are reported
at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the statement of
revenue, expenses, and net position as increases or decreases in investment income. Dividend and interest
income is recorded when declared.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Restricted and designated assets (continued)
Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market rate, and credit risks. Due to the
level of risk associated with certain investment securities and the uncertainty related to changes in the value of
the investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in values of investment securities will
occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statement of net
position. Massachusetts General Laws also place limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available
to the Department.

Cash in escrow

As a requirement of the related ground lease (Note 13), the Cooperative has an escrow agreement with the Town
of Southwick, Massachusetts. The mterest bearing escrow account is considered security for the Cooperative's
lease payments and compliance with all of the terms, conditions, provisions, and obligations of the lease
agreement. Interest earned on this account must remain in the account and be used to offset future lease
payments.

Other investments

This consists of the Department's equity in New England Hydro-Transmission Electric Company ("Hydro-
Quebec"). The Department joined with other utilities on committing to equity sponsorship of a project known as
Hydro-Quebec Phase II that consists of two companies operating certain electric transmission facilities in New
Hampshire and Massachusetts. The Department owns .2554% of the Companies' outstanding common stock.
The Department uses the equity method of accounting for the investment because the investment is under
common control with other municipal utilities. Under the equity method, investments are recorded at cost and
increased or decreased by the Department's pro-rata share of earnings or losses and distributions. Investment
income is recorded as earned. Fair market value approximates the cost of investments.

hi addition, the Department joined with other utilities to invest in Public Utility Mutual Insurance Company
("PUMIC"). PUMIC provides general insurance to members of the Public Utilities Risk Management
Association. The Department invested $266,000 in 1999 and is a founding member. The investment is carried
at cost, which approximates fair value.

Deferred charges

Under the terms of the Department's member agreement with Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric
Company ("MMWEC"), the Department is required to prepay various operating expenses, working capital
requirements, and/or research expenditures for various projects that are operational, under construction, or in the
plarming stages. The Department charges these items to expense when MMWEC indicates that the expense has
been incurred.

Plant investment

The utility plant is stated at cost which includes material and labor. Maintenance and repairs are chained to
operating expense as incurred, and significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. As assets are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the Department and the Cooperative calculate or estimate the related cost and
accumulated depreciation which are removed from the accounts. Any profit or loss on disposition is credited or
charged to income in the year retired. The Department and the Cooperative evaluated the fair value of its assets
and no adjustment for impairment was deemed necessary by management. The Department and Cooperative
capitalize additions to plant with an original cost of $1,000 or more.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Summary of significant accounting policies: (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at a composite rate as prescribed by DPU. Depreciation
was calculated using a composite rate of 3% for 2014 and 2013. Depreciation expense for the years ended
December 31,2014 and 2013 was $3,741,073 and $3,591,172, respectively.

Amortization

The regulatory asset is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 276 months.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress consists principally of the costs related to direct materials, direct labor, direct
purchased services, and indirect costs, including general and administrative costs, related to any utility plant
assets under construction. Construction in progress is stated at cost. Any internal costs that were capitalized
were limited to those costs that can be directly identified with the design, engineering, or construction of a
specific project

Compensated absences

The Department recognizes vacation and sick leave costs (including related employee benefits) as they are
earned imder the following plans. Management personnel are given from 23 personal days up to 48 personal
days. Earned days not taken are accumulated indefinitely. Employees approaching retirement are entitled,
under certain conditions, to be compensated at their daily rate then in effect, for up to 175 days of accumulated
personal time. At retirement, all accumulated personal days in excess of 175 days will be compensated one day
for each four days of accumulated personal days. Accrued sick pay as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was
$2,655,870 and $2,596,154, respectively.

Employees under the labor agreement are granted 18 days of sick leave, from one to six weeks of vacation and
up to three personal days each year and one personal day shall be earned for each calendar quarter of perfect
attendance. Earned days not taken for sick leave are accumulated indefinitely. Earned days not taken for
vacation may be accumulated up to 10 days. Employees approaching retirement are entitled, under certain
conditions, to time off with pay of sick time for up to 140 days. If the time is not taken it will be paid in a lump
sum at $50 per day up to a maximum of 50 additional days. All other time is paid based upon the full number of
days earned. Accrued vacation as of December 31,2014 and 2013 was $81,619 and $87,590, respectively.

Accrued vacation and sick leave for retired employees as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $241,771 and
$247,110, respectively. These amounts are paid over two years from date of retirement

Net position

The Department and the Cooperative classify net position into three components as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding debt balances. Deferred inflows and outflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets are also
included.

Restricted - This component of net position consists of assets with constraints placed on their use, either
externally or internally. Constraints include those imposed by grants or laws and regulations of other
governments, or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or by the Board. These
restricted assets are reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.
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CITY OF WESTFEELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

2. Summary OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (CONTINUED)

Net position (continned)
Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet the definition of "Net investment in
capital assets" or "Restricted".

Contributions in aid of construction

The Department records contributions in aid of construction from customer contributions, primarily relating to
expansions to the Department's distribution facilities, on the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position. Contributions of capital are valued at estimated market cost. For rate-making purposes,
the Municipal Light Board does not recognize such revenues when received; rather contributions in aid of
construction is included in revenues as such costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related

distribution facilities.

Presentation of sales taxes

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts imposes a sales tax of 6.25% as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 on all of
the Department's sales except to exempt and residential use customers. The Department collects that sales tax
from customers and remits the entire amoimt to the State. The Department's accounting policy is to exclude the
tax collected and remitted to the State from revenues and operating expenses.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reciassifled to conform with the current year
presentation. The reclassification moves amounts from operating revenue, distribution expense, and
miscellaneous income to telecommunication income and from miscellaneous income to investment income.

These reclassifications had no effect on reported net income.

Restricted and designated assets:

Restricted and designated assets include accounts deposited with Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric
Company ("MMWEC"). These funds are segregated by management for specific outlays and contingencies and
are recorded at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices at December 31".

Balances at December 31,2014, consists of the following:
Cash and cash

equivalents Investments Total

Segregated cash:
Escrow $  665,978 $ -  $ 665,978
Rate stabilization 4,229,872 - 4,229,872

4.895,850 - 4,895,850

MMWEC Reserve Trust:

Electric 13,843 21,868,728 21,882,571

Gas 7,714 2,400,324 2,408,038
21,557 24,269,052 24,290,609

Deferred charges (held by MMWEC):
Purchase power
Prepaid PASNY fund

1,289,701 1,407,965
142,188

2,697,666
142,188

1,289,701 1,550,153 2,839,854

Total $  6,207,108 $ 25,819,205 $ 32,026,313
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Restricted and designated assets: (continued)

Investments included in restricted and designated assets at December 31,2014 consist of:
Unrealized

Cost Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. treasury securities
U.S. agency securities
Municipal bonds

$  3,427,001
8,626,225

11,468,515
2.293,379

$ 3,427,001
8,613,761

11,481,334
2,297,109

$
(12,464)
12,819
3,730

Total $  25,815,120 $ 25,819,205 $ 4,085

Balances at December 31,2013, consists of the following:

Cash and cash

equivalents Investments Total

Segregated cash
Escrow

Rate stabilization

BAN/bonds

$  681,385
4,487,485

85,506

S

-

$ 681,385
4,487,485

85,506

5,254,376 - 5,254,376

MMWEC Reserve Trust:

Electric

Gas

67,876
19,112

21,112,325
2,169,422

21,180,201
2,188,534

86,988 23,281,747 23,368,735
Deferred charges (held by MMWEC):

Pmchase power
Prepaid PASNY fund

1,204,852 1,479,857
142,188

2,684,709
142,188

1,204,852 1,622,045 2,826,897

Total $  6,546,216 $ 24,903,792 $ 31,450,008

Investments included in restricted and designated assets at December 31,

Cost

2013 consist of:

Fair value

Unrealized

loss

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. treasury securities
U.S. agency securities
Municipal bonds

$  3,344,818
6,168,502
13,450,972
2,007,458

$ 3,344,818
6,153,089
13,410,607
1,995,278

$
(15,413)
(40,365)
(12,1801

Total $  24,971,750 $ 24,903,792 $ (67,958)

The Department's total return on its invested assets consisted of the following components reported on
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position:

2014 2013

Interest income

Unrealized gain (loss)
$ 185,553

72,043
$ 146,078

(97,740)

Total investment income (loss) $ 257,596 $ 48,338
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Restricted and designated assets: (continded)

At December 31,2014 and 2013, the Department's bond investments were as follows:

Maturity
Less than 1 1-5 6-10 Over 10

Fair value

December 31,2014
U.S. treasuiy securities
U.S. agency securities
Mimicipal bonds

December 31,2013
U.S. treasury securities
U.S. agency securities
Municipal bonds

$ 8,613,761 $ 6,730,344 $ 1,883,417 $ $

11,481,334 146,934 8,588,074 2,290,471 455,855
2,297,109 885,184 U66,3i2 145,613 -

$ 22,392,204 $ 7,762,462 $ 11,737,803 $ 2,436,084 $ 455,855

Maturity

Less than 1 1-5 6-10 Over 10

Fair value year years years years

$ 6,153,089 $ 5,036,552 $ 1,116,537 $ $
13,410,607 226,820 12,343,024 840,763 -

1,995,278 612,915 1,382,363 - -

$ 21,558,974 $ 5,876,287 $ 14,841,924 $ 840,763 $ -

At December 31,2014 and 2013, the Department's bond investments were rated as follows:

2014 2013

U.S. treasury securities

U.S. agency securities
Municipal bonds

Standard &

Poor's

AA+

AA+

AA+ to AA-

Moody's
Investment

AAA

AAA

AA2toAA3

Standard &

Poor's

AA+

AA+

AAAto AA-

Moody's
Investment

AAA

AAA

AA2toAA3

The following risk policies are in accordance with those used by the City of Westfield and administered by the
City Treasurer's Office:

Interest rate risk

The Department does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk

The Department limits investments in bonds with a minimum quality rating of Baa or equivalent as rated by
one or more recognized bond rating services, however, 10% of the market value of fixed income
investments may be invested in bonds with a minimum quality rating of Ba or equivalent as rated by one or
more recognized bond rating services.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Restricted AND DESIGNATED ASSETS: (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The Department places no limit on the amount it may invest in one issuer,
concentrations of risk greater than five percent in either year:

The following are the

December 31,

U.S agency securities:
Federal National Mortgage
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Federal Farm Credit Bank

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage

2014 2013

12%

10%

36%

18%

24%

39%

8%

26%

15%

12%

Custodial credit risk - cash

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Department's deposits may not be
returned. The Department does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The Department
maintains cash balances at various financial institutions located in Massachusetts. These balances are

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") up to $250,000. At certain times during the
year, the cash balances may exceed the insurance limit. Based on cash balances at December 31, 2014 as
reflected in the consolidated financial statements, the uninsured balance could be as high as approximately
$16,367,000. The Department has not experienced any loss on such accounts and management monitors
the credit worthiness of these financial institutions through the City of Westfield Treasurer's Office.

Custodial credit risk - investments

For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty the
Department will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Of the Department's $25,819,205 in investments, none are uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department,
but not in the Department's name. The Department has no policy on custodial credit risk.

4. Other investments:

Other investments consist of the following at December 31:

Hydro-Quebec Phase n
Public Utility Mutual Insurance Company

2014

33,750
266,000

299.750

2013

33,750
266,000

299,750
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

FroUCIARYFUND:

The assets and net position of this trust are reported in the Department's Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.

Investments (at fair value) of the OPEB Trust consist of the following at December 31:

2014

Cash $  7,357

Fixed income mutual funds 223,060
Equity mutual funds:

Futures strategy fund 10,460

Mid cap growth fund 15,447

Large cap fund 151,965

Small cap select fund 10,127

Real estate equity fund 15,617

Emerging markets 14,082

Diversified international fund 24,500

Mid cap value fund 15,357

Select 40 fund 14,425

Total equity mutual funds 271,980

Total $  502,397

Regulatory asset:

The accounting policies of the Department conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America applicable to rate-regulated enterprises and historically reflect the effects of the rate-making
process. In 2010, the Union Street LNG peaking facility was abandoned. The Commissioners of the
Department (with approval by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities) voted to include the
unrecovered cost of its investment, with a full return on investment, in future rates as amortization of a
regulatoiy asset. Management believes it is probable that the Department will recover their investment in the
regulatory asset.

2014 2013

Regulatoiy asset - cost
Less: accumulated amortization

856,641
148,980

S

856,641
111,735

707,661 $ 744,906

Amortization expense on the regulatory asset was $37,245 for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and
is estimated at the same amount for each of the next five years.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Plant INVESTMENT:

A summary of plant investment at December 31,2014 is as follows:

Balance

December 31,
Balance

December 31,
2013 Increases Decreases 2014

Plant investment not being
depreciated:

$  . $ -  $Land S 1,008,891 1,008,891

Total plant investment not being
depreciated 1,008,891 - - 1,008,891

Plant investment being
depreciated:

Plant investment 104,868,715 2,285,185 (194,732) 106,959,168

Office and computer equipment 6,212,802 799,364 (1,150,000) 5,862,166

Transportation equipment 3,756,946 438,553 - 4,195,499

Equipment 10,292,943 734,480 - 11,027,423

Total plant investment being
depreciated 125,131,406 4,257,582 (1,344,732) 128,044,256

Less accumulated depreciation
for:

Plant investment (37,178,300) (2,748,141) 188,642 (39,737,799)

Office and computer equipment (4,384,771) (348,964) 1,150,000 (3,583,735)

Transportation equipment (2,550,340) (249,671) - (2,800,011)

Equipment (5,560,333) (394,297) - (5,954,630)

Total accumulated depreciation (49,673,744) (3,741,073) 1,338,642 (52,076,175)

Total plant investment being
depreciated, net 75,457,662 516,509 (6,090) 75,968,081

Total plant investment, net ^ 76,466,553 5  516,509 $ (6,090) $ 76,976,972
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

Plant INVESTMENT: (continued)

A summaiy of plant investment at December 31,2013 is as follows:

Balance Balance

December 31, December 31,
2012 Increases Decreases 2013

Plant investment not being
depreciated:

$  . $ $  1,008,891Land ^ 1,008,891 -

Total plant investment not being
depreciated 1,008,891 - - 1,008,891

Plant investment being
depreciated:

Plant investment 100,485,077 4,728,180 (344,542) 104,868,715

Office and computer equipment 5,985,212 227,590
- 6,212,802

Transportation equipment 3,6476,527 80,419 - 3,756,946

Equipment 9,987,914 955,029 (650,000) 10,292.943

Total plant investment being
depreciated 120,134,730 5,991,218 (994,542) 125,131,406

Less accumulated depreciation
for:

Plant investment (34,876,475) (2,636,605) 334,780 (37,178,300)

Office and computer equipment (4,047,712) (337,059) - (4,384,771)

Transportation equipment (2,311,048) (239,292) - (2,550,340)

Equipment (5,832,117) (378,216) 650,000 (5,560,333)

Total accumulated depreciation (47,067,352) (3,591,172) 197,915 (49,673,744)

Total plant investment being
depreciated, net 73,067,378 2,400,046 (9,762) 75,457,662

Total plant investment, net S 74,076,269 $ 2,400,046 $ (9,762) $  76,466,553

8. Long-term DEBT:

Bond anticipation note f"BAN"l payable

In April 2013, the Department received a BAN payable of $1,050,000. It required monthly interest only
payments at the annual rate of 1.5% at December 31, 2013. In April 2014, total BAN's of $5,750,000 were
converted to a general obligation bond and, as a result, were included under the terms and conditions of the
general obligation bonds payable at December 31,2014. No BAN's were obtained in 2014.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

8. LONG-TERM DEBT: (CONTINUED)

General obligation bonds

The following bonds were issued by the Department through the City for the financing of plant investment.
Bond premiums and discoimts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Amount of

Date of Interest Outstanding Balance

Issue Dates Rate Issue 2014 2013

11/15/96 11/15/16 4.95% $  1,000,000 $ 100,000 $  150,000

07/15/04 07/15/14 3.51% 1,000,000 - 100,000

02/01/06 02/01/25 4.21% 2,100,000 1,210,000 1,320,000

02/01/08 02/01/18 3.08% 520,155 198,256 249,420

04/01/08 04/01/28 4.34% 6,000,000 4,110,000 4,425,000

04/04/14 03/01/32 430% 6,233,950 6,233,950 5,750,000

11,852,206 11,994,420

Less current portion of bonds (877,467) (626,163)

General obligation bonds, long-term portion $ 10,974,739 $  11,368,257

Annual principal and interest payments due for each of the next five years and thereafter for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 877,467 $ 490,397 $ 1,367,864
2016 871,886 458,421 1,330,307
2017 821,305 424,571 1,245,876
2018 810,142 391,760 1,201,902

2019 761,886 357,731 1,119,617
2020-2024 3,779,431 1,256,506 5,035,937

2025-2029 2,919,431 442,836 3,362,267
2030 - 2032 1,010,658 55,800 1,066,458

Total $  11.852,206 $ 3,878,022 $ 15,730,228

9. NONCURRENT LIABfLrriES:

A summary of the changes in noncurrent liabilities as of December 31, is as follows:
Amounts

Beginnmg Ending due within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance one year

December 31,2014

Accrued compensated absences S 2,930,854 S  599,096 S (550,690) S 2,979,260 $ 308,348

Other post-employment benefit
(1.193,167) 6,634,688obligation 6,690,395 1,137,460

General obligation bonds 11,994,420 483,950 (626,164) 11,852,206 877,467

Total S 21,615,669 $  2,220,506 s (2,370,021) S 21,466,154 $ 1,185,815
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

NONCDRRENTLIABBLrnES: (CONTINUED)

December 31,2013

Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit

obligation
BAN*

General obligation bonds
Total

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Amounts

due within

one year

$  2,883,007 $ 558,279 $ (510,432) $  2,930,854 $ 315,742

_ 6,690,395 . 6,690,395

4,700,000 - (4,700,000) - -

7,050,713 5,750,000 (806,293) 11,994,420 626,163

$  14,633,720 $ 12,998,674 $ (6,016,725) $  21,615,669 $ 941,905

* Balance converted to general obligation bonds.

10. Retirement PLANS:

CItv of Westfield contributory retirement system

Employees of the Department participate in the City of Westfield Contributory Retirement System as established
under Chapter 32 of the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Participants contribute 5% to
11% of compensation annually depending on their date of employment. This is a cost-sharing multiple employer
public employee retirement system ("PERS"), which is a component of the City.

The plan provides pension benefits, deferred allowances and death and disability benefits. A member may retire
after reaching age 55 with 10 years of credited service, or with no age requirement after 20 years of service.
Members become vested after ten full years of credited service.

Benefit payments are based on the following factors: age, length of creditable service, level of compensation,
and group classification. Age at retirement and group classification determine a benefit rate. This rate,
multiplied by the length of creditable service, is multiplied by the average of the three highest (consecutive)
years' compensation. Percentages are specified in Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws. Participants
may elect to receive their retirement in one of three forms of payment, which are a life annuity; modified cash
refhnd annuity or a joint and survivor annuity. The amoimt determined by the benefit formula carmot exceed
80% of the participant's average salary as described above.

The Department's contribution to the retirement plan is determined by an allocation of the City's contribution,
which is based upon projected benefits to be paid during the applicable year. The Department then reimburses
tlie City for the Department's share of the assessment.

The aTTinnnt of pension expense charged to operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
was $1,291,897, $1,217,998 and $1,152,625, respectively.

The plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. This report may be obtained by contacting:

Westfield Contributory Retirement System
59 Court Street, PO Box 106
Westfield, Massachusetts 01086
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

10. Retirement PLANS: (continued)

Other Dost-emplovment benefit obligation P'OFEB")

During 2013, the Department adopted the provisions of GASB 45 "Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions" following a mayoral decision to shift this
liability to the appropriate City department based on where the participants are or were employed upon the
City's fiscal year end June 30, 2013. The major change under GASB 45 is to attribute the cost of post-
employment benefits to the time during which the employee is working for the employer.

Plan Description: The Department offers medical insurance benefits to eligible retirees, their dependents, or
their survivors via participation in plans offered by the City and the Westfield Retirement system with benefits
provided by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts and Health New England. Premiums are calculated based
on prior year claim experiences and amounts needed to fund the plan operations.

The number of participants as of January 1,2014 and January 1,2012, the effective dates of the OPEB valuation
are as follows:

2014 2012

Active members 72 78

Retirees 94 67
Total 166 145

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of plan members and the Department are established and may be
amended through City policy and member contracts. Participants contribute 35% of the premiums for their
selected benefit. Beginning in 2014, the Department's intent is to fully fund the Annual Required Contribution,
subject to the availability of financial resources.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation ("NOO"): The Department's annual OPEB cost is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer ("ARC"), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any luifimded actuarial liabilities over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the Department's annual OPEB cost
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the Department's net OPEB
obligation to the plan:

Year

Ended

December

31.

2014

2013

Annual

Required
Contribution

(2)
1,076,753

1,657,382

Interest

on

Existing
NOO

(b)
468,328

222,539

ARC

Adjustment

(c)
(407,621)

(242,401)

Annual

OPEB

Cost

(a)+(b)+(c)

(d)
1,137,460

1,637,520

Annual

Contribution

Amount

(e)
1,193,167

510,590

Net

Increase in

NOO (d) -

(e)

(55,707)

1,126,930

NOO as of

Year End

(g)
6,634,688

6,690,395
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NOTES TO CONSOLroATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

10. Retirement PLANS: (continued)

The Department's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Percentage of
Annual Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2014 $ 1,137,460 104.90% $ 6,634,688

2013 1,637,520 31.18% 6,690,395

Funded Status and Funding Process: Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan mvolve estimates of the value
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future.

The schedule of funding progress below presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Required Supplementary Information
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual UAAL as

Valuation Accrued Value of Actuarial Accrued Funded Covered a % of Interest

Date Liability Assets* LiabUity (UAAL) Status Payroll Payroll Rate

1/1/2014 $12,596,639 - $12,596,639 0% $6,846,000 184% 7.00%
1/1/2012 $19,800,938 - $19,800,938 0% $6,961,000 284% 4.00%

*After January 1,2014, the Department contributed $500,000 to the OPEB Trust.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point and do not explicitly
reflect the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitation. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 7% investment rate of return and an annual medical cost trend rate of 8%, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 6 years. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability ("UAAL") is being
amortized over a closed 24 year amortization with payments mcreasing at 3.25% per year. Differences between
the expected and actual UAAL in future years will be amortized over 24 years.

Plan information

These plans issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required
supplementary information. The reports may be obtained by contacting:

Westfield Contributory Retirement System
59 Court Street, PO Box 106
Westfield, Massachusetts 01086
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

11. Reserve for rate stabilization:

The Municipal Light Board, in their capacity as the governing body for the Department, have taken various
regulatory actions that result in differences between the recognition of revenues and expenses for rate-making
purposes and their treatment under generally accepted accounting principles. Rate stabilization is intended to
defer the need for future rate increases when costs exceed existing rates. Amounts may be either transferred mto
this fund (which reduces revenues), or amounts are transferred out of this fund (which increases revenues). The
Commissioners authorize rate stabilization fund transfers on an event driven basis.

During 2014 and 2013, the Department used $1,040,000 and $1,820,164, respectively to offset the cost of power.
The Department increased ^e reserve liability by $1,909,798 and $2,278,596 during 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The balance available to offset future costs is $36,576,769 at December 31,2014.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Department provides electric sales and service to the City. Total electric sales were $2,277,312 and
$2,084,198 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amounts due from the City for
electric sales and service totaled $149,352 and $173,280 at December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.

In lieu of tax payments required by the City for their fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $415,000
and $405,919, respectively. These amounts are paid in equal monthly payments. The Department also accrued
the remaining contributions for the in lieu of tax payments to the City of $207,500 and $202,959 for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Cooperative paid $2,922 and $2,652 for taxes as of
December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Cooperative has an Agency Contract with Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric Company
("MMWEC") whereby MMWEC is to serve as the Cooperative's agent in all matters with respect to financing
the transmission facilities and pipelines and the performance of the Cooperative's administrative obligations
under what is known as the Transportation Contract. On behalf of the Cooperative, MMWEC records and
accounts for bills received and paid. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Cooperative
incurred charges related to accounting and administrative expense of $4,356 and $15,076, respectively. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Cooperative had balances due to MMWEC of $1,326 and $1,297,
respectively.

The Cooperative utilized legal services provided by a member of its Board of Directors. The Cooperative paid
$5,488 and $8,741 in 2014 and 2013, respectively for those services.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Commitments

The Department purchases power through agreements with various public and investor owned utilities. At
December 31, 2014, the Department was committed under various short and long-term agreements for the
purchase of power from generating units currently operating, under construction, and planned for construction.
The objective of these commitments is to obtain sufficient power at the lowest energy cost available to meet the
current and long-term needs of the Department's customers.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

13. Commitments AND CONTINGENCIES: (continued)

Commitments (continued)
The Department is a participant in certain projects of the Massachusetts Municipal Wholesale Electric
Company (MMWEC), created as a means to develop a bulk power supply for its members and other utilities.
MMWEC is authorized to construct, own or purchase ownership interests in, and to issue revenue bonds to
finance electric facilities (Projects). MMWEC has acquired ownership interests in electric facilities operated by
other entities and also owns and operates its own electric facilities. MMWEC sells all of the capabili^ (Project
Capability) of each of its Projects to its Members and other utilities (Project Participants) under Power Sales
Agreements (PSAs). Among other things, the PSAs require each Project Participant to pay its pro rata share of
MMWEC's costs related to the Project, which costs include debt service on the revenue bonds issued by
MMWEC to finance the Project, plus 10% of MMWEC's debt service to be paid into a Reserve and
Contingency Fund.

The Department has entered into PSAs and Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) with MMWEC. Under both tlie
PSAs and PPAs, the Department is required to make certain payments to MMWEC payable solely from
Department revenues. Under the PSAs, the Department is unconditionally obligated to make all payments due to
MMWEC, whether or not the Project(s) is completed or operating, and notwithstanding the suspension or
interruption of the output of the Project(s).

As of December 31, 2014, total capital expenditures for MMWEC related projects amounted to $1,616,889,000
of which approximately $112,158,000 represents the amount attributable to the Department. MMWEC's debt
outstanding for the projects included Power Supply Project Revenue Bonds totaling $167,110,000 of which
$12,868,000 is attributable to the Department, although such amount is not allocated to the Department's
statement of net position. As of December 31, 2014, MMWEC's total future debt service requirement on
outstanding bonds issued for tlie Projects is $ 152,675,000, of which $ 11,325,000 is anticipated to be billed to the
Department in the future.

The estimated aggregate amount of the Department's required payments to MMWEC under the PSAs and PPAs,
exclusive of the Reserve and Contingency Fund billings, to MMWEC at December 31, 2014 and estimated for
future years is shown below:

Annual costs

For years ended December 31,2015 $ 5,547,000
2016 3,788,000
2017 1,463,000
2018 526,000

$  11,324,000

In addition, under the PSAs, the Department is required to pay MMWEC its share of the Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) costs of the Projects in which it participates. The Department's total O&M costs including
debt service under the PSAs was $15,945,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES: (CONTINUED)

Commitments (continued)
Under the Hydro-Quebec support agreement, the Department provides support payments to Hydro-Quebec to
cover its pro rata share of costs relating to the Phase n facilities. Support payments totaled $135,325 and
$135,350 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The Project agreement
includes requirements that the participant make equity contributions, provide credit support and furnish certain
guarantees. In addition, the Project contains a step-up-mechanism which requires participants to assume
obligations of other participants who are in default, subject to certain limitations. The Department's potential
liability cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

The Department had a gas supply agreement with Hess Corporation which expired October 31, 2014. It
consisted of a fixed gas price ranging from $3.965/MMBtu to $4.514/MMBtu for 300 to 1,500 MMBtu
purchased per day from November 2011 to October 2012 and $3.00/MMBtu to $4.21/MMBtu for 300 to 4,000
MMBtu purchased per day from November 2012 to June 2014.

The Department has an electric supply agreement with Nextera Energy formerly FPL Energy. The agreement
provides for a total of 140,256 MWH at a fixed price of $48.65/MWH purchased over the term of the contract
from January 2013 through December 2016.

The Department has a gas supply agreement with Direct Energy Business Marketing, LLC which expires
October 31, 2017. It consists of a fixed gas price ranging from $4.232/MMBtu to $19.60/MMBtu for 500 to
1,000 MMBtu purchased per day from November 2014 to October 2017.

Effective June, 2015, the Department will begin a solar energy supply agreement with Twist Street Solar LLC.
The agreement provides for an estimated total of 27,452,411 kWH at a fixed price of ranging from $0.075/kWH
to $0.0995/kWH purchased over the term of the contract from June 1, 2015 through May 2035.

Workers* compensation

The Department participates in the City's self-insurance program covering workers compensation risks.
Coverage for risks in excess of predetermined limits is placed with a commercial carrier. The Department is
assessed and recognizes an amount equal to claims paid by the City for the Department's employees,

.  administrative costs, and insurance premiums. The Department is responsible for administermg their portion of
the workers compensation program. The City only assesses the Department for insurance premiums because the
Department pays all claims for their employees and has contracted with a third party to admmister the plan.
There was no accrued liability for self insurance costs for 2014 ($32,351 was accrued in 2013). The amount of
expense incurred for workers compensation for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $91,543 and
$252,440, respectively.

Unpaid claims, beginning of year
Incurred claims (including IBNR's)
Claim payments
Unpaid claims, end of year

2014 2013

56,372 $ 20,220
72,694 272,944

(74,228) (236.792)

54,838 $ 56,372
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTiMDENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

13. Commitments AND CONTINGENCIES: (continued)

Genera! liability

The Department is self insured for general liability insurance for the first $500,000 per occurrence with a
mavimiim of $2,000,000 in the aggregate. There were no general liability claims paid for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The Department has had no amount of settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each
of the past three years.

Sackett Street facility

The Department's Sackett Street facility has been owned and operated by the Department since 1899 and, until
1953, was the site of a coal gasification plant On November 21, 1991, the Massachusetts Department of
Environmental Protection (MDEP) notified the Department of a potential inuninent hazard associated with the
former coal gasification plant site. The MDEP mandated that further testing be performed to determine if
hazardous materials were present. As a result of testing, MDEP concluded that hazardous materials are present
and that an imminent hazard does exist. The Department has commenced assessment action and implementation
of a contingency plan as required by Chapter 21E of the Massachusetts General Laws. During 2014 and 2013,
the Department incurred costs of $74,939 and $206,000, respectively, relating to this project.

Environmental matters

The Department is subject to regulation by federal, state and local authorities with respect to air and water
quality, handling and disposal of toxic substances and hazardous and solid wastes, and handling and use of
chemical products. The Department could incur significant additional environmental costs associated with the
operation of its own system, throng ownership interests in joint ventures or through long-term contractual
arrangements with other electric generating and transmitting entities. The Department could also encounter
significant costs to remedy the environmental effects of prior waste handling activities. The extent of future
environmental cleanup costs including environmental remediation costs is not estimable due to factors such as
the unknown magnitude of possible contamination, the appropriate remediation methods, the possible effects of
future legislation or regulation, and the possible effects of technological changes related to fiiture cleanup and
the difficulty of determining future liability, if any, for cleanup of sites at which the Department has or may
designated a potentially responsible party by the Environmental Protection Agency or other agencies. However,
considering known facts, existing laws, regulatory practices, and possible insurance and rate treatment,
management does not believe such matters will have a material adverse effect on the Department's financial
position.

Litigation

The Department is also mvolved in various legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business, ha the opinion of management, the outcome of such proceedings and litigation will not materially
affect the Department's financial position.

Construction nrograms

The Department has budgeted construction expenditures of approximately $5,980,250 for 2015. As of
December 2014, approximately $87,800 has been corrunitted. The Department anticipates funding these
expenditures through operations.

Deregulation

The Department maintains the exclusive rights to supply electricity in the City of Westfield. If the Department
were to open its geographic borders and allow competition from other providers, the potential impact on the
Department's revenue caimot be reasonably estimated.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013

14. Operating LEASES:

The Cooperative has a 50 year ground lease agreement with the Town of Southwick. The lease expires in 2057
with ten renewal options for five years each. The lease grants the Cooperative certain rights to use land for the
piurpose of constructing, installing, and operating a natural gas pipelme facility and conduits for
telecommunication lines and other purposes from the Tennessee Gas Transmission Line to the Town line with
the City of Westfield and fiirther on to the point of distribution in the City of Westfield.

Lease payments are due on an annual basis per a payment schedule, which covers the initial 26 years. For the
remainder of the lease, the annual lease payments are adjusted based on the Consumer Price Index.

Future minimum commitments due are as follows at December 31:

2015 $ 16,885
2016 17,729

2017 18,616
2018 19,547

2019 20,524
2020-2057 1,802.627

$  1,895,928

Lease expense was $16,081 and $15,315 for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Department leases various ofBce and transportation equipment under non-cancelable operating leases with
monthly payments ranging from $236 to $7,603 due through May 2017. Rent expense totaled approximately
$164,000 and $72,000 for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments required under operating lease at December 31:

2015 $ 163,093
2016 121,166
2017 7.288
Total $ 291,547

15. Collective bargaining agreements:

The entire work force of the Department is covered by two collective bargaining agreements. One of these
agreements, the Management Guild, covers approximately 29% of the work force and expired on February 28,
2014, but remains in effect from year to year thereafter until a successor agreement is signed. The other contract
with I.B.E.W. covers the remaining 71% of the work force and expires on March 31,2016.

16. Subsequent EVENTS:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 6,2015, the date on which the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLroATING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2014

Current assets

Cash

Accounts receivable, less reserve of $751,373

Inventoiy - materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted and designated assets

Cash in escrow

Cash for rate stabilization

MMWEC Reserve Trust

Deferred charges
Total restricted and designated assets

ASSETS

WG&E Cooperative Eliniinations Total

11,077,125

4,485,214

2,187,009

17,749,348

4,229,872

24,290,609

2.839,854

31.360,335

512,557

16,750

59,364

588,671

665,978

665.978

(79,915)

(79,915)

$ 11,589,682
4,422,049

2,187,009

59,364

18,258,104

665,978

4,229,872

24,290,609
2,839,854

32,026,313

Noncurrent assets

Regulatory asset, net
Other investments

Deferred charges
Deferred debt service costs

Note receivable - Southwest Cooperative
Total noncurrent assets

707,661

299,750

126,941

28,512

5.932.361

7,095,225

f5.932.36n

(5,932,361)

707,661
299,750

126,941

28,512

1,162,864

Plant investment

Land

Electric

Gas

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total plant investment, net

559,305

72,094,901

50.297.042

122,951,248

(51,177,101)

71.774.147

449,586

5,652,313

6,101,899

(899,074)

5.202.825

1,008,891
72,094,901

55.949,355

129,053,147

(52,076.175)

76.976.972

Total assets S17.7.97905S S (6.012.276) SI28.424.253



Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable to municipality
Current portion of general obligation bonds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noucurrent liabilities

General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Note payable - Westfield Gas and
Electric Light Department

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Reserve for rate stabilization

Reserve for energy conservation
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Escrow

Unrestricted

Total net position

'LOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

WG&E Cooperative Eliminations Total

$  6,667,070 $  23,259 $  (35,402) $  6,654,927

399,425 44,513 (44,513) 399,425

207,500 - - 207,500

877,467 - 877,467

308.348 . _ 308.348

8,459,810 67,772 (79,915) 8,447,667

10,974,739 10,974,739

2,670,912 - - 2,670,912
6,634,688 - - 6,634,688

5,932,361 (5,932,361) _

20.280.339 5.932.361 (5.932.3611 20.280.339

28,740,149 6,000,133 (6,012.276) 28,728.006

36,576,769 36,576,769

536,128 - - 536.128

37.112.897 _ _ 37.112.897

59,950,453 (729,536) 5,932,361 65,153,278

665,978 _ 665,978
2,175,556 520,899 (5,932,361) (3,235.906)

62.126.009 457.341 - 62.583.350

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and net position S  17.7.979.055 fi 4S7 474
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31,2013

Current assets

Cash

Accounts receivable, less reserve of $668,000
Inventory - materials and supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Restricted and designated assets
Cash in escrow

Cash for rate stabilization

Cash for BAN^onds

MMWEC Reserve Trust

Deferred charges
Total restricted and designated assets

Noncurrent assets

Regulatory asset, net
Other investments

Deferred charges
Deferred debt service costs

Note receivable - Southwest Cooperative
Total noncurrent assets

Plant investment

Land

Electric

Gas

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total plant investment, net

ASSETS

WG&E Cooperative Eliminations

$  7,607,240
4,865,544

2,020,809

61.085
14,554,678

4,487,485

85,506

23,368,735
2,826,897

30,768,623

744,906

299,750

52,540

30,446

5.932.361

7,060,003

559,305

70,763,602

48.715.491

120,038,398
M8.931.370

71.107.028

$ 388,040

67,000

58.356

513.396

681,385

681,385

449,586

5.652.313

6,101,899

^2.3741

5.359.525

$

(105,165)

f5.932.36n

(5,932.361)

Total

7,995,280

4,827,379

2,020,809

119.441

(105.165) 14.962,909

681,385

4,487,485

85,506

23,368,735

2.826.897

31,450.008

744,906

299,750

52,540

30,446

1,127,642

1,008,891
70,763,602

54.367.804

126,140,297

(49.673.744)

76.466.553

Total assets ■$ 123.490.332 $^554,306 $(6.037.5261 $ 124.007.112



UABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Payable to municipality
Current portion of general obligation bonds
Current portion of accrued compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Note payable - Westfield Gas and
Electric Light Department

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Reserve for rate stabilization

Reserve for energy conservation
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted

Escrow

BAN/bonds

Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and net position

WG&E Cooperative Eliminations Total

$  6,489,596 $  22,503 $  (87,625) S  6,424,474

430,987 17,540 (17,540) 430,987

202,959 - - 202,959

626,163 - - 626,163

315.742 - - 315,742

8.065,447 40,043 (105,165) 8,000,325

11,368,257 . . 11,368,257

2,615,112 - - 2,615,112

6,690,395 - - 6,690,395

_ 5,932,361 (5,932,361) _

20,673,764 5,932,361 (5,932,361) 20,673,764

28.739,211 5,972,404 (6,037,526) 28,674,089

35,706,971 . 35,706,971

640.934 _ _ 640.934

36.347.905 36.347.905

59,143,054 (572,836) 5,932,361 64,502,579

_ 681,385 681,385
85,506 - - 85,506

f825.3441 473,353 (5,932,361) (6,284.352)

58,403,216 581,902 - 58,985.118

$  123.490.332 S 6.564.306 S_(6.Q32.5261 ."S 124.007 117,
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

WG&E

Operating revenues
Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Municipal
OfT-stieet lighting
Service income and finance charges
Rate stabilization fimd transfers

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Purchase power and gas
Distribution expenses
Maintenance

General and administrative

Pension and benefits

Environmental response expense
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operatiog revenues (expenses)
Miscellaneous income

Telecommunication income

Investment income

Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue

(expense), net

Income before transfers and contributions

Transfers out - in lieu of tax payments to City

Contributions in aid of construction

Change in net position

Net position, begitming of year

Net position, end of year

Gas Electric Cooperative Eliminations Total

$  10.555,578 $ 18,102,043 $ . $ $ 28,657,621

8,931,971 15,447,372 201,000 (201,000) 24,379,343

3,780,560 14,353,486 - - 18,134,046

449,216 2,277,312 - - 2,726,528
- 144,391 - - 144,391

39,193 26,129 - - 65,322

fl 19.5051 (750.293) . • (869.798)

23,637,013 49,600,440 201,000 (201,000) 73,237,453

16,791,813 32,949,920 (201,000) 49,540,733

1,036,652 2,448,370 - - 3,485,022

1,065,991 2,545,349 - 3,611,340

1,474,636 5,679,071 122,148 (18,652) 7,257,203

865,085 2,249,680 - - 3,114,765

74,939 - - - 74,939

1.498,710 2.122.908 156.700 _ 3.778.318

22,807,826 47,995,298 278,848 (219,652) 70,862,320

829.187 1.605.142 (77.848) 18.652 2.375.133

99,137 197,970 _ (18,652) 278,455
35,320 462,536 - - 497,856

33,082 268,305 722 (44,513) 257,596

(123,217) (346.147) (44.513) 44.513 (469.364)

44.322 582.664 (43.791) (18.652) 564.543

s  871 sno !S 7. 187 806 s (171.6391 S 2,939,676

(417,922)

1-076.478

3,598,232

58.985.118

S fi7.58T^50
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CITY OF WESTFIELD GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT DEPARTMENT

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

WG&E

Income before transfers and contributions

Transfers out - in lieu of tax payments to City

Transfers of other post-employment
benefit obligations from the City

Contributions in aid of construction

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

S  90.262

Gas Electric Cooperative Eliminations Total

Operating revenues
Residential S 8,210,817 $17,517,456 S $ $25,728,273
Commercial 5,419,754 14,095,419 417,381 (417,381) 19,515,173

Industrial 4,253,053 14,428,574 - - 18,681,627
Municipal 248,328 2,084,199 - - 2,332,527

Off-street lighting - 146,841 - - 146,841

Service income and finance charges 32,636 21,757 - - 54,393

Rate stabilization hind transfers 629.128 0.087.5601 . _ 1458.4321

Total operating revenues 18.793.716 47,206,686 417,381 (417,381) 66,000.402

Operating expenses
Purchase power and gas 12,213,521 32,543,237 - (417,381) 44,339,377

Distribution expenses 1,225,614 1,977,815 - - 3,203,429

Maintenance 871,721 2,148,275 - - 3,019,996

General and administrative 1,536,957 5,420,256 135,266 (20,625) 7,071,854

Pension and benefits 657,958 1,757,321 - - 2,415,279

Environmental response expense 206,618 - - - 206,618

Depreciation and amortization 1.436.629 2.035.088 156.700 . 3.628.417

Total operating expenses 18,149,018 45.881.992 291,966 (438,006) 63,884.970

Operating income 644.698 1.324.694 125,415 20,625 2.115.432

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Miscellaneous income 136,607 357,745 - (20,625) 473,727

Telecommunication income 188,034 964,713 - - 1,152,747

Investment income 25,461 58,030 763 (35,916) 48,338

Interest expense 027.8881 1253.9501 135.9161 35.916 1381.8381

Total non-operating revenue
(expense), net 222.214 1.126.538 (35.153) (20.6251 1.292,974

3,408,406

(408,571)

(6,690,395)

47.292

(3,643,268)

62.628.386

S58.985.118
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MEYERS BROTHERS KALICICA, RC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GO VERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS

To the Municipal Light Board and Manager of the
City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light Department

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of the City of Westfield Gas and Electric Light
Department (the "Department") and the Southwest Cooperative (the "Cooperative"), which comprise the proprietary
fund consolidated statement of net position as of December 31, 2014, and the related proprietary fund consolidated
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, the fiduciary
fund statement of fiduciary net position as of December 31,2014 and statement of changes in fiduciary net position for
the year ended and the related notes to the consolidated fmancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
May 6,2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In plarming and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Department and the
Cooperative's internal controls over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's internal
controls. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's
internal controls.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Department and the Cooperative's consolidated
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, dining our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that may have not been identified.
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Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Department and the Cooperative's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Department in a separate letter dated May 6,2015.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Department and the Cooperative's
intemal controls or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Department and the Cooperative's intemal controls and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Holyoke, Massachusetts
May 6,2015
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Exhibit A

Certification and Signature Page

Must be completed and submitted with proposal.

The Undersigned proposing Vendor submits this Proposal to deliver a Broadband Network Service to the
Towns of Monterey, Sandisfield, andTolland.

ividual submitting proposal
Date:

Name of business:

Certificate of Non-CoIIusion

The undersigned certifies under penalties of perjury that this proposal has been made and submitted in
good faith and without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this certification, the word
"person" shall mean any natural person, business, partnership, corporation, imion, committee, club, or
other organization, entity, or group of individuals.

Signatiu-e of authfj^ed individual submitting proposal
Date:

Name of business:

Tax Compliance Certification

Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 62C, §49A, I certify under the penalties of perjury that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, I am in compliance with all laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts relating
to taxes, reporting of employees and contractors, and withholding and remitting child support.

Signature of authonzed individual submitting proposal

Name of busmess

17

























Exhibit C.4

Price Proposal Form - New Marlborough

Tlie undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
New Marlborough Broadband Network Service Procurement: This price proposal as stated in the
RFP response is only valid if all 4 towns as part of the RFP execute contracts with Frontier and
such contracts reflect the terms and conditions identified by the parties including those identified
by Frontier in the main body of Frontier's response.

1. A lump sum price of $920,000 due at commencement of construction and $6,026,400
Dollars payable when the network is complete, or alternatively, at the Town's election,

2. A one-time non-recurring charge of $920,000 due at commencement of construction and
Monthly payments in the amount of $30 to be made each month over the term of the contract, for
all units in the town regardless of whether service is requested or not. The payments are to be paid
to Frontier monthly for a period of 15 years. The monthly payment required is $33,480.

The price quoted assumes all Town premises can be connected, with the exception of the special
areas identified in the RFP, which as noted require further discussion and assessment. The number
of premises used in the development of this proposal is 1116 and can only be adjusted upward over
the life of the contract, which require an additional $30 per month per additional location for the
remaining months of the 15 year term when added.

Acknowledged and Agreed:

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

February 23, 2017



Exhibit C.l

Price Proposal Form - Monterey

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Monterey Broadband Network Service Procurement: This price proposal as stated in the RFP
response is only valid if all 4 towns as part of the RFP execute contracts with Frontier and such
contracts reflect the terms and conditions identified by the parties including those identified by
Frontier in the main body of Frontier's response.

1. A lump sum price of $680,000 due at commencement of construction and $4,654,800
Dollars payable when the network is complete, or alternatively, at the Town's election,

2. A one-time non-recurring charge of $680,000 due at commencement of construction and
Monthly payments in the amount of $30 to be made each month over the term of the contract, for
all units in the town regardless of whether service is requested or not. The payments are to be paid
to Frontier monthly for a period of 15 years. The monthly payment required is $25,860.

The price quoted assumes all Town premises can be connected, with the exception of the special
areas identified in the RFP, which as noted require further discussion and assessment. The number
of premises used in the development of this proposal is 862 and can only be adjusted upward over
the life of the contract, which require an additional $30 per month per additional location for the
remaining months of the 15 year term when added.

This proposal does not cover services identified in the Frontier RFP response identified for
Monterey in response 5.3.5 (Special Town Areas to Assess)

Acknowledged and Agreed:

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

February 23,2017



Exhibit C.2

Price Proposal Form - Sandisfield

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Sandisfield Broadband Network Service Procurement; This price proposal as stated in the RFP
response is only valid if all 4 towns as part of the RFP execute contracts with Frontier and such
contracts reflect the terms and conditions identified by the parties including those identified by
Frontier in the main body of Frontier's response.

1. A lump sum price of $620,000 due at commencement of construction and $3,672,000
Dollars payable when the network is complete, or alternatively, at the Town's election,

2. A one-time non-recurring charge of $620,000 due at commencement of construction and
Monthly payments in the amount of $30 to be made each month over the term of the contract, for
all units in the town regardless of whether service is requested or not. The payments are to be paid
to Frontier monthly for a period of 15 years. The monthly payment required is $20,400.

The price quoted assumes all Town premises can be connected, with the exception of the special
areas identified in the RFP, which as noted require further discussion and assessment. The number
of premises used in the development of this proposal is 680 and can only be adjusted upward over
the life of the contract, which require an additional $30 per month per additional location for the
remaining months of the 15 year term when added.

This proposal does not cover services identified in the Frontier RFP response identified for
Sandisfield in response 5.3.5 (Special Town Areas to Assess)

Acknowledged and Agreed:

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications

Februaiy 23,2017



Exhibit C.3

Price Proposal Form - Toiland

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Toiland Broadband Network Service Procurement: This price proposal as stated in the RFP
response is only valid if all 4 towns as part of the RFP execute contracts with Frontier and such
contracts reflect the terms and conditions identified by the parties including those identified by
Frontier in the main body of Frontier's response.

1. A lump sum price of $430,000 due at commencement of construction and $2,646,000
Dollars payable when the network is complete, or alternatively, at the Town's election,

2. A one-time non-recurring charge of $430,000 due at commencement of construction and
Monthly payments in the amount of $30 to be made each month over the term of the contract, for
all units in the town regardless of whether service is requested or not. The payments are to be paid
to Frontier monthly for a period of 15 years. The monthly payment required is $14,700.

The price quoted assumes all Town premises can be connected, with the exception of the special
areas identified in the RFP, which as noted require further discussion and assessment. The number
of premises used in the development of this proposal is 490 and can only be adjusted upward over
the life of the contract, which require an additional $30 per month per additional location for the
remaining months of the 15 year term when added.

This proposal does not cover services identified in the Frontier RFP response identified for Toiland
in response 5.3.5 (Special Town Areas to Assess)

Acknowledged and Agreed:

Kevin Smith

Vice President, Business Development
Frontier Communications
February 23, 2017
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Town of Monterey Price Proposal

Matrix Design Group is pleased to provide this proposal to the Town of Monterey. This proposal
is for Matrix to Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the honie) Network at our
own expense. The plan is designed to mininuze the tax inpact to the residents of Monterey.

The Town would be responsible for all aspects of the utility pole owners "Make-ready" process
including but not limited to pole data survey, utility company pole applications and surety bonds,
joint walk-out with utility companies, actiuil utility company make-ready work, and police
details during make-ready. Tlie Town would also be responsible for a phcc to house and power
the network electronics.

The estimated net cost to the Town of Monterey for the above would be S291,250

Matrix would handle tlie utility pole data survey and preparing and shepherding the pole
attachment applicaibns at a rate of S25 per pole. Matrix would require doing this work to reduce
or eliminate any potential delays. It is estimated that the Town has 1,950 utility poles.

Matrix would also Ixindle the utility company joint walk-out at a rate of SI3.95 per pole.

Tlie estimated overall cost to tlie Town of Monterey for utility company make-ready work based
iqjon 1,950 poles would be 5780,000.

The Town would also be responsible for providing a secure area with clean power to house the
network electronics. Matrix will assist the Town with specifications for any bids needed to insure
a suitable space. The estimated cost to provide a suitable space for the network electronics is
$100,000. The costs could be much less if an area in an existing municipal building is utili2Ed for
this purpose.

Once again Matrix Design Group would Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTITl (liber to tlie
home) Network at OUR OWN EXPENSE. This would include the police details needed during
construction

The cost estimate breakdown for the Town of Monterey's expenses for this project would be as
follows;

$780,000 for utility compare pole attaclunent and make-ready process
$57,000 for police details during utility pole make-ready

-  $100,000 for place to house and power network electronics
-  $20,000 for legal and insurance
-  $10,000 for miscellaneous

Total of 5967,000 minus MBl Construction grant of 5627,000 and pole data survey grant of
$48,750 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to the Town ofMonterey ofjust
$291,250.
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The estimated tax payer inpact for the Matrix plan for Monterey based upon a 10-year note at
2.9% interest for the average of 844 homes would be an increase of just $39.80 per year for 10-
years. It should be expected that the Town of Monterey would be able to do better than the rate
of 2.9% via State House Notes or other available municipal financial vehicles.

The fees for a Standard Aerial Fiber installation of FTTH service to Subscribers during a three
(3) month pre-subscription period established by Matrix and agreed to by the Town or MLP shall
be $500. TIk fee would be broken into two payments of $250 each. The first would be at time of
signing up and the second just prior to construction. The fee includes a standard fiber drop to
home, and standard ONT installation Subscribers signing 15) during the pre-subscription period

shall commit to a 24-month minimum term of service.

Subscribers requesting service after the three (3) month pre-subscr^tion period or who do not
wish to commit to a 24-month minimum term of servdce shall pay a $1500 fee for a Standard
Fiber Installation (includes fiber Drop to home, ONT and installation).

The Town or MLP would have the option to purchase the compfeted network for an agreed i9}on
amount after the third year of operation Based on the estimated 57 miles of network and 844

homes the biQ^-out amount should be approximately $2^56,890. After that third anniversary the

purchase price would then decrease by $138,640 each year thereafter. After 20-years the biQ^-out

amount would be $10.

As fer as the subscribers - there are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/month.

Enhanced Internet: Up to 100 Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps iqj to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis.
Dedicated connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited local and long distance calling (lower
48 US States). The VoIP service will come with standard features including but not limited to
Caller ID, Call Waiting, 3-Way Calling, etc. Cost to add a VoIP line would be $20/montli A
second VoIP line may be ordered for an additfonal $20/month.

Digital voicemail servdces are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the
voicemail to email feature, which allows you to listen to your voicemail fi'om your email account
when you are away fi'om your home phone.

Subscribers at time of installation may opt for aCalix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in
802.11 AC WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month.

Pricing does not include any applicable taxes or estimated MLP fee. The MLP fee would be used
to pay for the yearty pole rentals, surety bonds and miscellaneous MLP expenses. The MLP fee
would be set by the MLP. a w
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General Subscriber Terms and Conditions: The following are potential general Terms and
Conditions of Use for Residential Broadband Service:

-  Two year agreement required if customer signs up during three-month pre-subscription
period.

-  An adult 18 years of age or older must be present during the installation of services.
-  Price applies to base monthly rate onfy; excludes optional services and installation

charges.
-  Customer will be responsible for the installation of necessary conduit if none is available.
-  Payments 30 days pastdiK wiH result in termination of service. A reconnection fee of

$10.00 will be charged for any service disconnected due to non-payment.
-  Pets must be restrained or otherwise kept away from the installer(s) until work is

complete.
-  Electronic equ^ment is and shall remain property of Matrix.
-  Failure to allow for equipment removal upon termination of services, or damaged

eqi^ment, shall result in a $500.00 fee.
-  Internet service and fees will be billed on a monthly basis.
-  Except for the ONT, batteiy back-iqj unit and service drop, the Customer is responsibte,

at its expense, for the installation, maintenance and repair of all equ^ment and wiring on
the Customer's premises to the point of connection, as specified by Matrix.

Estimated Broadband MLP Fee:

The MLP fee is used to insure the Town of Monterey would not have any out of pocket expenses

after the network is built. Based upon the following yearfy MLP Costs;

-  $25,350 for Utility pole rental costs

-  $4,500 for Surety Bond

-  $1,500 for accountant

-  $5,000 for legal, insurance and miscellaneous

Total $36,350 at a 60% take rate among 844 homes would equal a Monthfy Broadband MLP Fee
of about $6 per month. If the take-rate is 70% then the monthly Broadband MLP Fee could be as

low as $5.15 per subscriber.
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Exhibit C.l

Price Proposal Form - Monterey

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Monterey Broadband Network Service Procurement:

1. A lump sum estimated price of $967.000 minus MBI Construction grant of
$627.000 and pole data survey grant of $48.750 ($25 per pofel would leave an estimated

tret cost to the Town of Monterey of lust $291.250. Dollars ($291.250). or alternativelv. at
the Town's election,

2. Monthly payments in the amount of SNA to be made each month over the term of the
contract, which shall not exceed 15 years. (Vendor may quote level monthly payments or stepped
payments.)

The price quoted should assume all Town premises to be connected, subject to adjustment for the
actual number of premises connected

Vendoracknowledgesand agrees that any grant, to be negotiated with and paid by the MBI
directly to the Town ofMontereyto offietTo^vn's financial responsibilities underthe
proposed Matrix Plan.

Acknowledged and Agreed:

Authorized vendor Official



Town of New Mariborough Price Proposal

Matrix Design Groi^) is pleased to provide this proposal to the Town of NewMarlborough. This
proposal is for Matrix to Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the home) Network
at our own e3q)ense. The plan is des^ned to minimize the tax inpact to the residents of New
Marlborough.

The Town would be responsible for all aspects of the utility pole owners "Make-ready" process
including but not limited to pole data survey, utility company pole applications and surety bonds,
joint walk-out with utility conpanies, actual utility company make-ready work, and police
details during make-ready. The Town would also be responsible for a place to house and power
the network electronics.

The estimated net cost to the Town of Monterey for the above would be $334,250

Matrix would handle the utility pole data survey and preparing and stepherding the pole
attachment applications at a rate of $25 per pole. Matrix would require doing this work to reduce
or eliminate any potential delays. It is estimated that the Town has 2,818 utility poles.

Matrix would also handle the utility company Joint walk-out at a rate of $13.95 per pole.

The estimated overall cost to the Town of Mouldy for utility conpany make-ready work based
upon 2,818 poles would be $1,127,200.

The Town would also be responsibte for providing a secure area with clean power to house the
network electronics. Matrix will assist the Town with specifications for any bids needed to insure
a suitable space. The estimated cost to provide a suitable space for the network electronics is
$100,000. The costs could be much less if an area in an existing municpal building is utilized for
this purpose.

OiKe again Matrix Design Groip would Design, Buikl and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the
home) Network at OUR OWN EXPENSE. This would include the police details needed during
constructioa

The cost estimate breakdown for the Town of New Marlborough's expenses for this project
would be as follows;

-  $1,127,200 for utility conpany pole attachment and make-ready process
-  $88,000 for police details during utility pole make-ready
-  $100,000 for place to house and power network electronics
-  $20,000 for legal and insurance
-  $10,000 for miscellaneous

Total of $1,345,200 minus MBI Construction grant of $940,500 and pole data survey grant of
$70,450 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to tte Town of New
Marlborou^ of just $334,250. IMATRIX
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The estimated tax payer intact for the Matrix plan for New Marlborough based upon a 10-year
note at 2.9% interest for the average of 844 homes would be an increase of just $35.50 per year
for 10-years. It should be expected that the Town of New Marlborough would be able to do
better than the rate of 2.9% via State House Notes or other available municipal financial
vehicles.

The fees for a Standard Aerial Fiber installation of FTTH service to Subscribers during a three

(3) month pre-subsciption period establshed by Matrix and agreed to by the Town or MLP shall
be $500. The fee would be broken into two payments of $250 each. The first would be at time of
signing up and the second just prior to constructioa The fee includes a standard fiber drop to
home, and standard ONT installation. Subscribers signing ip during the pre-subscr^tion period

shall commit to a 24-month minimum term of service.

Subscribers requesting service after the three (3) month pre-subscription period or who do not
wish to commit to a 24-month minimum term of service shall pay a $1500 fee for a Standard
Fiber Installation (includes fiber Drop to home, ONT and installation).

The Town or MLP would have the optfon to purchase the completed network for an agreed i^on
amount after the third year ofoperatbn. Based on the estimated 88 miles of network and 1,086
homes the biy-out amount should be approximately $3,356,609. After that third anniversary the
purchase price would then decrease by $197,447 each year thereafter. After 20-years the buy-out
amount would be $10.

As fer as the subscribers - there are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/month.

Enhanced Internet: Up to 100 Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps up to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis.
Dedicated connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited bcal and long distance calling (lower
48 US States). The VoIP service will come with standard features mcluding but not limited to
Caller ID, Call Waitmg, 3-Way Callmg, etc. Cost to add a VoIP fine would be $20/month. A
second VoIP fine may be ordered for an additional $20/month.

Digital voicemail services are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the
voicemail to email feature, vrifich allows you to listen to your vobemail fix)m your email account
when you are away fi-om your home phone.

Subscribers at time of installation may opt for aCalix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in
802.11 AC WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month.
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Pricing does not include any applicable taxes or estimated MLP fee. The MLP fee would be used
to pay for the yearly pole rentals, surety bonds and miscellaneous MLP expenses. The MLP fee
would be set by the MLP.

General Subscriber Terms and Conditions: The following are potential general Terms and
Conditions of Use for Residential Broadband Service:

-  Two year agreement required if customer signs iqj during three-month pre-subscr^tion
period.

-  An adult 18 years of age or older must be present during the installatbn of services.
-  Price applies to base monthly rate on^^; excludes optional services and installation

charges.
-  Customer will be responsible for the installation of necessary conduit if none is available.
-  Payments 30 days past due will result in temmiation of service. A reconnection fee of

$10.00 will be charged for aiy service disconnected due to non-payment.
-  Pets must be restrained or otherwise kept away from the installer(s) until work is

complete.
-  Electronic equipment is and shall remain property of Matrix.
-  Failure to altow for equ^ment removal vqron termination of services, or damaged

equipment, shall result m a $500.00 fee.
-  Intemet servbe and fees will be billed on a monthly basis.
-  Except for the ONT, battery back-up unit and service drop, the Customer is responsible,

at its e?q}ense, for the installation, maintenance and repair of all equ^ment and wiring on
the Customer's premises to the point of connection, as specified by Matrix.

Estimated Broadband MLP Fee:

The MLP fee is used to insure the Town of New Marlborough would not have any out of pocket
expenses after the network is built. Based ipon the foflowing yearfy MLP Costs;

-  $36,634 for Utility pole rental costs

-  $9,000 for Verizon Surety Bond

-  $ 1,500 for accountant

-  $5,000 for legal, insurance and miscellaneous

Total $52,134 at a 60% take rate among 1,086 homes would equal a Monthly Broadband MLP
Fee of about $6.67 per month. If the take-rate is 70% then the monthly Broadband MLP Fee

could be as low as $5.72 per subscriber.
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Exhibit C.4

Price Proposal Form - New Marlborough

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
New Marlborough Network Service Procurement:

1. A lump sum price of $1345,200 nrnius MBI Construction erant of S940.500 and
pole data survey grant of $70.450 ($25 per note) would leave an estimated net cost to the

Town of New Marlborough of lust $334.250. Dollars ($334,250). or ahemativelv. at the
Town's election,

2. Monthly payments in the amount of $ NA to be made each month over the term of
the contract, which shall not exceed 15 years. (Vendor may quote level monthly payments or
stepped payments.)

The price quoted should assume all Town premises to be connected, subject to adjustment for the
actual number of premises connected

Vendor acknowledges and agrees that any grant, to be negotiated with and paid by the MBI
directly to the Town ofNew Marlborough to ofifeet Town's financial responsibilities under
the proposed Matrix Plan.

AcknowlSdgei

OfFicalAuthorized



Town of Sandisfield Price Proposal

Matrix Design Group is pleased to provide this proposal to the Town of Sandisfield. This
proposal is fi)r Matrix to Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the home) Network
at our own e^q^ense. The plan is designed to minimize the tax impact to the residents of
Monterey.

The Town would be responsible for all aspects of the utility pole owners "Make-ready" process
including but not limited to pole data survey, utility company pole applications and surety bonds,
joint walk-out with utility conpanies, actual utility compare make-ready work, and police
details during make-ready. The Town would also be responsible for a place to house and power
the network electronics.

The estimated net cost to the Town of Sandisfield for the above would be S205,250

Matrix would handle the utility pofo data survey and preparing and shepherding the pole
attachment applications at a rate of $25 per pole. Matrix wouH require doing this work to reduce
or eliminate any potential delays. It is estimated that the Town has 1,762 utility poles.

Matrix would also handle the utility company Joint walk-out at a rate of $13.95 per pole.

The estimated overall cost to the Town of Sandisfield for utility company make-ready work
based upon 1,950 poles would be $704,800.

The Town would also be responsible for providing a secure area with clean power to house the
network electronics. Matrix will assist the Town with specifications for any bids needed to insure
a suitable space. The estimated cost to provide a suitable space for the network electronics is
$100,000. The costs could be much less if an area in an existing municipal building is utilized for
this purpose.

Once agam Matrix Design Groip would Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the
home) Network at OUR OWN EXPENSE. This would include the polke details needed during
constructioa

Tte cost estimate breakdown for the Town of Sandisfield's expenses for this project would be as
follows;

-  $704,800 for utility company pole attachment and make-ready process
-  $91,000 for police details during utility pole make-ready
-  $100,000 for place to house and power network electronics
-  $20,000 for legal and insurance
-  $10,000 for miscellaneous

Total of $925,800 minus MBI Construction grant of $676,500 and pole data survey grant of
$44,050 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to the Town of ^.
SandisfieH of just $205,250. (MATRIX
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The estimated tax payer impact for the Matrix plan for Sandisfield based iqjon a 10-yearnote at
2.9% interest for the average of 677 homes would be an increase of just $35.00 per year for 10-
years. It should be e^qjected that the Town of Sandisfield would be able to do better than the rate
of 2.9% via State House Notes or other available municipal financial vehicles.

The fees for a Standard Aerial Fiber installation of FTTH service to Subscribers during a three

(3) month pre-subsciption period established by Matrix and agreed to by the Town or MLP shall

be $500. The fee would be broken into two payments of $250 each. The first would be at time of

signing up and tl^ secoi^ just prior to constructioa The fee includes a standard fiber drop to

home, and standard ONT installatioa Subscribers signing iq) during the pre-subscription period

shall commit to a 24-month minimum term of service.

Subscribers requesting servfce after tte three (3) month pre-subscription period or who do not

wish to commit to a 24-month minimum term of service shall pay a $1500 fee for a Standard
Fiber Installation (includes fiber Drop to home, ONT and installation).

The Town or MBMLP would have the option to purchase the conpleted network for an agreed

iqjon amount after the third year of operatioa Based on the estimated 57 miles of network and

844 homes the bi^-out amount should be approximately $2,891,200. After that third anniversary

the purchase price would then decrease by $170,070 each year thereafter. After 20-years tte biy-
out amount would be $10.

As fer as the subscribers - there are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/month.

Enhanced Internet: Up to ICQ Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps up to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis.
Dedicated connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited local and long distance calling (lower
48 US States). The VoIP service will come with standard features including but not limited to
Caller ID, Call Waiting, 3-Way Calling, etc. Cost to add a VoIP line would be $20/month A
second VoIP line may be ordered for an additional $20/month.

Digital voicemail services are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the
voicemail to email feature, which allows you to listen to your voicemail fi'om your email account
when you are away fi'om your home phone.

Subscribers at time of installation may opt for aCalix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in
802.11 AC WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month.

Pricing does not include ar^ applicable taxes or estimated MLP fee. The MLP fee would be used
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to pay for the yearly pole rentals, surety bonds and miscellaneous MLP expenses. The MLP fee
wouM be set by the MLP.

General Subscriber Teims and Conditions: The following are potential general Terms and
Conditions of Use for Residential Broadband Service:

-  Two year agreement required if customer signs ip during three-month pre-subsciption
period.

-  An aduh 18 years of age or older must be present during the installation of services.
-  Price applies to base monthly rate onfy; excludes optional services and installation

charges.
-  Customer will be responsible for the installation of necessary conduit if none is available.
-  Payments 30 days past due will result in termination of service. A reconnection fee of

$10.00 will be charged for any service disconnected due to non-payment.
-  Pets must be restrained or otherwise kept away from the installer(s) until work is

complete.
-  Electronic equipment is and shall remain property of Matrix.
-  Failure to allow for equ^ment removal upon termination of services, or damagjed

equipment, shall result in a $500.00 fee.
-  Internet service and fees will be billed on a monthly basis.
-  Except for the ONT, battery back-up unit and service drop, the Customer is responsibfe,

at hs e>q}ense, for the installation, maintenance and repair of all equipment and wiring on
the Customer's premises to the point of connection, as specified by Matrix.

Estimated Broadband MLP Fee:

The MLP fee is used to insure the Town of Sandisfield would not have any out of pocket
expenses after the network is built. Based upon the following yearfy MLP Costs;

-  $22,906 for Utility pole rental costs

-  $4,500 for Surety Bond

-  $1,500 for accountant

-  $5,000 for legal, insurance and miscellaneous

Total $33,906 at a 60% take rate among 677 homes would equal a Monthty Broadband MLP Fee
of about $7 per month. If the take-rate is 70% then the monthly Broadbatxi MLP Fee could be as
fow as $6 per subscriber.
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Exhibit C.2

Price Proposal Form - Sandisfield

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Sandisfield Broadband Network Service Procurement:

THIS PRICE EXCLUDES THE 148 OTIS WOOD LANDS RESIDENCES:

1. A lump sum price of $925.800 minus MBI Construction grant of $676.500 and pole
data survey grant of $44.050 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to the

Town of Sandisfield of lust $205.250. Dollars ($205.250). or altemativelv. at the Town's
election,

2, Monthly payments in the amount of $ NA to be made each month over the term of
the contract, which shall not exceed 15 years. (Vendor may quote level monthly payments or
stepped payments.)

The price quoted should assume all Town premises to be connected, with the exclusion of Otis
^ood Lands homes subject to adjustment for the actual number of premises connected

Vendor acknowledges and agrees that any grant, to be negotiated with and paid by the MBI
directly to the Town ofSandisfield to offset To>vn's financial responsibilities under the
proposed Matrix Plan.

Ackn^ledged and Agreed

Author endor Official



Town of Tolland Price Proposal

Matrix Design Group is pleased to provide this proposal to the Town of Tolland. This proposal is
for Matrix to Design, Build and Operate a OPON FTTH (fiber to the home) Network at our own
e}q)ense. The plan is designed to minimize the tax inpact to the residents of Tolland.

The Town would be responsible for all aspects of the utility pole owners "Make-ready" process
including but not limited to pole data survey, utility conpany pofe applications and surety bonds,
joint walk-out with utility conpanies, actual utility conpany make-ready work, and police
details during make-ready. The Town would also be responsible for a place to house and power
the network electronics.

The estimated net cost to the Town of Tolland for the above would be S291,250

Matrix would handle the utility pok data survey and preparing and shepherding the pole
attachment applications at a rate of $25 per pole. Matrix would require doing this work to reduce
or eliminate any potential delays. It is estimated that the Town has 801 utility poles.

Matrix would also handle the utility conpany jobt walk-out at a rate of $13.95 per pole.

The estimated overall cost to the Town of Tolland for utility conpany make-ready work based
upon 801 poles would be $320,400.

The Town would also be responsible for providing a secure area with clean power to house the
network electronics. Matrix wiU assist the Town with specifications for any bids needed to insure
a suitable space. The estimated cost to provide a suitable space for the network electronics is
$100,000. The costs could be much less if an area in an existing municpal building is utflized for
this purpose.

Once again Matrix Design Group would Design, Build and Operate a GPON FTTH (fiber to the
home) Network at OUR OWN EXPENSE. This would include the police details needed during
constructioa

The cost estimate breakdown for the Town of Tolland's expenses for this project would be as
follows;

-  $320,400 for utility conpany pole attachment and make-ready process
-  $41,000 for police details during utility pole make-ready
-  $100,000 for place to house and power network electronics
-  $20,000 for legal and insurance
-  $10,000 for miscellaneous

Total of $491,400 minus MB! Construction grant of $456,500 and pole data survey grant of
$20,025 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to the Town of Tolland of just $14,875.

ATRIX
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Due to this estimated net cost ofjust $14,875 it is assumed this amount would be sinply paid out
of Town Free Cash or from the Town Stabilization Account. It should be noted that there are a

number of areas in Town that have underground utilities and ToDand may decide to utilize
additional funds to put new poles or conduit into these areas.

The fees for a Standard Aerial Fiber installation of FTTH service to Subscribers during a three

(3) month pre-subscriptbn period establisl^d by Matrix and agreed to by the Town or MLP shall
be $500. The fee woukl be broken into two payments of $250 each. The first would be at time of

signing up and the second just prior to constructioa The fee includes a standard fiber drop to

home, and standard ONT installation. Subscribers signing up during the pre-subscription period

shall commit to a 24-month minimum term of service.

Subscribers requesting service after the three (3) month pre-subscription period or who do not
wish to commit to a 24-month minimum term of service shall pay a $1500 fee for a Standard
Fiber Installation (includes fiber Drop to home, ONT and installation).

The Town or MBMLP would have the option to purchase the completed network for an agreed

ipon amount after the third year of operation. Based on the estimated 57 miles of network and
844 homes the bi^-out amount should be approximately $1,601,614. After that third anniversary

the purchase price would then decrease by $94,614 each year thereafter. After 20-years the buy

out amount would be $10.

As fer as the subscribers - there are two (2) residential service tiers:

Standard Internet: Up to 50 Mbps Internet connection for $95/nK)nth

Enhanced Internet: Up to ICQ Mbps Internet connection for $135/month.

Custom connections of above 100 Mbps iq? to 1 Gbps are priced on a case by case basis.
Dedicated connections of up to 10 Gbps are also available on a custom price basis.

Internet and VoIP: A VoIP line will allow for unlimited local ami fong distame calling (lower
48 US States). The VoIP service will come with standard features including but not limited to
Caller ID, C^ Waiting, 3-Way Calling, etc. Cost to add a VoIP line would be $20/month A
second VoIP line may be ordered for an additional $20/month

Di^l voicemail services are available for $3 per month per voicemail box. This includes the
voicemail to email feature, which allows you to listen to your voicemail from your email account
when you are away from your hone phone.

Subscribers at time of installation may opt for aCalix GigaCenter indoor ONT with built in
802.11 AC WiFi for an additional equipment charge of $5/month

Pricing does not include any applicable taxes or estimated MLP fee. The MLP fee would be used
to pay for the yearly pole rentals, surety bonds and miscellaneous MLP expenses. The MLP fee
would be set by the MLP.

flUIATRIX
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General Subscriber Terms and Conditions: "llie following are potential general Terms and
Conditions of Use for Residential Broadband Service:

-  Two year agreement required if customer si^ if) during three-month pre-subscription
period.

-  An adult 18 years of age or older must be present during Uie installatbn of services.
-  Price applies to base monthly rale onfy; excludes optbnal services and installation

charts.
Customer will be responsible for the installation of necessary conduit if none Ls available.
Payments 30 days past due will result in termination of service. A reconnection fee of
$10.00 will be charged tor any service disconnected due to non-paynx:nt.
Pels must be restrained or otherwise kept away from the insialler(s) itntil work is
complete.

-  Electronic equipment is and sliall remain property of Matrix.
-  Failure to allow for equipment rcnx)val upon termination of .services, or damaged

equipment, shall result in a $500.00 fee.
liUeniei service and fees will be billed on a ninthly basis.
Except for the ONT, battery back-ift unit and seiMce drop, the Customer is responsible,
at its expense, for the installation, maintenance and repair of all equipment and wiring on
tlie Customer's premises to the point of connection, as specified by Matrix.

Estimated Broadband MLPFee:

The MLP fee is used to insure the Town of ToUand would not have any out of pocket ejqienses

after the network is buik. Based upon the foltowing yearly MLP Costs;

-  $10,413 for Utility pole rental costs

-  $4,500 for Verizon Surety Bond

$1,500 fi>r accountant

$5,000 for legal insurance and miscellaneous

Total $21,413 at a 60% take rate among 535 homes would equal a Monthfy Broadband MLP Fee

of about $5.56 per month. If the take-rate is 70% then tlie irxjnthly Broadband MLP Fee could be

as tow as $4.78 per subscriber.
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Exhibit C.3

Price Proposal Form - Tolland

The undersigned Vendor submits the following as its Price Proposal to the MLP for the Town of
Tolland Network Service Procurement:

1. A lump sum price of $491.400 minus MBI Construction grant of $456.500 and pole
data survey grant of $20.025 ($25 per pole) would leave an estimated net cost to the

Town of Tolland of lust $14.875. Dollars ($14.8751. or altemativelv. at the Town's election,

2. Monthfy payments in the amount of $ NA to be made each month over the term of
the contract, which shall not exceed 15 years. (Vendor may quote level monthly payments or
stepped payments.)

The price quoted should assume all Town premises to be connected, subject to adjustment for the
actual number of premises connected

Vendoracknowledgesand agrees that any grant, to be negotiated with and paid by the MBI
directly to the Town ofTolland to offietTown's financial responsibilities underthe
proposed Matrix Plan.

Authorized/ Vendor Official
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whip city fiber

1.0 Service Offerings and Prices

whip City Fiber is pleased to offer the following preliminary cost proposal for its services. These costs

are provided as a baseline, and are subject to deviation based upon further discussion and review. As

stated previously, Whip City Fiber would work with the three towns to develop service tiers, if so

chosen, However, Whip City Fiber would recommend one service tier at gigabit rate. It is important to

note that the cost to service each subscriber does not directly correlate to the bandwith supplied. A

pricing structure totaling the costs consisting of back office services, backbone costs, debt repayment,

pole licensing, and depreciation reserve would be calculated with each town. Other indeterminate costs

would be field customer service and field network support, as these costs would vary, dependent upon

the expected service level the three towns wish for their subscribers.

Engineering and Design

1  Data Collection Route Validation $1176 per mile

2  Pole Attachment Heights $12 per pole

3  Final Strand Maps $86.50 per mile

4  FTTH Fiber & Splice Design $510 per mile

5  Pole Application Processing $10 per pole

6  Pole Application Fees At Cost

Scope:

Item 1

Includes house count, commercial count, MDU count, by pole served based on existing power
drop service routing.

Pole Tag (Verizon and Power Utility)

Road & Street Lines, building silhouettes, bridge crossings, RR, DOT hwy. All structures - Utilizing
available GIS resources.

Main Distribution OH to show span footage

Main Distribution UG to show span footage, including proposed HH and pedestal locations
(treated as pole locations for pricing)
Drop Services including all individual services to building will be noted as OH, UG <150', if >150'
pathway will be surveyed with path and
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Item 2:

Item 3;

Item 4;

footage noted (UG will be to the best of our ability through site review, aerial will be at same

per pole rate.

Hi-leve! make ready analysis for communication space attachment by general conditions of pole
and existing pole attachment findings (into High, Med, Low categories)

All communications attachments and secondary attachment heights captured

Create Final Strand Map

To include buildings, roads and known structures (bridges, RR, etc)

•  Provide complete FTTH layout design services for a GPON architecture design, Including

backbone ring and feeder distribution

•  Select location of field FDH cabinets (pole mount)

•  Splice schematics to serve entire FTTH network - physical layer only

•  Complete Bill of Materials (BOM) and schedule of estimated values

•  Hard Copy Deliverable will be construction drawing set based on a grid layout with keymap and

splice diagrams

•  Final deliverable will be in either ArcFM (FM Manager) or ArcGIS Shape Files

Item 5:

•  EIco and Telco Pole application preparation and submittal

•  Application management

•  Make ready management / coordination

•  Oversight & reporting until license is received

•  The deliverable on this item is the final pole attachment license from each telco and eico utility.

Price does not include the following:

•  Application fees

• Make Ready Expenses

• MR design services

•  Pole Load Analysis

•  Electrical design services

Assumptions:

•  Building silhouettes, bridge crossings, RR, DOT hwy, structures will be shown utilizing existing
GIS resources

•  UG distribution lines will be recommended, with note that existing utilities are not known, and

proper clearance must be maintained.

• WG+E will attempt to legally gain access to private properties to collect data, but will not do so
without permission.

•  Final architecture will be reviewed with owner prior to design.

•  ArcGIS Shape files available for owner to import into their systems.

•  ArcFM (FM Manager) will be based on the WCF library setup

2
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Procurement

7  Construction Contractor Bidding.....

8  Material Bidding and Procurement,

Scope:

. 1.25% of construction bid

1% of material costs

Item 7:

Item 8:

Preparation of ail construction specifications

Preparation of all contract documents

Pre-bid meeting with prospective contractors

Notice in Central Register, Comm-Buys, and Prevailing Wage

Setup In WCF electronic sourcing and bidding platform

Contractor evaluation and reference verification

Bid Evaluation and award recommendation

Preparation of all material specifications

Preparation of all contract documents

Pre-fald meeting with prospective vendors (if required)

Notice in Central Register and Comm-Buys

Setup in WCF electronic sourcing and bidding platform

Bid Evaluation and award recommendation

Project Management

9  Full Office and Field Project Management Services Approximately 6% of Total Network Costs

Scope:

Item 9:

•  Project Management to manage overall program to delivery of successful project between

contractors, field project managers, and vendors

•  Field project managers to manage customer /contractor communications and contractor

management

•  Quality Control and Quality Assurance

•  Administrative Staff to support customer calls, field project managers

Network Operations

10 Circuits from town to WCF Edge Router(s), per month: Negotiable

11 Internet subscriber cost, per month: $40
3
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11.1 Program Management Included

11.2 Customer Service Included

11.3 Sales and Marketing Included

11.4 Web Site Included

11.5 Billing Included

11.6 Tech Support Included

11.7 Email Included

11.8 Network Security Included

11.9 Network Monitoring Included

11.10 Legal and Regulatory included

12 Voice Over IP Subscriber cost, per month $12

13 Distribution Maintenance Negotiable

Scope:

Item 10:

Development of cost effective circuit paths from the three towns to WCF edge routers or other

acceptable internet access points.

Dependent upon total subscriptions, and requested topology.

Item 11.1: Program Management

Oversight of program implementation

Direct access to senior executive 24X7X365

Item 11.2: Customer Service

Separate 800 number to WCF Call Center

Physical Payment Center 8:30am to 5 pm, Monday - Friday

Call Center Account Agents available 8:30am to 5pm, Monday - Friday,

Item 11.3: Sales and Marketing

Custom branded correspondence

Quarterly sales literature

Bi-monthly email literature

Item 11.4: Web Site

Web site to capture customer applications and interest

Custom URL

Reporting

Customer Relationship Management

Item 11.5: Billing

•  Billing Template setup
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•  Rates management

•  Physical bill presentment

•  Online bill presentment

•  Collections

•  Reporting

•  Tax payments, as required

Item 11,6: Tech Support

•  Tier 1 Help Desk 24 X 7 - Phone Support

•  Tier 2 Help Desk 7 am - 6 PM, Monday - Saturday

•  Tier3 Network Suport 24 X 7

•  Tier 1 Field Support - 7am - 6pm, Monday - Saturday

•  CPE Trouble Call Support 7am - 10 pm, Monday-Saturday.

•  Field Trouble Call Support 7am - 10 pm, Monday - Saturday.

Item 11.7: Email

•  1 email address

•  Custom domain

• Web access

Item 11.9: Network Security

•  1 license of TrendMicro

Item 11.10: Legal and regulatory

•  FCC Form 477 filing

•  FCC Form 499A filing

•  Digital Content Millennium Act (DCMA) administration

•  Communications Assistance for Law Enforcement Act (CALEA) management

Item 12: VoIP

•  Customer Service as described in 11.2

• Legal and regulatory: Universal Se vice Fund fees, taxes, and fee calculation.

• VoIP Features, to include:

• Free U.S. calling Remote Voicemail •  Call Return

• Caller-ID and call- Retrieval •  Online phonebook

waiting Online Preferences •  7/10-Digit Dialing
• One-touch voicemail Live Customer •  Optional WIFi

access Support Adapter
• Online call log 911 Service •  Free calling to
• Fax Mode Call Hold Canada

• Optional Bluetooth Online Voicemail •  Caller Name

Adapter Playback •  Anonymous call
• The utmost voice Area Code Selection blocking

clarity Encrypted calls •  Voicemail alerts

• Caller-ID blocking 911 Email and Text •  Private Device

Alerts •  Instant Second Line'"
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•  Voicemail monitoring •

•  Call forwarding •

•  Voicemail-to-email

forwarding (audio) •

•  Private Voicemail •

•  Three-way •

conferencing •

Item 13

•  Construction and repair personnel as

•  Construction equipment, materials

•  Traffic control

•  Testing

■  Splicing

•  Repair stock

•  Supervision

Do not disturb

Online Voicemail

Playback

Multi-Ring

Send to voicemail

Personal Number

Backup Number

required

Community blacklist

Free Mobile Minutes

Voicemail-to-

text (S4.99/mth)

Google Voice

Extensions
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